West Valley
N ater District

WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT
855 W. BASE LINE ROAD, RIALTO, CA 92376
PH: (909) 875-1804
WWW.WVWD.ORG

REGULAR BOARD MEETING
AGENDA

Thursday, December 18, 2025, 6:00 PM

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Kelvin Moore, President
Angela Garcia, Vice President
Estevan Bennett, Director
Daniel Jenkins, Director
Gregory Young, Director

"In order to comply with legal requirements for posting of agendas, only those items filed with the Board
Secretary’'s office by noon, on Wednesday a week prior to the following Thursday meeting, not requiring
departmental investigation, will be considered by the Board of Directors."

Members of the public may attend the meeting in person at 855 W. Base Line Road, Rialto, CA 92376, or
you may join the meeting using Zoom by clicking this link: https://lus02web.zoom.us/j/8402937790. Public
comment may be submitted via Zoom, by telephone by calling the following number and access code: Dial:
(888) 475-4499, Access Code: 840-293-7790, or via email to administration@wvwd.org.

If you require additional assistance, please contact administration@wvwd.org.


https://print.agendalink.app/agenda/WWW.WVWD.ORG
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/8402937790
mailto:administration@wvwd.org
mailto:administration@wvwd.org

CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL OF BOARD MEMBERS

APPROVAL OF ANY BOARD MEMBERS REQUESTS FOR REMOTE PARTICIPATION
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

OPENING PRAYER

CLOSED SESSION

1. PUBLIC EMPLOYMENT
Government Code Section 54957
Title: Board Secretary

ADOPT AGENDA

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

Any person wishing to speak to the Board of Directors on matters listed or not listed on the agenda, within its
jurisdiction, is asked to complete a Speaker Card and submit it to the Board Secretary, if you are attending in
person. For anyone joining on Zoom, please wait for the Board President’s instruction to indicate that you would
like to speak. Each speaker is limited to three (3) minutes. Under the State of California Brown Act, the Board of
Directors is prohibited from discussing or taking action on any item not listed on the posted agenda. Comments
related to noticed Public Hearing(s) and Business Matters will be heard during the occurrence of the item.

Public communication is the time for anyone to address the Board on any agenda item or anything under the
jurisdiction of the District. Also, please remember that no disruptions from the crowd will be tolerated. If someone
disrupts the meeting, they will be removed.

PRESENTATIONS

1. Rialto Basin Groundwater Council Update

CONSENT CALENDAR

1. Water System Infrastructure Installation and Conveyance Agreement with V5 Bloomington Gateway
Distribution Center, LLC for Bloomington Business Park SP - Phase 1 Pg.5

2. Conflict of Interest Code Update P9 33

3. Treasurer's Report - October 2025 Pg. 43

4. Monthly Cash Disbursements Report - November 2025 Pg. 61

5. Monthly Revenue and Expenditures Report - November 2025 Pg. 85

6. Purchase Order Report - November 2025  Pg. 91

BUSINESS MATTERS
Consideration Of:
1. Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2025 and 2024 Pg. 97
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2. Professional Services Agreement with Shuster Advisory Group, LLC, for Defined Contribution Plan Consulting
and Investment Fiduciary Services  Pg. 207

3. Professional Services Agreement and Task Order to Provide Groundwater Modeling Review and Support
Services Pg. 229

4. Adopt Ordinance No. 92 to Change the Time for Regular Meetings of the Board of Directors ~ Pg. 301
5. Federal Advocacy 2026 Strategy ~ P9g. 305

REPORTS

1. Board Committee Reports

2. Board Members

3. General Manager

4. Legal Counsel

5. Public Outreach Government Affairs

6. Board Secretary

UPCOMING MEETINGS

*December 22, 2025 - External Affairs at 12:00 p.m.
«January 5, 2026 - Safety and Technology at 5:00 p.m.
«January 8, 2026 - Policy at 5:00 p.m.

*January 12, 2026 - Finance at 5:00 p.m.

eJanuary 14, 2026 - Human Resources at 6:00 p.m.
*January 15, 2026 - Regular Board at 6:00 p.m.

UPCOMING COMMUNITY EVENTS
*December 20, 2025 - Fontana Santa Event

UPCOMING EDUCATIONAL & TRAINING OPPORTUNITIES

«January 26, 2026 - CMUA 2026 Annual Capitol Day
*February 11, 2026 - ACWA 2026 Legislative Symposium
*February 24-26, 2026 - ACWADC

ADJOURN



Please Note:

Material related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Board after distribution of the agenda packet
are available for public inspection in the District’s office located at 855 W. Baseline, Rialto, during normal
business hours. Also, such documents are available on the District’s website at www.wvwd.org subject to
staff’s ability to post the documents before the meeting.

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2(a), any request for a disability-related modification or
accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, in order to attend or participate in the above-
agendized public meeting should be directed to the Acting Board Secretary, Paola Lara, at least 72 hours in
advance of the meeting to ensure availability of the requested service or accommodation. Ms. Lara may be
contacted by telephone at (909) 875-1804 ext. 702, or in writing at the West Valley Water District, P.O. Box
920, Rialto, CA 92377-0920.

DECLARATION OF POSTING:

| declare under penalty of perjury, that | am employed by the West Valley Water District and posted the
foregoing Agenda at the District Offices on December 12, 2025.

Pacla Lara

Paola Lara, Acting Board Secretary

Date Posted: December 12, 2025


http://www.wvwd.org/

West Valley
N ater District

STAFF REPORT
DATE: December 18, 2025
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Rocky Welborn, Director of Engineering

SUBJECT: Water System Infrastructure Installation and Conveyance Agreement with 1V5 Bloomington Gateway
Distribution Center, LLC for Bloomington Business Park SP - Phase 1

STRATEGIC GOAL:

Strategic Goal 1 - Manage and Deliver a Safe, Reliable, and Sustainable Water Supply, Objective 1A - Increase
System Capacity for Anticipated Growth

MEETING HISTORY:
Engineering, Operations and Planning Committee Meeting - 12.09.2025

BACKGROUND:

IV5 Bloomington Gateway Distribution Center, LLC (“Developer”) is the owner of land located in the unincorporated
community of Bloomington, known as Bloomington Business Park (“Development”). The project proposes the
development of a 231-acre Specific Plan site for several industrial warehouses located north of Jurupa Avenue,
south of Santa Ana Avenue, east of Alder Avenue, and west of Linden Avenue. The Development will require the
upsizing and installation of new 16” and 12” Ductile Iron Pipe within the project area to meet the fire flow
requirements needed for a heavy industrial development, along with associated domestic and irrigation meters to
supply water service to the project.

To avoid conflicting paving schedules with a neighboring development and to prevent any delay to the construction
schedule, the Developer has phased out specific portions of the project. Specifically for Phase 1, the scope of work
includes the installation of new hydrants, the upgrade/relocation of several existing hydrants, and three (3) mainline
extensions within Linden Avenue, Maple Avenue and Locust Avenue north of Jurupa Avenue.

DISCUSSION:

West Valley Water District (“District’) and the Developer wish to enter into a Developer-Installed Water System
Infrastructure Installation and Conveyance Agreement (“Agreement”) to construct the water facilities needed to
supply water to the Development. This Agreement outlines the responsibilities of the Developer in constructing
facilities, including insurance, indemnification and bonding requirements as well as conveyance and acceptance of
the water system by the District. Attached as Exhibit A is a copy of the Water System Infrastructure Installation
and Conveyance Agreement for this development which also includes the location of the Development.

FISCAL IMPACT:



No fiscal impact to the District.

REQUESTED ACTION:

Staff recommends to the Board of Directors to:

1. Authorize entering into a Water System Infrastructure Installation and Conveyance Agreement with IV5
Bloomington Gateway Distribution Center, LLC.
2. Authorize the General Manager to execute all necessary documents related to the agreement.

Attachments

Exhibit A - WICA.pdf



https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/wvwd/pdfs/topics/693846a7dffef60047195df2/Exhibit%20A%20-%20WICA.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/wvwd/pdfs/topics/693846a7dffef60047195df2/Exhibit%20A%20-%20WICA.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/wvwd/pdfs/topics/693846a7dffef60047195df2/Exhibit%20A%20-%20WICA.pdf

Exhibit A



WATER SYSTEM INFRASTRUCTURE
INSTALLATION AND CONVEYANCE AGREEMENT

This water system infrastructure installation and conveyance agreement (“Agreement”) is
entered into and effective as of by and between IVS Bloomington Gateway
Distribution Center, LLC (“Developer”), and WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT (“District”)
who agree as follows:

The Developer is the owner of certain land described as Bloomington Business Park SP —
Phase 1 and as more fully (or further) shown on Exhibit "A". In developing this land, the
Developer is desirous of obtaining a public water supply adequate for domestic uses and public
fire protection purposes and is desirous of integrating that water system into the District’s public
water system.

In order to provide facilities for a water supply to said land, it is the intention of the parties
to this Agreement that the Developer shall furnish and install those water mains, fire hydrants,
service laterals, water meters and valves, valve boxes, and all other appurtenant fittings and
facilities required for a complete water system to serve the land shown on Exhibit "A".

In order to implement the foregoing and in consideration of the terms and conditions herein
contained, the parties further agree as follows:

1. DESIGN

1.1. Developer shall design and construct, at the Developer's sole expense, the water
facilities and appurtenances required to serve the development in accordance with final District-
approved plans known as Water Improvement Plans for Bloomington Business Park SP —
Phase 1 as approved and attached herein as Exhibit "B" and in accordance with District-approved
design standards and specifications, and the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

1.2. The water system design shall be by a Professional Engineer registered in the State of
California, and in accordance with the District's Rules and Regulations, latest edition (the “Rules
and Regulations”), the District's Standards for Domestic Water Facilities and Standard Drawings
herein included by reference, all applicable District ordinances and policies and all City, County,
State of California, and Federal laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, codes and other legal
requirements of all government bodies having jurisdiction over said construction and property (all
of the foregoing requirements in this paragraph being collectively referred to herein at times as
“Legal Requirements”).

1.3. The District, at Developer's expense, shall review Developer's plans for the purpose of
ensuring the adequacy of the design and conformance with the District's standards and
specifications. The District reserves the right to add, delete, modify, change or amend any or all
the plans and specifications.

1.4. In the event that the property to be developed includes multiple residential,
condominiums, commercial or industrial uses, all site plans, grading plans, improvement plans,
and any available plumbing plot plans shall be furnished to the District by Developer.



1.5. The District makes no warranties as to the correctness, accuracy or completeness of
the plans and specifications. The accuracy, adequacy, suitability, and correctness of the water
system design shall be the sole responsibility of the Developer.

2. CONSTRUCTION

2.1. Developer shall perform, or caused to be performed, all construction of the water
system infrastructure installation pursuant to the approved water system plans, legal requirements,
and other applicable requirements.

2.2 The performance of this Agreement shall commence within ninety (90) calendar days
from the executed date of this Agreement and shall be completed within one (1) year from the
estimated construction start date.

2.3. Time is of the essence in this Agreement; provided that, in the event good cause is
shown therefore, the general manager of the District (“General Manager””) may extend the time for
completion of the water system installation. Any such extension may be granted without the
notice to Developer's surety, and extensions so granted shall not relieve the surety's liability on the
bond to secure faithful performance of this Agreement. The General Manager shall be the sole
and final judge as to whether or not good cause has been shown to entitle Developer to an
extension.

2.4.  The Developer and its contractor and subcontractors shall attend a pre-construction
meeting with the District no less than two (2) working days prior to commencement of
construction.

2.5.  No work on water facilities shall commence prior to the completion of all required
curbs and gutters.

3. LICENSES AND PERMITS

3.1. Developer, and all of Developer’s contractors and subcontractors warrants it
possesses, or shall obtain, and maintain during the term of this Agreement any and all licenses,
permits, qualifications, insurance and approval of whatever nature that are legally required of
Developer, its contractors, and all subcontractors to practice its profession, skill or business.

3.2. The work to be performed under this Agreement, except meter installations by the
District, shall be performed by Developer, or a contractor or subcontractor who is pre-approved by
the District and is licensed under the laws of the State of California in the specialty Class of “C-
34” Pipeline or Class “A” General Engineering. A copy of the contract between Developer and
the selected pre-approved contractor and all subcontractors shall be submitted to the District for
review and approval attached herein as Exhibit “C”.

3.3.  Excavation/resurfacing permits shall be secured by Developer at Developer's
expense. Permits/easements to install, maintain and operate water system facilities in private
property shall be secured by Developer at Developer's sole expense prior to construction.



3.4. Developer shall, at Developer's sole expense, be responsible for obtaining and
adhering to a National Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) permit from the
Regional Water Quality Board as required for construction or pipeline flushing and disinfection.

3.5 Developer shall, at Developer's sole expense, be responsible for obtaining and
adhering to the California Environmental Quality Act.

4. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

4.1.  The following insurance requirements have been adopted by the District and shall be
applicable to this Agreement. These requirements supersede the insurance requirements set forth
in any other reference of the District, and to the extent of any conflict, the specified requirements
herein shall prevail.

4.2.  Developer shall ensure that Developer’s contractors conform to the following
insurance requirements and that all required documents are submitted to the District at the time of
Agreement submittal: Developer shall ensure that its contractors and all subcontractors shall
purchase and maintain insurance in amounts equal to the requirements set forth in (a) through (d)
below, and shall not commence work under this Agreement until all insurance required under this
heading is obtained in a form acceptable to the District, nor shall Developer allow any contractor
or subcontractor to commence construction pursuant to a contract or subcontract until all insurance
required of the contractor and any subcontractors has been obtained.

a.  General Liability:  Developer shall ensure that its contractor and all
subcontractors shall maintain during the life of this Agreement, a standard form of either
Comprehensive General Liability insurance or Commercial General Liability insurance (“General
Liability Insurance”) providing the following minimum limits of liability: Combined single limit
of $1.0 million per occurrence for bodily injury, including death, personal injury, and property
damage with $2.0 million minimum aggregate, separate for this project as evidenced by
endorsement. The insurance shall include coverage for each of the following hazards: Premises-
Operations; Owners and Contractors Protective; Broad Form Property Damage contractual for
Specific Contract; Severability of Interest or Cross-Liability; XCU Hazards; and Personal Injury —
With the "Employee" Exclusive Deleted.

b.  Automotive/Vehicle Liability Insurance: Developer shall ensure that its
contractor and all subcontractors shall maintain a policy of automotive/vehicle liability insurance
on a commercial auto liability form covering owned, non-owned and hired automobiles providing
the following minimum limits of liability: Combined single limit of liability of $1.0 million per
accident for Bodily Injury, Death and Property Damage (“Automotive/Vehicle Liability
Insurance™).

c.  Workers' Compensation Insurance: Developer shall ensure that its contractor
and all subcontractors shall provide such workers' compensation insurance with statutory
minimum amounts of coverage, as required by the California Labor Code and other applicable
law, and including employer's liability insurance with a minimum limit of $1,000,000.00
(“Workers’ Compensation Insurance”). Such Workers' Compensation Insurance shall be endorsed
to provide for a waiver of subrogation against the District.
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d. Excess Liability:  Developer shall ensure that its contractor and all
subcontractors shall provide a policy providing excess coverage in a face amount necessary when
combined with the primary insurance, to equal the minimum requirements for General Liability
Insurance and Automotive/Vehicle Liability Insurance.

4.3.  The insurances provided for in Section 4.2 and its subsections above are subject to all
of the following conditions:

a. The insurance shall be issued and underwritten by insurance companies
acceptable to the District, and shall be licensed by the State of California to do business on the
lines of insurance specified. The insurers must also have an "A-" Policyholder's rating" and a
"financial rating" of at least Class VII in accordance with the most current A.M. Best's Rating
Guide.

b.  Developer’s contractor and subcontractors may satisfy the limit requirements in
a single policy or multiple policies. Any such additional policies written as excess insurance shall
not provide any less coverage than that provided by the first or primary policy.

c. Any costs associated with a self-insured program, deductibles, or premium
rating programs that determine premium based on loss experience shall be for the account of
Developer, Developer’s contractor and subcontractors, and the District shall not be required to
participate in any such loss. If any such programs exist, Developer, Developer’s contractor and
subcontractors, agree to protect and defend the District in the same manner as if such cost
provisions were not applicable.

d.  Developer shall ensure that its contractor and all subcontractors shall have
presented at the time of execution of the Agreement, the original policies of insurance and a
certificate of insurance naming the District as the certificate holder and that such coverage is in
force and complies with the terms and conditions outlined herein.

e. If an insurance policy contains a general policy aggregate of less than the
minimum limits specified, then the policy coverage shall be written with limits applicable solely to
this Agreement, as specified, and shall not be reduced by or impaired by any other claims arising
against Developer. These policy limits shall be set forth by separate endorsement to the policy.

4.4.  Each such policy of General Liability Insurance and Automotive/Vehicle Liability
Insurance shall contain endorsements providing the following:

a. The District, their board members, officers, agents, employees, consultants, and
engineers, are hereby declared to be additional insureds under the terms of this policy, but only
with respect to the operations of the Developer at or upon any of the premises of the District in
connection with the Agreement with the District, or acts or omissions of the additional insureds in
connection with, but limited to its general supervision or inspection of said operations and save for
any claims arising from the sole negligence or sole willful misconduct the District.

b.  No policy shall be canceled, limited, materially altered, or non-renewed by the
insurer until thirty (30) days after receipt by the District of a written notice of such cancellation or
reduction in coverage.
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C. This insurance policy is primary insurance and no insurance held or owned by
the designated additional insureds shall be called upon to cover a loss under this policy.

S. BONDING REQUIREMENTS

5.1.  Developer shall obtain a cost proposal for the approved water improvement plans
from a pre-approved Contractor attached herein as Exhibit "C". The cost proposal will be
submitted to the District for review and approval, and shall be used as the basis for bonding
requirements for the water system described in the plans provided to the District by the Developer
and approved for construction by the District.

5.2.  Performance Bond: The cost proposal for the water system improvements for Water
Improvement Plans for Bloomington Business Park SP — Phase 1 is (Developer to Provide
Bond Amount at Later Date) no/100 dollars (Developer to Provide Bond Amount at Later
Date). Developer shall and by this Agreement does guarantee the Developer's faithful
performance of this Agreement and all of its terms and conditions by providing the following:
Developer shall provide the District with a performance bond, from a surety institution licensed by
the State of California and authorized to do and doing business in said State, valid and renewable
until such improvements are accepted by the District. The performance bond attached herein at
Exhibit “D”, shall be in the amount of (Developer to Provide Bond Amount at Later Date)
no/100 dollars (Developer to Provide Bond Amount at Later Date) equal to 100 percent of the
cost proposal.

5.3. Warranty Bond: The pre-approved Contractor shall furnish a two-year warranty
bond for all work completed in accordance with the approved water improvement plans attached
herein as Exhibit "B". Before District's acceptance of the completed water facilities and
appurtenances, such facilities and appurtenances shall be free from any and all liens and
encumbrances and free from any and all defects in the materials or construction thereof. The two-
year warranty shall be a warranty bond beginning on the date of acceptance of the water facilities
by the District and shall be in the amount of (Developer to Provide Bond Amount at Later
Date) no/100 dollars (Developer to Provide Bond Amount at Later Date ) equal to 100 percent
of the Contractor’s cost proposal.

6. MATERIALS
6.1.  The water system facilities to be installed pursuant to this Agreement shall become
an extension of the distribution system of the District. All materials used must conform to District

specifications for such materials pursuant to all applicable legal requirements.

7. NOTICES

7.1.  All notices herein required shall be in writing, and delivered in person or sent by
registered mail, postage prepaid.
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7.2.  Notices required shall be given to the District addressed as follows:

WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

Attn: General Manager

Post Office Box 920

Rialto, CA 92377

RE: Water Improvement Plans for Bloomington Business Park SP — Phase 1

7.3.  Notices required shall be given to Developer addressed as follows:

IV5 Bloomington Gateway Distribution Center, LLC

ATTN TO: Rohan A’Beckett

2101 Rosecrans Ave, Suite 6250

El Segundo, CA 90245

RE: Water Improvement Plans for Bloomington Business Park SP — Phase 1

7.4.  Notices required shall be given to Surety addressed as follows:
SURETY NAME:
ATTN TO:
ADDRESS
RE: Water Improvement Plans for Bloomington Business Park SP — Phase 1

7.5.  Provided that any party or Surety may change such address by notice in writing to the
other party, and thereafter, notices shall be addressed and transmitted to the new address.

7.6.  The Developer or its contractor shall provide the District forty-eight (48) hours
advance notice of request for inspection or testing.

8. NOTICE TO PROCEED TO CONSTRUCT WATER SYSTEM
FACILITIES

8.1.  Upon acceptance of the insurance and aforementioned bonds in the amounts provided
herein and approval by the District and upon payment of all applicable charges, the Agreement
shall be signed by Developer and the District. The District shall return an original copy of the
signed Agreement with a letter to Developer giving notice to proceed to construct the water
system facilities.

9. INSPECTION

9.1. It is understood that the sole purpose and intent of the District's inspection and testing
is to validate that the materials, workmanship, and construction of the water facilities are in
compliance with the District-approved final plans, the District’s Rules and Regulations, the
Standards for Domestic Water Facilities, the Standard Drawings, and all other applicable District
requirements. Developer acknowledges and represents that it assumes full and sole responsibility
for the safety and management of the project.
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9.2. Developer shall at all times maintain proper facilities and provide safe access for
inspection by the District to all parts of the work and to the shops wherein the work is in
preparation. Additionally, in connection with the performance of this Agreement, the District
shall have the authority to enter the work site at any time for the purpose of identifying the
existence of conditions, either actual or threatened, that may present a danger of hazard to any and
all employees. Developer agrees that the District, in its sole authority and discretion, may order
the immediate abatement of any and all conditions that may present an actual or threatened danger
or hazard to any and all employees at the work site. Furthermore, Developer acknowledges the
provisions of California Labor Code Section 6400 et seq., which requires that employers shall
furnish employment and a place of employment that is safe and healthful for all employees
working therein. In the event the District identifies the existence of any condition that presents an
actual or threatened danger or hazard to any or all employees at the work site, the District is
hereby authorized to order an immediate abatement of that condition.

9.3.  All work and materials shall be subject to inspection, testing, and acceptance by the
District at Developer's expense. In the event Developer arranges to have materials fabricated for
the project, Developer may be required to arrange for the District to inspect that material during
fabrication at Developer's expense.

9.4.  All material fabrications shall be preapproved by the District and must conform to
District standards and specifications.

9.5.  The District's inspectors shall have full, unlimited access to perform continuous
inspection and have the authority to stop work at any time, by written notice or verbal notice
followed by written notice within three (3) working days, without any liability whatsoever to the
District, if, in the inspectors' judgment, the work called for by this Agreement, or the District
approved plans, or the specifications is not being installed or performed in a satisfactory and
workmanlike manner according to District's standards and specifications and/or in the event the
materials do not comply with the District's standards and specifications.

9.6. The Developer shall be responsible for insuring the pre-approved contractor

performs work with District inspection. If work is done without District inspection, the
Contractor shall be responsible for exposing any portion of work as directed by the District at their
sole expense. The District will not provide permanent water services until all required inspections
are completed and any requirements set forth by the District have been satisfied.

9.7  Final acceptance of all material to be purchased or fabricated by Developer under this
Agreement shall be made only with the prior approval of the District. Approval by the District,
however, shall not operate to relieve the material supplier or Developer of any guarantees,
warranties, or the duty of compliance with any of the requirements of the approved plans and
specifications or of this Agreement. All construction pursuant to this Agreement shall be
inspected pursuant for conformity with District requirements. Developer shall pay actual costs for
inspections.
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10. TESTING AND DISINFECTION

10.1.  All water system facilities and components constructed pursuant to this Agreement
shall adhere to all requirements for testing, disinfection, and flushing pursuant to District standards
and Legal Requirements.

11. RELOCATIONS, RECONSTRUCTIONS, AND DAMAGES

11.1. Developer accepts the responsibility for and the costs occasioned by any
reconstruction, relocation, damages to, or changes of water services or facilities caused or
contributed to directly or indirectly by any subsequent changes in the location of any of said
facilities or water meters or water services.

12. AS-CONSTRUCTED DOCUMENTATION

12.1. In order for the District to accept the facilities, Developer shall provide all required
documentation as specified in the Standards for Domestic Water Facilities, including as-built
drawings.

13. INDEMNIFICATION

13.1. Developer hereby agrees to and shall protect, defend, indemnify and hold the District
and its board members , officers, agents, employees, and engineers free and harmless from any
and all liability losses, damages, claims, liens, demands and cause of action of every kind and
character including, but not limited to, the amounts of judgments, penalties, interests, court costs,
attorney's/legal fees, and all other expenses incurred by the District arising in favor of any party,
including claims, liens, debts, demands for lost wages or compensation, personal injuries,
including employees or the District, death or damages to property (including property of the
District) and without limitation by enumeration, all other claims or demands of every character
occurring or in any way incident to, in connection with or arising directly or indirectly out of the
obligations herein undertaken or out of the operations conducted by Developer save and except
claims or litigation arising through the sole negligence or sole willful misconduct of the District or
the District's agents and employees. Developer shall investigate, handle, respond to, provide
defense for and defend any such claims, demand, or suit at the sole expense of Developer even if
the claim or claims alleged are groundless, false or fraudulent. Developer agrees to, and shall
defend the District and its members, directors, officers, agents, employees, and engineers from any
suits or actions at law or in equity for damages caused, or alleged to have been caused, by reason
of any of the aforesaid operations, provided as follows:

a. That the District does not and shall not waive any rights against Developer
which it may have by reason of the aforesaid hold harmless agreement, because of the acceptance
by the District, or the deposit with District by Developer, or any of the insurance policies
described in this Agreement.

b.  That the aforesaid hold harmless agreement by Developer shall apply to all
damages and claims for damages of every kind suffered, or alleged to have been suffered, by
reason of any or the aforesaid operations referred to in this subsection, regardless of whether or
not District has prepared, supplied water system installation, or regardless of whether or not such
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insurance policies shall have been determined to be applicable to any such damages or claims for
damages.

This provision is not intended to create any cause of action in favor of any third party
against Developer or the District or to enlarge in any way Developer's liability but is intended
solely to provide for indemnification of the District from liability for damage or injuries to third
persons or property arising from Developer's performance hereunder.

13.2. Neither Developer nor any of Developer's agents, contractors or subcontractors are,
or shall be, considered to be agents of the District in connection with the performance of
Developer's obligations under this Agreement.

14. REPAIR OR RECONSTRUCTION OF DEFECTIVE WORK

14.1. If, within a period of two years after final acceptance of the work performed under
this Agreement, any structure or part of any structure furnished and/or installed or constructed, or
caused to be installed or constructed by Developer, or any of the work done under this Agreement,
fails to fulfill any of the requirement of this Agreement or the specifications referred to herein,
Developer shall, without delay and without any cost to District, repair or replace or reconstruct
any defective or otherwise unsatisfactory part or parts of the work structure. Should Developer
fail to act promptly or in accordance with this requirement, or should the exigencies of the
situation as determined by the District in the exercise of its sole discretion require repair,
replacement or reconstruction before Developer can be notified, District may, at its option, make
the necessary repairs or replacements or perform the necessary work, and Developer shall pay to
the District the actual cost of such repairs.

15. COSTS AND FEES

15.1. Developer shall be responsible for all fees and deposits as required by the District.
All fees and deposits shall be paid in full before construction can take place as outlined in the
billing letter (provided separately).

15.2. Any additional costs and fees shall be paid in full prior to conveyance and acceptance
of the water system.

16. CONVEYANCE AND ACCEPTANCE OF WATER SYSTEM

16.1. Upon completion of the water system in accordance with the approved water plans
and submission of the required documentation, the Developer shall convey the water system to the
District.

16.2. The Developer shall be responsible for insuring the pre-approved contractor furnish a
warranty bond (One Hundred (100%) of Contractor’s cost proposal) for a period of two (2) years
as stated in Sections 5.3 of this Agreement, as-built drawings with contractor redlines and
AutoCAD files, materials list with quantities, water system cost breakouts, compaction test report
signed and sealed by a California Registered Engineer, notice of completion filed with County
Recorder’s office, fire flow tests of all hydrants, all required easements for water facilities and
unconditional financial release from subcontractors and material providers. Upon compliance
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with all the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the District shall prepare the Bill of Sale
accepting the water facilities and forward same to the address provided herein. Title to the
ownership of said facilities and appurtenances shall thereby be conveyed to the District. The
District shall thereafter operate and maintain said facilities so as to furnish water service to the
development (Exhibit "A") in accordance with the District's ordinances, policies and Rules and
Regulations.

17. PERMANENT WATER SERVICE

17.1. In no event shall permanent water services be provided to Developer's installed
system until all applicable charges and fees have been paid by Developer and all facilities have
been conveyed, free of all encumbrances, to the District, including any easements which may be
required. Such conveyance shall occur in a timely manner in accordance with the terms of this
Agreement.

18. BREACH OR DEFAULT OF AGREEMENT

18.1. If Developer refuses or fails to obtain prosecution of the work, or any severable part
thereof, with such diligence as will insure its completion within the time specified, or any
extension thereof, or fails to obtain completion of said work within such time, or if Developer
should be adjudged as bankrupt, or Developer should make a general assignment for the benefit of
Developer's creditors, or if a receiver should be appointed in the event of Developer's insolvency,
or if Developer, or any of Developer's contractors, subcontractors, agents or employees, should
violate any of the provisions of this Agreement, the District’s General Manager or the General
Manager’s designee may serve written notice upon Developer and Developer's surety of breach of
this Agreement, or of any portion therefore, and default of Developer.

18.2. In the event of any such notice, Developer's surety shall have the duty to take over
and complete the work and the improvement herein specified; provided, however, that if the
surety, within five (5) days after the serving upon of such notice of breach, does not give the
District written notice of its intention to take over the performance of the contract, and does not
commence performance thereof within five (5) days after notice to the District of such election,
District may take over the work and prosecute the same to completion, by contract or by any other
method District may deem advisable, for the account and at the expense of Developer, and
Developer's surety shall be liable to the District for any excess cost or damages occasioned District
thereby; and, in such event, District, without liability for so doing, may take possession of, and
utilize in completing the work, such materials, appliances, plant and other property belonging to
Developer as may be on the site of the work and necessary therefore.

[CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE]
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19. SUCCESSORS BOUND

19.1. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of each of the parties
and their respective legal representatives, successors, heirs, and assigns.

20. ENFORCEMENT OF PROVISIONS

20.1. The District's failure to enforce any provisions of this Agreement or the waiver
thereof in any instance shall not be construed as a general waiver or relinquishment on its part of
any such provision, but the same shall nevertheless be and remain in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto execute this Agreement.

WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

By: Date:
John Thiel, General Manager

DEVELOPER:

IVS Bloomington Gateway Distribution Center, LL.C

By: Date:
Rohan A’Beckett, Vice President
Authorized Agent
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Exhibit A
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Exhibit C

(to be provided at later date)
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Exhibit D
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BOND NO.

FAITHFUL PERFORMANCE BOND

To WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT for Water System Installation in Accordance with
Water Improvement Plans Bloomington Business Park SP — Phase 1 (dated) This premium
charged on this bond is $ being at the rate of §  per thousand of the contract price.
KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:
THAT, WHEREAS, the WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT has awarded to:

IVS Bloomington Gateway Distribution Center, LL.C
2101 Rosecrans Ave, Suite 6250
El Segundo, CA 90245

as the "Principal”, an agreement for the work described as follows:
Water System Installation in Accordance with Approved Water Improvement

Plans Bloomington Business Park SP — Phase 1 (dated).

WHEREAS, the said Principal is required under the terms of said agreement to furnish a
bond for the faithful performance of labor and materials of said contract:
NOW, THEREFORE, WE the undersigned Developer, as Principal, and

(Name of Surety)

(Address of Surety) duly authorized to transact business under the

laws of the State of California, as Surety, are held and firmly bound unto the WEST VALLEY
WATER DISTRICT in the sum (TBD — DEVELOPER TO PROVIDE AT LATER DATE)
no/100 dollars (TBD — DEVELOPER TO PROVIDE AT LATER DATE), lawful money of
the United States, for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves,
our heirs, executors, administrators, and successors, jointly and severally, firmly by these

presents.
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THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH that if the above bounded
Principal, his or its heirs, executors, administrators, successors, or assigns, shall in all things
stand to and abide by, and well and truly keep and perform all the undertakings, terms,
covenants, conditions and agreements in the said agreement and any alteration thereof made as
therein provided, on his or their part, to be kept and performed, at the time and in the manner
therein specified, and in all respects according to their true intent and meaning, and shall
indemnify and save harmless the WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT, its officers, agents, and
as therein stipulated, then this obligation shall become null and void, otherwise it shall be and
remain in full force and effect. In case suit is brought on this bond, Surety further agrees to pay
all court costs and reasonable attorney's fees as shall be fixed by the court.

And the said Surety, for value received, hereby stipulates and agrees that no change,
extension of time, alteration, or addition to the terms of the agreement or to the work to be
performed thereunder or the specifications accompanying the same shall in any way affect its
obligation on this bond, and it does hereby waive notice of any such change, extension of time,
alteration, or addition to the terms of the contract or to the work or to the specifications.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we have hereunto set our hands this ~ day of
,2025.

ALL SIGNATURES MUST BE NOTARIZED

PRINCIPAL

IVS Bloomington Gateway Distribution Center, LLC

By:

Rohan A’Beckett, Vice President

Authorized Agent

31



(NOTARIZATION AND SEAL)

SURETY

(NOTARIZATION AND SEAL)
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West Valley
N ater District
—

STAFF REPORT
DATE: December 18, 2025
TO: Policy Review and Oversight Committee
FROM: Paola Lara, Executive Assistant Il

SUBJECT: Conflict of Interest Code Update

STRATEGIC GOAL:

Strategic Goal 5 - Implement Best Practices; Strategic Goal 7 — Realize Health, Safety, and Regulatory
Compliance; Strategic Goal 8 - Deliver Superior Customer Service.

MEETING HISTORY:

11/12/25 Policy Review and Oversight Committee
BACKGROUND:

The West Valley Water District (WVWD) is required by the Political Reform Act to review its Conflict of Interest
Code (COIC) biennially and notify the Fair Political Practices Commission (FPPC) whether the agency's code
needs to be amended. The code designates positions that are required to file a Statement of Economic Interest,
Form 700, and specifies what disclosure categores they must report.

The COIC and Statement of Economic Interest provides information to the public about an official's or desingated
position's financial interests to ensure that they are making decisions in the best interest of the public. It also
outlines potential conflicts of interest so the official can abstain from making or participating in governmental
decisions that may be deemed a conflict of interest.

DISCUSSION:

As a multi-county agency, FPPC is WVWD's code-reviewing body and following the classification and
compensation study, staff worked directly with FPPC to review and update our Conflict of Interest Code. FPPC
approved an update to our COIC in June 2025.

Following the COIC update in June 2025, two additional positions were approved by the Board of Directors that
also need to be included as designated positions in the COIC.

FISCAL IMPACT:

There in no fiscal impact.
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REQUESTED ACTION:

Adopt Resolution No. 2025-13 approving the Conflict of Interest Code Update.

Attachments

Resolution No. 2025-13 Conflict of Interest Code Update.pdf
WVWD COIC - Strikethrough.pdf
Notice of Intent to Amend 10.30.25.pdf
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https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/wvwd/pdfs/topics/6938b84adffef600471d227a/Resolution_No._2025-13_Conflict_of_Interest_Code_Update.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/wvwd/pdfs/topics/6938b84adffef600471d227a/Resolution_No._2025-13_Conflict_of_Interest_Code_Update.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/wvwd/pdfs/topics/6938b84adffef600471d227a/Resolution_No._2025-13_Conflict_of_Interest_Code_Update.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/wvwd/pdfs/topics/6938b84adffef600471d227a/WVWD%20COIC%20-%20Strikethrough.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/wvwd/pdfs/topics/6938b84adffef600471d227a/WVWD%20COIC%20-%20Strikethrough.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/wvwd/pdfs/topics/6938b84adffef600471d227a/WVWD%20COIC%20-%20Strikethrough.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/wvwd/pdfs/topics/6938b84adffef600471d227a/Notice%20of%20Intent%20to%20Amend%2010.30.25.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/wvwd/pdfs/topics/6938b84adffef600471d227a/Notice%20of%20Intent%20to%20Amend%2010.30.25.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/wvwd/pdfs/topics/6938b84adffef600471d227a/Notice%20of%20Intent%20to%20Amend%2010.30.25.pdf

RESOLUTION NO. 2025-13

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE WEST
VALLEY WATER DISTRICT APPROVING THE CONFLICT OF
INTEREST CODE

WHEREAS, the ratepayers of West Valley Water District (District) are entitled to have
fair, ethical and accountable local government which has earned the public's full confidence; and

WHEREAS, in keeping with the District's commitment to excellence, all public officials,
both elected and appointed, must comply with both the letter and spirit of the laws and policies
affecting the operation of government; and

WHEREAS, all public officials, both elected and appointed, are required to be impartial
and fair in their judgement and actions and ensure that public office is used for the public good;
and

WHEREAS, the District has determined that the adoption of a Conflict of Interest Code
for the members of the Board of Directors ("Board"), and individuals holding designated positions
will assist in achieving these ends.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS
FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. The attached policy developed by District Staff and attached to this
Resolution as Exhibit A is hereby adopted as the Conflict of Interest Code for the West Valley
Water District Board and individuals holding designated positions.

SECTION 2. All other previous enactments providing for the Conflict of Interest Code
have been superseded by this resolution and may be amended from time to time by a duly
adopted resolution of the Board.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Conflict of Interest Code shall be submitted to the
Fair Political Practices Commission for approval and said amendment to the Code shall become
effective upon approval by the Fair Political Practices Commission, as submitted.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 18" day of December, 2025.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

KELVIN MOORE

President of the Board of Directors

West Valley Water District
ATTEST:

PAOLA LARA
Acting Board Secretary 35




CERTIFICATION

I, Paola Lara, Acting Board Secretary of the West Valley Water District, do hereby certify that the foregoing
Resolution was duly adopted by the Board of Directors of the West Valley Water District at a regular meeting
held on December 18, 2025, by the following vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

Dated:

BOARD MEMBERS:
BOARD MEMBERS:
BOARD MEMBERS:
BOARD MEMBERS:

PAOLA LARA
Acting Board Secretary
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WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE

The Political Reform Act (Government Code Section, 81000, et seq.) requires state and local
government agencies to adopt and promulgate conflict of interest codes. The Fair Political Practices
Commission has adopted a regulation (2 California Code of Regulations Section 18730) that contains
the terms of a standard conflict of interest code, which can be incorporated by reference in an
agency’s code. After public notice and hearing, the standard code may be amended by the Fair
Political Practices Commission to conform to amendments in the Political Reform Act. Therefore,
the terms of 2 California Code of Regulations Section 18730 and any amendments to it duly adopted
by the Fair Political Practices Commission are hereby incorporated by reference. This regulation and
the attached —Appendices, designating positions and establishing disclosure categories, shall

constitute the conflict of interest code of the West Valley Water District (District).
Individuals holding designated positions shall file their statements of economic interests with

the District, which will make the statements available for public inspection and reproduction. (Gov.

Code Sec. 81008.) All statements will be retained by the District.
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APPENDIX A

DESIGNATED POSITIONS
Designated Positions Disclosure Categories
Assistant General Manager 1,2
Legal Counsel** 1,2
Director of Engineering 1,2
Director of Technical Services 1
Director of Operations 1
Government and Legislative Affairs Manager 1
Human Resources & Risk Manager 1,4
Board Secretary 3
Business Systems Manager 3

Chief Water Systems Operator —

Distribution and Meter Services
Chief Water Systems Operator — Production
Chief Water Systems Operator — Treatment
Customer Service Supervisor

Development Services Supervisor

Project Manager

Support Service Supervisor

Senior Engineer

W W W W LW W W W W

Water Quality Supervisor

*

Consultants/New Positions
**The position of Legal Counsel is filled by an outside consultant, but acts in a staff capacity.

*Consultants/new positions shall be included in the list of designated positions and shall
disclose pursuant to the broadest disclosure category in the code subject to the following limitation:

The General Manager may determine in writing that a particular consultant or new position,
although a “designated position,” is hired to perform a range of duties that is limited in scope and
thus is not required to comply fully with the disclosure requirements described in this section.

2
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Such written determination shall include a description of the consultant’s or new position’s duties
and, based on that description, a statement of the extent of the disclosure requirements. The
General Manager’s determination is a public record and shall be retained for public inspection in
the same manner and location as this conflict of interest code. (Gov. Code Sec. 81008.)

Officials Who Manage Public Investments

The following positions are not covered by the code because the positions manage public
investments. Individuals holding such positions must file under Government Code Section 87200
and are listed for informational purposes only. —Section 87200 requires disclosure of all
investments and business positions in business entities, all income, including gifts, loans and travel
payments, and real property.

Members of the Board of Directors
General Manager

Chief Financial Officer

Finance Manager
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APPENDIX B
DISCLOSURE CATEGORIES

CATEGORY 1

Designated positions required to disclose economic interests under Category 1 shall report
investments and business positions in business entities and sources of income (including receipt

of gifts, loans, and travel payments)-from;—any-seurce-of the-typeto-provide-services;—supphes;
matertals;produets—or-equipment-to-_if the business entity or source provides leased facilities,

products, equipment, vehicles, machinery or services (including training or consulting services) of
the type utilized by the District.

CATEGORY 2

Designated positions required to disclose economic interests under Category 2 shall report interests
in real property located within the jurisdiction or within two miles of the boundaries of the
jurisdiction or within two miles of any land owned or used by the District as well as investments
and business positions in business entities, and income; (including receipt of gifts, loans, and travel

payments);-fromseurees;-that previde if the business entity or source provides real estate services
(e.g., consulting, appraisal, development, construction) of the type-used utilized by the District.

CATEGORY 3

Designated positions required to disclose economic interests under Category 3 shall report all
investments and business positions in business entities and sources of income (including receipt
of gifts, loans and travel payments) if the business entity or source provides leased facilities,
products, equipment, vehicles, machinery or services (including training or consulting services) of
the type utilized by the positions division/department.

CATEGORY 4

Designated positions required to disclose economic interests under Category 4 shall report
investments and business positions in business entities and sources of income (including receipt
of gifts, loans and travel payments) if the business entity or source has, during the reporting
period, filed a claim or has a claim pending before the District.
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NOTICE OF INTENTION TO AMEND THE CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE
OF THE WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the West Valley Water District, pursuant to the authority
vested in it by section 87306 of the Government Code, proposes amendment to its conflict of interest
code. A comment period has been established commencing on October 30, 2025 and closing on
December 13, 2025. All inquiries should be directed to the contact listed below.

The West Valley Water District proposes to amend its conflict of interest code to include
employee positions that involve the making or participation in the making of decisions that may
foreseeably have a material effect on any financial interest, as set forth in subdivision (a) of section
87302 of the Government Code. The amendment carries out the purposes of the law and no other
alternative would do so and be less burdensome to affected persons.

Changes to the conflict of interest code include: addition of two designated positions and also
makes other technical changes.

The proposed amendment and explanation of the reasons can be obtained from the agency’s
contact.

Any interested person may submit written comments relating to the proposed amendment by
submitting them no later than December 13, 2025 or at the conclusion of the public hearing, if
requested, whichever comes later. At this time, no public hearing is scheduled. A person may request
a hearing no later than Friday, November 28, 2025.

The West Valley Water District has determined that the proposed amendments:

1. Impose no mandate on local agencies or school districts.

2. Impose no costs or savings on any state agency.

3. Impose no costs on any local agency or school district that are required to be
reimbursed under Part 7 (commencing with Section 17500) of Division 4 of Title 2 of
the Government Code.

4. Will not result in any nondiscretionary costs or savings to local agencies.

5. Will not result in any costs or savings in federal funding to the state.

6. Will not have any potential cost impact on private persons, businesses or small
businesses.

All inquiries concerning this proposed amendment and any communication required by this
notice should be directed to: Elvia Dominguez, Board Secretary, 909-875-1804, email
edominguez@wvwd.org
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West Valley
N ater District

STAFF REPORT
DATE: December 18, 2025
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Jose Velasquez, Chief Financial Officer

SUBJECT: Treasurer's Report - October 2025

STRATEGIC GOAL:

Strategic Goal 6 — Demonstrate Effective Financial Stewardship

D. Maintain a Data Driven Approach and Financial-Based Decision-Making

MEETING HISTORY:

12/8/2025 Finance Committee

BACKGROUND:

On a monthly basis the Finance Committee meets with the General Manager and Finance Staff to review the
Treasurer’s Report that covers the prior month. This encompasses balances, reserve levels, reserve classifications,
interest earned, investment maturities, re-investments made during the month, and compliance with the State of
California Local Agency Investment Guidelines.

DISCUSSION:

West Valley Water District (“District”) contracts with the Clifton Larson Allen LLP to prepare the monthly Treasurer’s
Report. This is an independent report that opines on the investment balances, classifications, and activity. This
report also examines the District’s investment policy to ensure that it follows the State of California’s Local Agency
Investment Guidelines (Government Code Section 53601(b)). The Treasurer Report for the month of October 2025
Exhibit A is presented to the Finance Committee for review and discussion.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The monthly cost of $3,100 for completion of the report was included in the FY 2025-26 annual budget.

REQUESTED ACTION:

Approve the October 2025 Treasurer's Report.
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Attachments

Exhibit A - Treasurer Report October 2025.pdf
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https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/wvwd/pdfs/topics/6938c5ffdffef600471db218/Exhibit%20A%20-%20Treasurer%20Report%20October%202025.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/wvwd/pdfs/topics/6938c5ffdffef600471db218/Exhibit%20A%20-%20Treasurer%20Report%20October%202025.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/wvwd/pdfs/topics/6938c5ffdffef600471db218/Exhibit%20A%20-%20Treasurer%20Report%20October%202025.pdf

EXHIBIT A



West Valley Water District
Cash, Investment & Reserve Balances - October 31, 2025

September 2025 October 2025 Minimum Target Maximum
Institution/Investment Type Balance Balance OPERATING CASH Balance Balance Balance
Funds Under Control of the District: Balance Available for Daily Operations| $ 27,476,263.06 | $ 29,569,572551| % 16,686,137.67
Total Operating Cash| $  27,476,263.06 | $  29,569,572.55|$ 16,686,137.67
District Cash Drawers $ 4,300.00 | $ 4,300.00 UNRESTRICTED RESERVES
$ 4,300.00 | $ 4,300.00 | |CAPITAL RESERVES
Capital Project Account - 100% FY 25-26| $ 27,656,397.00| $ 27,656,397.00] $ 32,000,000.00
Capital Project Account-25% FY 26-27| $ 1,818,250.00 | $ 1,818,250.00 | $ 8,000,000.00
Checking and Savings: Emergency Account| $ (2,093,309.49)| $ (4,186,618.98)] $ (6,279,928.47)
Chase - General Government Checking $ 710,939.64 | $ 1,107,057.01 $ 27,381,337.51|$ 25,288,028.02|$  33,720,071.53
Chase - Special Rebate Checking $ - $ - LIQUIDITY FUNDS
Chase - UTC Routine Checking $ 5,000.56 | $ 5,000.56 Rate Stabilization Account| $ 4,451,391.37 | $ 4,451,391.37 | $ 5,935,188.49
Chase - UTC Non-Routine Checking $ 48,636.50 | $ 48,636.50 Operating Reserve Account| $ 8,902,782.74 | $ 8,902,782.741% 11,870,376.99
$ 764,576.70 | $ 1,160,694.07 $ 13,354,17411|$ 13,354,17411|$ 17,805,565.48
OTHER OPERATING RESERVES
State of California, Local Agency Investment Fund* $ 10,468,902.16 | $ 12,320,051.33 Self-Insurance Reserve| $ 5,000,000.00 | $ 5,000,000.00 | $ 5,000,000.00
US Bank - Chandler Asset Mgmt $ 58,664,392.04|9% 62,836,725.48 $ 5,000,000.00 | $ 5,000,000.00 | $ 5,000,000.00
US Bank - Chandler Liquidity Fund $ 68,150,616.45| % 64,398,973.75 Total Unrestricted Reserves| $  45,735,511.62 | $ 43,642,202.13|$ 56,525,637.01
CalTrust Pooled Investment Fund - Short Term $ - $ - Total OP Cash & UR Reserves| $ 73,211,774.68 | $ 73,211,774.68 | $ 73,211,774.68
CalTrust Pooled Investment Fund - Medium Term $ - $ - RESTRICTED RESERVES
2016A Bond| $ 2,55947 1% 2,559.471 9% 2,559.47
U. S. Treasury Bills Customer Deposit Accounts| $ 5,308,917.98 | $ 5,308,917.98 | $ 5,308,917.98
Government Agencies (Federal Home Loan Bank) $ - $ - Capacity Charge Acct Balance| $  57,365,340.87 | $  57,365,340.87 | $ 57,365,340.87
California DWSRF Loan Payment| $ 1,834,711.10 ] $ 1,834,711.10] $ 1,834,711.10
Total $ 138,052,787.35 | $ 140,720,744.63 CIP account in LAIF for capital purposes| $ 3,000,000.00 | $ 3,000,000.00 | $ 3,000,000.00
Funds Under Control of Fiscal Agents: Total Restricted Reserves| $ 67,511,529.42 | $ 67,511,529.42|$ 67,511,529.42
US BANK
2016A Bond - Principal & Payment Funds $ 490,002.43 | $ 1,391.67
2016A Bond - Interest Fund $ 409,751.67 | $ 1,167.80
Total $ 899,754.10 | $ 2,559.47
Grand Total $ 138,952,541.45| $ 140,723,304.10 | |Total Cash & Investments $ 140,723,304.10 | $ 140,723,304.10 | $ 140,723,304.10

| hereby certify that the investment activity for this reporting period conforms with the investment policy adopted by the West Valley Water District

Board of Directors and the California Government Code Section 53601

| also certify that there are adequate funds available to meet the District's Budget.

Ooae Velragiazg

&hief Financial Gfficef./

*Quarterly interest posted the month following the quarter end.
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Note:

All significant assumptions, methodologies and analyzed amounts were discussed with and agreed to by
the District’s accounting staff. From this conversation, we believe the District’s accounting staff has the
requisite knowledge and understanding of the processes/analyses prepared by CLA as not to impair our
independence.

Total Fund Balance

When comparing the District’s total fund balances month-over-month between October 2025
(5140,723,304.10) and September 2025 ($138,952,541.45), CLA found the fund balance decreased by
$1,770,762.65 between October 2025 and September 2025.

U.S. Bank Chandler Custodial Account

Cash/Money Market - Per Section 9.11 of the District’s investment policy, “The company shall have met
either one of the following criteria: 1) attained the highest ranking or the highest letter and numerical
rating provided by not less than two NRSROs “Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organization” or
2) retained an investment adviser registered or exempt from registration with the Securities and
Exchange Commission with not less than five years of experience managing money market mutual funds
with assets under management in excess of five hundred million dollars.” Based on Chandler Asset
Management’s reconciliation summary for the period ending October 31, 2025, CLA was able to confirm
the District’s cash and money-market securities were in accordance with the investment policy. CLA
compared various financial documents for the District's cash and securities and found that all the
District's holdings were in alignment with the requirements set forth in the investment policy.

In addition to ensuring that the District’s money market funds attained the highest ranking provided by
more than one NRSRO, the District also met the requirements outlined in Section 9.11 of the investment
policy through its established relationship with Chandler Asset Management. With total assets under
management of over $42 billion with over thirty-five years of experience in managing money market
mutual funds, Chandler Asset Management exceeds the requirements of the District’s policy.

Per the investment policy, the maximum percentage of District investments in money market funds is
capped at 20%. Similarly, the allowable mutual fund and money market account instruments per
California government code (Sections 53601(l) and 53601.6(b)) for local government entities are also
capped at 20%. The District’s money market balance percentage as of October 31, 2025 is 8.68%.
Therefore, the District is following both the investment policy and California governmental code.

United States Treasury Issues — Per Section 9.1 of the investment policy, “there’s no limitation as to the
percentage of the portfolio that may be invested in this category.”

The District’s investment policy is in uniformity with the State of California’s Local Agency Investment
Guidelines (Government Code Section 53601(b)). These guidelines establish that maximum investment
maturities for United States Treasury Obligations are limited to five years. However, the legislative body
may grant express authority to make investments either specifically or as a part of an investment
program approved by the legislative body that exceeds this five-year remaining maturity limit. Such
approval must be issued no less than three months prior to the purchase of any security exceeding the
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five-year maturity limit. These guidelines do not establish a maximum specified percentage of the
District’s investment portfolio for United States Treasury Obligations.

As of October 31, 2025, 61.65% of the District’s total portfolio is invested in United States Treasury
Issues. With no maximum percentage established for United States Treasury Issues, the District is in
conformity with the investment policy and the State of California’s Local Agency Investment Guidelines.

Negotiable Certificates of Deposit — Section 9.4 of the District’s investment policy states “purchases are
limited to securities that have a long-term debt rating of at least the “A” category, or its equivalent, by a
NRSRO.” All instruments categorized as negotiable certificates of deposit in the District’s portfolio follow
Section 9.4 of the investment policy, as each security has a satisfactory long-term debt rating, and the
investment matures within the five-year time frame as dictated in the policy. Based on the Chandler
report, the purchase dates for all medium-term notes fall within the five-year framework established in
the investment policy.

Per Section 9.4 of the investment policy, the maximum percentage of investments in negotiable
certificates of deposit is 30% of the portfolio.

The District’s investment policy is also in accordance with the State of California’s Local Agency
Investment Guidelines (Government Code Section 53601(i)) regarding negotiable certificates of deposit.
These guidelines establish a maximum specified percentage of the District’s investment portfolio for
certificates of deposit at 30%. The State of California’s guidelines also establish that maximum
investment maturities for medium-term notes are limited to five years.

Negotiable certificates of deposit constitute 0.0% of the District’s total investment balance as of October
31, 2025. Therefore, the District is following both the investment policy and the State of California’s
standards.

Medium-Term Notes — Section 9.10 of the District’s investment policy states “purchases are limited to
securities that have a long-term debt rating of at least the “A” category, or its equivalent, by a NRSRO.”
The investment policy also states that medium-term notes should have a “maximum remaining maturity
of five years or less.” All instruments categorized as medium-term notes in the District’s portfolio follow
Section 9.10 of the investment policy, as each security has a satisfactory long-term debt rating, and the
investment matures within the five-year time frame as dictated in the policy. Based on CLA’s analysis,
the purchase dates for all medium-term notes fall within the five-year framework established in the
investment policy.

Per Section 9.10 of the investment policy, the maximum percentage of investments in medium short-
term notes is 30% of the portfolio.

The District’s investment policy is also in accordance with the State of California’s Local Agency
Investment Guidelines (Government Code Section 53601(k)) regarding medium-term notes. These
guidelines establish a maximum specified percentage of the District’s investment portfolio for medium-
term notes at 30%. The State of California’s guidelines also establish that maximum investment
maturities for medium-term notes are limited to five years.

Medium-term notes constitute 8.90% of the District’s total investment balance as of October 31, 2025.
Therefore, the District is following both the investment policy and the State of California’s standards.
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Federal Agency Obligations — Per Section 9.5 of the District’s investment policy, “there is no limitation
as to the percentage of the portfolio that may be invested in this category, however, purchases of
callable Federal Agency obligations are limited to a maximum of 30 percent of the portfolio.” Although
the policy does not explicitly list the bond rating requirements for federal agency obligations, all the
District’s current federal agency holdings are rated AAA by multiple NRSRO’s as of October 31, 2025.

While the State of California’s Local Agency Investment Guidelines have not established a maximum
specified percentage for investments in federal agency obligations, these guidelines establish that
maximum investment maturities for Federal Agency Obligations are limited to five years (Government
Code Section 53601(f)). However, the legislative body may grant express authority to make investments
either specifically or as a part of an investment program approved by the legislative body that exceeds
this five year remaining maturity limit. Such approval must be issued no less than three months prior to
the purchase of any security exceeding the five-year maturity limit.

Federal agency obligations represent 9.51% of the District’s total investment balance as of October 31,
2025. Therefore, the District is in accordance with both its investment policy as well as the guidelines
set-forth by the State of California.

Municipal Bonds — Per Section 9.6 of the District’s investment policy, “purchases are limited to
securities that have a long-term debt rating of at least the “A” category, or its equivalent, by a NRSRO;
and/or have a short term debt rating of at least “A-1”, or its equivalent, by a NRSRO.” The maximum
percentage of District investments in municipal bonds is capped at 20%.

While the State of California’s Local Agency Investment Guidelines have not established a maximum
specified percentage for investments in municipal bonds, these guidelines establish that maximum
investment maturities for Federal Agency Obligations are limited to five years (Government Code
Section 53601(d)). However, the legislative body may grant express authority to make investments
either specifically or as a part of an investment program approved by the legislative body that exceeds
this five year remaining maturity limit. Such approval must be issued no less than three months prior to
the purchase of any security exceeding the five-year maturity limit.

Municipal bonds represent 0.69% of the District’s total investment balance as of October 31, 2025.
Therefore, the District is in accordance with both its investment policy as well as the guidelines set-forth
by the State of California.

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)

The State of California, Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) processes a same-day transaction if notified
by 10:00 am. This ability satisfies the investment requirement of 24-hour liquidity as stipulated in the
investment policy for the District.

Per Section 9.2 of the District’s investment policy, the maximum percentage of investments in the State
of California, Local Agency Investment Fund is unlimited.

The District’s investment policy is also in accordance with the State of California’s Local Agency
Investment Guidelines (Government Code Section 16429.1) concerning the Local Agency Investment
Fund. These guidelines establish no maximum specified percentage of the District’s investment portfolio
while also dictating no maximum maturity date for LAIF investments.
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Per the Standard and Poor’s rating system, California’s Current Credit Rating is AA-, identifying the credit
quality of the fund’s portfolio performance as strong.

As of the period ending October 31, 2025, the District’s Local Agency Investment Fund balance
represents 8.75% of the District’s entire portfolio. Therefore, the District is following the investment
policy as well as the standards of the Local Agency Investment Guidelines.

Based on the LAIF performance report dated November 5, 2025, LAIF investments had a net-yield of
4.150%. Regarding portfolio composition, LAIF fund investments were split into the following categories
(percentages may not total 100% due to rounding):

e Treasuries- 51.39%

e Agencies- 29.08%

e Certificates of Deposit/Bank Notes- 9.74%
e Commercial Paper- 5.80%

e Time Deposits- 3.25%

e loans-0.16%

e Corporate Bonds- 0.58%

On March 20, 2019, the District received a $3 million dollar settlement as part of a larger association of
local water districts and municipalities, from the San Gabriel Valley Water Company, Fontana Union
Water Company, and the San Gabriel California Corporation. Per the settlement agreement, “West
Valley and the non-settling plaintiffs separately asserted six claims alleging breach of contract and other
claims arising from the 1961 Decree.” The 1961 Decree governs groundwater pumping from a portion of
the Rialto-Colton Basin. The claims also concern the defendants (Fontana Parties) pumping from a
portion of the Rialto-Colton Basin that is outside the Rialto Basin as defined by the 1961 Decree. The San
Bernardino Basin Area and most but not all the Rialto-Colton Basin are located within the service area of
the Valley District and this violation served as the basis of the settlement.

The settlement check was received and deposited into the District’s General Government Checking bank
account and the District’s board approved the transfer of the $3 million in settlement funds to the
District’s LAIF account on April 4, 2019. While these funds have been earmarked for Capital
Improvement Projects, the District has yet to allocate these funds to any specific project and the District
will house all settlement funding in the LAIF account until board approval is received for the allocation of
these funds.

The Investment Trust of California (Cal TRUST)

Section 9.3 of the District’s investment policy states “no limit will be placed on the percentage total in
this category.” The State of California also fails to establish a maximum percentage total for investment
trusts per Government Code Section 16340. As of the period ending October 31, 2025, the District’s
CalTRUST investment balance represents 0% of the District’s entire portfolio. Therefore, the District is
following the investment policy and the standards set-forth by the State of California as it relates to
CalTRUST securities.
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Bank Deposits

Based on the District’s investment policy, “Securities placed in a collateral pool must provide coverage
for at least 100 percent of all deposits that are placed in that institution.” As of September 30, 2025, the
District maintained balances within the FDIC limit of $250,000 for each of its bank accounts, except for
the Chase General Governmental Checking account. The Chase General Governmental Checking account
maintains funds for operational purposes and normally carries a balance of at least $800,000 which
represents funding for one payroll, and one accounts payable check run. For October balance of the
Chase Checking account fell over the required minimum, expenses will occur at the beginning of the
November to restor the balance to the appropriate threshold. In CLA’s comparison between the
District’s general Checking account balances for October 2025 ($1,107,057.01) and September 2025
(5710,939.64), CLA observed an increase in the October 2025 balance of $396,117.37 versus September
2025 and variance is a result of regular activities.

During our review of the October 2025 Chase General Governmental Checking account statement, it was
noted that there were 6 reversals totaling $24,777.60. West Valley Water District (“WVWD”) has a
procedure where the bank issues a check/ACH exception report for WVWD to review and reject
fraudulent checks/ACHs as needed. Currently, WVWD has implemented check number and amount
positive pay.

CLA also noted a few unusual transactions during our review. On October 3, 2025, District received a
deposit of $1,847,884.51 from BBK the District’s legal counsel, which was for a legal settlement.

While the District reconciles its deposit accounts monthly, CLA found that the District has historically
reported the month-ending bank statement balance on the Treasurer’s Report. Because the monthly
bank statement does not take any outstanding checks or other withdrawals into account, the District
may be overstating the General Government Checking balances on the Treasurer’s Report, which
ultimately impacts its liquidity.

In October the UTC Routine Checking account was $5,000.56 and the UTC Non-Routine Checking
account balance was $48,636.50. The relatively low balances in both accounts (in comparison with the
historical balances) is due to the CFO’s emphasis on transferring more of its unrestricted cash balances
to the District’s investments accounts to take advantage of the increased rate of return.

In analyzing the accounting for the District’s cash drawers ($3,600) and petty cash ($700), per the
District’s accounting staff, the District’s cash drawers are normally reconciled daily. Each drawer is
counted by the customer service representative responsible for the drawer and a secondary count is
performed by the customer service lead or supervisor prior to the funds being relinquished to the
District’s armored security provider, Gaurda, for deposit daily. Cash deposits are reconciled daily by the
District’s accounting department. Petty cash is normally reconciled by the accounting department
monthly. The District’s accounting department provided CLA with a formalized reconciliation for the
petty cash account and the cash drawers for October 2025, therefore CLA was able to agree the cash
drawers and petty cash balance to the District Cash Drawers summary schedule.

Section 9.12 of the investment policy asserts that “there is no limit on the percentage of the portfolio
that may be invested in bank deposits.” Similarly, the State of California’s Government Code for
Allowable Investment Instruments fails to dictate any portfolio standards for general bank deposit
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accounts. Although no maximum has been established for amounts invested in bank deposits by the
investment policy or the State of California, CLA can verify that as of October 31, 2025, the District had
0.83% of its portfolio invested in bank deposit accounts.

Commercial Paper

Commercial paper is an unsecured, short-term debt instrument issued by a corporation, typically for the
financing of accounts payable and inventories and meeting short-term liabilities. Commercial paper is
usually issued at a discount from face value and typically reflects prevailing market interest rates. Per
section 9.8 of the investment policy, the entity that issues the commercial paper should meet all the
following conditions “(i) is organized and operating in the United States as a general corporation, (ii) has
total assets in excess of five hundred million dollars ($500,000,000), and (iii) has debt other than
commercial paper, if any, that is rated at least the “A” category by a NRSRO. For a commercial paper
investment to be eligible for the District, the commercial paper shall not have a maximum maturity of
270 days or less and no more than 25% of the District’s portfolio may be invested in this category.

The District’s investment policy is also in accordance with the State of California’s Local Agency
Investment Guidelines (Government Code Section 53601 (h)) regarding Commercial Paper. These
guidelines establish a maximum specified percentage of the District’s investment portfolio for
commercial paper at 25%. The State of California’s guidelines also establish that maximum investment
maturities for commercial paper should be 270 days or less.

As of October 31, 2025, the District had 0.00% invested in commercial paper investment. Therefore, the
District is following both the investment policy and the State of California’s standards.

Supranational

Supranationals are explicitly defined in Section 9.14 of the investment policy as “US dollar-denominated
senior unsecured unsubordinated obligations or unconditionally guaranteed by the International Bank
for Reconstruction and Development, International Finance Corporation, or Inter-American
Development Bank”. Securities listed as supranationals must be rated in the AA category or higher by a
NRSRO and no more than 30% of the District’s portfolio may be invested in these securities with a
maximum maturity of five years.

The District’s investment policy is also in accordance with the State of California’s Local Agency
Investment Guidelines (Government Code Section 53601(q)) regarding supranationals. These guidelines
establish a maximum specified percentage of the District’s investment portfolio for supranationals at
30%. The State of California’s guidelines also establish that maximum investment maturities for
supranationals should be five years or less.

As of October 31, 2025, the District’s investments in five securities categorized as supranationals was
0.97% of the total portfolio and securities maintained a maturity date of less than five years from the
original purchase date. CLA can confirm that the District’s supranational investments meet the standards
of both the investment policy and the State of California.
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Note:

All significant assumptions, methodologies and analyzed amounts were discussed with and agreed to by
the District’s accounting staff. From this conversation, we believe the District’s accounting staff has the
requisite knowledge and understanding of the processes/analyses prepared by CLA as not to impair our
independence.

Restricted Funds

Bond Proceeds Fund(s) — Balances in the bond proceeds fund accounts represent monies derived from
the proceeds of a bond issue. Per the requirements of the District’s reserve policy, the target level for
the debt service reserve requirement is established at the time of the bond issue. Based on
documentation provided to CLA, “no reserve fund has been established in connection with the issuance
of the 2016A bonds.” Therefore, the October 31, 2025, ending balance of $2,559.47 satisfies the
minimum balance requirements per the District’s reserve policy.

Customer Deposit Accounts — Due to fluctuations in the number of utility customer deposits required
and the number of development projects in process, no minimum or maximum levels have been
established for customer deposit accounts. The customer deposit account balances presented in the
treasurer’s report are based on the ending balance on the general ledger for the month. The customer
deposit accounts are reconciled monthly. CLA was able to confirm that the customer deposit accounts
balance presented on the October 2025 Treasurer’s Report reconciles with the District’s general ledger.
The October 31, 2025, balance of $5,308,917.98 in customer deposit accounts satisfies the balance
requirements of the District’s reserve policy.

Capacity Charge Account — The District’s reserve policy does not explicitly address or specify any
minimum or maximum funding levels for capacity charge accounts. However, based on the
reconciliation schedule provided by the District, CLA can confirm that the balance of $57,365,340.87
presented on the October 2025 Treasurer’s Report for the Capacity Charge Account reconciles with the
documentation provided to CLA with no variance.

CIP Account in LAIF for Capital Purposes — On March 20, 2019, the District received a $3 million dollar
settlement as part of a larger association of local water districts and municipalities, from the San Gabriel
Valley Water Company, Fontana Union Water Company and the San Gabriel California Corporation. The
check was received and deposited into the District’s General Government Checking bank account and
the District’s board approved the transfer of the $3 million dollars in settlement funds to the District’s
LAIF account on April 4, 2019. While these settlement funds have been restricted for Capital
Improvement Projects, there were no designations or allocations for District funding towards any Capital
Improvement Projects at that time. Later the fund was transferred to the Chandler accounts as the CFO
believes the Chandler accounts earn a higher interest rate.

Capital Reserve Funds

Capital Project Account — The capital project account is used for the funding of new capital assets or the
rehabilitation, enhancement, or replacement of capital assets when they reach the end of their useful
lives. Per the requirements of the District’s reserve policy, “the minimum target level WVWD will strive
for is 100% of its then-current year fiscal year from the Capital Improvement Budgets plus 25% of the
amount estimated to be needed the following fiscal year, less minimum levels established for the
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Emergency Account.” The District currently maintains a balance of $29,474,647.00 ($27,656,397.00 for
fiscal year 2025-26 and $1,818,250.00 for fiscal year 2026-27) in its capital project account, meeting the
minimum target level required for both fiscal years. CLA was able to confirm that the District is in
adherence with the minimum target level requirement as of October 31, 2025, by comparing the board-
approved Fiscal Year 2025-26 Capital Improvement Budget which indicates a total CIP for fiscal year
2025-26 of $27,656,397.00. The reserve policy only requires the district to maintain 25% of the amount
estimated to be needed the following fiscal year 2026-27, which amounts to $1,818,250.00, therefore,
the District meets the requirement indicated in its reserve policy.

California DWSRF Loan Payment Reserve — As per the California DWSRF Loan agreement for Oliver P.
Roemer project # 3610004-002 C, the District is required to maintain fund restriction for loan payment
amount of $1,834,711.10.

Emergency Account — The emergency account may be utilized to purchase water at any time or to begin
repair of the water system after a catastrophic event. Therefore, a minimum target level equal to 1% of
net capital assets of the District’s water system has been established to enable the district to manage
emergency situations. Per October 31, 2025, general ledger detail reporting provided by the District’s
accounting staff, CLA was able to confirm that the District’s net assets total $209,330,949.34. As of
October 31, 2025, the emergency account represents a balance of $2,093,309.49 or 1% of total net
assets, allowing the District to meet its requirements for the reserve policy.

Liquidity Funds

Rate Stabilization Fund - This fund is established to provide flexibility to the Board when settling rates
to allow for absorbing fluctuations in water demand and smoothing out rate increases over time,
temporarily defraying any unforeseen decreases in the sale of water. To remain in conjunction with the
reserve policy, the District should aim to maintain a minimum level equal to 45 days of the District’s
annual budgeted total operating expenses. Per the FY 2025-26 board-approved budget, the District
anticipates operating expense of $36,105,730.00 for the current fiscal year. The District’s current
balance of $4,451,391.37 in its rate stabilization account achieves the minimum target level for this
account as indicated in the reserve policy.

Operating Reserve Account — This fund may be routinely utilized by staff to cover temporary cash flow
deficiencies caused by timing differences between revenue and expenses or decreases in revenues and
unanticipated increases in expenses. Given the significance of this account, the District strives to
maintain a minimum amount equal to 90 days of the District’s budgeted total operating expenses in this
account. Per the FY 2025-26 board-approved budget, CLA can confirm the District has an operating
expenses budget of $36,105,730.00. As of October 31, 2025, the operating reserve account maintains a
balance of $8,902,782.74, which satisfies the requirements of the District’s reserve policy.

Self-Insurance Reserve — As indicated in the minutes from the April 5, 2018 board meeting, the District’s
board of directors approved $5,000,000 in funds for employee liability claims. According to the District’s
finance manager, reserve policy 2025-26 does not require an actuarial study report for determining self-
insurance amount.

Balance Available for Daily Operations — This balance represents the District’s total cash balance less
any fund requirements. For the month ending October 31, 2025, the District had a total of
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$140,723,304.11 in various institutional accounts. The required reserve balances by type total
$113,247,041.04 and are categorized as follows:

e Restricted Funds- $67,511,529.42

e Capital Reserve Funds- $27,381,337.51
e Liquidity Funds- $113,247,041.11

e Other Reserves- $5,000,000.00

Based on the District’s Treasurer’s Report, which indicates a total cash, investment, and reserve balance
of $140,723,304.11 and fund requirements of $113,247,041.04, the fund balance available for daily
operations reconciles to the October 2025 Treasurer’s report.

CLA reviewed the Treasurer’s report for clerical accuracy and recalculated the total Unrestricted
Reserves balance and agreed the totals to the October 2025 Treasurer’s Report. In its assessment of the
District’s accounts, the balances on the Treasurer’s Report appear to agree with the supporting
documentation provided by the West Valley Water District.
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U.S. Bank - Chandler Asset Manag Security Type Maximum per Investment Policy Balance
Money Market 12,219,902.73 A Commercial Paper 25% -
Commercial Paper - A Federal Agency Obligations 30% 13,386,611.50
Federal Agency Obligations 13,386,611.50 A U.S. Government No Limit 86,758,889.75
U.S. Government 86,758,889.75 A Municipal Bonds 20% 974,073.95
Corporate Bonds 12,526,053.80 A LAIF No Limit 12,320,051.33
Municipal Bonds 974,073.95 A CalTRUST No Limit -
Supranational 1,370,167.50 A Negotiable CD 30% -
Negotiable CD - A Medium Term Notes (Corporate Bonds) 30% 12,526,053.80
Total U.S. Bank - Chandler Asset M 1t Funds 127,235,699.23 Money Market 20% 12,219,902.73
Bank Deposits No Limit 1,167,553.54
Checking and Savings Supranational 30% 1,370,167.50
Bank of Hope - B 140,723,304.10
Chase-1653 (Operating Account) 1,107,057.01 B
Chase-1368 5,000.56 B Funds Excluded from Policy 2016A -
Chase-1392 48,636.50 B Total October 31, 2025 District Funds 140,723,304.10
Chase-5993 (Rebate Account) B
2016A Bond - Principal & Payment Funds 1,391.67 B
2016A Bond - Interest Fund 1,167.80 B
District Cash Drawers 4,300.00 C
Total Checking and Savings 1,167,553.54
October 2025
Asset Class (% of Total Investments) Maximum Portfolio (%)
CalTRUST Short Term Fund - A Commercial Paper 0.00% 25%
CalTRUST Medium Term Fund - A Federal Agency Obligations 9.51% 30%
U.S. Government 61.65% No Limit
LAIF 12,320,051.33 A Municipal Bonds 0.69% 20%
LAIF 8.75% No Limit
CalTRUST 0.00% No Limit
Negotiable CD 0.00% 30%
Medium Term Notes (Corporate Bonds) 8.90% 30%
Money Market 8.68% 20%
Total October 31, 2025 District Funds 140,723,304.10 Bank Deposits 0.83% No Limit
Supranational 0.97% 30%

The balances indicated above are as of October 31, 2025

Balances verified with monthly investment statements provided by client A
Balances verfied with monthly bank statements provided by client B
Balances verified with monthly reconciliations provided by client C

The purpose of this report is to calculate the asset class percentage in comparison with
the i portfolio perct allowed by the district's investment policy

Based on our review of the asset classes as of 10/31/25, West Valley Water District is in
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Liquidity Fund

Security Description Market Value Moody's (NRSRO) Long-Term Rating as of 09/30/2025 Rated A or Equivalent? Purchase Date Maturity Investment Maturity (Years)
U S Treasury Bill - 912797RH2 8,937,630.00 P-1 Yes 7/14/2025 1/8/2026 0.5
U S Treasury Bill - 912797RT6 7,916,160.00 P-1 Yes 8/13/2025  2/12/2026 0.5
U S Treasury Bill - 912797SB4 9,866,000.00 P-1 Yes 9/9/2025  3/12/2026 0.5
U S Treasury Bill - 912797QF7 - P-1 Yes 5/22/2025 10/16/2025 0.4
U S Treasury Bill - 912797RM1 9,998,900.00 P-1 Yes 9/9/2025  11/4/2025 0.2
U S Treasury Bill - 912797QS9 27,408,150.00 P-1 Yes 6/6/2025  12/4/2025 0.5
First American Govt Obligation Fund Class Y - 31846V203 272,133.75 P-1 Yes various

Total Liquidity Fund 64,398,973.75

Money Market Fund

Security Description Market Value Moody's (NRSRO) Long-Term Rating as of 09/30/2025 Purchase Date Maturity Investment Maturity (Years)
First American Govt Obligation Fund Class Y - 31846V203 11,947,768.98 Aaa Yes various

Total Money Market 11,947,768.98

Federal Agency Obligations

Security Description Market Value Rated A or Equivalent? Purchase Date Maturity Investment Maturity (Years)
FHLM C-3137FLYVO 491,150.00 Aaa Yes 9/19/2024  4/25/2029 4.5
Federal Farm Credit Bks - 3133ERSP7 745,440.00 Aaa Yes 11/16/2022 11/18/2027 49
F H LM C Multiclass Mtg Partn - 3137H9D71 483,760.00 Aaa Yes 10/30/2024  9/25/2029 4.8
F H LM C Multiclass Mtg Partn - 3137FPJG1 476,120.00 Aal Yes 6/2/2025  9/25/2029 43
F H LM C Multiclass Mtg Partn - 3137FQ324 474,080.00 Aaa Yes 3/17/2025 10/25/2029 4.5
F HLM C Multiclass Mtg Partn - 3137FRUT6 463,485.00 Aal Yes 6/6/2025  1/25/2030 4.6
F H LM C Multiclass Mtg Partn - 3137FUZC1 893,140.00 Aal Yes 6/26/2025 5/28/2030 49
Federal Home Loan Bks - 3130AWGS3 1,016,910.00 Aal Yes 7/11/2025 6/14/2030 49
F H LM C Multiclass Mtg Partn - 3137FX3Q9 443,985.00 Aal Yes 9/19/2025  8/25/2030 49
FNMA-3135G06G3 499,800.00 Aaa Yes 11/1/2020 11/7/2025 49
Federal Home Loan Bks - 3130AKFA9 498,075.00 Aaa Yes 12/16/2020 12/12/2025 49
Federal Home Loan Bks - 3130ATUS4 506,390.00 Aaa Yes 1/31/2023 12/10/2027 4.8
FHLMC Multiclass Mtg Partn - 3137FG6X8 499,045.00 Aaa Yes 1/23/2024  5/25/2028 43
Federal Home Loans Bks - 3130AWMN7 509,650.00 Aaa Yes 7/26/2023 6/9/2028 4.8
Federal Home Loans Bks - 3130AWNG63 505,700.00 Aaa Yes 8/16/2023  6/30/2028 4.8
Federal Home Loans Bks - 3130AWTR1 765,307.50 Aaa Yes 9/7/2023 9/8/2028 49
Federal Farm Credit Bks - 3133EPC45 513,020.00 Aaa Yes 11/27/2023 11/13/2028 49
Federal Home Loans Bks - 3130AXQK7 516,085.00 Aaa Yes 12/7/2023  12/8/2028 49
Federal Farm Credit Bks - 3133EPN50 763,620.00 Aaa Yes 1/3/2024 12/15/2028 49
FHLM C Multiclass Mtg Partn - 3137FKUP9 298,659.00 Aaa Yes 1/3/2024 12/25/2028 4.9
Federal Farm Credit Bks - 3133EPW84 756,412.50 Aaa Yes 2/5/2024  1/18/2029 4.9
F H LM C Multiclass Mtg Partn - 3137FKZZ2 496,415.00 Aaa Yes 1/18/2024  1/25/2029 5.0
Federal Home Loan Bks - 3130AVBD3 770,362.50 Aaa Yes 4/25/2024 3/9/2029 4.8
Total Federal Agency Obligations 13,386,611.50

Negotiable Certificate of Deposit
Security Description Market Value Moody's (NRSRO) Long-Term Rating as of 09/30/2025 Rated A or Equivalent? Purchase Date Maturity Investment Maturity (Years)

Total Negotiable Certificates of Deposit -
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Commercial Paper
Security Description Market Value Moody's (NRSRO) Long-Term Rating as of 09/30/2025 Rated A or Equivalent? Purchase Date Maturity Investment Maturity (Years)

Total Commercial Paper -

Municipal Bonds

Security Description Market Value Moody's (NRSRO) Long-Term Rating as of 09/30/2025 Rated A or Equivalent? Purchase Date Maturity Investment Maturity (Years)
California ST Taxable Vr Purp Go - 13063D7D4 314,250.00 Aa2 Yes 10/4/2023  10/1/2028 4.9
California ST Taxable Vr Purp Go Bd - 13063EGT7 405,076.45 Aa2 Yes 10/30/2024 8/1/2029 4.7
Massachusetts ST Taxable - 57582TEA6 254,747.50 Aal Yes 6/10/2025 6/1/2030 4.9
Total Municpal Bonds 974,073.95
Supranational
Security Description Market Value Moody's (NRSRO) Long-Term Rating as of 09/30/2025 Rated A or Equivalent? Inception Date Maturity Investment Maturity (Years)
International Bank - 459058LN1 331,980.00 Aaa Yes 10/8/2024 10/16/2029 5.0
Aaa Yes 10/22/2020 10/28/2025 49
Inter American Devel Bk - 4581X0DV7 492,930.00 Aaa Yes 4/13/2021  4/20/2026 5.0
International Bank M T N - 459058KT¢ 298,830.00 Aaa Yes 7/18/2023  7/12/2028 49
Inter American Devel Bk - 4581X0DC9 246,427.50 Aaa Yes 12/8/2023 9/18/2028 4.7
Total Supranational 1,370,167.50
U.S. Corporate
Security Description Market Value Moody's (NRSRO) Long-Term Rating as of 09/30/2025 Rated A or Equivalent? Inception Date Maturity Investment Maturity (Years)
Caterpillar Fini Service - 14913RUAJ9 462,514.50 A2 Yes 3/18/2024  2/27/2029 4.9
Cisco Sys Inc - 17275RBR2 409,948.00 Al Yes 3/13/2024  2/26/2029 49
Eli Lilly Co - 532457CQ9 201,568.00 Aa3 Yes 8/27/2024  8/14/2029 49
Abbvie Inc - 00287YBX6 482,980.00 A3 Yes 6/25/2025 11/21/2029 43
Colgate Palmolive Co - 194162AT0 216,950.05 Aa3 Yes 4/28/2025 5/1/2030 49
Paccar Financial Corp - 69371RT71 453,152.40 Al Yes 5/5/2025 5/8/2030 49
Jpmorgan Chase Co - 46647PDFO 505,615.00 Al Yes 6/25/2025 6/14/2030 4.9
Public Storage Oper Co - 74464AAC5 503,120.00 A2 Yes 7/1/2025 7/1/2030 49
Bank New York Mellon Corp - 06406RBN6 505,360.00 A3 Yes 2/20/2025 2/1/2029 3.9
Apple Inc. - 037833EB2 173,579.00 Aaa Yes 2/5/2021 2/8/2026 49
Unitedhealth Group Inc. - 91324PEC2 59,094.60 A2 Yes 6/16/2021 5/15/2026 4.8
Walmart Inc - 931142ERO 58,584.60 Aa2 Yes 9/8/2021  9/17/2026 5.0
Honeywell International - 438516BLS 295,752.00 A2 Yes 12/13/2022 11/1/2026 3.8
Duke Energy Carolinas - 26442CAS3 296,976.00 Aa3 Yes 10/28/2022 12/1/2026 4.0
Target Corp - 87612EBM7 136,922.80 A2 Yes 1/19/2022  1/15/2027 49
Procter Gamble Co The - 742718FV6 293,232.00 Aa3 Yes 2/1/2022 2/1/2027 4.9
Charles Schwab Corp - 808513BY0 93,092.40 A2 Yes 3/1/2022 3/3/2027 4.9
Berkshire Hathaway Fin - 084664CZ2 274,433.60 Aa2 Yes 3/7/2022  3/15/2027 5.0
Blackrock Inc - 09247XAN1 247,985.00 Aa3 Yes 4/27/2022  3/15/2027 4.8
Northern Tr Corp Sr Nt - 665859AW4 300,363.00 A2 Yes 5/5/2022  5/10/2027 4.9
Unitedhealth Group Inc - 91324PEG3 303,926.40 A2 Yes 5/17/2022 5/15/2027 4.9
Walmart Inc - 931142EX7 251,010.00 Aa2 Yes 9/12/2022 9/9/2027 4.9
Apple Inc - 037833DK3 246,760.00 Aaa Yes 2/1/2023 11/13/2027 4.7
Toyota Mtr Cr Corp - 89236TKQ7 360,129.75 Al Yes 1/9/2023  1/12/2028 4.9
Mastercard Incorporated - 57636QAW4 408,688.00 Aa3 Yes 3/9/2023 3/9/2028 4.9
Public Service Electric - 74456QBU9 347,921.00 Al Yes 6/22/2023 5/1/2028 4.8
Florida Pwr Lt Co - 341081GN1 353,640.00 Aa2 Yes 6/22/2023  5/15/2028 4.8
Merck Co Inc - 58933YBH7 402,024.00 Aa3 Yes 5/17/2023  5/17/2028 4.9
Prologis L P - 74340XCG4 255,455.00 A2 Yes 6/27/2023  6/15/2028 4.9
National Rural Util Coop - 63743HFN7 255,717.50 A2 Yes 2/5/2024 2/7/2029 4.9
Air Products and Chemicals Inc - 009158BH8 407,084.00 A2 Yes 5/17/2024 2/8/2029 4.7
Eli Lilly Co - 532457CK2 269,449.35 Aa3 Yes 2/7/2024 2/9/2029 4.9
John Deere Capital Corporation - 24422EXT1 431,663.40 Al Yes 6/11/2024 6/11/2029 4.9
Home Depot Inc - 437076DC3 409,576.00 A2 Yes 6/25/2024  6/25/2029 4.9
Pepsico Inc Sr Nt - 713448FX1 331,646.25 Al Yes 7/15/2024  7/17/2029 4.9
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Bank Of America Corp - 06051GHM4 501,875.00 Al Yes 6/25/2025  7/23/2029 4.0
Toronto Dominion Bank - 89115A2Y7 410,208.00 A2 Yes 4/10/2024 4/5/2029 49
Morgan Stanley Sr Nt - 61748UAKS8 169,602.20 Al Yes 10/17/2025 10/18/2029 3.9
Chubb INA Holdings LIC - 171239AG1 438,455.00 A2 Yes 10/27/2025 9/15/2030 4.8
Total U.S. Corporate 12,526,053.80

U.S. Government

Security Description Market Value Moody's (NRSRO) Long-Term Rating as of 09/30/2025 Rated A or Equivalent? Inception Date Maturity Investment Maturity (Years)
U. S. Treasury Note - 91282CLC3 708,421.00 Aal Yes 7/30/2024  7/31/2029 49
U S Treasury Note - 91282CLRO 762,682.50 Aal Yes 12/18/2024 10/31/2029 4.8
U S Treasury Note - 91282CMA6 610,266.00 Aal Yes 12/9/2024 11/30/2029 49
U S Treasury Note - 91282CMDO 1,026,840.00 Aal Yes 1/10/2025 12/31/2029 49
U S Treasury Note - 91282CGQ8 759,547.50 Aal Yes 3/18/2025 2/28/2030 49
U S Treasury Note - 91282CGZ8 992,270.00 Aal Yes 7/15/2025  4/30/2030 4.7
U S Treasury Note - 91282CNR8 2,014,460.00 Aal Yes 8/12/2025  7/31/2032 6.9
U S Treasury Note - 91282CHT1 1,990,320.00 Aal Yes 8/12/2025 8/15/2033 7.9
U S Treasury Note - 91282CPA3 996,250.00 Aal Yes 12/1/2020 8/31/2025 4.7
U.S. Treasury Note - 91282CAT8 - Aal Yes 12/1/2020 10/31/2025 4.8
U.S. Treasury Note - 91282CBC4 497,180.00 Aal Yes 1/8/2021 12/31/2025 49
U.S. Treasury Note - 91282CBH3 495,760.00 Aal Yes 2/16/2021  1/31/2026 49
U.S. Treasury Note - 91282CBQ3 494,530.00 Aal Yes 3/4/2021 2/28/2026 49
U.S. Treasury Note - 91282CCF6 245,697.50 Aal Yes 6/28/2021  5/31/2026 49
U.S. Treasury Note- 91282CCP4 488,535.00 Aal Yes 9/17/2021  7/31/2026 4.8
U.S. Treasury Note - 91282CCW9 487,895.00 Aal Yes 11/29/2021  8/31/2026 4.7
U.S. Treasury Note- 91282CCZ2 487,275.00 Aal Yes 12/15/2021  9/30/2026 4.7
U S Treasury Note - 91282CEF4 492,070.00 Aal Yes 11/2/2022  3/31/2027 4.4
U.S. Treasury Note - 91282CEN7 493,575.00 Aal Yes 6/6/2022  4/30/2027 4.8
U S Treasury Note - 91282CET4 443,020.50 Aal Yes 7/8/2022  5/31/2027 4.8
U S Treasury Note - 91282CEW7 497,010.00 Aal Yes 10/20/2022  6/30/2027 4.6
U S Treasury Note - 91282CFH9 242,905.25 Aal Yes 10/6/2022  8/31/2027 4.8
U S Treasury Note - 91282CFM8 504,705.00 Aal Yes 10/24/2022  9/30/2027 4.9
U S Treasury Note - 91282CFUO 505,000.00 Aal Yes 11/18/2022 10/31/2027 49
U S Treasury Note - 9128283F5 486,855.00 Aal Yes 11/28/2022 11/15/2027 49
U S Treasury Note - 91282CGC9 603,468.00 Aal Yes 1/26/2023 12/31/2027 49
U S Treasury Note - 91282CHX2 612,234.00 Aal Yes 9/27/2023  8/31/2028 49
U S Treasury Note - 91282CDF5 468,535.00 Aal Yes 1/30/2024 10/31/2028 4.7
U S Treasury Note - 91282CFLQ 755,857.50 Aal Yes 10/22/2024  9/30/2029 4.9
U S Treasury Note - 9128285M8 493,105.00 Aal Yes 1/19/2024 11/15/2028 4.8
U S Treasury Note - 91282CGH8 997,970.00 Aal Yes 10/27/2025 1/31/2028 2.2
U S Treasury Note - 9128283W8 981,480.00 Aal yes 10/27/2025  2/15/2028 2.3
U S Treasury Note - 91282CPD7 996,330.00 Aal Yes 10/30/2025 10/31/2030 49
Total U.S. Government 22,632,049.75

US Bank - Chandler Asset Mgmt

October 2025 Bond Total per Treasurer's Report 62,836,725.48
Total Per October 2025 Chandler Statement 62,836,725.48
Variance -

US Bank - Chandler Liquidity Fund

October 2025 Bond Total per Treasurer's Report 64,398,973.75
Total Per October 2025 Chandler Statement 64,398,973.75
Variance -
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West Valley
N ater District

STAFF REPORT
DATE: December 18, 2025
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Jose Velasquez, Chief Financial Officer

SUBJECT: Monthly Cash Disbursements Report - November 2025

STRATEGIC GOAL:

Strategic Goal 6 — Demonstrate Effective Financial Stewardship

D. Maintain a Data Driven Approach and Financial-Based Decision-Making

MEETING HISTORY:

12/8/2025 Finance Committee
BACKGROUND:

The Board of Directors requested the Monthly Cash Disbursements Report to be presented to the Finance
Committee for review and discussion before presenting these reports to the Board of Directors. The reports are
being produced from the District’s Financial System (System of Records) and will be presented to the Finance
Committee

DISCUSSION:

Each month, the Accounting Department provides a complete listing of all previous month’s disbursements to
promote fiscal responsibility and accountability over the expenditure of public funds. This process includes
providing the Finance Committee, Board of Directors, and ratepayers the opportunity to review expenses for
supplies, materials, services, (Exhibit A) and payroll disbursements (Exhibit B). Payroll is processed bi-weekly
and accounts payable are processed weekly. Information to justify each payment is available through the
Accounting Department. For reference, Customer Refunds are credits due as a result of closing a water account.

FISCAL IMPACT:

There is no fiscal impact for producing the November 2025 Cash Disbursement Reports.

REQUESTED ACTION:

Approve the November 2025 Cash Disbursements Reports.
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Attachments

Exhibit A - 2025 Nov Cash Disbursements Board Report.pdf
Exhibit B - 2025 November Cash Disbursements Payroll.pdf
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https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/wvwd/pdfs/topics/6938c5a2dffef600471dabdb/Exhibit%20A%20-%202025%20Nov%20Cash%20Disbursements%20Board%20Report.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/wvwd/pdfs/topics/6938c5a2dffef600471dabdb/Exhibit%20A%20-%202025%20Nov%20Cash%20Disbursements%20Board%20Report.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/wvwd/pdfs/topics/6938c5a2dffef600471dabdb/Exhibit%20A%20-%202025%20Nov%20Cash%20Disbursements%20Board%20Report.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/wvwd/pdfs/topics/6938c5a2dffef600471dabdb/Exhibit%20B%20-%202025%20November%20Cash%20Disbursements%20Payroll.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/wvwd/pdfs/topics/6938c5a2dffef600471dabdb/Exhibit%20B%20-%202025%20November%20Cash%20Disbursements%20Payroll.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/wvwd/pdfs/topics/6938c5a2dffef600471dabdb/Exhibit%20B%20-%202025%20November%20Cash%20Disbursements%20Payroll.pdf

EXHIBIT A
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WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT

NOV 2025

EFT/Check #
9290

9290
9291
9292
9293
9293
9293
9293
9293
9293
9293
9293
9293
9294
9294
9295
9296
9296
9296
9296
9296
9296
9296
9296
9296
9296
9296
9296
9296
9296
9296
9296
9296
9296
9296
9296
9296
9296
9296
9296
9296
9296
9297
9298
9298
9298
9298
9298
9299
9300
9301
9301
9301
9302

Vendor Name
360 GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LLC

360 GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LLC

ABF PRINTS INC

AIR & HOSE SOURCE INC

BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP

BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP

BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP

BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP

BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP

BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP

BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP

BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP

BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP

BOOT BARN INC

BOOT BARN INC

CIVIC PLUS

CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
DYER, JUNEJ

FASTENAL COMPANY

FASTENAL COMPANY

FASTENAL COMPANY

FASTENAL COMPANY

FASTENAL COMPANY

HASA INC.

HERCULES INDUSTRIES

INFOSEND INC

INFOSEND INC

INFOSEND INC

MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY

Description O & M Amount

WEB HOSTING FEE NOV 2025 S 500.00
WEB HOSTING FEE DEC 2025 S 500.00
MAINTENANCE BUSINESS CARDS S 323.25
MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES S 20.78
LEGAL FEES SEPTEMBER 2025 S 11,037.90
LEGAL FEES SEPTEMBER 2025 S 1,575.30
LEGAL FEES SEPTEMBER 2025 S 6,369.71
LEGAL FEES SEPTEMBER 2025 S 10,874.80
LEGAL FEES SEPTEMBER 2025 S 2,705.70
LEGAL FEES SEPTEMBER 2025 S 220.80
LEGAL FEES SEPTEMBER 2025 S 5,781.00
LEGAL FEES SEPTEMBER 2025 S 161.92
LEGAL FEES SEPTEMBER 2025 S 20,860.10
SAFETY BOOTS-JAROLD HILL S (146.96)
SAFETY BOOTS-ROBERT MACKAMUL S 250.00
SOCIAL MEDIA ARCHIVING S 7,547.40
LAB FEES-BLF S 44.00
LAB FEES S 1,241.50
LAB FEES-WELLS S 46.50
LAB FEES-WELLS S 46.50
LAB FEES-WELLS S 52.50
LAB FEES-WELLS S 64.50
LAB FEES-WELLS S 57.00
LAB FEES-WELLS S 82.50
LAB FEES-WELLS S 46.50
LAB FEES-WELLS S 46.50
LAB FEES-WELLS S 36.00
LAB FEES S 202.50
LAB FEES S 142.50
LAB FEES-WELLS S 15.00
LAB FEES-WELLS S 36.00
LAB FEES-WELLS S 90.00
LAB FEES S 7.50
LAB FEES-PERCHLORATE S 243.00
LAB FEES S 1,544.00
LAB FEES S 40.00
LAB FEES-ROEMER S 90.00
LAB FEES-ROEMER S 123.50
LAB FEES-ROEMER S 22.50
LAB FEES-ROEMER S 13.50
LAB FEES-ROEMER S 17.50
LAB FEES-ROEMER S 17.50
MEDICARE PART B REIMB JULY-SEPT 2025 S 555.00
SHOP SUPPLIES S 594.94
SHOP SUPPLIES S 557.42
SHOP SUPPLIES S 76.20
OFFICE SUPPLIES S 165.25
OFFICE SUPPLIES S 611.16
CHEMICALS-ROEMER S 5,309.11
PADLOCKS FOR NEW DEVELOPMENT S 1,026.37
August Newsletter S 2,792.39
Value of Water Bill Insert S 1,880.88
September News S 2,882.61
ARSENIC SUPPLIES S 440.10

Page 1 of 16
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WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT

NOV 2025

EFT/Check #
9302

9302
9302
9302
9302
9303
9303
9304
9305
9305
9305
9305
9306
9306
9307
9307
9308
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309

Vendor Name
MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY

MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY
MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY
MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY
MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY
MERLIN JOHNSON CONST INC.

MERLIN JOHNSON CONST INC.

OFFICE SOLUTIONS BUSINESS PRODUCTS & SERVICES
RECYCLED AGGREGATE MATERIALS CO INC
RECYCLED AGGREGATE MATERIALS CO INC
RECYCLED AGGREGATE MATERIALS CO INC
RECYCLED AGGREGATE MATERIALS CO INC
RED WING BUSINESS ADVANTAGE ACCOUNT
RED WING BUSINESS ADVANTAGE ACCOUNT
SAFETY COMPLIANCE COMPANY

SAFETY COMPLIANCE COMPANY

SAMBA HOLDINGS INC

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

Description
ARSENIC SUPPLIES

ARSENIC SUPPLIES
ROEMER SUPPLIES
ARSENIC SUPPLIES
ARSENIC SUPPLIES

Developer Project Removal of hydrant @18497 Valley

Emergency 12" Valve Replacement

OFFICE SUPPLIES
SHOP SUPPLIES
SHOP SUPPLIES
DISPOSAL FEES
DISPOSAL FEES

SAFETY BOOTS-AARON HILLMAN
SAFETY BOOTS-JESSE BECERRA
FIELD SAFETY MEETING 10/14/25
OFFICE SAFETY MEETING 10/14/25

HR SERVICES
UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION
UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION
UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION
UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION
UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION
UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION
UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION
UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION
UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION
UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION
UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION
UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION
UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION
UNIFORMS-PRODUCTION
UNIFORMS-WATER QLTY
UNIFORMS-WATER QLTY
UNIFORMS-WATER QLTY
UNIFORMS-WATER QLTY
UNIFORMS-WATER QLTY
UNIFORMS-WATER QLTY
UNIFORMS-WATER QLTY
UNIFORMS-WATER QLTY
UNIFORMS-WATER QLTY
UNIFORMS-WATER QLTY
UNIFORMS-FBR
UNIFORMS-FBR
UNIFORMS-FBR
UNIFORMS-FBR
UNIFORMS-FBR
UNIFORMS-FBR
UNIFORMS-FBR
UNIFORMS-FBR
UNIFORMS-FBR
JANITORIAL SVCS-ROEMER
JANITORIAL SVCS-ROEMER
UNIFORMS-FBR
UNIFORMS-ROEMER
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O & M Amount
616.49

334.32
800.55
624.26
940.67

152.56
185.76
179.53
390.00
520.00
250.00
250.00
225.00
200.00
164.78
12.25
8.77
7.80
7.01
5.56
4.81
5.73
4.81
5.56
5.73
7.01
7.80
8.77
12.25
5.87
5.90
7.44
12.25
3.74
12.25
7.44
5.87
3.74
3.50
5.73
5.07
25.32
12.25
5.73
5.07
5.07
5.73
12.25
81.66
81.66
7.76
7.09

v

65

CIP Amount

15,000.00
13,200.00



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT

NOV 2025

EFT/Check #
9309

9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309

Vendor Name
UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
UNIFIRST CORPORATION
UNIFIRST CORPORATION

Description
UNIFORMS-ROEMER

UNIFORMS-ROEMER
UNIFORMS-ROEMER
UNIFORMS-ROEMER
UNIFORMS-FBR
UNIFORMS-ROEMER
UNIFORMS-ROEMER
UNIFORMS-ROEMER
UNIFORMS-ROEMER
UNIFORMS-ROEMER
UNIFORMS-FBR
UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE
UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE
UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE
UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE
UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE
UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE
UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE
UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE
UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE
UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE
UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE
UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE
UNIFORMS-FBR
UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE
UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE
UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE
UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE
UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE
UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE
UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE
UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE
UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE
UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE
UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE
UNIFORMS-MAINTENANCE
UNIFORMS-METERS
UNIFORMS-METERS
UNIFORMS-METERS
UNIFORMS-METERS
UNIFORMS-METERS
UNIFORMS-METERS
UNIFORMS-METERS
UNIFORMS-METERS
UNIFORMS-METERS
UNIFORMS-METERS
UNIFORMS-METERS
UNIFORMS-METERS
UNIFORMS-METERS
UNIFORMS-METERS
JANITORIAL SVCS-HQ
JANITORIAL SVCS-HQ
UNIFORMS-ENGINEERING
UNIFORMS-ENGINEERING
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O & M Amount
12.25

4.76
5.75
7.31
7.76
12.25
7.09
4.76
7.31
5.75
7.76
6.96
6.38
7.03
5.41
5.75
5.73
5.37
4.93
4.81
6.16
9.44
12.25
7.69
6.16
6.38
6.96
5.75
7.03
5.41
5.37
4.93
9.44
4.81
12.25
5.73
12.25
6.72
5.87
7.74
5.76
5.31
5.78
7.74
5.87
5.31
6.72
5.76
5.78
12.25
95.86
95.86
10.75
6.24

66

CIP Amount



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT

NOV 2025

EFT/Check #
9309

9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9309
9313
9313
9313
9314
9315
9315
9315
9315
9315
9315
9315
9315
9315
9315
9315
9315
9315
9315
9315
9315
9315
9315
9315
9315
9315
9315
9315
9315
9315
9315
9315
9315
9315
9315
9315

Vendor Name
UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

UNIFIRST CORPORATION

ALBERT A WEBB ASSOCIATES

ALBERT A WEBB ASSOCIATES

ALBERT A WEBB ASSOCIATES
CHANDLER ASSET MANAGEMENT
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC

Description
UNIFORMS-ENGINEERING

UNIFORMS-ENGINEERING
UNIFORMS-ENGINEERING
UNIFORMS-ENGINEERING
UNIFORMS-ENGINEERING
UNIFORMS-ENGINEERING
UNIFORMS-ENGINEERING
UNIFORMS-PURCHASING
UNIFORMS-PURCHASING
UNIFORMS-PURCHASING
UNIFORMS-PURCHASING
UNIFORMS-PURCHASING
UNIFORMS-PURCHASING
UNIFORMS-PURCHASING
UNIFORMS-PURCHASING
UNIFORMS-PURCHASING
UNIFORMS-PURCHASING
UNIFORMS-PURCHASING
UNIFORMS-PURCHASING

Bloomington Phase 3C

18 inch Diameter Transmission Main Crossing Frwy

18 inch Diameter Transmission Main Crossing Frwy

SERVICES-OCT 2025

LAB FEES-BLF

LAB FEES

LAB FEES-WELLS

LAB FEES-WELLS

LAB FEES-WELLS

LAB FEES

LAB FEES-WELLS

LAB FEES-WELLS

LAB FEES

LAB FEES-WELLS

LAB FEES

LAB FEES

LAB FEES-PERCHLORATE
LAB FEES-PERCHLORATE
LAB FEES-PERCHLORATE
LAB FEES-PERCHLORATE
LAB FEES-FBR

LAB FEES-WELL#6

LAB FEES-WELL#11

LAB FEES-FBR

LAB FEES-WELL#11

LAB FEES-FBR

LAB FEES-FBR

LAB FEES-FBR

LAB FEES-ARSENIC

LAB FEES-ROEMER

LAB FEES-ROEMER

LAB FEES-ROEMER

LAB FEES-ROEMER

LAB FEES-ROEMER

LAB FEES-ROEMER
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O & M Amount
3.99

12.25
4.38
6.88
4.38
6.88

12.25
6.71
5.73

25.83
6.90
5.73
6.90

12.94
6.71
5.73

12.94
6.71
6.90

8,268.01
39.00
15.00
19.50
19.50
19.50
15.00
36.00
90.00

202.50
7.50
142.50
7.50
243.00
19.50
250.50
129.00
204.00
267.50
620.00
620.00
267.50
204.00
40.00
40.00
379.50
13.50
13.50
15.00
15.00
17.50
13.50

v

v

67

CIP Amount

14,794.40
1,642.91
10,404.84



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT

NOV 2025

EFT/Check #
9317

9318
9318
9318
9318
9318
9318
9318
9318
9318
9318
9318
9318
9318
9318
9318
9318
9318
9318
9318
9318
9318
9318
9318
9318
9318
9318
9319
9319
9319
9319
9319
9319
9319
9319
9319
9319
9319
9320
9321
9322
9323
9324
9325
9325
9325
9325
9326
9326
9326
9326
9326
9326
9326

Vendor Name
GENERAL PUMP COMPANY INC

HASA INC.

HASA INC.

HASA INC.

HASA INC.

HASA INC.

HASA INC.

HASA INC.

HASA INC.

HASA INC.

HASA INC.

HASA INC.

HASA INC.

HASA INC.

HASA INC.

HASA INC.

HASA INC.

HASA INC.

HASA INC.

HASA INC.

HASA INC.

HASA INC.

HASA INC.

HASA INC.

HASA INC.

HASA INC.

HASA INC.

MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY
MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY
MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY
MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY
MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY
MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY
MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY
MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY
MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY
MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY
MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY
PAUL FRANK GRAVESANDE

POUND, ROGER A

POUND,PHYLLIS A

RED WING BUSINESS ADVANTAGE ACCOUNT

ORIGIN BIOLOGICAL
ABF PRINTS INC
ABF PRINTS INC
ABF PRINTS INC
ABF PRINTS INC
ACWA /IPIA
ACWA /IPIA
ACWA /JPIA
ACWA /JPIA
ACWA /JPIA
ACWA /JPIA
ACWA /JPIA

Description
Zone 6-1 Booster 3 Repair

CHEMICALS-WELLS
CHEMICALS-WELLS
CHEMICALS-WELLS
CHEMICALS-WELLS
CHEMICALS-WELLS
CHEMICALS-BLF
CHEMICALS-WELLS
CHEMICALS-WELLS
CHEMICALS-WELLS
CHEMICALS-WELLS
CHEMICALS-WELLS
CHEMICALS-WELLS
CHEMICALS-WELLS
CHEMICALS-WELLS
CHEMICALS-WELLS
CHEMICALS-WELLS
CHEMICALS-WELLS
CHEMICALS-WELLS
CHEMICALS-WELLS
CHEMICALS-WELLS
CHEMICALS-WELLS
CHEMICALS-BLF
CHEMICALS-WELLS
CHEMICALS-PERCHLORATE
CHEMICALS-PERCHLORATE
CHEMICALS-FBR
ROEMER SUPPLIES
ROEMER SUPPLIES
ROEMER SUPPLIES
ROEMER SUPPLIES
ROEMER SUPPLIES
ROEMER SUPPLIES
ROEMER SUPPLIES
ARSENIC SUPPLIES
ROEMER SUPPLIES
ARSENIC SUPPLIES
ROEMER SUPPLIES

Emergency Service Repair for CAT 420 Steering
MEDICARE PART B REIMB JUL-SEPT 2025
MEDICARE PART B REIMB JUL-SEPT 2025

SAFETY BOOTS-JOE SALDIVAR

Mitigation monitoring and reporting for Lord Ranch

OFFICE SUPPLIES

OFFICE SUPPLIES

NAME PLATES

NAME PLATES
DELTACARE DENTAL PPO
HEALTH INSURANCE
DELTACARE DENTAL HMO
DELTACARE DENTAL PPO
EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM
HEALTH INSURANCE

EE Adjusts
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RV S T S Y Y S V2 S ¥, SV, SV S ¥ S ¥, S ¥ S Y S ¥ S V2 S V2 S ¥, S ¥ S ¥ S ¥ S ¥ S ¥ SV R V2 T 2 S V2 S ¥, SV, SV, SV, SV, S ¥, S ¥, S ¥, S ¥ S ¥ S R 72 SR V2 S V. SV Y

L T T S T SV SV, S V2 S V. SV, S SV Y

O & M Amount

254.56
254.56
249.47
218.92
585.49
789.14
432.75
356.39
249.47
234.20
455.66
254.56
381.84
219.29
598.22
656.77
582.94
274.93
654.22
562.58
542.21
1,120.07
313.11
234.20
656.77
1,031.55
286.79
156.69
242.18
657.92
149.77
866.42
285.65
900.52
186.96
194.13
749.44
1,360.00
555.00
555.00
205.52

642.19
37.71
53.88

129.30
650.72
9,156.75
521.25
9,110.84
200.88
149,969.23
4,974.48

68

CIP Amount

51,402.00

11,472.00



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT
NOV 2025

EFT/Check # Vendor Name

9326 ACWA /JPIA

9326 ACWA /JPIA

9327 ACWA/IOINT POWERS INSURANCE
9328 ALBERT A WEBB ASSOCIATES

9329 BENNETT, ESTEVAN

9330 DAVID N M TURCH

9330 DAVID N M TURCH

9331 DIAMOND ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES LP
9331 DIAMOND ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES LP
9331 DIAMOND ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES LP
9332 EVOQUA WATER TECHNOLOGIES LLC
9333 FASTENAL COMPANY

9333 FASTENAL COMPANY

9333 FASTENAL COMPANY

9333 FASTENAL COMPANY

9333 FASTENAL COMPANY

9333 FASTENAL COMPANY

9334 GARCIA, ANGELA

9335 GENERAL PUMP COMPANY INC

9336 HASA INC.

9336 HASA INC.

9336 HASA INC.

9336 HASA INC.

9336 HASA INC.

9336 HASA INC.

9336 HASA INC.

9336 HASA INC.

9336 HASA INC.

9336 HASA INC.

9337 HIDALGO, EDGAR

9338 INFOSEND INC

9338 INFOSEND INC

9339 JENKINS, DANIEL

9340 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY
9340 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY
9340 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY
9340 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY
9340 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY
9340 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY
9340 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY COMPANY
9341 MOORE, KELVIN

9342 SAFETY COMPLIANCE COMPANY
9343 TOM DODSON & ASSOCIATES

9344 UNIVAR USA INC

9346 YOUNG, GREGORY A

9347 ALVARADO, MARIANO

9348 BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP

9348 BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP

9348 BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP

9348 BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP

9348 BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP

9348 BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP

9348 BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP

9348 BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP

Description
Retirees

Retirees

2025-2026 PROGRAM YEAR

Bloomington Phase 3C

MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT OCT 2025

Federal Lobbyist Services

Federal Lobbyist Services

PORTABLE RESTROOM RENTAL-10272 S CEDAR
PORTABLE RESTROOM RENTAL-10272 S CEDAR
PORTABLE RESTROOM RENTAL-18451 VINEYARD
GAC replacement for the FBR Air scrubber
PRODUCTION SUPPLIES

SHOP SUPPLIES

SHOP SUPPLIES

SHOP SUPPLIES

OFFICE SUPPLIES

OFFICE SUPPLIES

MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT OCT 2025

Zone 6-2 Booster 5 Repair

CHEMICALS-WELLS

CHEMICALS-WELLS

CHEMICALS-WELLS

CHEMICALS-BLF

CHEMICALS-WELLS

CHEMICALS-WELLS

CHEMICALS-WELLS

CHEMICALS-WELLS
CHEMICALS-PERCHLORATE
CHEMICALS-ROEMER

D4 CERTIFICATION

Postage & Printing Customer Service Bills/Notices
Postage & Printing Customer Service Bills/Notices
MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT OCT 2025

WATER QLTY SUPPLIES

ROEMER SUPPLIES

ROEMER SUPPLIES

ROEMER SUPPLIES

ROEMER SUPPLIES

ROEMER SUPPLIES

ROEMER SUPPLIES

MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT OCT 2025

FIELD SAFETY MTG 10/28/25

Bloomington Alleyway Main Replacement Phase 3B
Acedic Acid for FBR

MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT OCT 2025
CALPERLA 2025 CONFERENCE

LEGAL FEES-OCT 2025

LEGAL FEES-OCT 2025

LEGAL FEES-OCT 2025

LEGAL FEES-OCT 2025

LEGAL FEES-OCT 2025

LEGAL FEES-OCT 2025

LEGAL FEES-OCT 2025

LEGAL FEES-OCT 2025
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O & M Amount
19,288.12

1,855.68
228,682.96

37.52
12,500.00
12,500.00

124.26
124.26
124.26
1,009.62
636.69
69.90
334.20
32.94
187.89
326.35
25.20

285.11
381.84
509.12
890.96
478.57
526.94
381.84
310.56
330.93
5,696.48
105.00
5,750.55
19,666.00
36.12
80.26
945.73
513.08
253.86
46.06
564.75
105.93
159.88
225.00

12,445.99
253.26
1,428.44
8,936.20
6,942.00
11,381.20
902.00
883.20
222.06
164.00
274.40

69

CIP Amount

1,726.55

45,087.93

660.00



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT

NOV 2025

EFT/Check #
9348

9348
9348
9349
9349
9349
9349
9349
9349
9349
9349
9349
9349
9349
9349
9349
9349
9349
9349
9349
9349
9349
9349
9349
9349
9349
9349
9349
9349
9349
9349
9349
9349
9349
9349
9349
9349
9349
9349
9349
9349
9349
9349
9349
9351
9352
9352
9353
9353
9353
9354
9354
9354
89820

Vendor Name
BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP

BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP

BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP

CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO INC
GENERAL PUMP COMPANY INC
INFOSEND INC

INFOSEND INC

PICAZO'S FLOWER DESIGNS INC
PICAZO'S FLOWER DESIGNS INC
PICAZO'S FLOWER DESIGNS INC

SAFE AND SOUND SECURITY INC

SAFE AND SOUND SECURITY INC

SAFE AND SOUND SECURITY INC
SHEGERIAN & ASSOCIATES-CLIENT TRUST ACCOUNT

Description
LEGAL FEES-OCT 2025

LEGAL FEES-OCT 2025

LEGAL FEES-OCT 2025

LAB FEES-BLF

LAB FEES-BLF

LAB FEES-BLF

LAB FEES

LAB FEES

LAB FEES-WELLS

LAB FEES-WELLS

LAB FEES

LAB FEES

LAB FEES-WELLS

LAB FEES-WELLS

LAB FEES-WELLS

LAB FEES-WELLS

LAB FEES

LAB FEES-WELLS

LAB FEES-WELLS

LAB FEES

LAB FEES

LAB FEES

LAB FEES

LAB FEES

LAB FEES

LAB FEES-PERCHLORATE

LAB FEES-PERCHLORATE

LAB FEES-WELL#6

LAB FEES-FBR

LAB FEES-FBR

LAB FEES-WELL#11

LAB FEES-WELL#6

LAB FEES-FBR

LAB FEES-WELL#11

LAB FEES-WELL#6

LAB FEES-FBR

LAB FEES-ROEMER

LAB FEES-ROEMER

LAB FEES-ROEMER

LAB FEES-ROEMER

LAB FEES-ROEMER

LAB FEES-ROEMER

LAB FEES-ROEMER

LAB FEES-ROEMER

Rehab BLF North Well

Postage & Printing Customer Service Bills/Notices
Postage & Printing Customer Service Bills/Notices
PLANTS MAINTENANCE JULY 2025
PLANTS MAINTENANCE AUG 2025
PLANTS MAINTENANCE SEPT 2025
Security Camera Sys Expansion and Integration Proj
Security Camera Sys Expansion and Integration Proj
Security Camera Sys Expansion and Integration Proj

CASE#CIVSB2323207
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O & M Amount
656.00

1,092.96
12,006.56
44.00
15.00
15.00
701.50
786.00
55.50
157.50
39.50
620.00
36.00
90.00
19.50
19.50
7.50
36.00
90.00
7.50
15.00
15.00
15.00
142.50
202.50
169.50
243.00
620.00
172.50
341.00
182.50
182.50
620.00
620.00
620.00
40.00
123.50
380.50
215.00
90.00
17.50
17.50
17.50
13.50

3,909.33
14,376.46
424.00
424.00
424.00

450,000.00

70

CIP Amount

107,792.23

12,034.55
9,420.59
8,324.32



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT

NOV 2025

EFT/Check #
89821

89822
89822
89822
89822
89822
89822
89822
89822
89822
89822
89822
89822
89822
89822
89823
89824
89825
89825
89825
89825
89825
89826
89827
89828
89829
89829
89830
89831
89832
89832
89832
89832
89832
89832
89833
89833
89833
89834
89834
89835
89836
89836
89836
89837
89838
89838
89839
89840
89840
89840
89841
89841
89842

Vendor Name
ALLIANCE 2020 INC

AMAZON.COM SALES INC
AMAZON.COM SALES INC
AMAZON.COM SALES INC
AMAZON.COM SALES INC
AMAZON.COM SALES INC
AMAZON.COM SALES INC
AMAZON.COM SALES INC
AMAZON.COM SALES INC
AMAZON.COM SALES INC
AMAZON.COM SALES INC
AMAZON.COM SALES INC
AMAZON.COM SALES INC
AMAZON.COM SALES INC
AMAZON.COM SALES INC

AND LIMITED LLC

AQUA-METRIC SALES CO

ASBCSD

ASBCSD

ASBCSD

ASBCSD

ASBCSD

AT&T INTERNET

AT&T LONG DISTANCE

ATKINSON ANDELSON LOYA RUUD & ROMO
BURRTEC WASTE INDUSTRIES INC
BURRTEC WASTE INDUSTRIES INC
CALIFORNIA SPECIAL DIST ASSOC
CALIFORNIA STRATEGIES & ADVOCACY LLC
CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS
CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS
CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS
CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS
CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS
CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS
CHR SERVICES

CHR SERVICES

CHR SERVICES

CINTAS CORPORATION

CINTAS CORPORATION

CITY OF COLTON

CITY OF RIALTO-ALARM PROGRAM
CITY OF RIALTO-ALARM PROGRAM
CITY OF RIALTO-ALARM PROGRAM

CITY OF RIALTO-ENGINEERING SERVICES DEPARTMENT

COASTAL BUILDING SERVICES INC
COASTAL BUILDING SERVICES INC
CONTROL TEMP INC

CORE & MAIN LP

CORE & MAIN LP

CORE & MAIN LP

DIGITAL IMAGE SOLUTIONS, LLC
DIGITAL IMAGE SOLUTIONS, LLC
HONEYCOTT INC

Description
HR SERVICES

MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES

OFFICE SUPPLIES

OFFICE SUPPLIES

OFFICE SUPPLIES

OFFICE SUPPLIES

OFFICE SUPPLIES

OFFICE SUPPLIES

OFFICE SUPPLIES

OFFICE SUPPLIES

FBR SUPPLIES

OUTREACH PROGRAM

OUTREACH PROGRAM

OUTREACH PROGRAM

OUTREACH PROGRAM

Dec Seminar Services

METERS SUPPLIES

DINNER MTG-SOCORRO/ISABEL/GUSTAVO
DINNER MTG-SOCORRO/ISABEL/GUSTAVO
DINNER MTG-SOCORRO/ISABEL/GUSTAVO
DINNER MTG-SOCORRO/MARYJO

DINNER MTG-SOCORRO/MARYJO
INTERNET SVCS 10/26/25-11/25/25

LONG DISTANCE-ROEMER

LEGAL FEES SEPT 2025

DISPOSAL FEES-ROEMER

DISPOSAL FEES-HQ

2026 ANNUAL DUES

State Lobbyist Services

ROEMER INTERNET

ROEMER INTERNET

ROEMER INTERNET

CABLE/TELEPHONE

CABLE/TELEPHONE

INTERNET SVCS HQ

FIRST AID/CPR TRAINING 16 EMPLOYEES
FIRST AID/CPR TRAINING 14 EMPLOYEES
FIRST AID/CPR TRAINING 22 EMPLOYEES
JANITORIAL SERVICES

JANITORIAL SERVICES-HQ
ENCROACHMENT FEES

FALSE ALARM FEES

ALARM PERMIT RENEWAL FEE

ALARM PERMIT NON COMPLIANCE NOTICE
STANDARD INSPECTION FEE

Janitorial Services for District

Janitorial Services for District

Quarterly maintenance HVAC

FORD BRASS ORDER 08/28/25-2

FORD BRASS ORDER 08/28/25-2

FORD BRASS ORDER 08/28/25-2

COPIER MAINTENANCE 10/01/25-10/31/25
COPIER MAINTENANCE 10/02/25-11/01/25
METERS SUPPLIES
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O & M Amount
340.10

515.45
80.37
(174.16)
(24.88)
(24.88)
24.46
248.80
(24.88)
96.96
26.16
50.70
214.90
117.07
58.68
1,950.00
388.00
45.00
45.00
45.00
40.00
40.00
144.45
27.57
10,990.88
250.24
840.60
10,225.00
12,500.00
966.70
1,381.00
1,381.00
285.06
143.00
1,549.00
1,040.00
910.00
1,430.00
197.30
197.30
618.00
338.70
26.90
20.10
958.70
974.00
2,904.00
1,254.41
261.62
298.04
1,804.38
440.68
360.81
195.00

71

CIP Amount



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT

NOV 2025

EFT/Check #
89843

89844
89844
89844
89844
89844
89845
89846
89847
89848
89848
89849
89850
89851
89852
89853
89854
89854
89854
89854
89855
89856
89856
89857
89858
89858
89858
89858
89859
89860
89861
89862
89862
89862
89863
89864
89865
89866
89867
89868
89869
89870
89871
89872
89873
89874
89875
89876
89877
89878
89879
89880
89881
89882

Vendor Name

INLAND EMPIRE COMMUNITY COLLABORATIVE INC.

JOHNSON'S HARDWARE
JOHNSON'S HARDWARE
JOHNSON'S HARDWARE
JOHNSON'S HARDWARE
JOHNSON'S HARDWARE
MASTERS TELECOM LLC
MINUTEMAN PRESS OF RANCHO CUCAMONGA
NEW RESOURCES GROUP INC
ORANGE COUNTY WINWATER WORKS
ORANGE COUNTY WINWATER WORKS
O'REILLY AUTO PARTS
QUADIENT FINANCE USA INC
QUADIENT FINANCE USA INC
RIALTO HIGH SCHOOL-MESA
RIALTO WATER SERVICES

S&J SUPPLY CO INC

S&J SUPPLY CO INC

S&J SUPPLY CO INC

S&J SUPPLY CO INC

SB COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
SG CREATIVE LLC

SG CREATIVE LLC

SO CALIFORNIA EDISON
SOUTH COAST AQMD

SOUTH COAST AQMD

SOUTH COAST AQMD

SOUTH COAST AQMD
STERLING ADMINISTRATION
TERRYBERRY

THE STANDARD - VISION
VERIZON WIRELESS PHONES
VERIZON WIRELESS PHONES
VERIZON WIRELESS PHONES
YO FIRE

LLC, Vintage Flip

Gamboa, Antonio

Leal, Christina & Jesus

Dickson, Lattrice

Aplon, Kim & Kenneth

Kaur, Manpreet

LENNAR CORP

FINE, JOSHUA

CALDERON, JESSICA

Wang, Nan

LANDSEA FONTANA LLC
LANDSEA FONTANA LLC
LANDSEA FONTANA LLC
RICHMOND AMERICAN HOMES
LENNAR CORP

RICHMOND AMERICAN HOMES
Gonzales, Rosalie B.

COBURN EQUIPMENT INC
MONTERO, RAUL

Description
COMMUNITY CHAMPION SPONSORSHIP

WATER QUALITY SUPPLIES
WATER QUALITY SUPPLIES
MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES
MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES
METERS AMR SUPPLIES
SCADA LINES/FIRE PANEL
SIGNS

West Valley Water Distirct Custom Pail
OC ORDER 10/09/25

OC ORDER 10/09/25
VEHICLE MAINTENANCE
POSTAGE METER RENTAL
POSTAGE

SPONSORSHIP RUBE-A-THON
FBR 09/15/25-10/13/25
STOCK ORDER

STOCK ORDER

STOCK ORDER

STOCK ORDER

PERMIT FEES ROEMER
FALL/HALLOWEEN MASCOT EDITS
PROJECTS WITH LOGO
ROEMER ELECTRICITY
ANNUAL FEES

EMISSIONS FEES

ANNUAL RENEWAL FEES
EMISSIONS FEES

Annual COBRA Renewal
EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION-PATRICE STEWART
RETIREES INSURANCE-NOV 2025
CELL PHONES/IPADS

CELL PHONES/IPADS

CELL PHONES/IPADS
MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES
Customer Refund
Customer Refund
Customer Refund
Customer Refund
Customer Refund
Customer Refund
Customer Refund
Customer Refund
Customer Refund
Customer Refund
Customer Refund
Customer Refund
Customer Refund
Customer Refund
Customer Refund
Customer Refund
Customer Refund
Customer Refund

Customer Refund
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O & M Amount
2,500.00

36.62
94.69
27.72
135.66
91.57
131.22
284.10
1,863.04
7,023.68
9,442.99
180.80
687.64
800.00
2,500.00
1,365.55
180.97
45.26
23.42
116.91
967.00
600.00
120.00
41,439.60
5,021.26
170.94
565.63
170.94
810.00
101.12
550.48
4,653.19
1,855.20
968.94
689.60
22.98
58.17
61.99
345.61
72.07
14.49
2.98
28.54
82.87
45.00
159.22
273.18
160.40
19.21
0.16
13.76
1.32
2,203.50
34.18

72

CIP Amount



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT

NOV 2025

EFT/Check #
89883

89884
89885
89886
89887
89888
89889
89890
89891
89892
89893
89894
89894
89895
89895
89895
89895
89895
89895
89895
89895
89896
89897
89898
89899
89900
89900
89900
89900
89901
89902
89903
89904
89904
89905
89906
89907
89908
89909
89910
89911
89912
89913
89913
89913
89914
89915
89916
89917
89918
89919
89920
89921
89921

Vendor Name
LLC, Blue Sycamore Properties

MANN, NAVDEEP

WARREN, VANESSA

Abascal, Martha

Durant, Maria Evangelina

We Buy Houses Investment Group, LLC.
Alejandrez, Jasmin

LAND SEA FONTANA LLC

RICHMOND AMERICAN HOMES
RICHMOND AMERICAN HOMES
RICHMOND AMERICAN HOMES

BLUE LOCKER COMMERCIAL DIVING SERVICES, L.L.C.
BLUE LOCKER COMMERCIAL DIVING SERVICES, L.L.C.
CINTAS CORPORATION NO 2

CINTAS CORPORATION NO 2

CINTAS CORPORATION NO 2

CINTAS CORPORATION NO 2

CINTAS CORPORATION NO 2

CINTAS CORPORATION NO 2

CINTAS CORPORATION NO 2

CINTAS CORPORATION NO 2

CITY OF RIALTO-ENGINEERING SERVICES DEPARTMENT
COLTON JOINT UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT
COLTON PUBLIC UTILITIES

EARTHCAM INC

FAST SERVICE

FAST SERVICE

FAST SERVICE

FAST SERVICE

GARDA CL WEST INC

GHD INC

GOMEZ, LUIS

GRAINGER INC

GRAINGER INC

HARMSCO INC

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
JASON LEE BERKLEY

LOWES

NED'S OIL SALES INC

NEO GOV

NEW RESOURCES GROUP INC

O'REILLY AUTO PARTS

PACK N MAIL

PACK N MAIL

PACK N MAIL

QUADIENT FINANCE USA INC

QUINN COMPANY

RIALTO WATER SERVICES

S&J SUPPLY CO INC

SAN BERNARDINO COUNTY RECORDER
SO CALIFORNIA EDISON

STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD
TERRYBERRY

TERRYBERRY

Description
Customer Refund

Customer Refund

Customer Refund

Customer Refund

Customer Refund

Customer Refund

Customer Refund

Customer Refund

Customer Refund

Customer Refund

Customer Refund

Clean and Inspect Zone 7 Reservoirs
Inspect Reservoir 8-1 & 8-2

SAFETY SUPPLIES

SAFETY SUPPLIES

SAFETY SUPPLIES

SAFETY SUPPLIES

SAFETY SUPPLIES

SAFETY SUPPLIES

SAFETY SUPPLIES

SAFETY SUPPLIES

PERMIT FEES-1582 LILAC AVE

TURF REPLACEMENT REBATE

WELL 18A ELECTRIC-09/29/25-10/28/25
LIVE STREAMING ARCHIVING SVCS
FEES FOR JULY, AUGUST 2025

FEES FOR JULY, AUGUST 2025

FEES FOR SEPT, OCT 2025

FEES FOR SEPT, OCT 2025
ARMORED TRANSPORT-NOV 2025
Professional Engineering Services Roemer Expansion
D4 CERTIFICATION

PRODUCTION SUPPLIES

ROEMER SUPPLIES

Well 42 Cartridge Filters

SERVICES SEPT 2025

Burrowing Owl and Nesting Bird Surveys
MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES

PARTS FOR SECURITY CAMERAS
SUBSCRIPTIONS

OUTREACH PROGRAM-HAND FANS
VEHICLE MANTENANCE

FEES FOR JULY, AUGUST, SEPT 2025
FEES FOR JULY, AUGUST, SEPT 2025
FEES FOR JULY, AUGUST, SEPT 2025
POSTAGE

Emergency Steering Repair on CAT 420
WELL#16-9/24/25-10/29/25

12" BUTTERFLY VALVE

LIEN RELEASE

S END SHOP 10/08/25-11/05/25

T2 CERTIFICATION-CODY LUDWIG
HR RECOGNITION SUPPLIES

HR RECOGNITION SUPPLIES
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O & M Amount
33.84

16.22
1.95
62.05
24.07
9.92
70.82
102.73
5.11
13.70
0.70
38,500.00
10,000.00
52.50
396.97
93.71
678.92
562.46
281.23
281.23
562.46
958.70
30,000.00
1,473.32

213.00
194.00
208.00
218.00
664.24

130.00
179.66
519.91
9,792.00
2,047.34
880.00
448.08

6,174.01
376.83
6.99
72.00
78.00
91.00
585.00
1,011.68
34.53
3,120.44
20.00
116.19
60.00
75.74
640.13

73

CIP Amount

450.00

84,554.20

9.63



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT

NOV 2025

EFT/Check #
89922

89923
89924
89924
89925
89925
89925
89925
89925
89925
89925
89925
89925
89925
89925
89925
89925
89925
89925
89925
89925
89925
89925
89925
89925
89925
89925
89925
89925
89925
89925
89925
89925
89925
89925
89925
89925
89925
89927
89928
89929
89930
89930
89931
89931
89931
89931
89932
89932
89932
89933
89934
89934
89934

Vendor Name
THE GAS COMPANY

TRI CITIES ANSWERING SERVICE & CALL CTR

USA BLUEBOOK

USA BLUEBOOK
AMAZON.COM SALES INC
AMAZON.COM SALES INC
AMAZON.COM SALES INC
AMAZON.COM SALES INC
AMAZON.COM SALES INC
AMAZON.COM SALES INC
AMAZON.COM SALES INC
AMAZON.COM SALES INC
AMAZON.COM SALES INC
AMAZON.COM SALES INC
AMAZON.COM SALES INC
AMAZON.COM SALES INC
AMAZON.COM SALES INC
AMAZON.COM SALES INC
AMAZON.COM SALES INC
AMAZON.COM SALES INC
AMAZON.COM SALES INC
AMAZON.COM SALES INC
AMAZON.COM SALES INC
AMAZON.COM SALES INC
AMAZON.COM SALES INC
AMAZON.COM SALES INC
AMAZON.COM SALES INC
AMAZON.COM SALES INC
AMAZON.COM SALES INC
AMAZON.COM SALES INC
AMAZON.COM SALES INC
AMAZON.COM SALES INC
AMAZON.COM SALES INC
AMAZON.COM SALES INC
AMAZON.COM SALES INC
AMAZON.COM SALES INC
AMAZON.COM SALES INC
AMAZON.COM SALES INC
AQUA-METRIC SALES CO
AT&T

BAVCO

BRAVO ROOFING INCORPORATED
BRAVO ROOFING INCORPORATED

CALIAGUA, INC
CALIAGUA, INC
CALIAGUA, INC
CALIAGUA, INC
CINTAS CORPORATION
CINTAS CORPORATION
CINTAS CORPORATION
CITY OF COLTON

CITY OF RIALTO-ENGINEERING SERVICES DEPARTMENT
CITY OF RIALTO-ENGINEERING SERVICES DEPARTMENT
CITY OF RIALTO-ENGINEERING SERVICES DEPARTMENT

Description
ROEMER 10/02/25-11/03/25

ANSWERING SERVICE-10/10/25-11/09/25

FBR SUPPLIES

ROEMER SUPPLIES

MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES

OFFICE SUPPLIES

OFFICE SUPPLIES RETURNS

OFFICE SUPPLIES

VEHICLE MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES

Amazon Computer parts and supplies oct 2025
Amazon Computer parts and supplies oct 2025
Amazon Computer parts and supplies oct 2025
Amazon Computer parts and supplies oct 2025
Amazon Computer parts and supplies oct 2025
Amazon Computer parts and supplies oct 2025
Amazon Computer parts and supplies oct 2025
Amazon Computer parts and supplies oct 2025
Amazon Computer parts and supplies oct 2025
Amazon Computer parts and supplies oct 2025
Amazon Computer parts and supplies oct 2025
Amazon Computer parts and supplies oct 2025
Amazon Computer parts and supplies oct 2025
Amazon Computer parts and supplies oct 2025
Amazon Computer parts and supplies oct 2025
Amazon Computer parts and supplies oct 2025
Amazon Computer parts and supplies oct 2025
Amazon Computer parts and supplies oct 2025
Amazon Computer parts and supplies oct 2025
Amazon Computer parts and supplies oct 2025
Amazon Computer parts and supplies oct 2025
Amazon Computer parts and supplies oct 2025
Amazon Computer parts and supplies oct 2025
Amazon Computer parts and supplies oct 2025
Amazon Computer parts and supplies oct 2025
Amazon Computer parts and supplies oct 2025
Amazon Computer parts and supplies oct 2025
Amazon Computer parts and supplies oct 2025
Amazon Computer parts and supplies oct 2025
3/4" METER ORDER

TELEMETRY LINE

WATER QLTY SUPPLIES

Booster Station 4-2 Roof

Booster Station 4-2 Roof

Lord Ranch Facilities Project

Lord Ranch Facilities Project

RETENTION

RETENTION

JANITORIAL SERVICES-HQ

JANITORIAL SERVICES-HQ

JANITORIAL SERVICES-HQ

PERMIT FEES

PERMIT FEES

PERMIT FEES

PERMIT FEES
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O & M Amount
15.78

825.95
908.50
289.05
503.10
52.36
(52.36)
27.62
63.25
13.82
315.02
196.23
204.71
110.93
403.45
449.23
124.98
84.01
148.89
101.27
73.25
45.22
38.75
21.53
68.05
36.83
31.29
41.16
99.61
129.25
56.01
149.73
312.46
25.85
96.96
9.68
339.32
95.64
6,925.78
64.04
472.11

194.97
197.30
197.30
618.00
958.70
958.70
958.70

RV SV RV SV SV S

74

CIP Amount

48,650.00
3,620.00
399,300.00
176,585.00
(19,965.00)
(8,829.25)



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT

NOV 2025

EFT/Check #
89934

89934
89935
89936
89936
89936
89936
89937
89937
89937
89938
89939
89940
89940
89941
89942
89943
89943
89943
89943
89943
89943
89943
89944
89944
89944
89945
89945
89946
89946
89947
89947
89947
89948
89948
89948
89948
89948
89949
89950
89950
89951
89951
89951
89951
89951
89952
89953
89954
89954
89954
89954
89954
89954

Vendor Name
CITY OF RIALTO-ENGINEERING SERVICES DEPARTMENT

CITY OF RIALTO-ENGINEERING SERVICES DEPARTMENT
CITY OF SAN BERNARDINO
CORE & MAIN LP

CORE & MAIN LP

CORE & MAIN LP

CORE & MAIN LP

CRE-SFG ISF, LLC

CRE-SFG ISF, LLC

CRE-SFG ISF, LLC

DELUXE

E & M ELECTRIC AND MACHINERY INC.
FMB TRUCK OUTFITTERS, INC.
FMB TRUCK OUTFITTERS, INC.
GRAINGER INC

INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY
JOHNSON'S HARDWARE
JOHNSON'S HARDWARE
JOHNSON'S HARDWARE
JOHNSON'S HARDWARE
JOHNSON'S HARDWARE
JOHNSON'S HARDWARE
JOHNSON'S HARDWARE
LENNAR HOMES

LENNAR HOMES

LENNAR HOMES

MARIPOSA LANDSCAPES INC
MARIPOSA LANDSCAPES INC
MIKE ROQUET CONSTRUCTION, INC.
MIKE ROQUET CONSTRUCTION, INC.
MOUNTAIN AVENUE BEES, INC
MOUNTAIN AVENUE BEES, INC
MOUNTAIN AVENUE BEES, INC
O'REILLY AUTO PARTS
O'REILLY AUTO PARTS
O'REILLY AUTO PARTS
O'REILLY AUTO PARTS
O'REILLY AUTO PARTS

PBK ARCHITECTS, INC.
PINNACLE PETROLEUM INC
PINNACLE PETROLEUM INC
S&J SUPPLY CO INC

S&J SUPPLY CO INC

S&J SUPPLY CO INC

S&J SUPPLY CO INC

S&J SUPPLY CO INC

SC COMMERCIAL LLC

SCOTT EQUIPMENT INC.

SO CALIFORNIA EDISON

SO CALIFORNIA EDISON

SO CALIFORNIA EDISON

SO CALIFORNIA EDISON

SO CALIFORNIA EDISON

SO CALIFORNIA EDISON

Description
PERMIT FEES

PERMIT FEES

LYTLE CREEK STREAMFLOW-OCT 2025
INVENTORY

FORD BRASS ORDER 08/28/25-2

FORD BRASS ORDER 08/28/25-2
INVENTORY CREDIT

DEP REFUNDS CONT/METER/VALVE

DEP REFUNDS CONT/METER/VALVE

DEP REFUNDS CONT/METER/VALVE

CUST SVC SUPPLIES

SCADA Annual Support

Lightbar, Tool Boxes, Side Steps for New Trucks
Lightbar, Tool Boxes, Side Steps for New Trucks
PRODUCTION SUPPLIES

SERVICES SEPT 2025

PRODUCTION SUPPLIES

PRODUCTION SUPPLIES

PRODUCTION SUPPLIES

PRODUCTION SUPPLIES

MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES

MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES

SHOP SUPPLIES

DEP REFUNDS CONT/METER/VALVE

DEP REFUNDS CONT/METER/VALVE

DEP REFUNDS CONT/METER/VALVE
Weed Abatement Cactus Basin #2
Landscape Services for District

Street Paving, Patching, and Repairs
Street Paving, Patching, and Repairs
DEPOSITS REFUND CONT/METER/VALVE
DEPOSITS REFUND CONT/METER/VALVE
DEPOSITS REFUND CONT/METER/VALVE
ROEMER SUPPLIES

VEHICLE MAINTENANCE

VEHICLE MAINTENANCE

VEHICLE MAINTENANCE

VEHICLE MAINTENANCE

PSA with PBK for Master Planning Services
Gasoline and Diesel for Fleet

Gasoline and Diesel for Fleet

9.5" OD CLAMPS

9.5" OD CLAMPS

STOCK ORDER 11/03

STOCK ORDER 11/03

STOCK ORDER 11/03

EMERGENCY Fuel Generators

Emergency Replacement Platform for 104 Trailer
VARIOUS LOCATIONS-09/30/25-10/28/25
VARIOUS LOCATIONS-09/30/25-10/28/25
VARIOUS LOCATIONS-09/30/25-10/28/25
19920 COUNTRY CLUN/WELL#17
VARIOUS LOCATIONS-09/30/25-10/28/25
19920 COUNTRY CLUN/WELL#17
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O & M Amount
958.70

958.70
1,372.48
16,136.64
1,167.26
2,350.35
(16,136.64)

1,050.00
120.00
7,209.30
677.55
22,740.00

210.16
5,883.93
70.94
30.15
118.04
131.34
39.82
131.94
23.17
31,500.00
5,160.00
100,608.40
14,912.77
7,500.98
12,618.76
11,304.76
1,350.00
720.00
14,581.00
109.26
17.22
40.60
118.14
9.79

10,256.83
4,671.08
504.27
407.75
297.39
161.63
96.97
2,077.44
10,392.48
14,271.25
83,917.73
93,006.97
8,330.15
22,175.92
636.62

75

CIP Amount

3,211.71
3,211.71

3,570.00



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT

NOV 2025

EFT/Check #
89954

89954
89954
89954
89954
89954
89955
89956
89957
89957
89957
89957
89958
89958
89958
89959
89960
89960
89960
89960
89960
89960
89960
89960
89960
89960
89960
89960
89960
89960
89960
89960
89960
89960
89960
89960
89960
89960
89960
89960
89960
89961
89961
89961
89961
89961
89962
89962
89963
89963
89964
89964
89964
89964

Vendor Name
SO CALIFORNIA EDISON

SO CALIFORNIA EDISON
SO CALIFORNIA EDISON
SO CALIFORNIA EDISON
SO CALIFORNIA EDISON
SO CALIFORNIA EDISON
SOURCE GRAPHICS

STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD

STETSON ENGINEERS INC

STETSON ENGINEERS INC

STETSON ENGINEERS INC

STETSON ENGINEERS INC

TESCO CONTROLS INC

TESCO CONTROLS INC

TESCO CONTROLS INC

THE GAS COMPANY

THE STANDARD - LIFE - ER AFTER TAX
THE STANDARD - LIFE - ER AFTER TAX
THE STANDARD - LIFE - ER AFTER TAX
THE STANDARD - LIFE - ER AFTER TAX
THE STANDARD - LIFE - ER AFTER TAX
THE STANDARD - LIFE - ER AFTER TAX
THE STANDARD - LIFE - ER AFTER TAX
THE STANDARD - LIFE - ER AFTER TAX
THE STANDARD - LIFE - ER AFTER TAX
THE STANDARD - LIFE - ER AFTER TAX
THE STANDARD - LIFE - ER AFTER TAX
THE STANDARD - LIFE - ER AFTER TAX
THE STANDARD - LIFE - ER AFTER TAX
THE STANDARD - LIFE - ER AFTER TAX
THE STANDARD - LIFE - ER AFTER TAX
THE STANDARD - LIFE - ER AFTER TAX
THE STANDARD - LIFE - ER AFTER TAX
THE STANDARD - LIFE - ER AFTER TAX
THE STANDARD - LIFE - ER AFTER TAX
THE STANDARD - LIFE - ER AFTER TAX
THE STANDARD - LIFE - ER AFTER TAX
THE STANDARD - LIFE - ER AFTER TAX
THE STANDARD - LIFE - ER AFTER TAX
THE STANDARD - LIFE - ER AFTER TAX
THE STANDARD - LIFE - ER AFTER TAX
THE STANDARD - VISION

THE STANDARD - VISION

THE STANDARD - VISION

THE STANDARD - VISION

THE STANDARD - VISION

UGSI CHEMICAL FEED, INC

UGSI CHEMICAL FEED, INC
UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT
UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT

USA BLUEBOOK

USA BLUEBOOK

USA BLUEBOOK

USA BLUEBOOK

Description
WELL# 6 10/10/25-11/09/25

VARIOUS LOCATIONS-09/30/25-10/28/25
VARIOUS LOCATIONS-09/30/25-10/28/25
VARIOUS LOCATIONS-09/30/25-10/28/25
VARIOUS LOCATIONS-09/30/25-10/28/25
VARIOUS LOCATIONS-09/30/25-10/28/25
ENGINEERING SUPPLIES

D4 CERTIFICATION-LUIS GOMEZ

Stetson -Rialto Basin Groundwater Mngmt Plan
Stetson -Rialto Basin Groundwater Mngmt Plan
Stetson -Rialto Basin Groundwater Mngmt Plan
Stetson -Rialto Basin Groundwater Mngmt Plan
Radio repair Well 2

PRODUCTION SERVICES

TELEMETERING

HQ GAS BILL 10/08/25-11/07/25

EE Adjusts

AD&D

DEPENDENT LIFE

LIFE INSURANCE

LONG TERM DISABILITY

AD&D

DEPENDENT LIFE

LIFE INSURANCE

LONG TERM DISABILITY

STD - Short Term Disability

STD - Short Term Disability

STD - Short Term Disability

STD - Short Term Disability

STD - Short Term Disability

STD - Short Term Disability

STD - Short Term Disability

STD - Short Term Disability

STD - Short Term Disability

STD - Short Term Disability

STD - Short Term Disability

STD - Short Term Disability

STD - Short Term Disability

STD - Short Term Disability

STD - Short Term Disability

STD - Short Term Disability

VISION MES

VISION VSP

VISION MES

VISION VSP

EE Adjusts

FBR Polyblend parts for DAF

FBR Polyblend parts for DAF

NEW TICKETS

MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES

Sample and Test Kits

ROEMER SUPPLIES

MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES

METERS MAINTENANCE
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O & M Amount
31,426.42

21,830.96
2,769.82
16,402.04
141.03
4,113.19
387.04
105.00
844.25
844.25
844.25
844.25
5,625.00
450.00
450.00
30.11
(129.46)
29.30
6.15
216.23
24.11
330.35
99.63
2,435.99
2,560.92
313.36
156.68
156.68
117.51
470.04
274.19
235.02
117.51
195.85
156.68
391.70
156.68
39.17
117.51
156.68
156.68
15.34
78.64
184.08
1,356.54
58.98
1,221.64
556.28
648.00
211.37
1,477.87
665.90
949.21
55.98

76

CIP Amount



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT
NOV 2025

EFT/Check # Vendor Name

89965 W.M. LYLES CO

89966 YO FIRE

89966 YO FIRE

89966 YO FIRE

89966 YO FIRE

89966 YO FIRE

89966 YO FIRE

89967 LLC, Yque Property Enterprises,

89968 LLC, WH3,

89969 VELAZQUEZ, ABRAHAM

89970 DE LEON, NATALIE

89971 Ramos, Jess

89972 Salameh, Esma Yacoub & Wael

89973 Kelly, Sage

89974 Machuca, Iris

89975 LANDSEA FONTANA LLC

89976 LANDSEA FONTANA LLC

89977 HARDY & HARPER INC

89978 CASCADE DRILLING

89979 4IMPRINT, INC

89980 AMAZON.COM SALES INC

89980 AMAZON.COM SALES INC

89980 AMAZON.COM SALES INC

89980 AMAZON.COM SALES INC

89981 ANGELUS BLOCK

89981 ANGELUS BLOCK

89981 ANGELUS BLOCK

89982 ATKINSON ANDELSON LOYA RUUD & ROMO
89983 BEL USA LLC

89984 CALIAGUA, INC

89984 CALIAGUA, INC

89985 CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF TAX AND FEE ADMINISTRATION
89986 CINTAS CORPORATION

89987 CITY OF JURUPA VALLEY

89988 DAN'S LAWNMOVER CENTER

89989 GRANITE CONSTRUCTION COMPANY

89990 1.U.O.E., LOCAL UNION NO. 12

89990 1.U.O.E., LOCAL UNION NO. 12

89990 1.U.O.E., LOCAL UNION NO. 12

89991 JOHNSON'S HARDWARE

89992 JPW COMMUNICATIONS, INC

89992 JPW COMMUNICATIONS, INC

89992 JPW COMMUNICATIONS, INC

89992 JPW COMMUNICATIONS, INC

89992 JPW COMMUNICATIONS, INC

89993 MARIPOSA LANDSCAPES INC

89994 MINUTEMAN PRESS OF RANCHO CUCAMONGA
89994 MINUTEMAN PRESS OF RANCHO CUCAMONGA
89995 PRES-TECH PRES TECH EQUIPMENT COMPANY
89995 PRES-TECH PRES TECH EQUIPMENT COMPANY
89995 PRES-TECH PRES TECH EQUIPMENT COMPANY
89996 SANDALWOOD FARM AND SANCTUARY LLC
89997 SO CALIFORNIA EDISON

89998 SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION

Description
SCADA Master Plan Project

FORD BRASS ORDER 08/28/25

FORD BRASS ORDER 08/28/25

FORD BRASS ORDER 08/28/25

LP619 Order

COPPER ORDER 2 11/05

CIP SUPPLIES

Customer Refund

Customer Refund

Customer Refund

Customer Refund

Customer Refund

Customer Refund

Customer Refund

Customer Refund

Customer Refund

Customer Refund

Customer Refund

Customer Refund

WVWD Outreach Items

Roamer Treatment New Computer workstations
Roamer Treatment New Computer workstations
MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES
MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES
DEPOSITS-CONT/METER/VALVE BOX
DEPOSITS-CONT/METER/VALVE BOX
DEPOSITS-CONT/METER/VALVE BOX
LEGAL FEES-OCT 2025

WVWD Outreach Items

Lord Ranch Facilities Project
RETENTION

WATER RIGHTS ACCT 219-849504
HQ JANITORIAL SERVICES

EP25-289 PERMIT FEE
MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES
Emergency Cold Mix Asphalt Bags

EE Adjusts

.U.O.E LOCAL 12 UNION DUES
.U.O.E LOCAL 12 UNION DUES
DISTRICT MAINTENANCE

Prop 218 Consulting Services

Prop 218 Consulting Services

Prop 218 Consulting Services

Prop 218 Consulting Services

Value of Water Campaign - consultant
Landscape Services for District
BLOOMINGTON ALLEYWAY SIGN
WVWD BANNER

Valve Truck Repair & Maintenance
Repairs to Pacific Tek tow behind vacuum trailer
Replacement PSI Washer

TURF REBATE

BLF ELECTRICITY 10/21/25-11/19/25
ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES
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O & M Amount

77.58
5,249.58
20,550.08
4,493.18
20,639.51

64.00
86.12
3131
57.23
57.78
31.01
21.59
32.24
262.00
145.39
3,374.66
3,700.00
1,033.53

318.96
70.03
350.00
360.00
19,450.00
21,027.83
2,036.92

530.53
197.30
1,230.86
249.54
1,512.00
(11.00)
507.50
518.50
38.78
731.25
6,231.25
17,124.00
3,648.50
17,167.25
7,500.98

848.08
8,485.83
13,683.30
2,225.04
8,000.00
291.12
365.25

77

CIP Amount
15,446.25

668.05

1,152.91
3,569.07

304,565.00
(15,228.25)

839.10



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT

NOV 2025

EFT/Check #
89998

89998
89998
89998
89998
89998
89998
89998
89998
89998
89998
89998
89998
89998
89998
89998
89998
89998
89998
89998
89998
89998
89998
89998
89998
89998
89998
89998
89998
89998
89998
89998
89998
89998
89998
89998
89998
89998
89998
89998
89998
89998
89998
89998
89998
89998
89998
89998
89998
89998
89998
89998
89998
90000

Vendor Name
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION

SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT DIVISION

STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD

Description
ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES

ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES
ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES
ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES
ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES
ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES
ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES
ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES
ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES
ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES
ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES
ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES
ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES
ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES
ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES
ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES
ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES
ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES
ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES
ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES
ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES
ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES
ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES
ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES
ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES
ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES
ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES
ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES
ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES
ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES
ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES
ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES
ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES
ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES
ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES
ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES
ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES
ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES
ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES
ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES
ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES
ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES
ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES
ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES
ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES
ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES
ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES
ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES
ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES
ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES
ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES
ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES
ROEMER DISPOSAL FEES
ANNUAL PERMIT FEE
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O & M Amount
457.48

371.40
416.90
426.74
405.83
371.40
418.75
423.05
344.96
400.92
362.17
349.88
357.26
406.45
424.90
380.62
410.14
405.22
400.30
403.99
360.33
365.87
354.18
375.71
386.15
348.65
394.15
447.64
424.28
300.68
337.58
328.35
315.44
370.17
344.34
343.11
345.58
409.53
432.89
429.81
434.74
398.45
480.24
409.53
429.81
427.97
389.84
454.41
487.61
487.00
425.51
265.02
0.92
20,907.00

78

CIP Amount



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

CASH DISBURSEMENT REPORT

NOV 2025

EFT/Check #
90000

90001
90001
90001
90002
90003
90004
90005
90006
90007
90008
DFT0004883
DFT0004883
DFT0004884
DFT0004885
DFT0004917
DFT0004917
DFT0004918

Vendor Name
STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD

THE STANDARD - EE AFTER TAX

THE STANDARD - EE AFTER TAX

THE STANDARD - EE AFTER TAX

YO FIRE

Liu, Pu

Velazquez, Jose Velazquez & Lludede
YU, XIAOLIN

De Santiago, Phillip

LAND SEA FONTANA LLC

RICHMOND AMERICAN HOMES

PCL CONSTRUCTION INC

PCL CONSTRUCTION INC

TRUST OPERATIONS/CT-AZ

MOTIVE ENERGY STORAGE SYSTEMS INC
PCL CONSTRUCTION INC

PCL CONSTRUCTION INC

TRUST OPERATIONS/CT-AZ

Description
ANNUAL PERMIT FEES

EE Adjusts

EMPLOYEE AFTER-TAX

EMPLOYEE AFTER-TAX

MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES

Customer Refund

Customer Refund

Customer Refund

Customer Refund

Customer Refund

Customer Refund

Design and Construction of Roemer Upgrade
RETENTION

RETENTION PMT-PCL

SGIP-PBI INCENTIVE PAY FUNDS

Design and Construction of Roemer Upgrade
RETENTION

PCL RETENTION PMT

O T, SV ST SV SV S V2 SV RV RV SRV S

SUBTOTALS $

0 & M Amount CIP Amount
3,630.00
9.29
778.13
766.18
70.04
32.69
62.14
32.47
50.25
62.20
24.73

$ 23,750.00

$ (1,187.50)

$ 1,187.50
306,985.67

$ 120,639.31

$ (6,031.96)

$ 6,031.96

2,582,883.71 S 1,452,731.76

GRAND TOTAL

$ 4,035,615.47
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Exhibit B
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WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

PAYROLL GROSS WAGES
FISCAL YEAR 2025 - 2026

Report Month Description From To Gross Wages Paid
July 2025 Pay Period - Separation 06/21/25  07/04/25 1,515.84
July 2025 Pay Period #1 06/01/25  06/30/25 9,751.05
July 2025 Pay Period #14 06/20/25  07/04/25 466,932.13
July 2025 Pay Period #15 07/04/25  07/18/25 429,103.28

Total for July 2025 905,786.46
August 2025 Monthly Pay Period #8 07/01/25  07/31/25 10,401.12
August 2025 Pay Period #16 07/18/25  08/01/25 416,881.36
August 2025 Pay Period #17 08/01/25  08/15/25 415,691.02

Total for August 2025 842,973.50
September 2025 Pay Period #18 08/15/25  08/29/25 408,812.97
September 2025 Monthly Pay Period #9 08/01/25  08/31/25 10,834.50
September 2025 Pay Period #18 (Correction) 08/15/25  08/29/25 226.40
September 2025 Pay Period #19 08/29/25  09/12/25 407,443.07

Total for September 2025 827,316.94
October 2025 Monthly Pay Period #10 09/01/25  09/30/25 10,834.50
October 2025 Pay Period #20 09/13/25  09/27/25 414,859.18
October 2025 Pay Period #21 09/27/25  10/10/25 413,167.87
October 2025 Pay Period #22 10/10/25  10/24/25 435,853.16

Total for October 2025 1,274,714.71
November 2025 Manual Check (Settlement) 11/05/25  11/05/25 50,000.00
November 2025 Monthly Pay Period #11 11/01/25  11/30/25 11,029.44
November 2025 Pay Period #23 10/24/25  11/07/25 417,002.28
November 2025 Supplemental Pay (Longevity & SLCO) 11/20/25  11/20/25 83,518.08
November 2025 Supplemental Pay (Longevity &SLCO)-1EE  11/24/25  11/24/25 2,405.60
November 2025 Pay Period #24 11/07/25  11/21/25 430,207.59

Total for November 2025 994,162.99

EFT Payroll Items for Board Agptoval



WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT

EFT AND PAYROLL ITEMS

NOVEMBER 2025
Date Item Checé(Fl:lro. or Amount

11/05/25 Manual Check (Settlement) 9012 25,295.14
11/06/25 Monthly Pay Period #11 N/A 0.00
11/13/25 Pay Period #23 N/A 0.00
11/20/25 Supplemental Pay (Longevity & SLCO) 9013-9026 18,075.78
11/24/25 Supplemental Pay (Longevity & SLCO) -1 employee 9027 1,533.57
11/26/25 Pay Period #24 N/A 0.00

Total Checks 44,904.49
11/05/25 Manual Check (Settlement) - Direct Deposit EFT 0.00
11/05/25 Federal Tax Withheld Social Security & Medicare EFT 22,456.25
11/05/25 State Tax Withheld and State Disability Insurance EFT 6,073.61
11/06/25 Monthly Pay Period #11 Direct Deposits EFT 9,197.64
11/06/25 Federal Tax Withheld Social Security & Medicare EFT 2,337.38
11/06/25 State Tax Withheld and State Disability Insurance EFT 184.08
11/13/25 Pay Period #23 Direct Deposits EFT 280,134.69
11/13/25 Federal Tax Withheld Social Security & Medicare EFT 101,699.24
11/13/25 State Tax Withheld and State Disability Insurance EFT 19,635.77
11/13/25 Lincoln Deferred Compensation Withheld EFT 14,162.02
11/13/25 Lincoln - 401a EFT 0.00
11/13/25 Lincoln - ROTH EFT 690.00
11/13/25 Lincoln - Employer Match Benefit EFT 3,452.96
11/13/25 Lincoln - 401a Employer Match Benefit EFT 0.00
11/13/25 Nationwide Deferred Compensation Withheld EFT 7,211.44
11/13/25 Nationwide - Employer Match Benefit EFT 1,200.00
11/13/25 Nationwide 401a EFT 0.00
11/13/25 Nationwide ROTH EFT 100.00
11/13/25 CalPERS Retirement - Classic (EPMC and ER contribution) EFT 0.00
11/13/25 CalPERS Retirement - 2nd Tier (EE and ER contribution) EFT 0.00
11/13/25 California State Disbursement EFT 1,564.56
11/13/25 Sterling Administration EFT 1,899.98
11/20/25 Supplemental Pay (Longevity & SLCO) EFT 39,216.56
11/20/25 Federal Tax Withheld Social Security & Medicare EFT 25,286.85
11/20/25 State Tax Withheld and State Disability Insurance EFT 4,808.54
11/20/25 Lincoln Deferred Compensation Withheld EFT 535.72
11/24/25 Supplemental Pay (Longevity & SLCO) - 1 Employee EFT 0.00
11/24/25 Federal Tax Withheld Social Security & Medicare EFT 897.29
11/24/25 State Tax Withheld and State Disability Insurance EFT 1568.77
11/26/25 Pay Period #24 Direct Deposits EFT 290,786.53
11/26/25 Federal Tax Withheld Social Security & Medicare EFT 103,707.50
11/26/25 State Tax Withheld and State Disability Insurance EFT 20,228.74
11/26/25 Lincoln Deferred Compensation Withheld EFT 14,223.65
11/26/25 Lincoln - 401a EFT 0.00
11/26/25 Lincoln - ROTH EFT 690.00
11/26/25 Lincoln - Employer Match Benefit EFT 3,452.96
11/26/25 Lincoln - 401a Employer Match Benefit EFT 0.00
11/26/25 Nationwide Deferred Compensation Withheld EFT 7,211.44
11/26/25 Nationwide - Employer Match Benefit EFT 1,200.00
11/26/25 Nationwide 401a EFT 0.00
11/26/25 Nationwide ROTH EFT 100.00
11/26/25 CalPERS Retirement - Classic (EPMC and ER contribution) EFT 0.00
11/26/25 CalPERS Retirement - 2nd Tier (EE and ER contribution) EFT 0.00
11/26/25 California State Disbursement EFT 1,564.56
11/26/25 Sterling Administration EFT 0.00

EFT Payroll Items for Board Aggroval

Nov



11/06/25
11/06/25
11/14/25
11/14/25

11/18/25

11/18/25

Employment Dev. Dept. - Ul Benefit Charge QE 09/30/2025
Sterling Annual COBRA Renewal

CalPERS PEPRA Adjusts

CalPERS PEPRA Adjusts

CalPERS Retirement - Classic

(EPMC and ER contribution) - Pay Day: 10/30/25
CalPERS Retirement - 2nd Tier

(EE and ER contribution) - Pay Day: 10/30/25

Total EFT

Grand Total Payroll Cash

EFT
EFT
EFT
EFT

EFT

EFT

6,108.00
810.00
571.05

3,592.60

40,078.28

26,805.33

1,064,033.99

1,108,938.48

EFT Payroll Items for Board Aggroval

Nov
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West Valley
N ater District

STAFF REPORT
DATE: December 18, 2025
TO: Finance Committee
FROM: Jose Velasquez, Chief Financial Officer

SUBJECT: Monthly Revenue and Expenditures Report - November 2025

STRATEGIC GOAL:

Strategic Goal 6 — Demonstrate Effective Financial Stewardship

D. Maintain a Data Driven Approach and Financial-Based Decision-Making

MEETING HISTORY:

12/8/2025 Finance Committee
BACKGROUND:

The Board of Directors requested the Monthly Financial Status Reports to be presented to the Finance Committee
for review and discussion before presenting them to the Board of Directors. The reports are being produced by the
District's Financial System (System of Records) and will be presented on a monthly basis.

DISCUSSION:

The Monthly Financial Status Report (Exhibit A) summarizes the District's revenue categories as well as
expenditures for all Departments. The original total budget includes the adopted budget. The current total budget
includes the adopted budget plus any budget amendments or adjustments made during the year. Period activity
column represents activity for the reporting periods. The fiscal activity column represents the year-to-date activity or
transactions that have been recorded in the general ledger from the beginning of the fiscal year July 1 through
June 30th. The encumbrance column represents funds encumbered with a purchase order that's not spent but
committed. The percentage column represents the percentage of the current budget that has been received
(Revenue) or utilized (Expenditure).

In summary, for the fifth month of the fiscal year through November 2025, the District has total earned revenues of
$20,668,520 and incurred total expenses of $14,157,526. This results in an operating surplus of $6,510,994. The
surplus is being used to support the Capital Improvement Program. Contributing to the positive results are water
sales and other non-operating income.

FISCAL IMPACT:

There is no fiscal impact for producing the November 2025 Monthly Revenue & Expenditure Report.
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REQUESTED ACTION:

Approve the November 2025 Monthly Revenue and Expenditures Report.

Attachments

Exhibit A - 2025 November Monthly Rev & Exp Report.pdf
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West Valley Water District, CA

Budget Report
Group Summary

YA =t Valley

Gy oo Slotebes For Fiscal: 2025-2026 Period Ending: 11/30/2025
Variance
Original Current Period Fiscal Favorable Percent
Departmen... Total Budget Total Budget Activity Activity Encumbrances (Unfavorable) Used
Revenue

4000 - Water consumption sales 18,665,400.00  18,665,400.00 1,322,333.51 9,571,883.89 0.00  -9,093,516.11 51.28%
4010 - Water service charges 8,890,060.00 8,890,060.00 565,775.41 3,770,667.17 0.00  -5119,392.83 42.41%
4020 - Other operating revenue 5,166,245.00 5,166,245.00 359,029.78 1,618,240.50 0.00  -3,548,004.50 31.32%
4030 - Property Taxes 4,400,030.00 4,400,030.00 382,012.32 384,707.62 0.00 -4,015,322.38 8.74 %
4040 - Interest & Investment Earnings 4,200,000.00 4,200,000.00 474,156.52 2,113,346.33 0.00 -2,086,653.67 50.32 %
4050 - Rental Revenue 41,000.00 41,000.00 3,473.15 17,365.75 0.00 -23,634.25 42.36 %
4060 - Grants and Reimbursements 1,520,000.00 1,520,000.00 46,243.78 48,453.63 0.00 -1,471,546.37 3.19%
4080 - Other Non-Operating Revenue 3,590,037.00 3,590,037.00 466,023.47 3,143,855.04 0.00 -446,181.96 87.57 %
Revenue Total: 46,472,772.00  46,472,772.00 3,619,047.94  20,668,519.93 0.00 -25,804,252.07 44.47 %
12/2/2025 1:22:05 PM Page 1 of 3
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Budget Report For Fiscal: 2025-2026 Period Ending: 11/30/2025

Variance
Original Current Period Fiscal Favorable Percent
Departmen... Total Budget Total Budget Activity Activity Encumbrances (Unfavorable) Used

Expense

5110 - Source Of Supply 2,360,380.00 2,340,380.00 9,303.75 42,953.84 0.00 2,297,426.16 1.84%
5210 - Production 5,585,050.00 5,680,050.00 439,814.81 2,289,165.69 163,161.10 3,227,72321 4317 %
5310 - Water Quality 841,900.00 841,900.00 64,962.83 338,177.68 48,061.32 455,661.00 45.88 %
5320 - Water Treatment - Perchlorate 605,000.00 530,000.00 25,645.05 137,090.15 11,004.86 381,904.99 27.94 %
5350 - Water Treatment - FBR/FXB 2,067,721.00 2,067,721.00 173,049.72 896,607.84 371,756.65 799,356.51 61.34 %
5390 - Water Treatment - Roemer/Arsenic 2,726,685.00 2,726,685.00 170,989.73 959,640.48 302,320.37 1,464,724.15 46.28 %
5410 - Maintenance-T & D 3,043,000.00 3,043,000.00 210,951.26 1,168,730.34 221,364.31 1,652,905.35 45.68 %
5510 - Customer Service 1,238,300.00 1,238,300.00 63,014.12 490,550.35 0.00 747,749.65 39.61%
5520 - Meter Reading 1,026,200.00 1,026,200.00 79,034.52 446,408.10 5,214.59 574,577.31 44.01 %
5530 - Billing 677,100.00 677,100.00 78,622.40 271,002.03 121,923.74 284,174.23 58.03 %
5610 - Administration 2,664,425.00 2,664,425.00 205,611.64 1,052,804.96 6,371.50 1,605,248.54  39.75%
5615 - General Operations 3,234,919.00 3,234,919.00 386,848.59 2,300,525.75 287,219.31 647,173.94 79.99 %
5620 - Accounting 1,174,150.00 1,174,150.00 131,096.77 520,722.83 40,003.75 613,423.42 47.76 %
5630 - Engineering 2,786,875.00 2,786,875.00 178,096.74 901,397.27 390,875.39 1,494,602.34 46.37 %
5640 - Business Systems 1,890,830.00 1,890,830.00 111,743.09 601,508.39 21,782.71 1,267,538.90 32.96 %
5645 - GIS 291,200.00 291,200.00 21,977.94 114,920.95 0.00 176,279.05 39.46 %
5650 - Board Of Directors 347,000.00 347,000.00 22,703.56 108,079.92 31,650.00 207,270.08 40.27 %
5660 - Human Resources/Risk Management 940,300.00 940,300.00 64,906.67 322,332.76 0.00 617,967.24 34.28%
5680 - Purchasing 792,900.00 792,900.00 53,899.50 230,267.83 0.00 562,632.17 29.04 %
5710 - Public Affairs 1,616,795.00 1,616,795.00 139,550.05 542,616.81 245,952.44 828,225.75 48.77 %
5720 - Grants & Rebates 195,000.00 195,000.00 38,000.00 38,100.00 0.00 156,900.00 19.54 %
6200 - Interest Expense 1,228,042.51 1,228,042.51 0.00 -66,077.89 0.00 1,294,120.40 -5.38%
6300 - Debt Administration Service 6,615.00 6,615.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 6,615.00 0.00 %
6800 - Other Non-Operating Expense 0.00 0.00 450,000.00 450,000.00 0.00 -450,000.00 0.00 %
Expense Total: 37,340,387.51  37,340,387.51 3,119,822.74  14,157,526.08  2,268,662.04  20,914,199.39 43.99%
Report Surplus (Deficit): 9,132,384.49 9,132,384.49 499,225.20 6,510,993.85 -2,268,662.04  -4,890,052.68  46.45 %
12/2/2025 1:22:05 PM Page 2 of 3
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Budget Report For Fiscal: 2025-2026 Period Ending: 11/30/2025
Fund Summary

Variance
Original Current Period Fiscal Favorable
Fund Total Budget Total Budget Activity Activity  Encumbrances (Unfavorable)
100 - Water Operations Fund 9,132,384.49 9,132,384.49 499,225.20 6,510,993.85  -2,268,662.04  -4,890,052.68
Report Surplus (Deficit): 9,132,384.49 9,132,384.49 499,225.20 6,510,993.85 -2,268,662.04  -4,890,052.68
12/2/2025 1:22:05 PM Page 3 of 3
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West Valley
N ater District
= \————/,

STAFF REPORT
DATE: December 18, 2025
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Jose Velasquez, Chief Financial Officer

SUBJECT: Purchase Order Report - November 2025

STRATEGIC GOAL:

Strategic Goal 6 — Demonstrate Effective Financial Stewardship

D. Maintain a Data Driven Approach and Financial-Based Decision-Making

MEETING HISTORY:

N/A

BACKGROUND:

The West Valley Water District ("District") generated forty-four (44) Purchase Orders ("PQO") in the month of
November 2025 to various vendors that provide supplies and services to the District. The total amount issued to
PQO's for the month of Niovember 2025 was $731,079.94. A table listing all Purchase Orders for November 2025 is
shown in Exhibit A. In examining the monthly activity of purchase orders $25,000 or greater, it reveals three (3)
POs amounting to $473,112.43 or 65% of the total contractual obligations entered into during the month.

DISCUSSION:

There were zero (0) Change Orders ('CQ') approved by the General Manager during the month of November
2025.

FISCAL IMPACT:
There is no fiscal impact for producing the November 2025 Purchase Order Report.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Approve the November 2025 Purchase Order Report.
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Attachments

Exhibit A - Purchase Orders November 2025.pdf
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EXHIBIT A
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West Valley Water District, CA

Purchase Order Summary Report
Purchase Order Detail

YA =t Valley
WA whor Blotriet Issued Date Range 11/01/2025 - 11/30/2025
Description Status Issue Date
PO Number Vendor Ship To Delivery Date Trade Discount Total
26-0264 6" METER ORDER 11/03 Outstanding 11/3/2025 0.00 6,724.43
00255 - AQUA-METRIC SALES CO West Valley Water District 11/3/2025
26-0265 COPPER ORDER 11/03 Outstanding 11/3/2025 0.00 18,105.00
00160 - FERGUSON ENTERPRISES INC # 677 West Valley Water District 11/3/2025
26-0266 STOCK ORDER 11/03 Completed 11/3/2025 0.00 516.00
01089 - S&J SUPPLY CO INC West Valley Water District 11/3/2025
26-0267 Utility Payment API Package Partially Received 11/4/2025 0.00 14,685.00
01727 - TYLER TECHNOLOGIES INC West Valley Water District 11/18/2025
26-0268 Sensus Command Link (Blue box) Outstanding 11/3/2025 0.00 5,214.59
00255 - AQUA-METRIC SALES CO West Valley Water District 11/17/2025
26-0269 Chemical Grade Diaphram Valves Outstanding 11/4/2025 0.00 5,786.18
00244 - HARRINGTON INDUSTRIAL PLASTICS West Valley Water District 11/18/2025
26-0270 Emergency Service Repair for CAT 420 Steering Completed 11/4/2025 0.00 1,360.00
01700 - PAUL FRANK GRAVESANDE West Valley Water District 11/18/2025
26-0271 COPPER ORDER 2 11/05 Completed 11/5/2025 0.00 19,155.00
00748 - YO FIRE West Valley Water District 11/5/2025
26-0272 Amazon Computer Supplies Nov 2025 Outstanding 11/5/2025 0.00 1,832.72
02325 - AMAZON.COM SALES INC West Valley Water District 11/19/2025
26-0273 Treatment Equipment (Hach) Outstanding 11/5/2025 0.00 2,066.00
00114 - HACH COMPANY West Valley Water District 11/19/2025
26-0274 PSA for Water Use Efficiency Master Plan Outstanding 11/4/2025 0.00 169,153.00
01062 - WATER SYSTEMS CONSULTING INC West Valley Water District 11/18/2025
26-0275 Emergency Steering Repair on CAT 420 Completed 11/3/2025 0.00 1,011.68
01528 - QUINN COMPANY West Valley Water District 11/17/2025
26-0276 EMERGENCY Fuel Generators Completed 11/10/2025 0.00 2,034.17
01783 - SC COMMERCIAL LLC West Valley Water District 11/24/2025
26-0277 Emergency Cold Mix Asphalt Bags Completed 11/10/2025 0.00 1,629.18
02582 - GRANITE CONSTRUCTION COMPANY West Valley Water District 11/24/2025
26-0278 Radio repair Well 2 Completed 11/5/2025 0.00 5,625.00
00097 - TESCO CONTROLS INC West Valley Water District 11/19/2025
26-0279 CI2 replacement S well BLF Outstanding 11/7/2025 0.00 8,396.14
00244 - HARRINGTON INDUSTRIAL PLASTICS West Valley Water District 11/21/2025
26-0280 Emergeny fuel for generators Outstanding 11/10/2025 0.00 1,077.50
00035 - MERIT OIL COMPANY West Valley Water District 11/24/2025
26-0282 Repairs to Pacific Tek tow behind vacuum trailer Completed 11/12/2025 0.00 13,683.30
02244 - PRES-TECH PRES TECH EQUIPMENT COMPANY West Valley Water District 11/26/2025
12/2/2025 9:43:55 AM Page 1 of 3
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Purchase Order Summary Report

Issued Date Range 11/01/2025 - 11/30/2025

Description Status Issue Date

PO Number Vendor Ship To Delivery Date Trade Discount Total

26-0283 Valve Truck Repair & Maintenance Completed 11/12/2025 0.00 8,485.83
02244 - PRES-TECH PRES TECH EQUIPMENT COMPANY West Valley Water District 11/26/2025

26-0284 Effluent Pump # 3 Case circuit breaker Outstanding 11/7/2025 0.00 7,536.49
00066 - GRAINGER INC West Valley Water District 11/21/2025

26-0285 LP619 Order Completed 11/13/2025 0.00 4,170.00
00748 - YO FIRE West Valley Water District 11/13/2025

26-0286 BRASS VALVE ORDER 11/17 Outstanding 11/17/2025 0.00 2,455.56
00160 - FERGUSON ENTERPRISES INC # 677 West Valley Water District 11/17/2025

26-0287 SCADA Annual Support Completed 11/17/2025 0.00 22,740.00
01666 - E & M ELECTRIC AND MACHINERY INC. West Valley Water District 12/1/2025

26-0288 Emergency Repair Parts for Truck 104 AC Completed 11/17/2025 0.00 1,178.43
00409 - WESTRUX INTERNATIONAL INC West Valley Water District 12/1/2025

26-0289 Replacement Bosch Jack Hammer for Truck 234 Outstanding 11/17/2025 0.00 2,087.43
02420 - WHITE CAP CONSTRUCTION SUPPLY West Valley Water District 12/1/2025

26-0290 Re-Roofing of Roemer Treatment Plant Outstanding 11/14/2025 0.00 15,271.08
02944 - RWC BUILDING PRODUCTS West Valley Water District 11/28/2025

26-0291 CIP Meter Vault Lid Retrofit Outstanding 11/17/2025 0.00 18,000.00
00206 - MERLIN JOHNSON CONST INC. West Valley Water District 12/1/2025

26-0292 METER ORDER FOR RFI 8 Outstanding 11/19/2025 0.00 14,397.28
00255 - AQUA-METRIC SALES CO West Valley Water District 11/19/2025

26-0293 2" RP ORDER Outstanding 11/19/2025 0.00 1,497.00
01089 - S&J SUPPLY CO INC West Valley Water District 11/19/2025

26-0294 FORD ORDER 11/19 Outstanding 11/19/2025 0.00 1,772.43
00160 - FERGUSON ENTERPRISES INC # 677 West Valley Water District 11/19/2025

26-0295 STOCK ORDER 11/19 Outstanding 11/19/2025 0.00 650.85
01089 - S&J SUPPLY CO INC West Valley Water District 11/19/2025

26-0296 Replacement PSI Washer Completed 11/18/2025 0.00 2,225.04
02244 - PRES-TECH PRES TECH EQUIPMENT COMPANY West Valley Water District 12/2/2025

26-0297 Epoxy for secondary containment for chemical area Outstanding 11/18/2025 0.00 23,500.00
02464 - HARRIS & RUTH PAINTING CONTRACTING West Valley Water District 12/2/2025

26-0298 30153 Order Outstanding 11/20/2025 0.00 9,672.00
00748 - YO FIRE West Valley Water District 11/20/2025

26-0299 Submersible pump for pretreatment emergency repair Outstanding 11/20/2025 0.00 1,313.64
00066 - GRAINGER INC West Valley Water District 12/4/2025

26-0300 Labor for new roofing for Roemer plant Outstanding 11/18/2025 0.00 48,625.00
02670 - THOR CONSTRUCTION West Valley Water District 12/2/2025

26-0301 WVWD Outreach Items Completed 11/24/2025 0.00 1,033.53
02290 - 4IMPRINT, INC West Valley Water District 12/8/2025

26-0302 Security Camera Sys Expansion and Integration Proj Partially Received 11/24/2025 0.00 255,334.43
02738 - SAFE AND SOUND SECURITY INC West Valley Water District 12/8/2025

12/2/2025 9:43:55 AM Page 2 of 3
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Purchase Order Summary Report

Issued Date Range 11/01/2025 - 11/30/2025

Description Status Issue Date

PO Number Vendor Ship To Delivery Date Trade Discount Total

26-0303 7-1 Meter troubleshooting Outstanding 11/24/2025 0.00 840.00
02736 - MOTIVE ENERGY STORAGE SYSTEMS INC West Valley Water District 12/8/2025

26-0304 WVWD Outreach Items Completed 11/24/2025 0.00 2,036.92
02790 - BEL USA LLC West Valley Water District 12/8/2025

26-0305 6" plug valve for pre-treatment emergency repair Outstanding 11/24/2025 0.00 2,475.41
00729 - SOUTHWEST VALVE & EQUIPMENT West Valley Water District 12/8/2025

26-0306 Adode acrobat pro subscriptions Outstanding 11/25/2025 0.00 1,024.67
00326 - CDW GOVERNMENT INC West Valley Water District 12/9/2025

26-0307 Rate Workshop Notice Received 11/25/2025 0.00 1,859.65
01052 - INFOSEND INC West Valley Water District 12/9/2025

26-0308 October Newsletter Received 11/25/2025 0.00 2,842.38
01052 - INFOSEND INC West Valley Water District 12/9/2025

Purchase Order Count: (44) Total Trade Discount: 0.00 Total: 731,079.94
12/2/2025 9:43:55 AM Page 3 of 3
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West Valley
N ater District

STAFF REPORT
DATE: December 18, 2025
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Jose Velasquez, Chief Financial Officer

SUBJECT: Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2025 and 2024

STRATEGIC GOALS:

Strategic Goal 6 — Demonstrate Effective Financial Stewardship

MEETING HISTORY:
12/8/2025 Finance Committee

BACKGROUND:

Each year, the District engages an independent audit firm to perform an annual audit of its books and records for
the current fiscal year, in accordance with California Water Code §30540(b)(2). The audit is not only a statutory
requirement under the State Controller's Minimum Audit Requirements for California Special Districts, but also
reflects industry best practice. The outcome of this processs is the production of the Annual Comprehensive
Financial Report (ACFR).

DISCUSSION:

The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) for fiscal years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024 (Exhibit A)
received an unmodified opinion from The Pun Group, the District's independent auditors. An unmodified opinion is
the highest level of assurance an auditor can provide, indicating that the District's financial statements are
presented fairly, in all material respects. The Pun Group conducted the audit in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards in the United States and the guidelines established by the California State Controller for Special
Districts.

The report includes the District's audited financial statements, accompanying footnote disclosures, Management's
Discussion and Analysis (MD&A), and statistical information compiled by District staff.

The District has been awarded the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting by the
Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) for 13 consecutive years. This prestigious award recognizes
government agencies and public employee retirement systems whose ACFRs meet the higheest standards of
transperancy, accuracy, and excellence in governmental accounting and financial reporting. We are confident that
the 2024-25 ACFR will once again meet these standards and qualify for this distinguished recognition.

District staff and representatives from The Pun Group will present the financial statements and audit report at the

upcoming Board meeting and will be available to answer any questions.
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FISCAL IMPACT:

There is no fiscal impact for receiving and filing the ACFR for fiscal years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Recommend that the Board of Directors receive and file the attached Annual Comprehensive Financial Report
(ACFR) for fiscal years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024.

Attachments

Exhibit A - ACFR for fiscal years ended June 30, 2025 & 2024.pdf
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EXHIBIT A
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Annual Comprehensive Financial Report
Fiscal Years Ended
June 30, 2025 and 2024

West Valley Water District

Prepared by: Finance Department

855 W. Baseline Road
Rialto, CA 92376
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West Valley Water District
For the Years Ended June 30, 2025 and 2024
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West Valley
/\\Water District

November 26, 2025
To the Board of Directors and Customers of West Valley Water District,
Introduction

It is our pleasure to submit the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for the West Valley Water District
(District) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025, prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”) following guidelines set forth by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB). District staff prepared this financial report, and the District is
ultimately responsible for both the accuracy of the data as well as the completeness and fairness of the
presentation, including all disclosures in this financial report. We believe that the data presented is accurate
in all material respects. This report is designed in a manner so as to enhance your understanding of the
District’s financial position and activities.

The Pun Group LLP has issued an unmodified "clean” opinion of the District’s financial statements for the
year ended June 30, 2025. The independent auditor’s report is located at the front of the financial section of
this report.

GAAP require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the
financial statements in the form of the Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section. This letter
of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The District’s
MD&A can be found immediately after the Independent Auditor’s Report.

District Structure and Leadership

The District is a California Special District established under section 30000 et seq. of the California Water
Code and formed in 1952. The District is governed by a five-member Board of Directors (Board) elected by
division. The General Manager administers the day-to-day operations of the District in accordance with the
policies, procedures, and strategic plan established by the Board. The District employs approximately 88
full-time employees in various functional areas including operations, maintenance, engineering, finance,
customer service, meter reading, human resources, conservation, public affairs, information technology, and
administration. The Board meets on the first and third Thursdays of each month. Meetings are publicly
noticed and live-streamed, and customers are encouraged to attend.

The District provides water service to over 100,000 customers through approximately 25,931 service
connections within its thirty-two (32) square mile service area, located in southwestern San Bernardino
County with a small area of northwestern Riverside County. The service area encompasses portions of the
cities of Rialto, Bloomington, Colton, Fontana, Jurupa Valley, and some of the unincorporated areas of San
Bernardino and Riverside counties.

District Services
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Residential customers represent approximately 92% of the District’s customer base and consume
approximately 65% of total water produced for consumption. The District currently has a total of 17 active
groundwater wells with a maximum production capacity of approximately 43,700 Acre-Feet per year or 38.9
million gallons per day (MGD). The District also operates a surface water treatment plant with a capacity of
14.4 MGD and a biological treatment plant for perchlorate destruction with a capacity of 2.9 MGD.

Water Supply and Reliability

The District’s water supply for the year ended June 30, 2025, includes groundwater (51%), purchased
groundwater (21%), local surface water (17%), and imported surface water (11%). Groundwater is pumped
from the Bunker Hill Basin, Lytle Creek Basin, North Riverside Basin, and Rialto-Colton Basin. The
purchased groundwater is obtained from San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District (Valley District)
through the Baseline Feeder Project which utilizes groundwater from wells in the Bunker Hill Basin.

Local surface water comes from Lytle Creek which flows from the San Bernardino Mountains. Imported
surface water is purchased from the State Water Project through Valley District. All surface waters are treated
at the District’s Roemer Water Filtration Facility.

imported surface ~ WATER SOURCES

Water
11%

Surface Water
17%

Local
Groundwater
51%

Purchased
Groundwater
21%

Economic Condition and Outlook

The District’s Office is located in the City of Rialto in San Bernardino County. The District serves
communities in San Bernardino and Riverside counties (also known as the Inland Empire). About 43% of
the District’s water connections are in the city of Rialto. Since 2015, the District’s water connections have
grown by more than 25% and mostly comprised of new residential customers.

In 2025, personal income per capita in the County of San Bernardino was $32,390 with an unemployment
rate of 5.9 percent. In the City of Rialto, personal income per capita was $25,071 with an unemployment rate

of 6.2 percent.

Industry Outlook
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California has faced extreme weather patterns, including prolonged droughts and historic wet winters. In
response to these fluctuations, the state has enacted legislation such as SB 606 and AB 1668 through the
“Making Water Conservation a California Way of Life Regulation.” This regulation aims to enhance water
use efficiency and imposes increasingly stringent targets for water use reduction through 2040. Water
providers across the state are preparing for these rigorous requirements.

During fiscal year 2025, water consumption levels increased when compared to fiscal year 2024. Water
consumption is a major revenue stream for the District and understanding changes in consumption patterns
is key for the financial sustainability of the District. Fiscal year 2025 had less rain when compared to fiscal
year 2024, which caused water consumption to have an increase of 14%. Less rain requires rate payers to
use more water for landscape irrigation or other needs.

The District continues to support its customers by providing rebates that incentivize a changes in water use
habits and promote awareness on water conservation and efficiency. The District continues to depend
heavily on groundwater supplies that are replenished by local and regional precipitation.

Cost of Service and Rate Structure Study 2025

In fiscal year 2025, the District completed a Comprehensive Cost of Service and Rate Structure Study. The
purpose of the study was to ensure that the District generates sufficient revenues to fund operation and
maintenance expenses, meet debt service obligations, support capital improvement projects, and maintain
long-term financial stability. In fiscal year 2026, the District will hold a Proposition 218 Public Hearing to
present the proposed rates. This initiative is a key step in ensuring the District remains aligned with its long-
term goal of financial stability.

Major Initiatives

The activities of the Board and staff are driven by our mission statement - to provide our community with
high-quality and reliable water service in a cost-effective and sustainable manner. To that end, the District’s
major priorities include the following:

1. Continue to deliver safe, reliable, high-quality water at an affordable price.

Nurture a culture that values our employees, customer service, innovation, integrity, excellence,

transparency, and conservation.

Implement technologies that increase efficiency and enhance safety.

4. Plan and be prepared for anticipated water demand growth associated with housing growth in the
District.

5. Further refine procedures to ensure the District safeguards ratepayer funds, operates efficiently,
enhances transparency, and protects employees and District assets.

(98]

All programs and operations of the District are developed and performed at the highest level to ensure that
quality water is delivered to all of its customers.

Internal Control Structure
District management is responsible for the establishment and maintenance of the internal control structure
that ensures the assets of the District are protected from loss, theft, or misuse. The internal control structure

also ensures adequate accounting data is compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles and is designed to provide reasonable assurance
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that these objectives are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that (1) the cost of a control
should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires
estimates and judgments by management.

Budgetary Control

The Board annually adopts an operating and capital budget prior to the new fiscal year beginning July 1% of
each year. The budget authorizes and provides the basis for reporting and control of financial operations and
accountability for the District’s enterprise operations and capital projects. The budget and reporting
treatment applied to the District is consistent with the accrual basis of accounting and the financial statement
basis.

Investment Policy

The Board adopted an Investment Policy that conforms to state law, District ordinances, and resolutions,
prudent money management principles, and “prudent person” standards. The objective of the Investment
Policy is safety, liquidity, and yield. District funds are invested in the State Treasurer’s Local Agency
Investment Fund, institutional savings, Federal government Treasury notes, agency obligations and other
investments.

Long-term Financial Planning

The District’s financial plan includes the establishment of reserve funds in accordance with the District’s
Reserve Policy. Reserve funds are set to ensure the continued orderly operation of the District’s water
system, the provision of services to customers at established levels, and the continued stability of the
District’s rate structure. The District has committed to the following objectives in the Reserve Policy as of
June 30, 2025.

1. The District will strive to adopt a balanced budget.
2. Capital Reserves are established to provide funds for capital facility and equipment replacement.

3. Liquidity Reserves are established to safeguard the financial flexibility and stability of the District and
to maintain stable customer charges and rates.

4. Restricted Reserves are maintained to comply with restrictions imposed by outside sources such as
creditors, grantors, contributors, laws, or regulations.

The District’s financial plan also includes the pursuit of alternative funding sources — including grants and
low-interest loan products - which help reduce reliance on rates and rate increases. The District has been
very successful in pursuing project funding from grants and the State Revolving Fund, which promote
water sustainability and reliability.

Debt Administration
The District has received and maintained a credit rating of AA- from Standard and Poor’s. Revenue Bonds

were issued in December 2016. The bond proceeds were used to pay off 2006D-2 Installment Purchase
Agreement. During fiscal year 2025, the District received the last disbursement for the Drinking Water State
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Revolving Fund loan. The total loan amount is $46.6 million.
Other Post-Employment Benefits Pre-Funding

In fiscal year 2014, the District began participating in a program to pre-fund the cost of its post-employment
benefits plan through the California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS) Trust. The District
annually contributes funding.

Water Rates and District Revenues

In 2013, the District transitioned from a uniform rate structure to a tiered rate system and approved annual
rate increases through 2017. However, following a financial study conducted in 2015, the District determined
that the previously approved rate increases for 2016 and 2017 were no longer necessary. The District has since
maintained a strong financial position with sufficient reserves. In fiscal year 2025, the District completed a
Comprehensive Cost of Service and Rate Structure Study. If approved by the Board, this study will result in
water rate increases beginning in January of fiscal year 2026.

Water Conservation Programs

As the District responds to changing conservation regulations at the state level, Ordinance 83 represents the
current approach to water conservation. Adopted on August 18, 2016 along with a move to Stage 2 watering
restrictions, Ordinance 83 incorporates the District’s 20% conservation standard. The standards provide
additional flexibility for our customers while improving the clarity of the regulations in order to support
meeting conservation goals and adopting habits for lifelong conservation habits.

The District is also focused on public outreach, media relations, and educational efforts to communicate
about water conservation with its cities, school districts and community groups. The District provides several
tools to assist customers with water use efficiency, including:

e Digital assets such as videos, web content, e-blasts, monthly newsletters, and social media campaigns;
e Written materials such as bill inserts, quarterly newsletters, and direct mail pieces;

e Water Use Efficient Workshops for customers to adapt water efficient practices;

e Rebates or assistance related to water-efficient devices through locally funded programs, that include:
washing machines, high-efficiency toilets, “smart” irrigation controllers, turf rebate programs and
“conservation starts with you” kits.

Independent Audit and Financial Reporting

State Law and Bond covenants require the District to obtain an annual audit of its financial statements by an
independent certified public accountant. The accounting firm of The Pun Group, LLP has conducted the
audit of the District’s financial statements. Their unmodified Independent Auditor’s Report appears in the
Financial Section.

Risk Management

The District is a member of the Association of California Water Agencies Joint Power Insurance Authority

(Authority). The purpose of the Authority is to arrange and administer programs of insurance for the pooling
of self-insured losses and to purchase excess insurance coverage. The District’s Human Resources/Risk
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Management Department provides staff with regular safety training each month as part of the District’s safety
program.

Award for Excellence in Financial Reporting

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for
Excellence in Financial Reporting to the West Valley Water District for its Annual Comprehensive Financial
Report (ACFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024. This was the thirteenth consecutive year that the
District has received this prestigious award. To be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the District
published an easily readable and efficiently organized ACFR. This report satisfied both generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) and applicable legal requirements. GFOA financial reporting guidelines and
standards exceed the minimum disclosure requirements of state law, and provide for maximum disclosure to
the public. A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current
ACFR continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to
the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.
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Mission Statement

The West Valley Water District provides our community with
high-quality and reliable water service in a cost-effective

and sustainable manner.
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THE
P PUN GROUP

ACCOUNTANTS & ADVISORS

6 Hutton Centre Drive, Suite 1200
Santa Ana, California 92707

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT -

To the Board of Directors
of the West Valley Water District
Rialto, California

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the business-type activities of the West Valley Water District (the
“District”), which comprise the statements of net position as of June 30, 2025 and 2024, and the related statements of
revenues, expenses, and changes in net position, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the
basic financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the District as of June 30, 2025 and 2024, and the respective changes in financial position and
cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
(“GAAS”) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States (“Government Auditing Standards”). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of
our report. We are required to be independent of the District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Emphasis of a Matter

Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 1 to the financial statements, the District adopted new accounting guidance, GASB Statement
No. 101, Compensated Absences. The adoption of this standard resulted in the restatement of the District’s net
position as of June 30, 2024. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; and for the design, implementation, and

maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

ORANGE COUNTY ¢ SAN DIEGO ¢ SACRAMENTO <« WALNUT CREEK * LASVEGAS -+ PHOENIX o9®
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To the Board of Directors
of the West Valley Water District
Page 2

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going concern for
twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise
substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually
or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we
* exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining,
on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
District’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

e conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audits, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified
during the audits.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s Discussion
and Analysis, the Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability, the Schedule of
Contributions - Pensions, the Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios, and the Schedule of
Contributions — Other Postemployment Benefits, as listed in the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential
part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with GAAS, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient

evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
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Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information comprises
the introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. Our opinion on the basic financial statements do not cover the other information, and we do not express an
opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and
consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the basic financial statements, or
the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work performed, we conclude that
an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 26, 2025, on our
consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely
to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control over financial reporting or
on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the District’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

e s G0t T

Santa Ana, California
November 26, 2025
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West Valley Water District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

The District

West Valley Water District (District) is a California Special District established under section 30000 et seq. of the
California Water Code. The District is engaged in pumping, treating, and distributing water to its customers. The

District serves portions of the communities of Bloomington, Colton, Fontana, Rialto, San Bernardino, and Jurupa
Valley.

The management of the District presents the District’s financial statements with a narrative overview and analysis of
the financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025. We encourage readers to consider the information
presented here in conjunction with the audited financial statements which follow this section.

Financial Highlights

e As of June 30, 2025, the District’s assets and deferred outflows exceeds liabilities and deferred inflows by
approximately $260.8 million broken down as $137.6 million invested in capital assets, $57 million in
restricted funds, and unrestricted funds of $66.2 million. As of June 30, 2024, the District’s assets and deferred
outflows exceeds liabilities and deferred inflows by approximately $247 million broken down as $139 million
invested in capital assets, $29.2 million in restricted funds, and unrestricted funds of $78.8 million. The
unrestricted funds pay for obligations as determined by the Board of Directors to support the services provided
to the customers of the District.

o In fiscal year 2025, the District’s net position increased approximately $13.8 million, from $247 million to
$260.8 million or 5.6%. Net position also increased in fiscal year 2024, approximately by $35.4 million, from
$211.6 million to $247 million or 17%.

e Infiscal year 2025, the District’s operating revenues increased by approximately 8%, or $2,438,207 primarily
to an increase in water consumption sales. Operating revenues decreased in fiscal year 2024, by 22%, or
$9,178,992 primarily to a decrease in other operating income.

o In fiscal year 2025, the District’s non-operating revenues decreased by 16%, or $1,933,086. Primarily due to
a loss in disposition of capital assets instead of a major gain. Non-operating revenues increased in fiscal year
2024, by 60% or $4,605,623.

e In fiscal year 2025, the District’s operating expenses increased 12%, or $4,284,799, primarily due to an
increase in general and administrative and water treatment. Operating expenses also increased in fiscal year
2024 by 8% or $2,770,653.

e In fiscal year 2025, the District’s non-operating expenses increased 38% or $338,495. Due to an increase in
interest rates and interest expense for new debt. In fiscal year 2024, non-operating expenses increased by 2%
or $17,105.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis serve as an introduction to the District’s financial statements. The District’s financial
statements comprise two components: 1) fund financial statements and 2) notes to the financial statements. This report
also contains other supplementary information in addition to the financial statements themselves.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the District’s assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources with the difference between the four reported as net position. Over time,
increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the District is
improving or deteriorating.
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West Valley Water District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position presents information showing how net position
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event
giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are
reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., earned but
unused vacation leave).

The statement of cash flows presents information showing the sources and uses of cash related to operating activities,
noncapital financing activities, capital and related financing activities and investing activities. In addition, the statement
provides information about significant non-cash investing, capital and financing activities.

Notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data
provided in the fund financial statement.

Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In the case
of the District, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by
$260.8 million as of June 30, 2025.

The largest portion of the District’s net position during June 30, 2025 (53%), reflects its net investment in capital assets
(e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and equipment); less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still
outstanding. The District uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not
available for future spending. Although the District’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it
should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital
assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

Condensed Statement of Net Position Fiscal Year ended June 30
2025 2024* 2023*
Assets:
Current assets $ 147,842,777 $ 132,212,082 $ 128,154,026
Noncurrent assets 1,503,320 1,557,173 1,609,736
Capital assets 212,228,835 190,223,326 136,622,774
Total assets 361,574,932 323,992,581 266,386,536
Deferred outflows of resources 6,838,871 7,425,051 7,972,075
Liabilities:
Current liabiltes $ 13,480,105 $ 16,249,238 $ 11,502,920
Noncurrent liabilities 88,960,077 61,466,898 43,075,441
Total liabilities 102,440,182 77,716,136 54,578,361
Deferred inflows of resoucres 5,156,706 6,669,521 8,218,731
Net position:
Net investement in capital assets 137,603,091 139,078,911 108,469,538
Restricted 57,007,954 29,188,714 47,719,572
Unrestricted 66,205,870 78,764,350 55,372,409
Total net position $ 260,816,915 $ 247,031,975 $ 211,561,519

* Fiscal Years 2024 and 2023 have been restated due to GASB 101 implementation
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West Valley Water District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

As of June 30, 2025, and 2024, the District reports a positive balance in its unrestricted net position of $66,205,870
and $78,764,350, respectively. Unrestricted net position decreased in fiscal year 2025 compared to fiscal year 2024.
The net decrease for unrestricted net position when comparing fiscal year 2025 to fiscal year 2024 is $12,558,480.

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

2025 2024* 2023*

Operating revenues $ 34,650,715 $ 32,212,508 $ 41,391,500
Operating expenses (41,421,020) (37,136,221) (34,752,819)

Operating income (loss) (6,770,305) (4,923,713) 6,638,681
Non-operating revenue (expenses) 9,176,940 11,448,521 6,860,003
Income before capital contributions 2,406,635 6,524,808 13,498,684
Capital contributions 11,378,305 28,945,648 6,483,013
Changes in net position 13,784,940 35,470,456 19,981,697
Net position:

Beginning of year 247,031,975 211,561,519 191,579,822

End of year $ 260,816,915 $ 247,031,975 $ 211,561,519

* Fiscal Years 2024 and 2023 have been restated due to GASB 101 implementation

The statement of revenues, expenses, and changes of net position shows how the District’s net position changed during
the years. In the case of the District, the net position increased by $13,784,940 and $35,470,456 during the years ended
June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively. Property contributions and capacity charge revenues from new development
received were $11,378,305 and $28,945,648 during the years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively. Property
contributions and capacity charge revenues decreased in fiscal year 2025 compared to fiscal year 2024.

Total District Revenues

Operating Revenues:
Water consumption sales
Water service charges
Other operating revenue
Total operating revenues:

Nonoperating Revenues:
Property taxes
Gain (loss) on disposition of capital assets
Interest and investment earnings
Total nonoperating revenues:

Total revenues

2025 2024 2023
20,380,439 17,853,480 17,318,706
8,959,803 8,746,460 8,350,808
5310473 5,612,568 15,721,986
34,650,715 32,212,508 41,391,500
4,564,248 4263,009 3,738,692
(649,966) 2,029,568 735,495
6,492,148 6,046,939 3,259,706
10,406,430 12,339,516 7,733,893
45,057,145 44,552,024 49,125,393
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West Valley Water District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

The District’s total revenues increased by $505,121 during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025. Primarily due to an
increase in water consumption sales. Operating revenues had an increase in fiscal year 2025 compared to fiscal year
2024.

Total District Expenses

2025 2024* 2023*
Operating Expenses:
Source of supply $ 1,732,363 $ 1,650,615 $ 1,996,352
Pumping 5,231,035 5,337,069 4,673,757
Water treatment 5,901,423 5,082,226 4,679,730
Transmission and distribution 2,982,504 3,046,177 2,677,543
Customer accounts 3,509,254 2,857,673 2,664,323
Public affairs 1,452,190 857,875 940,041
General and administrative 12,829,075 10,878,825 9,971,366
Depreciation expense 7,346,255 6,991,531 6,392,240
Amortization of water participation rights 436,921 434,230 370,216
Total operating expenses 41,421,020 37,136,221 34,365,568
Nonoperating expenses:
Interest expense 1,229,490 890,995 873,890
Total nonoperating expenses: 1,229,490 890,995 873,890
Total expenses $ 42,650,510 $ 38,027,216 $ 35,239,458

* Fiscal Years 2024 and 2023 have been restated due to GASB 101 implementation
The District’s total expenses increased $4,623,294 during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025. There was an increase

of $4,284,799 in operating expenses when compared to fiscal year ending on June 30. 2024. The increase was due to
increases in costs associated with general and administrative and water treatment.
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West Valley Water District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Capital Asset Administration

The District’s capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation and amortization) as of June 30, 2025 and 2024 were in
the amounts of $212,228,835, and $190,223,326, respectively. This includes land and land rights, transmission and
distribution systems, wells, tanks, reservoirs, pumps, building and structures, equipment, vehicles and construction-in-
process. In 2025, various capital projects were finalized and added to capital assets. See note 5 for further information.
Construction-in-process had a major increase due to the construction of the Roemer Expansion project.

Capital Asset Administration

June 30, 2025 June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023
Non-depreciable assets:
Land and land rights $ 2,081,060 $ 2,081,060 $ 2,093,491
Construction-in-process 67,613,011 44,299,669 12,170,910
Total non-depreciable assets 69,694,071 46,380,729 14,264,401
Depreciable assets:
Source of supply plant 7,073,303 6,371,198 6,371,198
Pumping plant 12,824,267 12,579,014 12,315,214
Bio-remediation plant 24,907,020 24,907,020 24,907,020
Water treatment plant 40,554,708 39,820,934 38,622,074
Transmission and distribution plant 165,936,855 161,935,045 135,286,093
General plant and equipment 18,656,939 17,639,413 17,072,626
Total depeciable assets 269,953,092 263,252,624 234,574,225
Less accumulated depreciation:
Accumulated depreciation (132,923,653) (125,621,607) (118,630,076)
Total depreciable assets, net 137,029,439 137,631,017 115,944,149
Intangible assets:
Water rights 404,949 404,949 404,949
Water participation rights 9,225,052 9,645,865 9,645,865
Subscription assets 604,697 522,368 290,782
Less: accumulated amortization (4,729,373) (4,361,602) (3,927,372)
Total depeciable assets 5,505,325 6,211,580 6,414,224
Total capital assets, net $ 212,228,835 $ 190,223,326 $ 136,622,774

Long-Term Debt Administration

At the end of June 30, 2025 and 2024, the District had total long-term debt of $72,060,428, and $45,007,120,
respectively. In 2025, long-term debt increased by $27,053,308, due to the Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Loan
received by the District. The loan is to fund the Romer Treatment Plant Expansion project.

Long Term Debt Administration

June 30, 2025 June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023

Water Revenue Refunding

Bond, Series 2016A $ 18,415,000 $ 18,890,000 $ 19,345,000

Add: Unamortized Premium 872,441 913,058 953,676

Total bond payable 19,287,441 19,303,058 20,298,676
Hydroelectric Plant 992,451 1,323,551 1,654,651
Drinking Water State Revolving Fund 46,665,000 18,530,858 -
Water Participation Rights

Contract payable 4,885,260 5,190,589 5,787,519

Subscription liabilities 230,276 159,064 214,033

Total long-term debt $ 72,060,428 $ 45,007,120 $ 27,954,879

Additional information on the District’s long-term debt can be found in note 7 of this report.
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West Valley Water District
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

During fiscal year 2025, the District experienced an increase in water consumption sales and service charges, exceeding
initial projections. For fiscal year 2026, the District anticipates operating revenue to remain at similar levels. While
development activity within the District’s service area has declined compared to fiscal year 2024, it remains above
fiscal year 2023 levels. The District has also updated its Strategic Plan and is in the process of developing division-
specific goals. Management is not aware of any conditions that would materially impact the District’s profitability or
operating results in future periods.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide the District’s funding sources, customers, stakeholders and other interested
parties with an overview of the District’s financial operations and financial condition. Should the reader have questions
regarding the information included in this report or wish to request additional financial information, please contact the
District’s Chief Financial Officer at 855 W. Baseline Road, Rialto, CA 92376, by mail at P.O. Box 920, Rialto, CA
92377 by phone (909) 875-1804.
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West Valley Water District

Statements of Net Position

June 30, 2025 and 2024
2024
ASSETS 2025 (as restated)
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2) $ 656,950 $ 4,441,928
Investments (Note 2) 139,736,536 120,404,121
Accounts receivable — water sales and services, net 3,614,243 3,861,682
Accounts receivable — redevelopment pass-through (Note 3) 41,082 41,082
Accrued interest receivable 383,984 273,958
Accounts receivable — other 982,236 955,154
Lease receivable, current (Note 4) 12,772 11,481
Property taxes receivable 35,046 33,482
Due from other governments 308,258 298,932
Materials and supplies inventory 997,927 836,211
Prepaid items 1,073,743 1,054,051
Total current assets 147,842,777 132,212,082
Noncurrent assets:
Lease receivable (Note 4) 1,380,075 1,392,847
Accounts receivable - redevelopment pass-through (Note 3) 123,245 164,326
Capital assets, nondepreciable (Note 5) 69,694,071 46,380,729
Capital assets, net depreciation and amortization (Note 5) 142,534,764 143,842,597
Total noncurrent assets 213,732,155 191,780,499
Total assets 361,574,932 323,992,581
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pensions related (Note 8) 3,729,156 4,528,145
OPEB related (Note 9) 2,964,174 2,744,750
Refunding debt 145,541 152,156
Total deferred outflows of resources 6,838,871 7,425,051
See accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements. 131
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West Valley Water District

Statements of Net Position (Continued)

June 30, 2025 and 2024
2024
LIABILITIES 2025 (as restated)
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 5,108,195 8,421,201
Accrued salaries and related payables 320,604 218,963
Accrued interest payable 482,713 259,161
Pass-through utility user taxes payable 370,694 339,758
Customer deposits 2,160,832 2,074,944
Construction advances and deposits 2,979,858 3,012,880
Compensated absences - due within one year (Note 6) 832,707 768,227
Long-term liabilities — due within one year:
Contract payable (Note 7) 636,429 636,429
Bonds payable (Note 7) 490,000 475,000
Subscription payable (Note 7) 98,073 42,675
Total current liabilities 13,480,105 16,249,238
Noncurrent liabilities:
Unearned revenue — developers 694,011 1,633,135
Compensated absences (Note 6) 681,306 628,550
Contingent liability (Note 11) 500,000 225,000
Long-term liabilities — due in more than one year:
Contract payable (Note 7) 5,241,282 5,877,711
Bonds payable (Note 7) 18,797,441 19,328,058
Subscription payable (Note 7) 132,203 116,389
Loan payable (Note 7) 46,665,000 18,530,858
Net pension liability (Note 8) 9,756,035 9,780,551
Net other postemployment benefits liability (Note 9) 6,492,799 5,346,646
Total noncurrent liabilities 88,960,077 61,466,898
Total liabilities 102,440,182 77,716,136
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Pensions related (Note 8) 106,372 287,302
OPEB related (Note 9) 3,813,458 5,105,308
Leases related (Note 4) 1,236,876 1,276,911
Total deferred inflows of resources 5,156,706 6,669,521
NET POSITION
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets (Note 10) 137,603,091 139,078,911
Restricted for:
Capital projects 57,007,954 29,188,714
Unrestricted 66,205,870 78,764,350
Total net position $ 260,816,915 $ 247,031,975

See accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.
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West Valley Water District
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
For the Years Ended June 30, 2025 and 2024

OPERATING REVENUES:
Water consumption sales
Water service charges
Other operating revenue

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Source of supply
Pumping
Water treatment
Transmission and distribution
Customer accounts
Public affairs
General and administrative
Depreciation expense
Amortization expense

Total operating expenses
OPERATING (LOSS) INCOME

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Property taxes
Interest and investment earnings
Gain (loss) on disposition of capital assets
Interest expense

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Income before capital contributions

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS:
Developer contributions
Capacity charges

Total capital contributions
NET CHANGES IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION:
Beginning of year, as previously reported
Change in accounting principle (GASB 101)
Beginning of year, as restated (Note 13)
End of year

See accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.

2024
2025 (as restated)
$ 20,380,439 $ 17,853,480
8,959,803 8,746,460
5,310,473 5,612,568
34,650,715 32,212,508
1,732,363 1,650,615
5,231,035 5,337,069
5,901,423 5,082,226
2,982,504 3,046,177
3,509,254 2,857,673
1,452,190 857,875
12,829,075 10,878,825
7,346,255 6,991,531
436,921 434,230
41,421,020 37,136,221
(6,770,305) (4,923,713)
4,564,248 4,263,009
6,492,148 6,046,939
(649,966) 2,029,568
(1,229,490) (890,995)
9,176,940 11,448,521
2,406,635 6,524,308
3,978,298 22,843,173
7,400,007 6,102,475
11,378,305 28,945,648
13,784,940 35,470,456
247,479,822 211,948,770
(447,847) (387,251)
247,031,975 211,561,519

$ 260,816,915

$ 247,031,975
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West Valley Water District

Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years Ended June 30, 2025 and 2024

2024
2025 (as restated)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Cash receipts from customers for water sales and services $ 29,625,992 $ 26,558,927
Cash paid to employees for salaries and benefits (12,106,776) (10,645,581)
Cash paid to vendors and suppliers for materials and services (22,488,696) (16,716,464)
Cash received from others 4,362,023 6,330,193
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (607,457) 5,527,075
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Property taxes and fee collected 4,562,684 4,262,728
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities 4,562,684 4,262,728
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (28,465,974) (37,150,405)
Proceeds from capital contribution 355,419 -
Proceeds from capacity charges 7,400,007 6,102,475
Proceeds from sale of capital assets 22,196 2,534,306
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 28,134,142 18,530,858
Principal paid on long-term debt (1,195,762) (1,437,999)
Interest paid on long term debt (1,039,940) (911,487)
Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related financing activities 5,210,088 (12,332,252)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest received 6,382,122 5,875,635
Net cash provided by investing activities 6,382,122 5,875,635
Net change in cash and cash equivalent 15,547,437 3,333,186
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT:
Beginning of year 124,846,049 121,512,863
End of year $ 140,393,486 $ 124,846,049
See accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements. 135
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West Valley Water District

Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2025 and 2024

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING
(LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating (loss) to net cash

provided by operating activities:
Depreciation expense

Amortization of water participation rights and subscription assets

(Increase) decrease in:

Accounts receivable — water sales and services, net

Accounts receivable — other
Accounts receivable - lease

Due from other governments
Materials and supplies inventory
Prepaid water

Prepaid items

Accounts receivable - redevelopment pass-through
Deferred outflows of resources - pensions

Deferred outflows of resources - OPEB
Increase (decrease) in:

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Accrued salaries and related payables

Pass-through utility user taxes payable

Customer deposits

Unearned revenue

Changes in Net Pension Liability

Change in Net OPEB Liability

Construction advances and deposits

Compensated absences

Deferred inflows of resources - leases

Deferred inflows of resources - pensions

Deferred inflows of resources - OPEB
Total adjustments
Net cash provided by operating activities

NONCASH ITEMS
Acquisition of subscription assets

Issuance of subscription liabilities

Disposal of capital assets
Amortization of debt premium

Developer Contribution

See accompanying Notes to the Basic Financial Statements.
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2025 (as restated)
$ (6,770,305) $ (4,923,713)
7,346,255 6,991,531
436,921 434,230
247,439 (27,411)
(27,082) (25,036)
11,481 10,244
(9,326) 33,029
(161,716) (341,240)
(65,358) (317,572)
45,666 126,182
41,081 41,082
798,989 39,349
(219,424) 501,060
(1,529,455) 3,116,910
101,641 (53,845)
30,936 45,341
85,888 (172,591)
(939,124) 684,596
(24,516) 954,539
1,146,153 (386,365)
(33,022) 172,734
117,236 173,231
(40,035) (40,035)
(180,930) (217,325)
(1,291,850) (1,291,850)
6,162,348 10,450,788
$ (607,457) $ 5,527,075
$ (155,545) $ (231,586)
$ 155,545 $ 231,586
$ 716,371 $ (504,737)
$ (40,617) $ (40,618)
$ 3,622,879 $ 22,843,173
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West Valley Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements
For the Years Ended June 30, 2025 and 2024

Note 1 — Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Organization and Operations of the Reporting Entity

Established on January 8, 1952, the West Valley Water District (the “District”) is located in Southwestern San
Bernardino County (the “County”) with a small area of Northwestern Riverside County. The District’s service area is
approximately 32 square miles. The District uses 376 miles of water mains to provide water to approximately 21,000
customers. The District is governed by a five-member Board of Directors who serve overlapping four-year terms.

The West End Water Development, Treatment and Public Affairs Joint Powers Authority (the “Authority”) was formed
on April 7, 1989, pursuant to the provisions of Article I, Chapter S, Division 7, Title 1 of the California Government
Code. The Authority is deemed to be a component unit of the District, District of Rialto (the “Rialto”) and the Municipal
Water Department of the District of San Bernardino. The District’s portion of the Authority has been included in these
financial statements using the blended method of reporting. The Authority has had no activity in the past 10 years and
reports no assets or liabilities.

The criteria used in determining the scope of the financial reporting entity is based on accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP”). The District is the primary governmental unit based on the
foundation of a separately elected governing board that is elected by the citizens in a general popular election.
Component units are legally separate organizations for which the elected officials of the primary government are
financially accountable. The District is financially accountable if it appoints a voting majority of the organization’s
governing body and: 1) It is able to impose its will on that organization, or 2) There is a potential for the organization
to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, the primary government.

Basis of Presentation

Financial statement presentation follows the recommendations promulgated by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (“GASB”) commonly referred to as U.S. GAAP. GASB is the accepted standard-setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting standards.

Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus

The District reports its activities as an enterprise fund, which is used to account for operations that are financed and
operated in a manner similar to a private business enterprise, where the intent of the District is that the costs of providing
water to its service area on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges (water sales),
capital grants and similar funding.

The financial statements are reported using the “‘economic resources” measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of
the timing of related cash flows. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as all eligibility requirements have
been met. Interest associated with the current fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual and so has been
recognized as revenue of the current fiscal period.

Operating revenues and expenses, such as water sales and water purchases, result from exchange transactions associated
with the principal activity of the District. Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives and gives up
essentially equal values. Management, administration, and depreciation expenses are also considered operating
expenses. Other revenues and expenses, not included in the above categories, are reported as nonoperating revenues
and expenses.
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West Valley Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2025 and 2024

Note 1 — Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus (Continued)

The statement of net position reports separate sections for deferred outflows of resources, and deferred inflows of
resources, when applicable.

Deferred Outflows of Resources represent outflows of resources (consumption of net assets) that apply to
future periods and that, therefore, will not be recognized as an expense until that time.

Deferred Inflows of Resources represent inflows of resources (acquisition of net assets) that apply to future
periods and that, therefore, will not be recognized as revenue until that time.

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents include all highly liquid investments with original maturities of 90 days or less and are
carried at cost, which approximates fair value. Investments are stated at fair value. Changes in fair value that occur
during a fiscal year are recognized as investment income reported for that fiscal year. Investment income includes
interest earnings, changes in fair value, and any gains or losses realized upon the liquidation or sale of investments.

The statement of cash flows requires presentation of “cash and cash equivalents”. For the purposes of the statement of
cash flows, the District considers cash and investments as “cash and cash equivalents”.

Fair Value Measurements

U.S. GAAP defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and establishes disclosures about fair
value measurement. Investments, unless otherwise specified, recorded at fair value in the Statements of Net Position,
are categorized based upon the level of judgment associated with the inputs used to measure their fair value. Levels of
inputs are as follows:

Level 1 — Inputs are unadjusted, quoted prices for identical assets and liabilities in active markets at the
measurement date.

Level 2 — Inputs, other than quoted prices included in Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability
through corroboration with market data at the measurement date.

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs that reflect management's best estimate of what market participants would use
in pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.

Restricted Assets

Certain assets of the District are restricted in use by ordinance or debt covenant and, accordingly, are shown as restricted
assets on the accompanying statement of net position. Revenue bond reserve funds and construction funds set aside
from bond proceeds are restricted for future debt service payments and construction projects. The District uses restricted
resources, prior to using unrestricted resources, to pay expenditures meeting the criteria imposed on the use of restricted
resources by a third party.
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West Valley Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2025 and 2024

Note 1 — Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts

The District extends credit to customers in the normal course of operations. When management deems customer
accounts uncollectible, the District uses the allowance method for the reservation and write-off of those accounts. As
of June 30, 2025 and 2024, the balance of allowance for uncollectible accounts are $92,491 and 70,757, respectively.

Materials and Supplies Inventory

Materials and supplies inventory consist primarily of water meters, pipe and pipe fittings for construction and repair to
the District’s water transmission and distribution system. Inventory is valued at cost using a weighted average method.
Inventory items are charged to expense at the time that individual items are withdrawn from inventory or consumed.

Prepaid Items

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs or deposits applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid
items in the basic financial statements.

Leases

The District is a lessor for leases of land. The District recognizes leases receivable and deferred inflows of resources in
the financial Statements.

At the commencement of a lease, the District initially measures the lease receivable at the present value of payments
expected to be received during the lease term. Subsequently, the lease receivable is reduced by the principal portion of
lease payments received. The deferred inflows of resources are initially measured as the initial amount of the lease
receivable, adjusted for lease payments received at or before the lease commencement date. Subsequently, the deferred
inflows of resources are recognized as revenue over the life of the lease term in a systematic and rational method.

Key estimates and judgments include how the District determines (1) the discount rate it uses to discount the expected
lease receipts to present value, (2) lease term, and (3) lease receipts.

» The District uses its estimated incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate for leases.

* The lease term includes the noncancellable period of the lease. Lease receipts included in the measurement of
the lease receivable is composed of fixed payments from the lessee.

The District monitors changes in circumstances that would require a remeasurement of its lease and will remeasure the
lease receivable and deferred inflows of resources if certain changes occur that are expected to significantly affect the
amount of the lease receivable.

Capital Assets

Capital assets acquired and/or constructed are capitalized at historical cost. District policy has set the capitalization
threshold for reporting capital assets at $5,000. Donated capital assets are valued at acquisition value on the date
donated. Upon retirement or other disposition of capital assets, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are
removed from the respective balances and any gains or losses are recognized.
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West Valley Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2025 and 2024

Note 1 — Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Capital Assets (Continued)

Depreciation is recorded on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Source of supply plant 20 years
Pumping plant 10 - 20 years
Water treatment plant 10 years
Transmission and distribution plant 15 - 60 years
General plant 5-20 years
Bio-remediation plant 20 years
Water rights 30 years

Right-of-Use Subscription Assets

Subscription assets are recorded at the amount of the initial measurement of the SBITA liabilities (“subscription
liabilities”) and adjusted by any subscription payments to the SBITA vendor at or before the commencement of the
subscription term, less any incentives received from the SBITA vendor at or before the commencement of the
subscription term along with subscription implementation costs. Subscription assets are amortized over the shorter of
the subscription term or the useful life of the underlying information technology assets.

Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements (“SBITAs”)

The District has a policy to recognize a subscription liability and a right-to-use subscription asset (subscription asset)
in the financial statements. The District recognizes subscription liabilities with an initial, individual value of $50,000
or more with a subscription term greater than one year. Variable payments based on future performance of the District’s
usage of the underlying IT asset, or number of user seats are not included in the measurement of the subscription
liability, rather, those variable payments are recognized as outflows of resources (expenses) in the period the obligation
for those payments is incurred.

At the commencement of a SBITA, the District initially measures the subscription liability at the net present value of
payments expected to be made during the subscription term. Subsequently, the subscription liability is reduced by the
principal portion of subscription payments made.
Subscription assets are recorded at the amount of the initial measurement of the subscription liabilities, plus any
payments made to the SBITA vendor before the commencement of the subscription term, and capitalizable initial
implementation cost, less any incentives received from the SBITA vendor at or before the commencement of the
subscription term.
Costs associated with a SBITA, other than the subscription payments, are accounted for as follows:

* Preliminary Project Stage: Outlays are expensed as incurred.

* Initial Implementation Stage: Outlays are capitalized as an addition to the subscription asset.

*  Operation and Additional Implementation Stage: Outlays are expensed as incurred unless they meet specific
capitalization criteria.
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West Valley Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2025 and 2024

Note 1 — Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements (“SBITAs”) (Continued)

Upon adoption, the District elected to exclude the capitalizable outlays associated with the initial implementation stage
and the operation and additional implementation stage that were incurred prior to the implementation of this Statement
in the measurement of subscription assets as of July 1, 2022.

Subscription assets are reported in capital assets and subscription liabilities are reported with long-term liabilities on
the statement of net position.

Subscription assets are amortized using the straight-line method over the shorter of the subscription term or the useful
life of the underlying IT asset, unless the subscription contains a purchase option that the District has determined is
reasonably certain of being exercised. In this case, the subscription asset is amortized over the useful life of the
underlying IT asset.

Key estimates and judgments related to SBITA include how the District determines (1) the discount rate it uses to
discount the expected subscription payments to present value, (2) subscription term, and (3) subscription payments.

e The District used the incremental borrowing rate at the time of GASB Statement No. 96 implementation for its
existing SBITAs. The District will use the current rate at the time of a new SBITA agreement is executed. If
available, the District uses the interest rate charged by the SBITA vendor as the discount rate.

e The subscription term includes the noncancellable period of the SBITA. Subscription payments included in the
measurement of the subscription liability are composed of fixed payments and purchase option price that the
District is reasonably certain to exercise.

The District monitors changes in circumstances that would require a remeasurement of its subscription liability and will
remeasure it accordingly if certain changes occur that are expected to significantly affect the liability.

Compensated Absences

Under certain circumstances and according to the negotiated labor agreements, employees of the District are allowed
to accumulate annual leave. These amounts for annual leave are expected to be paid in future years from future
resources. A liability is recognized for leave benefits (such as vacation and sick leave) when the benefits are attributable
to services already rendered, accumulate for use in future periods, and are more likely than not to be used or paid. The
liability is measured using the employee’s pay rate in effect at the financial statement date and includes salary-related
payments.

Construction Advances and Deposits

Construction advances and deposits represent deposits received in aid of construction, which are refundable if the
applicable construction does not take place. Construction advances are transferred to contributed capital when the
applicable construction project is completed.

Defined Benefit Pension Plans

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, and deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net pension of the District’s pension plans and
additions to/deductions from the plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are
reported by plans. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized
when due and payable in accordance with benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
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Note 1 — Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Defined Benefit Pension Plans (Continued)

The following timeframes are used for pension reporting:

CalPERS June 30, 2025 CalPERS June 30, 2024
Valuation date June 30, 2023 Valuation date June 30, 2022
M easurement date June 30, 2024 M easurement date June 30, 2023

M easurement period July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024 M easurement period July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023

Gains and losses related to changes in total pension liability and fiduciary net position are recognized in pension expense
systematically over time. The first amortized amounts are recognized in pension expense for the year the gain or loss
occurs. The remaining amounts are categorized as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions and are to be recognized in future pension expense. The amortization period differs depending on the source
of the gain or loss. The difference between projected and actual earnings is amortized straight-line over 5 years. All
other amounts are amortized straight-line over the average expected remaining service lives of all members that are
provided with benefits (active, inactive and retires) as of the beginning of the measurement period.

Other Postemployment Benefits (“OPEB”)

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the District’s OPEB Plan and
additions to/deductions from OPEB Plan's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are
reported by the Plan. For this purpose, the OPEB Plan recognizes benefit payments when due and payable in accordance
with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value, except for money market investments, which are reported
at amortized cost.

The following timeframes are used for pension reporting:

OPEB June 30, 2025 OPEB June 30, 2024
Valuation date June 30, 2024 Valuation date June 30, 2022
M easurement date June 30, 2024 M easurement date June 30, 2023

M easurement period July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024 M easurement period July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023

Net Position

The financial statements utilize a net position presentation. Net position is categorized as follows:

Net investment in capital assets — This component of net position consists of capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation/amortization, reduced by any outstanding balances of debt and the deferred amount on refunding
debt that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.

Restricted — This component of net position consists of restricted assets reduced by liabilities and deferred
outflows and inflows of resources related to those assets.

Unrestricted — This component of net position is the amount of the assets, deferred outflows or resources,
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources that are not included in the determination of net investments in
capital assets or the restricted component of net position.

Water Sales and Sewer Services

Water sales and sewer services are billed on a monthly cyclical basis and recognize the respective revenues when they
are earned.
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Note 1 — Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Capital Contributions

Capital contributions represent cash and capital asset additions contributed to the District by property owners, granting
agencies or real estate developers desiring services that require capital expenditures or capacity commitment. Any
prepayments received by the District are reported as unearned revenue until construction of the related project has
commenced and the District is reasonably certain they will be completed. Upon completion, the applicable amounts are
recognized as capital contributions.

Budgetary Policies

The District adopts an annual non-appropriated budget for planning, control, and evaluation purposes. Budgetary
control and evaluation are affected by comparisons of actual revenues and expenses with planned revenues and expenses
for the period. Encumbrance accounting is not used to account for commitments related to unperformed contracts for
construction and services.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the basic financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results most likely
will differ from those estimates.

Implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Pronouncements
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025, the District implemented the following accounting standards:

o  GASB Statement No. 101 — In June 2022, the GASB issued Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences. The
objective of this Statement is to better meet the information needs of financial statement users by updating the
recognition and measurement guidance for compensated absences. That objective is achieved by aligning the
recognition and measurement guidance under a unified model and by amending certain previously required
disclosures. The requirements of this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2023, and all reporting periods thereafter. Implementation of this Statement resulted in a
restatement of the beginning fund balance as of July 1, 2024, as presented in Note 13.

o  GASB Statement No. 102 — In December 2023, the GASB issued Statement No. 102, Certain Risk Disclosures.
The objective of this Statement is to provide users of government financial statements with information about
risks related to a government’s vulnerabilities due to certain concentrations or constraints that is essential to
their analyses for making decisions or assessing accountability. The requirements of this Statement are effective
for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2024, and all reporting periods thereafter. Implementation of this
Statement did not have a significant effect on the District’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2025.
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Note 1 — Reporting Entity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Upcoming New GASB Pronouncements

The District is currently evaluating its accounting practices to determine the potential impact on the financial statements
for the following GASB Statements:

e (GASB Statement No. 103 — In April 2024, GASB issued Statement No. 103, Financial Reporting Model
Improvements. The objective of this Statement is to improve key components of the financial reporting model
to enhance its effectiveness in providing information that is essential for decision making and assessing a
government’s accountability. Application of this statement is effective for the District’s fiscal year ending
June 30, 2026. The District has not determined the effect on the financial statements.

¢  GASB Statement No. 104 — In September 2024, the GASB issued Statement No. 104, Disclosure of Certain Capital
Assets. The objective of this Statement is to provide users of government financial statements with essential
information about certain types of capital assets. This Statement requires certain types of capital assets to be
disclosed separately in the capital assets note disclosures required by Statement 34. This Statement also requires
additional disclosures for capital assets held for sale. Application of this statement is effective for the District’s
fiscal year ending June 30, 2026. The District has not determined the effect on the financial statements.

Note 2 — Cash and Investments

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2025 and 2024 were classified in the accompanying financial statements as follows:

2025 2024
Cash and cash equivalents $ 656,950 $ 4,441,928
Investments 139,736,536 120,404,121
Total cash and investments $ 140,393,486 $ 124,846,049

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2025 and 2024 consist of the following:

2025 2024
Cash on hand $ 4,300 $ 4,300
Deposits held with financial institutions 652,650 4,437,628
Investments 139,736,536 120,404,121
Total cash and investments $ 140,393,486 $ 124,846,049

Demand Deposits

The carrying amounts of cash deposits were $652,650 and $4,437,628 at June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively. Bank
balances at 2025 and 2024 were $914,575 and $4,863,218, respectively, which were fully insured and/or collateralized
with securities held by the pledging financial institutions in the District’s name as discussed below.

The California Government Code requires California banks and savings and loan associations to secure the District’s
cash deposits by pledging securities as collateral. This Code states that collateral pledged in this manner shall have the
effect of perfecting a security interest in such collateral superior to those of a general creditor. Thus, collateral for cash
deposits is considered to be held in the District’s name.
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Note 2 — Cash and Investments (Continued)
Demand Deposits (Continued)

The fair value of pledged securities must equal at least 110% of the District’s cash deposits. California law also allows
institutions to secure the District’s deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the
District’s total cash deposits. The District may waive collateral requirements for cash deposits, which are fully insured
up to $250,000 by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. The District, however, has not waived the
collateralization requirements.

Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the District’s Investment Policy

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized by the District in accordance with the California
Government Code (or the District’s investment policy, where more restrictive). The table also identifies certain
provisions of the California Government Code (or the District’s investment policy, where more restrictive) that address
interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk.

This table does not address investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustees that are governed by the provisions of
debt agreements of the District, rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the District’s
investment policy.

M aximum M aximum
M aximum Percentage Of Investment
Authorized Investment Type M aturity Portfolio in One Issuer

U.S. Treasury Obligations 5 years None None
U.S. Government Sponsored Entity Securities ' 3 years None None
Certificate of Deposit 5 years None 50%
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A 20% None
Collateralized Bank Deposits * 5 years None None
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A None None
CalTrust 2 years None None
Municipal Securities 5 years 20% None
Banker's Acceptances 180 days 25% None
Commercial Paper 270 days 25% 40%
Repurchase Agreement 90 days 10% None
Medium-Term Notes 5 years 30% None
Local Government Investment Pools (LGIP) 5 years 50% 50%
Supranational 5 years 30% 10%

! Purchase of callable Federal Agency Obligations are limited to a maximum 30% of portfolio.

% Only a maximum 30% of surplus funds can be invested in Certificates of Deposit.

* Only a maximum of 20% the portfolio may be invested in Time Certificate of Deposits (TCDs). The maturity
of TCDs may not exceed 4 years.
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Note 2 — Cash and Investments (Continued)
Fair Vale Measurements
At June 30, 2025 and 2024, investments are reported at fair value. The following table presents the fair value

measurement of investments on a recurring basis and the levels within GASB 72 fair value hierarchy in which the fair
value measurements fall at June 30, 2025 and 2024:

M easurement Inputs

2025 2024
Significant Significant Significant Significant
Observable Observable Observable Observable
Inputs Inputs Inputs Inputs
Investment Type (Level 1) (Level 2) Uncategorized Total (Level 1) (Level 2) Uncategorized Total

U.S. Treasury Obligations $89,785,033  § - $ - $ 89,785,033  $97,713,550 § -8 - $ 97,713,550
U.S. Agency Obligations - 13,217,870 - 13,217,870 - 11,019,014 ' 11,019,014
U.S. Corporate - 11,362,445 ! - 11,362,445 - 9,526,823 ' 9,526,823
Supranational - 1,558,482 ! - 1,558,482 - 1,427,171 ! 1,427,171
Municipal Bonds - 966,988 ! - 966,988 - 307,830 ! 307,830
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) - - 6,986,329 6,986,329 - - 321,437 321,437
Money Market Mutual Funds - - 15,859,389 15,859,389 - - 88,296 88,296
Total $89,785,033  $27,105,785 $22,845,718  $139,736,536  $97,713,550  $22,280,838 $ 409,733  $120,404,121

! Instituational Bond Quotes - evaluations based on various market and industry inputs.

With respect to investments, custodial credit risk generally applies only to direct investments in marketable securities.
Custodial credit risk does not apply to a local government’s indirect investment in securities through the use of mutual
funds or government investment pools (such as the Treasury Pool).

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an investment.
Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market
interest rates. One of the ways that the District manages its exposure to interest rate risk is by purchasing a combination
of shorter term and longer term investments by timing cash flows from maturities so that a portion of the portfolio is

maturing or coming close to maturity as necessary to provide the cash flow and liquidity needed for operations.

Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the District’s investments to market interest rate fluctuations is
provided by the table on the following page that shows the distribution of the District’s investments by maturity.

The District’s maturity of investments as of June 30, 2025 were as follows:

Investment M aturities (in Years)

Less Than 1to3 3to5 Fair Value
Investment Type 1 Year Years Years Total
U.S. Agency Obligations $ 2,356,879 $ 1,511,859  § 9,349,132  § 13,217,870
U.S. Treasury Obligations 77,907,583 5,699,710 6,177,740 89,785,033
U.S. Corporate 229,610 4,906,543 6,226,292 11,362,445
Supranational 684,816 - 873,666 1,558,482
Municipal Bonds - - 966,988 966,988
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 6,986,329 - - 6,986,329
Money M arket Mutual Funds 15,859,389 - - 15,859,389
Total $ 104,024,606 $ 12,118,112  $ 23,593.818 $§ 139,736,536
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Note 2 — Cash and Investments (Continued)
Interest Rate Risk (Continued)
The District’s maturity of investments as of June 30, 2024 were as follows:

Investment M aturities (in Years)

Less Than 1to3 3to5 Fair Value
Investment Type 1 Year Years Years Total

U.S. Agency Obligations $ 2,052,996 $ 2,249,037 $ 6,716,981  § 11,019,014
U.S. Treasury Obligations 87,171,111 6,750,072 3,792,367 97,713,550
U.S. Corporate 1,101,837 2,900,701 5,524,285 9,526,823
Supranational 247,065 654,260 525,845 1,427,171
Municipal Bonds - - 307,830 307,830
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 321,437 - - 321,437
Money M arket M utual Funds 88,296 - - 88,296

Total $ 90,982,742 § 12,554,070  $ 16,867,308 § 120,404,121

Custodial Credit Risk

The custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a
government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party.

The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (e.g., broker-
dealer) to a transaction, a government will not be able to recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that
are in the possession of another party.

Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the
investment. State law limits investments in commercial paper and corporate bonds to the top two ratings issued by
nationally recognized statistical rating organizations (NRSROs). It is the District’s policy to limit its investments in
these investment types to the top rating issued by NRSROs, including raters Standard and Poor’s, and Moody’s
Investors Service.

As of June 30, 2025, the District had the following table of the Standard and Poor’s credit ratings:

Total M inimum
As of Legal
Investment Type June 30, 2025 Rating A or Higher Not rated
Municipal Bonds $ 966,988 A $ 966,988  $ -
U.S. Agency Obligations 13,217,870 N/A 13,217,870 -
U.S. Treasury Obligations 89,785,033 N/A 89,785,033 -
U.S. Corporate 11,362,445 A 11,362,445 -
Supranational 1,558,482 AA 1,558,482 -
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 6,986,329 N/A - 6,986,329
Money Market M utual Funds 15,859,389 AAA 15,859,389 -
Total $ 139,736,536 $ 132,750,207 $ 6,986,329
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Note 2 — Cash and Investments (Continued)
Credit Risk (Continued)

As of June 30, 2024, the District had the following table of the Standard and Poor’s credit ratings:

As of Legal
Investment Type June 30, 2024 Rating A or Higher Not rated

M unicipal Bonds $ 307,830 A $ 307,830 % -
U.S. Agency Obligations 11,019,014 N/A 11,019,014 -
U.S. Treasury Obligations 97,713,550 N/A 97,713,550 -
U.S. Corporate 9,526,823 A 9,526,823 -
Supranational 1,427,171 AA 1,427,171 -
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 321,437 N/A - 321,437
Money Market M utual Funds 88,296 AAA 88,296 -

Total $ 120,404,121 $ 120,082,684 § 321,437

Concentration of Credit Risk

The District’s investment policy contains various limitations on the amounts that can be invested in any one
governmental agency or non-governmental issuer as stipulated by the California Government Code. There were no
investments in any one non-governmental issuer that represent 5% or more of the District’s total investments as of
June 30, 2025 and 2024.

Investment in Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)

The District is a participant in LAIF which is regulated by California Government Code Section 16429 under the
oversight of the Treasure of the State of California. As of June 30, 2025 and June 30, 2024, the District had $6,986,329
and $321,437 respectively invested in LAIF. LAIF determines fair value on its investment portfolio based on market
quotations for those securities where market quotations are readily available and based on amortized cost or best
estimate for those securities where market value is not reasonably available. LAIF is reported at amortized cost, which
approximates fair value.

Note 3 — Accounts Receivable — Redevelopment Pass-Through

The District has a tax pass-through agreement with the City of Rialto. Under this agreement, San Bernardino County
pays a portion of the District’s incremental tax receipts directly to the District for water-related improvements within
the Agua Mansa redevelopment area. Over the past several years, the District has received annual payments of the
revenue to which it is entitled, and it is anticipated that these payments will continue through fiscal year 2029. As of
June 30, 2025 and 2024, the outstanding balance were $164,327 and $205,408, respectively.

Note 4 — Lease Receivables

The portion of the District’s property is leased to others. Such property includes special purpose facilities and land.
Lease receivable consists of agreements with other for the right-to-use of the underlying assets at various locations
owned by the District. The terms of the arrangements range from 2 to 99 years. The calculated interest rates used vary
depending on the length of the lease. The leases have interest rates that range from 2.026% to 2.063%. For the fiscal
years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, the District recognized $40,035, in lease revenue and $29,127 and $28,998 in
interest revenue, respectively.
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Note 4 — Lease Receivables (Continued)

The changes in lease receivables for the years ended June 20, 2025 and 2024 are as follow:

Classification
Beginning Ending Due within Due in More
Fiscal Year Ended Balance Additions Deletions Balance One Year Than One Year
June 30, 2025 $ 1,404,328 § - 8 (11,481) $ 1,392,847 § 12,772 $ 1,380,075
June 30, 2024 1,414,572 - (10,244) 1,404,328 11,481 1,392,847

As of June 30, 2025, lease receivable are due in the upcoming years as follows:

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2026 $ 12,772 $ 28,530 S 41,302
2027 14,118 28,256 42,374
2028 15,521 27,954 43,475
2029 16,983 27,623 44,606
2030 18,506 27,261 45,767
2031-2035 117,660 129,708 247,368
2036-2040 166,188 115,278 281,466
2041-2045 225,094 95,353 320,447
2046-2050 237,539 69,941 307,480
2051-2055 225,736 47,595 273,331
2056-2060 296,000 20,865 316,865
2061 46,730 575 47,305
Total $ 1,392,847 % 618,939 § 2,011,786

As of June 30, 2025, the amounts reported as deferred inflows of resources related to leases will be recognized as lease
revenue as follows:

Year Ending
June 30, Total
2026 $ 40,035
2027 40,035
2028 40,035
2029 40,035
2030 40,035
2031-2035 200,175
2036-2040 200,175
2041-2045 200,175
2046-2050 167,921
2051-2055 125,745
2056-2060 125,745
2061 16,765
Total $ 1,236,876
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Note 5 — Capital Assets

Changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2025, were as follows:

Balance Balance
July 1, 2024 Additions Deletions Transfers June 30, 2025
Non-depreciable assets:
Land and land rights $ 2,081,060 $ - 8 - 3 - 8 2,081,060
Construction-in-process 44,299,669 26,682,424 (247,283) (3,121,799) 67,613,011
Total non-depreciable assets 46,380,729 26,682,424 (247,283) (3,121,799) 69,694,071
Depreciable assets:
Source of supply plant 6,371,198 - - 702,105 7,073,303
Pumping plant 12,579,014 - - 245,253 12,824,267
Bio-remediation plant 24,907,020 - - - 24,907,020
Water treatment p lant 39,820,934 - - 733,774 40,554,708
Transmission and distribution plant 161,935,045 3,622,878 - 378,932 165,936,855
General plant and equipment 17,639,413 - (44,209) 1,061,735 18,656,939
Total depreciable assets 263,252,624 3,622,878 (44,209) 3,121,799 269,953,092
Less accumulated depreciation:
Source of supply plant (5,287,813) (186,477) - - (5,474,290)
Pumping plant (9,977,021) (443,480) - - (10,420,501)
Bio-remediation plant (8,702,046) (830,234) - - (9,532,280)
Water treatment plant (32,392,234) (1,051,813) - - (33,444,047)
Transmission and distribution plant (58,084,948) (3,931,095) - - (62,016,043)
General plant and equipment (11,177,545) (903,156) 44,209 - (12,036,492)
Total accumulated depreciation (125,621,607) (7,346,255) 44,209 - (132,923,653)
Total depreciable assets, net 137,631,017 (3,723,377) - 3,121,799 137,029,439
Intangible assets:
Water rights 404,949 - - - 404,949
Water participation rights 9,645,865 - (420,813) - 9,225,052
Less: accumulated amortization (4,179,876) (305,328) - - (4,485,204)
Total intangible assets - water rights, net 5,870,938 (305,328) (420,813) - 5,144,797
Subscription assets, being amortized 522,368 155,545 (73,216) - 604,697
Less accumulated amortization (181,726) (131,593) 69,150 - (244,169)
Total subscription assets, net 340,642 23,952 (4,066) - 360,528
Total capital assets, net $ 190,223,326 $§ 22,677,671 $ (672,162) $ - $ 212,228,835

The construction-in-process balances at June 30, 2025 are as follows:

2025
Roemer Plant Expansion $ 63,807,852
Various other district projects 3,805,159
Total construction-in-process $ 67,613,011
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Changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2024, were as follows:

Balance Balance
July 1, 2023 Additions Deletions Transfers June 30, 2024
Non-depreciable assets:
Land and land rights $ 2,093,491 $ - 8 (12,431) $ - 8 2,081,060
Construction-in-process 12,170,910 38,078,057 (492,306) (5,456,992) 44,299,669
Total non-depreciable assets 14,264,401 38,078,057 (504,737) (5,456,992) 46,380,729
Depreciable assets:
Source of supply plant 6,371,198 - - - 6,371,198
Pumping plant 12,315,214 - - 263,800 12,579,014
Bio-remediation plant 24,907,020 - - - 24,907,020
Water treatment plant 38,622,074 - - 1,198,860 39,820,934
Transmission and distribution plant 135,286,093 23,212,157 - 3,436,795 161,935,045
General plant and equipment 17,072,626 9,250 - 557,537 17,639,413
Total depreciable assets 234,574,225 23,221,407 - 5,456,992 263,252,624
Less accumulated depreciation:
Source of supply plant (5,079,930) (207,883) - - (5,287,813)
Pumping plant (9,554,543) (422,478) - - (9,977,021)
Bio-remediation plant (7,871,811) (830,235) - - (8,702,046)
Water treatment plant (31,469,875) (922,359) - - (32,392,234)
Transmission and distribution plant (54,322,461) (3,762,487) - - (58,084,948)
General plant and equipment (10,331,456) (846,089) - - (11,177,545)
Total accumulated depreciation (118,630,076) (6,991,531) - - (125,621,607)
Total depreciable assets, net 115,944,149 16,229,876 - 5,456,992 137,631,017
Intangible assets:
Water rights 404,949 - - - 404,949
Water participation rights 9,645,865 - - - 9,645,865
Less: accumulated amortization (3,858,347) (321,529) - - (4,179,876)
Total intangible assets - water rights, net 6,192,467 (321,529) - - 5,870,938
Subscription assets, being amortized 290,782 231,586 - - 522,368
Less accumulated amortization (69,025) (112,701) - - (181,726)
Total subscription assets, net 221,757 118,885 - - 340,642
Total capital assets, net $ 136,622,774 $§ 54,105289 $ (504,737) $ - $ 190,223,326

The construction-in-process balances at June 30, 2024 are as follows:

2024
Roemer Plant Expansion $ 40,184,212
Various other district projects 3,958,853
Various other developer projects 156,604
Total construction-in-process $ 44,299,669
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Note 5 — Capital Assets (Continued)

Depreciation expense for the years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024 were $7,346,255 and $6,991,351, respectively. Major
capital assets additions during the current year include the upgrades and extensions of the District’s transmission and
distribution, water treatment plant, general plant and pumping plant. A significant portion of these additions were
constructed by the District and/or sub-contractors and transferred out of construction-in-process, upon competition of

these various projects.

Amortization expense for the years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024 were $436,921 and 434,230.

Intangible Assets

In 2012, the District acquired water participation rights from the San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District in
the amount of $9,645,865. As of June 30, 2025, the current balance of the water participation rights was adjusted to
$9,225,052. The District is amortizing the participation rights until January 31, 2041.

Note 6 — Compensated Absences

Changes to compensated absences for the years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024 were as follows:

Beginning
Balance Ending Current Non-current
Year Ended (as restated) ~ Net Changes *  Balance Portion Portion
June 30,2025 $ 1,396,777 $ 117,236 $1,514,013 $832,707 $ 681,306
June 30, 2024 1,223,546 173,231 1,396,777 768,227 628,550
* The change in the compensated absences liability is presented as a net change.
Note 7 — Long-Term Debt
Changes in long-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2025 were as follows:
Amount Amount
Balance Balance Due Within Due In More
July 1, 2024 Additions Deletions June 30, 2025 One Year Than One Year
Publicly offering:
Water Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Series 2016A $ 18,890,000 $ -8 (475,0000 $ 18,415,000 $ 490,000 $ 17,925,000
Add: Unamortized Premium 913,058 - (40,617) 872,441 - 872,441
Total bond payable 19,803,058 - (515,617) 19,287,441 490,000 18,797,441
Direct borrowing:
Hydroelectric Plant - Contract payable 1,323,551 - (331,100) 992,451 331,100 661,351
Water Participation Rights
Contract payable 5,190,589 - (305,329) 4,885,260 305,329 4,579,931
Drinking Water State Revolving Fund 18,530,858 28,134,142 - 46,665,000 - 46,665,000
Subscription liabilities 159,064 155,545 (84,333) 230,276 98,073 132,203
Total long-term liabilities $ 45007,120 § 28,289,687 $ (1,236,379) $ 72,060,428 § 1,224,502  $ 70,835,926
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Note 7 — Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Changes in long-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2024 were as follows:

Amount Amount
Balance Balance Due Within Due In More Than
July 1, 2023 Additions Deletions June 30, 2024 One Year One Year
Publicly offering:
Water Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Series 2016A $ 19,345,000 $ - 8 (455,000)0 $ 18,890,000 $ 475,000 $ 18,415,000
Add: Unamortized Premium 953,676 - (40,618) 913,058 - 913,058
Total bond payable 20,298,676 - (495,618) 19,803,058 475,000 19,328,058
Direct borrowing:
Hydroelectric Plant - Contract payable 1,654,651 - (331,100) 1,323,551 331,100 992,451
Water Participation Rights
Contract payable 5,787,519 - (596,930) 5,190,589 305,329 4,885,260
Drinking Water State Revolving Fund - 18,530,858 - 18,530,858 - 18,530,858
Subscription liabilities 214,033 - (54,969) 159,064 42,675 116,389
Total long-term liabilities $ 27954879 § 18,530,858 § (1,478,617) $ 45,007,120 $ 1,154,104  § 43,853,016

Water Revenue Refunding Bonds Series 2016A4

The 2016A Bonds were issued to provide funds, together with certain other moneys: (i) to prepay all amounts payable
under the Series 2006D-2 Bonds installment purchase agreement between the District and California Statewide
Communities Development Authority; and (ii) pay costs of issuance of the 2016A Bonds. The 2016A Bonds were
issued pursuant to an Indenture of Trust, dated December 1, 2016, by and between the District and U.S. Bank National
Association. The 2016A Bonds were in the aggregate principal amount of $22,035,000. The 2016A Bonds were dated
as of the date of initial issuance, and will bear interest ranging from 2.00% to 5.00% per annum, payable on April 1 and
October 1, commencing April 1, 2017, and ending October 1, 2047. The Series 2016A Bonds are payable solely from
the net revenues of the District’s water system as defined in the Series 2016A Bond Indenture.

The District has covenanted that it shall at all times while any of the 2016A Bonds remain unpaid, to the maximum
extent permitted by law, to fix, prescribe and collect rates, fees and charges and manage the operation of the District
for each fiscal year so as to yield District’s net revenues equal to at least 1.20 times the annual debt service. The District
is in compliance with such covenant at June 30, 2025 and 2024. In event of default, the District upon demand by U.S.
Bank National Association, will immediately repay the total unpaid principal of the Bonds, accrued interests.

The amount outstanding at June 30, 2025 was $18,415,000. The annual debt service requirements on these bonds are
as follows:

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total

2026 $ 490,000 $ 807,250 $ 1,297,250
2027 515,000 782,125 1,297,125
2028 540,000 755,750 1,295,750
2029 570,000 728,000 1,298,000
2030 600,000 698,750 1,298,750

2031-2035 3,450,000 3,021,350 6,471,350

2036-2040 2,505,000 2,140,875 4,645,875

2041-2045 3,910,000 1,401,600 5,311,600

2046-2048 5,835,000 350,100 6,185,100
Total $ 18,415,000 $ 10,685,800 $ 29,100,800
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Note 7 — Long-Term Debt (Continued)
Hydroelectric Plant

In December 20, 2016, the District entered into an agreement with San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District
(“Valley District”) to finance and construct Roemer Hydroelectric Station. In the agreement, the Valley District agreed
to finance the cost of the project total amounted of $3,310,151 with the interest that the Valley District shall be revenue
neutral in this financing arrangement. Beginning June 2018, the District shall repay the principal of the project funds,
together with all interest accruing thereon, annually to the Valley District. Interest accrued monthly on the unpaid and
outstanding balance of principal at the Local Agency Investment Fund interest rate, with accrued but unpaid interest
also bearing interest. As of June 30, 2025, the outstanding balance of the financing was in the amount of $992.451.

Future debt service requirements are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30, Principal
2026 331,100
2027 331,100
2028 330,251

Total $ 992,451

Water Participation Rights Contract Payable

In 2012, the District acquired water participation rights from the San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District
(SBVMWD). These rights entitle the District to purchase water from the Baseline Feeder system. The payment for the
rights is calculated at 5,000-acre feet at $90 per acre foot, per year, payable in monthly installments of $25,444, until
January 31, 2041. The calculated annual amount of $321,529 is a minimum usage fee which does not actually represent
the purchase of any water. In 2024, the SBVMWD adjusted the annual payment from the District to $305,329 beginning
fiscal year 2025. Purchased water is billed in addition to the minimum fee. As of June 30, 2025, the outstanding balance
of the financing was $4,885,260. Future debt service requirements are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30, Principal
2026 $ 305,329
2027 305,329
2028 305,329
2029 305,329
2030 305,329
2031-2035 1,526,645
2036-2040 1,526,645
2041 305,325

Total $ 4,885,260
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Note 7 — Long-Term Debt (Continued)

Drinking Water State Revolving Fund

In 2023, the District entered into an agreement with California State Water Resources Control Board for the Romer
Expansion Project. The District received $18.5 Million during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024 and $28.1 Million
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025. The project is expected be completed by December 31, 2025. Payments will
begin in fiscal year 2026 and the loan is expected to be repaid by 2055. These are calculated using the annual interest
rate is 1.1%. As of June 30, 2025, the outstanding balance of the financing was $46,665,000. Future debt service

requirements are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total

2026 $ -3 499,091 § 499,091
2027 1,321,396 513,315 1,834,711
2028 1,335,931 498,780 1,834,711
2029 1,350,627 484,084 1,834,711
2030 1,365,484 469,228 1,834,712

2031-2035 7,056,055 2,117,501 9,173,556

2036-2040 7,452,770 1,720,786 9,173,556

2041-2045 7,871,790 1,301,766 9,173,556

2046-2050 8,314,368 859,187 9,173,555

2051-2055 8,781,830 391,725 9,173,555
2056 1,814,749 19,962 1,834,711
Total $ 46,665,000 3 8,875,425 § 55,540,425

Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangement (SBITA) Liability

The District has entered into a subscription-based IT arrangement and has recorded a liability to offset the right-to-use
assets. This is calculated using the District’s incremental borrowing rate is 2.354%. As of June 30, 2025, the remaining

principal balance was $230,276.

Future debt service requirements are as follows:

Year Ending
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2026 $ 98,073 $ 5415  § 103,488
2027 103,575 3,112 106,687
2028 28,628 674 29,302
Total $ 230,276  $ 9,201 $ 239,477
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Note 8 — Defined Benefit Pension Plans
General Information about the Pension Plan

Plans Description

The District contributes to the California Public Employees Retirement System (CalPERS), a cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plan. CalPERS acts as a common investment and administrative agent for
participating public agencies within the State of California. Benefit provisions and all other requirements are established
by state statute and the District. A full description of the pension plan regarding number of employees covered, benefit
provisions, assumptions (for funding, but not accounting purposes), and membership information are listed in the
June 30, 2023 and 2022 Annual Actuarial Valuation Report. This report and CalPERS’ audited financial statements are
publicly available reports that can be obtained at CalPERS’ website under Forms and Publications.

Benefits Provided

CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments and death benefits to
plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal
to one year of full-time employment.

The Plan’s provisions and benefits in effect as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, the measurement dates, are summarized as
follows:

2024 2023
Classic Tier 1 PEPRA Tier 2 Classic Tier 1 PEPRA Tier 2
Prior to On or After Prior to On or After

January 1, 2013 January 1, 2013 January 1, 2013 January 1, 2013
Benefit formula 2.0% @ 55 2.0% @ 62 2.0% @ 55 2.0% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service 5 years service 5 years service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50-55 & up 52-67 & up 50-55 & up 52-67 & up
Required employee contribution rates 7.000% 7.750% 7.000% 6.750%
Required employer contribution rates 12.470% 7.680% 10.870% 7.470%

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

At June 30, 2023 and 2022, the valuation dates, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms for the Plan:

2023 2022
Miscellaneous Plan Miscellaneous Plan
Classic PEPRA Classic PEPRA
Active employees 35 43 38 40
Transferred and terminated employees 37 40 37 34
Retired employees and beneficiaries 49 1 48 1
Total 121 84 123 75
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Note 8 — Defined Benefit Pension Plans (Continued)
General Information about the Pension Plan (Continued)
Contributions

Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law (PERL) requires that the employer contribution
rates for all public employers are determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall be effective on the July 1
following notice of a change in the rate. The total plan contributions are determined through CalPERS’ annual actuarial
valuation process. The actuarially determined rate is the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits
earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The
employer is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of
employees. Employer contribution rates may change if plan contracts are amended. Payments made by the employer to
satisfy contribution requirements that are identified by the pension plan terms as plan member contribution requirements
are classified as plan member contributions.

Net Pension Liability

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Total Pension Liability

The June 30, 2023 valuation was rolled forward to determine the June 30, 2024 total pension liability, based on the
following actuarial assumptions:

Actuarial Cost M ethod Entry Age Actuarial Cost M ethod
Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate 6.90%
Price Inflation 2.30%
Salary Increases Varies by entry age and service
Mortality Rate Table' Derived using CalPERS' M embership Data for all Funds
Post Retirement Benefit Increase The lesser of contract COLA or 2.30% until Purchasing Power Protection. Allowance

floor on purchasing power applies, 2.30% thereafter.

IThe mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS-specific data. The probabilities of mortality are based on the 2021 CalPERS
Experience Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions. Mortality rates incorporate full generational mortality improvement using 80% of Scale
MP-2020 published by the Society of Actuaries. For more details on this table, please refer to the 2021 experience study report from
November 2021 that can be found on the CalPERS website.

Change of Assumptions

There were no change of assumptions in 2024 and 2023.

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block method in
which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are
developed for each major asset class.
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Note 8 — Defined Benefit Pension Plans (Continued)
Net Pension Liability (Continued)

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return (Continued)

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both short-term and long-term market
return expectations. Using historical returns of all of the funds’ asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns
were calculated over the next 20 years using a building-block approach. The expected rate of return was then adjusted
to account for assumed administrative expenses of 10 Basis points. The expected real rates of return by asset class are
as follows:

Assumed Asset Real
Asset Class' Allocation Return 2
Global Equity - Cap-weighted 30% 4.54%
Global Equity - Non-Cap-weighted 12% 3.84%
Private Equity 13% 7.28%
Treasury 5% 0.27%
M ortgage-backed Securities 5% 0.50%
Investment Grade Corporates 10% 1.56%
High Yield 5% 2.27%
Emerging M arket Debt 5% 2.48%
Private Debt 5% 3.57%
Real Assets 15% 3.21%
Leverage -5% -0.59%
100%

(1) An expected inflation of 2.30% used for this period.
(2) Figures are based on the 2021 Asset Liability M anagement study.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability as of the measurement dates of June 30, 2024 and 2023
were 6.90%. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan
members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be made at
statutorily required rates, actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net position was
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members . Therefore, the long-
term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine
the total pension liability.

Changes in the Net Pension Liability

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liabilities of the Plan as of the measurement
dates at June 30, 2024 and 2023, calculated using the discount rate of 6.90%, as well as what the District’s proportionate
share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage-point lower
(5.90%) or 1 percentage-point higher (7.90%) than the current rate:

Plan's Net Pension Liability/(Asset)

Discount Rate - 1% Current Discount Discount Rate + 1%

Measurement Date (5.90%) Rate (6.90%) (7.90%)
June 30, 2024 $ 15,670,008 $ 9,756,035  $ 4,887,963
June 30, 2023 15,359,081 9,780,551 5,188,941
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Note 8 — Defined Benefit Pension Plans (Continued)

Changes in the Net Pension Liability (Continued)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detail information about the plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued CalPERS financial reports
and can be obtained from CalPERS’ website under Forms and Publications.

Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability and Pension Expense

The following table shows the plan’s proportionate share of the risk pool collective net pension liability over the
measurement period:

M iscellaneous Plan

Increase (Decrease)

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension
Liability Net Position Liability/(Asset)
(a) (b) (©)-(a)-(b)
Balance at June 30, 2023 (Valuation Date) $ 41247365 $ 31,466,814 $ 9,780,551
Balance at June 30, 2024 (M easurement Date) 43,826,565 34,070,530 9,756,035
Net Changes during 2023-2024 2,579,200 2,603,716 (24,516)
Balance at June 30, 2022 (Valuation Date) $ 38,391,029 $ 29,565,017 $ 8,826,012
Balance at June 30, 2023 (M easurement Date) 41,247,365 31,466,814 9,780,551
Net Changes during 2022-2023 2,856,336 1,901,797 954,539

The following is the approach established by the plan actuary to allocate the net pension liability and pension expense
to the individual employers within the risk pool for the measurement periods ended June 30, 2024 and 2023.

(1)

2)

)

4)

)

In determining a cost-sharing plan's proportionate share, total amounts of liabilities and assets are first
calculated for the risk pool as a whole on the valuation dates (June 30, 2023 and 2022). The risk pool's
fiduciary net position ("FNP") subtracted from its total pension liability ("TPL") determines the net pension
liability ("NPL") at the valuation date.

Using standard actuarial roll forward methods, the risk pool TPL is then computed at the measurement
dates (June 30, 2024 and 2023). Risk pool FNP at the measurement date is then subtracted from this number
to compute the NPL for the risk pool at the measurement date. For purposes of FNP in this step and any
later reference thereto, the risk pool's FNP at the measurement date denotes the aggregate risk pool's FNP
at June 30, 2024 and 2023 less the sum of all additional side fund (or unfunded liability) contributions made
by all employers during the measurement periods (2023-2024 and 2022-2023).

The individual plan’s TPL, FNP and NPL are also calculated at the valuation date. TPL is allocated based
on the rate plan’s share of the actuarial accrued liability. FNP is allocated based on the rate plan’s share of
market value assets.

Two ratios are created by dividing the plan’s individual TPL and FNP as of the valuation date from (3) by
the amounts in step (1), the risk pool’s total TPL and FNP, respectively.

The plan’s TPL as of the Measurement Date is equal to the risk pool TPL generated in (2) multiplied by
the TPL ratio generated in (4). The plan’s FNP as of the Measurement Date is equal to the FNP generated
in (2) multiplied by the FNP ratio generated in (4) plus any additional side fund (or unfunded liability)
contributions made by the employer on behalf of the plan during the measurement period.

(6) The plan’s NPL at the Measurement Date is the difference between the TPL and FNP calculated in (5).
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Note 8 — Defined Benefit Pension Plans (Continued)
Changes in the Net Pension Liability (Continued)

Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability and Pension Expense (Continued)

Deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and pension expense are allocated based on the District’s
share of contributions made during the measurement period.

The District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability was as follows:

2024 2023
M easurement Date M easurement Date
June 30, 2023 0.1956%  June 30, 2022 0.1886%
June 30, 2024 0.2017%  June 30, 2023 0.1956%
Change - Increase (Decrease) 0.0061%  Change - Increase (Decrease) 0.0070%

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

For the years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, the District recognized pension expense in the amounts of $2,306,493 and
$2,167,582, respectively. At June 30, 2025 and 2024, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

2025 2024
Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources of Resources of Resources
Pension contribution after measurement date $ 1,712,951 $ - $ 1,391,019 $ -
Changes of assumptions 250,750 - 590,496 -
Difference between expected and actual experience 843,499 (32,913) 499,644 (77,507)
Projected earnings on pension plan investments
under/(in excess of) actual earnings 561,643 - 1,583,559 -
Adjustment due to differences in proportions 293,596 - 463,427 -
Employer's actual contributions in excess of/(under)
employer's proportionate share of contribution 66,717 (73,459) - (209,795)
Total $ 3,729,156  $ (106,372) $ 4,528,145 $ (287,302)

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from District’s contributions subsequent to the
measurement date in the amount of $1,712,951 and $1,391,019 will be recognized as a reduction of the collective net
pension liability in the years ending June 30, 2026 and 2025, respectively.

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be
recognized in pension expense as follows:

Deferred Outflows/ Deferred Outflows/
(Inflows) of Resources (Inflows) of Resources
Year Ending June 30, 2025 Year Ending June 30, 2024
2026 $ 706,447 2025 $ 931,671
2027 1,339,812 2026 629,895
2028 56,042 2027 1,242,819
2029 (192,468) 2028 45,439
2030 - 2029 -
Total $ 1,909,833 Total $ 2,849,824
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Note 9 — Other Postemployment Benefits (“OPEB”)
General Information about the OPEB Plan

Plan Description

The District pays a portion of the cost of health insurance for retirees (including prescription drug benefits) under any
group plan offered by the CalPERS Health Program, subject to certain restrictions as determined by the District. The
District offers post-employment medical benefits to retired employees who satisfy the eligibility rules. Spouses and
surviving spouses are also eligible to receive benefits. Retirees may enroll in any medical plan available through the
District’s CalPERS Health Program, a cost-sharing multiple-employer medical coverage plan. The contribution
requirements of eligible retired employees and the District are established and may be amended by the Board of
Directors.

Benefits Provided

A retired employee and dependent spouse, or spouse of a deceased employee or retiree, may continue his/her medical,
dental and vision insurance at the District's expense. The eligibility requirements vary by date of hire, as follows:

e Hired prior to July 1, 2006: Later of age 50 and 10 years of continuous service. District premium contribution
100%.

e Hired on or after July 1, 2006: Later of age 55 and 5 years of continuous service. District premium contribution
varies by years of service.

District Premium Employee Premium
Year of Service Contribution Contribution
5 25% 75%
10 50% 50%
15 75% 25%
20 100% 0%

For employees hired before January 1, 2015, the District reimburses 100% of Medicare Part B premiums. Employees
hired on or after January 1, 2015 are responsible for all Medicare Part B premiums.

If the spouse of a deceased employee or retiree remarries and becomes eligible for health benefits under his/her new

spouse's health plan, all District benefits shall be terminated. Otherwise, benefits are payable for the lifetime of the
covered retiree or surviving spouse.

Similar benefits are extended to retired District Directors, with the eligibility requirements being the later of age 50 and
12 years of total service. District Directors hired after January 1, 1995 are not eligible for retiree health benefits.

Plan Membership

As of the June 30, 2024 and 2022, the valuation dates, for measurement dates June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively, the
following current and former employees were covered by the benefit terms under the OPEB Plan:

2024 2022
Active employ ees 84 72
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits payments 27 28
Total 111 100
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Note 9 — Other Postemployment Benefits (“OPEB”) (Continued)

General Information about the OPEB Plan (Continued)

Contributions

The OPEB Plan and its contribution requirements are established by Ordinance and may be amended by Board action
to update the original Ordinance. The annual contribution is based on the actuarially determined contribution. The

District participates in the California Employers’ Retiree Trust (CERBT) Fund.

Net OPEB Liability

The District’s net OPEB liabilities were measured as of June 30, 2024 and the total OPEB liabilities used to calculate
the net OPEB liabilities were determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2024. Standard actuarial update

procedures were used to project/discount from valuation to measurement dates.

Actuarial Assumptions

Total OPEB liability in the June 30, 2024 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions,

applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:

Actuarial Assumptions:
Actuarial cost method
Valuation of fiduciary net position
Recognition of deferred inflows
and outflows of resources
Inflation rate
Salary Increases
Investment rate of return
Pre-retirement Mortality:

Postretirement M ortality:

Healthcare cost trend rate (2024)

Healthcare cost trend rate (2022)

Entry Age, Level Percent of Pay

Fair value of assets.

Closed period equal to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all
employees provided with OPEB.

2.50%

3.00%

6.25%, net of OPEB plan investment expense

Preretirement Mortality Rates for Public Agency Miscellaneous from CalPERS
Experience Study (2000-2019).

Post-retirement Mortality Rates for Public Agency Miscellaneous from CalPERS
Experience Study (2000-2019).

7.00 percent for 2025 decreasing to 5.40 percent for 2029, 5.25 percent for 2030-
2034, 4.60 percent for 2035-2049, 4.50 percent for 2050-2064, 4.25 percent for
2065-2074, and 4.00 percent for 2075 and later years; Medicare ages: 4.50 percent
for 2025-2064, 4.25 percent for 2065-2074, and 4.00 percent for 2075 and later

6.00 percent for 2023, 5.50 percent for 2024, 5.25 percent for 2025-2029, 5.00
percent for 2030-2039, 4.75 percent for 2040-2049, 4.50 percent for 2050-2069 and
4.00 percent for 2070 and later years; Medicare ages: 4.50 percent for 2023-2029
and 4.00 percent for 2030 and later years.

165

46



West Valley Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2025 and 2024

Note 9 — Other Postemployment Benefits (“OPEB”) (Continued)

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a building-block method in
which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of investment expense and inflation) are developed for
each major asset class. The calculated investment rate of return was set equal to the expected ten-year compound
(geometric) real return plus inflation (rounded to the nearest 25 basis points, where appropriate). The table below
provides the long-term expected real rates of return by asset class (based on published capital market assumptions):

Assumed Real Rate

Asset Class Asset Allocation of Return
Global ex-U.S. Equity 49.00% 4.80%
U.S. Fixed 23.00% 1.80%
TIPS 5.00% 1.60%
Real Estate 20.00% 3.70%
Commodities 3.00% 1.90%

Total 100.00%

Rate of Return

For the year ended on the measurement date, the annual money-weighted rate of return on investments, net of investment
expense, was 11.47 percent. The money-weighted rate of return expresses investment performance, net of investment
expense, adjusted for the changing amounts invested. The Annual money-weighted rate of return, net of investment
expense, is 11.47%.

Discount Rate

GASB 75 requires a discount rate that reflects the following:
a) The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments — to the extent that the OPEB plan’s fiduciary
net position (if any) is projected to be enough to make projected benefit payments and assets are expected to be

invested using a strategy to achieve that return.

b) A yield or index rate for 20-year, tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rating of
AA/Aa or higher — to the extent that the conditions in (a) are not met.

To determine a resulting single (blended) rate, the amount of the plan’s projected fiduciary net position (if any) and the
amount of projected benefit payments is compared in each period of projected benefit payments. The discount rate used
to measure the District’s Total OPEB liability is based on these requirements and the following information:

Long-Term Fidelity GO AA
Expected Return of 20 Years
Reporting Date Measurement Date  Plan Investments Municipal Index Discount Rate
June 30, 2025 June 30, 2024 6.25% 3.97% 6.25%
June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023 6.25% 3.86% 6.25%
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West Valley Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2025 and 2024

Note 9 — Other Postemployment Benefits (“OPEB”) (Continued)
Change in Net OPEB Liability

The changes in net OPEB liability for the years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024 were as follows:

2025
Increase (Decrease)
Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net OPEB
Liability Net Position Liability/(Asset)
@ (b) ©=@-Mm

Balance at June 30, 2024

(June 30, 2023 M easurement Date) $ 10,401,789  $ 5,055,143  § 5,346,646
Changes recognized for the measurement period:

Service cost 498,193 - 498,193

Interest 670,417 - 670,417

Actual vs. expected experience 1,039,439 - 1,039,439

Changes of assumption 562,229 - 562,229

Contributions - employer - 973,122 (973,122)

Net investment income - 652,804 (652,804)

Benefits payments (351,969) (351,969) -

Administrative expense - (1,801) 1,801
Net Changes during July 1, 2024 to June 30, 2025 2,418,309 1,272,156 1,146,153
Balance at June 30, 2025

(June 30, 2024 M easurement Date) $ 12,820,098  § 6,327,299 $ 6,492,799

2024
Increase (Decrease)
Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net OPEB
Liability Net Position Liability/(Asset)
€)) (b) ©=@-Mm

Balance at June 30, 2023

(June 30, 2022 M easurement Date) $ 9,758,446  $ 4,025,435  $ 5,733,011
Changes recognized for the measurement period:

Service cost 377,640 - 377,640

Interest 622,524 - 622,524

Contributions - employer - 1,083,481 (1,083,481)

Net investment income - 304,388 (304,388)

Benefits pay ments (356,821) (356,821) -

Administrative expense - (1,340) 1,340
Net Changes during July 1, 2023 to June 30, 2024 643,343 1,029,708 (386,365)
Balance at June 30, 2024

(June 30, 2023 M easurement Date) $ 10,401,789  $ 5,055,143  § 5,346,646
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West Valley Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2025 and 2024

Note 9 — Other Postemployment Benefits (“OPEB”) (Continued)
Change in Net OPEB Liability (Continued)

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the District if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one

percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the current rate, for measurement period ended
June 30, 2024 and 2023:

Plan's Net OPEB Liability (Asset)

Discount Rate - 1% Current Discount Discount Rate + 1%

Measurement Date (5.25%) Rate (6.25%) (7.25%)
June 30, 2024 $ 8,429,913 § 6,492,799 $ 4,904,685
June 30, 2023 6,858,055 5,346,646 4,097,999

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Health Care Cost Trend Rates

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the District if it were calculated using health care cost trend rates that

are one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the current rate, for measurement period ended
June 30, 2024 and 2023:

Plan's Net OPEB Liability (Asset)
Current Healthcare

Measurement Date 1% Decrease Cost Trend Rate 1% Increase
June 30, 2024 $ 4,639,157 $ 6,492,799 $ 8,850,034
June 30, 2023 3,796,558 5,346,646 7,314,277

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, the District recognized OPEB expense of $3,260 and $204,033,
respectively. As of fiscal years, ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, the District reported deferred outflows of resources
related to OPEB from the following sources:

2025 2024
Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources of Resources of Resources

Changes of assumptions $ 932,951 § (1,500,058) $ 484,611  $ (2,462,174)
Net difference between projected and

actual earnings on plan investments 23,703 - 361,680 -
Difference between expected and

actual experience 1,639,139 (2,313,400) 925,337 (2,643,134)
Employer contributions made subsequent

to the measurement date 368,381 - 973,122 -

Total $ 2,964,174  § (3,813,458) § 2,744,750  § (5,105,308)

Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting from District’s contributions subsequent to the measurement
date in the amounts of $368,381 and $973,122 will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB liability in the years
ending June 30, 2026 and 2025, respectively.
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West Valley Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2025 and 2024

Note 9 — Other Postemployment Benefits (“OPEB”) (Continued)

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB
(Continued)

Amount reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized as future OPEB income as
follows:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows/(Inflows) of Outflows/(Inflows) of
Year Ended Resources Year Ended Resources
June 30 2025 June 30 2024

2026 $ (669,975) 2025 $ (906,826)
2027 93,312 2026 (764,363)
2028 (94,637) 2027 (1,076)
2029 (291,921) 2028 (189,025)
2030 (254,440) 2029 (386,308)
Thereafter “4) Thereafter (1,086,082)
Total $ (1,217,665) Total $ (3,333,680)

Note 10 — Net Investment in Capital Assets

Net investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2025 and 2024 were as follows:

2024
Description 2025 (restated)
Capital assets, net $ 212,228,835 $ 190,223,326
Deferred amount on debt refunding 145,541 152,156
Capital related debt:
Account payable related to capital assets (2,599,807) (4,394,850)
Retention payable (111,050) (1,894,601)
Bonds payable - current (490,000) (475,000)
Bonds payable - noncurrent (17,925,000) (18,415,000)
Bond premium (872,441) (913,058)
Contracts payable - current (636,429) (636,429)
Contracts payable - noncurrent (5,241,282) (5,877,711)
Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (46,665,000) (18,530,858)
Subscription liabilities - current (98,073) (42,675)
Subscription liabilities - noncurrent (132,203) (116,389)
Net investment in capital assets $ 137,603,091 $ 139,078,911

Note 11 — Commitments and Contingencies
Construction Contracts
The District has a variety of agreements with private parties relating to the installation, improvement or modification

of water facilities and distribution systems within its service area. The financing of such construction contracts is being
provided primarily from the District’s replacement reserves and advances for construction.
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West Valley Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2025 and 2024

Note 11 — Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)
Commitments

The District has active projects as of June 30, 2025. As of June 30, 2025, the District’s commitments with contractors
for these projects are as follows:

Projects Commitments
Building Improvements $ 2,120,047
Land Improvements 2,059,366
Wells. Pumps, & Booster Plants 595,662
$ 4,775,075

Litigation

The District is currently a party to various claims and legal proceedings. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not
presently determinable, it is management’s opinion that the ultimate liabilities, if any, resulting from such claims and
proceedings will not materially affect the financial position of the District. However, after consultation with legal
counsel, the District has estimated an aggregate contingent liability related to various claims and litigations in the
amount of $500,000 and $225,000 as of June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively. The contingent liability is periodically
adjusted as additional information becomes available affecting management’s estimate. Actual claims and settlements
paid may differ from this amount.

Note 12 — Risk Management

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; errors and
omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The District is a member of the Association of California Water
Agencies/Joint Powers Insurance Authority (ACWA/JPIA), an intergovernmental risk sharing joint powers authority
created to provide self-insurance programs for California water agencies. The purpose of the ACWA/JPIA is to arrange
and administer programs of self-insured losses and to purchase excess insurance coverage. As of June 30, 2025 and
2024, the District participated in the liability and property programs of the ACWA/JPIA as follows:

e General and auto liability, public officials and employees’ errors and omissions: Total risk financing self-
insurance limits of $5,000,000, combined single limit at $5,000,000 per occurrence. The JPIA purchases
additional excess coverage layers: $55 million per occurrence for general, auto and public officials’ liability,
which increases the limits on the insurance coverage noted above.

In addition to the above, the District also has the following insurance coverage:

e Public employee dishonesty coverage up to $100,000 per loss includes public employee dishonesty, forgery or
alteration and theft, disappearance and destruction coverages.

e Property loss is paid at the replacement cost for property on file, if replaced within two years after the loss,
otherwise paid on an actual cash value basis, to a combined total of $150 million and $500 million for the years
ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively, per occurrence, subject to a $25,000 deductible per occurrence.

e Boiler and machinery coverage for the replacement cost up to $150 million and $100 million for the years
ended June 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively, per occurrence, subject to various deductibles depending on the
type of equipment.

e Workers’ compensation insurance up to California statutory limits for all work-related injuries/illnesses
covered by California law. Coverage is through the Special Districts Risk Management Authority.
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West Valley Water District
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements (Continued)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2025 and 2024

Note 12 — Risk Management (Continued)

Settled claims have not exceeded any of the coverage amounts in any of the last three fiscal years and there were no
reductions in the District’s insurance coverage during the last three years. Liabilities are recorded when it is probable
that a loss has been incurred and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated net of the respective insurance
coverage. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been incurred but not reported (IBNR). There were no
IBNR claims payable as of June 30, 2025, 2024 and 2023, other than an estimated contingent liability for various
litigation, as described in Note 11.

Note 13 — Restatement
Implementation of GASB Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences

Effective for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025, the District implemented GASB Statement No. 101, Compensated
Absences. This statement establishes accounting and financial reporting standards for compensated absences, including
vacation, sick leave, and other paid time off. The implementation of GASB 101 resulted in a change in accounting
principle, and prior year amounts have been restated accordingly.

Under GASB 101, a liability must be recognized for leave that is attributable to services already rendered, accumulates
and carries forward to future periods, and is more likely than not to be used or paid. This represents a shift from previous
guidance, particularly in how likelihood and eligibility are assessed.

The implementation of GASB 101 resulted in a change in accounting principle, and prior year amounts have been
restated accordingly. As of July 1, 2024, the beginning net position was adjusted to reflect the cumulative effect of the
change.

Specifically, the liability for compensated absences increased by $447,847 and $387,251, resulting in a corresponding
decrease in beginning net position of $447,847 and $387,251 as of July 1, 2025 and July 1, 2024, respectively. The
financial impact was primarily due to the expanded scope of recognized leave and the lowered threshold for determining
likelihood of use.

June 30, 2024 Change in
As Previously Accounting June 30, 2024
Reported Principle As Restated
Business-Type
Activities $ 247,479,822 § (447,847)  § 247,031,975
Total $ 247,479,822 $ (447,847) $ 247,031,975
June 30, 2023 Change in
As Previously Accounting June 30, 2023
Reported Principle As Restated
Business-Type $ 211,948,770 $ (387,251)  $ 211,561,519
Total $ 211,948,770 S (387,251)  $ 211,561,519
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West Valley Water District
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Schedule of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2025

Last Ten Fiscal Years

California Public Employees' Retirement System (""CalPERS") - Miscellaneous Rate Plan

Measurement period ended June 30,2024  June 30,2023  June 30,2022  June 30,2021  June 30, 2020
District's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability 0.2017% 0.1956% 0.1886% 0.1827% 0.1697%
District's Proportionate Share of

the Net Pension Liability/(Asset) $ 9,756,035 $ 9,780,551 § 8,826,012 $ 3,468,668 § 7,159,848
District's Covered Payroll $ 8,454,825 $§ 7,145703 $§ 7,040,783 $ 6,166,912 § 6,406,574
District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension

Liability as a Percentage of Its Covered Payroll 115.39% 136.87% 125.36% 56.25% 111.76%
Plan's Proportionate Share of the Fiduciary Net Position

as a Percentage of the Total Pension Liability 77.74% 76.29% 77.01% 90.07% 78.53%
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West Valley Water District
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Schedule of the District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios (Continued)
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2025

Last Ten Fiscal Years

California Public Employees' Retirement System (""CalPERS") - Miscellaneous Rate Plan

Measurement period ended June 30,2019  June 30,2018  June 30,2017  June 30,2016  June 30,2015
District's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability 0.1604% 0.1516% 0.1485% 0.1447% 0.1608%
District's Proportionate Share of

the Net Pension Liability/(Asset) $ 6,421,111 $ 5714823 § 5854618 $ 5,025330 § 4,411,991
District's Covered Payroll $ 6,806,415 $ 5,589,317 § 5,732,509 $ 4,604,837 § 4,012,122
District's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension

Liability as a Percentage of Its Covered Payroll 94.34% 102.25% 102.13% 109.13% 109.97%
Plan's Proportionate Share of the Fiduciary Net Position

as a Percentage of the Total Pension Liability 79.35% 80.51% 78.53% 78.61% 78.40%
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West Valley Water District
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Schedule of Contributions
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Last Ten Fiscal Years'

California Public Employees' Retirement System (" CalPERS") - Miscellaneous Rate Plan

Fiscal year 2024-25 2023-24 2022-23 2021-22 2020-21
Actuarially determined contribution $ 1,712,951 § 1,391,019 $ 1,292,629 $ 1,184,080 § 1,037,677
Contribution in relation to the

determined contribution’ (1,712,951) (1,391,019) (1,292,629) (1,184,089) (1,037,677)
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ - 8 -3 -8 - 8 -
District's covered payroll’ 3 8,691,560 $§ 8454825 $§ 7.145703 $ 7,040,783 $ 6,166,912
Contribution as a percentage of covered payroll® 19.71% 16.45% 18.09% 16.82% 16.83%

' As prescribed in GASB 68, paragraph 46, the information presented in the Schedule of Plan Contributions should also be presented as of the
employer’s most recent fiscal year-end.

: Employers are assumed to make contributions equal to the actuarially determined contributions. How ever, some employers may choose to make
additional contributions tow ards their unfunded liability. Employer contributions for such plans exceed the actuarially determined contributions.

? Includes one year’s payroll growth using 2.80% payroll growth assumption for fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 through 2024; 2.75% payroll
growth assumption for fiscal years ended in 2018 through 2021; 3.00% payroll growth assumption for fiscal years ended in 2015 through 2017.

Notes to Schedule:

The actuarial methods and assumptions used to set the actuarially determined contributions for Fiscal Year 2023-24 were derived from the June 30,
2021 funding valuation report.

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Actuarial cost method Entry Age Actuarial Cost Method

Amortization method/period For details, see June 30, 2021, funding valuation report.

Asset valuation method Fair Value of Assets. For details, see June 30, 2021, funding valuation report.
Inflation 2.30%

Salary increases Varies by entry age and service

Payroll Growth 2.80%

Investment rate of return 6.80% Net of pension plan investment and administrative expenses; includes Inflation.

The probabilities of retirement are based on the 2021 CalPERS Experience Study and

Reti . . .
etirement age Review of Actuarial Assumptions.

The probabilities of mortality are based on the 2021 CalPERS Experience Study and
Mortality Review of Actuarial Assumptions. Mortality rates incorporate full generational mortality
improvement using 80% of Scale MP-2020 published by the Society of Actuaries.
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West Valley Water District
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Schedule of Contributions (Continued)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Last Ten Fiscal Years'

California Public Employees' Retirement System (" CalPERS") - Miscellaneous Rate Plan

Fiscal year 2019-20 2018-19 2017-18 2016-17 2015-16
Actuarially determined contribution $ 984,477 $ 812,147 § 715,005 $§ 628,828 § 658,011
Contribution in relation to the

determined contribution® (984,477) (812,147) (715,005) (628,828)  (1,272,291)
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ -8 - 8 - 8 - 8 (614280
District's covered payroll’ $ 6,406,574 $ 6,806,415 $ 5589317 $ 5.732,509 $ 4,604,837
Contribution as a percentage of covered payroll® 15.37% 11.93% 12.79% 10.97% 27.63%
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West Valley Water District
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Last Ten Fiscal Years '

Other Postemployment Benefits ("OPEB") Plan

Measurement period 2023-24 2022-23 2021-22 2020-21 2019-20
Total OPEB liability
Service cost $ 498,193 § 377,640 $ 358,679 § 423998 § 496,240
Interest 670,417 622,524 786,374 741,661 808,919
Changes of benefit terms - - - - -
Actual vs. expected experience 1,039,439 - (3,075,860) - (277,128)
Changes of assumptions 562,229 - 604,269 - (1,523,953)
Benefit payments (351,969) (356,821) (406,017) (468,812) (388,982)
Net change in total OPEB liability 2,418,309 643,343 (1,732,555) 696,847 (884,904)
Total OPEB liability - beginning 10,401,789 9,758,446 11,491,001 10,794,154 11,679,058
Total OPEB liability - ending (a) $ 12,820,098 $ 10,401,789 $ 9,758,446 § 11,491,001 $ 10,794,154
OPEB fiduciary net position
Contributions -
Contributions - employer 973,122 1,083,481 1,112,330 1,310,480 1,244,934
Net investment income 652,804 304,388 300,757 725,522 36,063
Benefit payments (351,969) (356,821) (406,017) (468,812) (388,982)
Actual vs. expected return

on investments - - (939,751) - -
Administrative expense (1,801) (1,340) (1,123) (1,026) (864)
Net change in plan

fiduciary net position 1,272,156 1,029,708 66,196 1,566,164 891,151
Plan fiduciary net position,

beginning 5,055,143 4,025,435 3,959,239 2,393,075 1,501,924
Plan fiduciary net position,

ending (b) 6,327,299 5,055,143 4,025,435 3,959,239 2,393,075
Plan net OPEB liability -

ending (a) - (b) $ 6,492,799 $ 5346,646 $ 5733011 § 7,531,762 $ 8,401,079
Plan's fiduciary net

position as a percentage of

the total OPEB liability 49.35% 48.60% 41.25% 34.46% 22.17%
Covered payroll $ 8975438 $ 8203816 $ 8,423,119 § 7526256 $ 8,808,682
Plan net OPEB liability as a

percentage of covered payroll 72.34% 65.17% 68.06% 100.07% 95.37%

" Historical information is presented for measurement periods after GASB 75 is implementation. Additional years' information will be displayed as

it becomes available.

Notes to Schedule:

Changes in assumptions: None
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West Valley Water District
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Last Ten Fiscal Years '

Other Postemployment Benefits ("OPEB") Plan

Measurement period 2018-19 2017-18 2016-17
Total OPEB liability

Service cost $ 335647 $§ 236,285 $ 683,520
Interest 739,614 552,581 428,490
Changes of benefit terms 175,249 - -
Actual vs. expected experience - 2,279,483 -
Changes of assumptions - (43,695) (7,209,389)
Benefit payments (386,106) (320,225) (287,245)
Net change in total OPEB liability 864,404 2,704,429 (6,384,624)
Total OPEB liability - beginning 10,814,654 8,110,225 14,494,849
Total OPEB liability - ending (a) $ 11,679,058 $ 10,814,654 $ 8,110,225

OPEB fiduciary net position

Contributions -

Contributions - employer 953,106 1,150,225 -
Net investment income 93,161 12,291 -
Benefit payments (386,106) (320,225) -

Actual vs. expected return
on investments - - -

Administrative expense (232) (296) -
Net change in plan

fiduciary net position 659,929 841,995 -
Plan fiduciary net position,

beginning 841,995 - -
Plan fiduciary net position,

ending (b) 1,501,924 841,995 -
Plan net OPEB liability -

ending (a) - (b) $ 10,177,134 $ 9,972,659 $ 8,110,225

Plan's fiduciary net
position as a percentage of

the total OPEB liability 12.86% 7.79% 0.00%
Covered payroll $ 7,177,705 $ 6831331 $ 6,080,776
Plan net OPEB liability as a

percentage of covered payroll 141.79% 145.98% 133.37%

" Historical information is presented for measurement periods after GASB 75 is implementation. Additional years' information will be displayed as
it becomes available.

Notes to Schedule:

Changes in assumptions: None
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West Valley Water District
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Schedule of Contributions
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Last Ten Fiscal Years'

Other Postemployment Benefits ("OPEB") Plan

Fiscal year 2024-25 2023-24 2022-23 2021-22 2020-21
Actuarially determined contribution $ 1,025,315 $ 995,453 $ 1,236,044 $ 1,200,042 $ 1,302,426
Contribution in relation to the

actuarially determined contribution (368,381) (973,122) (1,083,481) (1,112,330) (1,310,480)
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ 656,934 $ 22,331 $ 152563 $ 87,712 $ (8,054)
Covered payroll $ 10,616,008 $ 8,975,438 $ 8,203,816 $ 8,423,119 $ 7,526,256
Contribution as a percentage

of covered payroll 3.47% 10.84% 13.21% 13.21% 17.41%

! Historical information is presented for measurement periods after GASB 75 is implementation. Additional years' information will be displayed as
it becomes available.

Notes to Schedule:
Valuation date June 30, 2022

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Actuarial cost method Entry age normal

Amortization method Level percentage of payroll

Salaries increases 3.00%

Discount rate 6.25%

General inflation 2.50%

Healthcare cost trend rate 7.00 percent for 2025 decreasing to 5.40 percent for 2029, 5.25 percent for 2030-2034, 4.60 percent for

2035-2049, 4.50 percent for 2050-2064, 4.25 percent for 2065-2074, and 4.00 percent for 2075 and later
years; Medicare ages: 4.50 percent for 2025-2064, 4.25 percent for 2065-2074, and 4.00 percent for 2075
and later years.

Pre-retirement Mortality: Preretirement Mortality Rates for Public Agency Miscellaneous from CalPERS Experience Study (2000-
2019).
Postretirement Mortality: Post-retirement Mortality Rates for Public Agency Miscellaneous from CalPERS Experience Study

(2000-2019).
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West Valley Water District
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Schedule of Contributions (Continued)

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Fiscal year
Actuarially determined contribution

Contribution in relation to the
actuarially determined contribution

Contribution deficiency (excess)
Covered payroll

Contribution as a percentage
of covered payroll

Last Ten Fiscal Years1

Other Postemployment Benefits ("OPEB") Plan

2019-20 2018-19 2017-18
$ 1,267,587 $ 859,000 $ 869,006
(1,244,934) (953,106) (1,150,225)
$ 22653 S (94,106) $ (281,219)
$ 8,808,682 $ 7,263,849 $ 6,831,331
14.13% 13.12% 16.84%
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West Valley Water District

Statistical Section Contents

This section of the annual comprehensive financial report presents detailed information as a context for understanding
what the information in the accompanying financial statements, notes disclosures, and required supplementary
information says about the District’s overall financial health.

Contents Pages
Financial Trends

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand
how the District’s financial performance and well-being have changed
over time. 67 - 69

Revenue Capacity

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the factors
affecting the District’s ability to generate revenues. 70-173

Debt Capacity

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the
affordability of the District’s current levels of outstanding debt and the
District’s ability to issue additional debt in the future. 74177

Demographic and Economic Information

These schedules contain information about the District’s operations and
resources to help the reader understand how the District’s financial
information relates to the services the District provides and the activities
it performs. 79

Operating Information

These schedules contain information about the District’s operations and
resources to help the reader understand how the District’s financial
information relates to the services the government provides and the
activities it performs 80 - 82
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West Valley Water District

Net Position by Component
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Schedule 1
Net Investment in Restricted Unrestricted Total
Fiscal Year Capital Assets Net Position Net Position (deficit) Net Position
2016 $ 87,041,544 $ 2,387,354  § 21,753,634  $ 111,182,532
2017 87,532,879 929,737 27,094,253 115,556,869
2018 95,204,664 7,875,322 22,622,990 125,702,976
2019 100,736,605 10,699,965 30,068,129 141,504,699
2020 102,459,965 13,462,143 29,259,529 145,181,637
2021 103,770,537 13,938,052 35,291,467 153,000,056
2022 102,483,167 49,107,439 39,989,216 191,579,822
2023 108,469,538 47,719,572 55,372,409 211,561,519
2024 139,078,911 29,188,714 78,764,350 247,031,975
2025 137,603,091 57,007,954 66,205,870 260,816,915
Source: West Valley Water District Accounting Department
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West Valley Water District

Changes in Net Position by Component
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Changes in net position:

Operating revenues (see Schedule 2)
Operating expenses (see Schedule 3)

Depreciation and amortization

Operating income(loss)

Non-operating revenues(expenses):

Property taxes

Interest and investment earnings
Rental income - cellular antennas

Impairment loss

Gain/(loss) on sale/disposition of capital assets

Grants and Reimbursements
Board approved rate rebate

Interest expense - long term debt

Bond issuance costs

Amortization of deferred charges
Other non-operating revenue/(expense), net

Total non-operating revenues(expenses), net

Net income (loss) before capital contributions

Capital contributions

Changes in net position

Prior period adjustment

Net position by component:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for capital projects
Restricted for debt service
Unrestricted

Total net assets

FY 2016 prior period adjustment was due to the implementation of GASB 75

FY 2023 and 2024 prior period adjustments were due to the implementation of GASB 101.

Source: West Valley Water District Accounting Department

Schedule 2
Fiscal Year

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
$ 23,230,364 $ 26,677,886 $ 28,543,972 $ 28,356,765 $ 28,820,834
(16,736,478) (20,446,067) (21,706,285) (23,287,875) (26,934,303)
(7,667,691) (7,889,469) (6,268,421) (6,344,364) (6,471,761)
(1,173,805) (1,657,650) 569,266 (1,275,474) (4,585,230)
1,758,220 1,821,922 2,023,173 2,305,151 2,376,463
127,090 227,465 367911 1,795,521 1,910,670
29,966 37,241 32,941 33,860 -
24,400 60,980 15,400 - -
43,241 2,518,254 554,897 703,949 100,330
(2,547,492) - (2,263,619) - -
(1,055,660) (940,835) (879,953) (897,275) (942,842)
- (268,915) - -
24,524 (931,062) 73,498 3,015,464 -
(1,595,711) 2,525,050 (75,752) 6,956,670 3,444,621
(2,769,516) 867,400 493,514 5,681,196 (1,240,939)
4,383,464 3,506,937 16,643,552 10,120,527 4,917,877
$ 1,613,948 $§ 4,374337 $§ 17,137,066 § 15,801,723 § 3,676,938

1,421,880
$ 87,041,544 $§ 87,731,340 $§ 95,204,664 $ 100,736,605 $ 102,459,965
1,366,458 929,737 7,875,322 10,699,965 13,462,143
1,020,896 - - - -
21,753,634 26,895,792 22,622,990 30,068,129 29,259,529
$ 111,182,532 § 115,556,869 $§ 125,702,976 $ 141,504,699 $ 145,181,637
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West Valley Water District

Changes in Net Position by Component (Continued)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Schedule 2
Fiscal Year
As Restated As Restated
2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Changes in net position:
Operating revenues (see Schedule 3) $ 31,966,600 $ 32217,598 $§ 41,391,500 $ 32,212,508 $ 34,650,715
Operating expenses (see Schedule 4) (25,252,917) (25,817,037) (27,990,363) (29,710,460) (33,637,844)
Depreciation and amortization (6,520,670) (6,657,179) (6,762,456) (7,425,761) (7,783,176)
Operating income(loss) 193,013 (256,618) 6,638,681 (4,923,713) (6,770,305)
Non-operating revenues(expenses):
Property taxes 2,761,167 3,179,573 3,738,692 4,263,009 4,564,248
Interest and investment earnings 67,806 (1,793,624) 3,259,706 6,046,939 6,492,148
Rental income - cellular antennas - - - - -
Impairment loss (3,000,000) - - - -
Gain/(loss) on sale/disposition of capital assets (189,254) 771,002 735,495 2,029,568 (649,966)
Grants and Reimbursements - - - - -
Board approved rate rebate - - - - -
Interest expense - long term debt (865,955) (847,973) (873,890) (890,995) (1,229,490)
Bond issuance costs - - - - -
Amortization of deferred charges - - - - -
Other non-operating revenue/(expense), net - - - - -
Total non-operating revenues(expenses), net (1,226,236) 1,308,978 6,860,003 11,448,521 9,176,940
Net income (loss) before capital contributions (1,033,223) 1,052,360 13,498,684 6,524,808 2,406,635
Capital contributions 8,851,642 37,527,406 6,483,013 28,945,648 11,378,305
Changes in net position $ 7818419 § 38,579,766 § 19,981,697 $§ 35470456 $§ 13,784,940
Prior period adjustment
Net position by component:
Net investment in capital assets $ 103,770,537 $ 102,483,167 $ 108,469,538 $ 139,078,911 $ 137,603,091
Restricted for capital projects 13,938,052 49,107,439 47,719,572 29,188,714 57,007,954
Restricted for debt service - - - - -
Unrestricted 35,291,467 39,989,216 55,372,409 78,764,350 66,205,870

Total net assets $ 153,000,056

$ 191,579,822

$ 211,561,519 $ 247,031,975 § 260,816,915

Source: West Valley Water District Accounting Department
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West Valley Water District

Operating Revenue By Source

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal
Year

2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
2025

$45,000,000

$40,000,000

$35,000,000

$30,000,000

$25,000,000

Revenue

$20,000,000

$15,000,000

$10,000,000

$5,000,000

$

(==}

Other
Operating Income

$

14,420,079
15,854,879
17,370,508
17,163,673
17,698,440
20,428,413
20,113,330
17,318,706
17,853,480
20,380,439

$

6,702,841 $
6,989,061
7,201,939
7,350,127
7,506,847
7,978,760
8,027,078
8,350,808
8,746,460
8,959,803

2,240,801
3,833,946
3,971,525
3,842,965
3,615,547
3,559,427
4,077,190
15,721,986
5,612,568
5,310,473

Schedule 3

Total Operating
Revenue

23,363,721
26,677,886
28,543,972
28,356,765
28,820,834
31,966,600
32,217,598
41,391,500
32,212,508
34,650,715

2016

2017

2018

2019

Source: West Valley Water District Accounting Department

2020 2021

Fiscal Year
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2023

2024

2025
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West Valley Water District
Operating Expenses by Activity
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Schedule 4
Fiscal Water Public General and Total Operating
Year __Treatment -VIETS  Administrative Expenses'
2016  $1,404,819 $ 2,910,119 $ 1,842,223 1,825,012 § 1,885,567 $ 656,120 § 6,212,618 $ 16,736,478
2017 1,307,160 2,823,389 3,723,148 2,071,867 1,923,943 1,273,562 7,322,998 20,446,067
2018 972,624 3,066,501 4,110,055 2,074,410 2,031,657 1,280,123 8,170,915 21,706,285
2019 1,740,717 3,189,444 4,101,693 1,966,357 2,456,429 1,520,168 8,313,067 23,287,875
2020 1,676,085 3,416,731 3,966,298 3,448,753 2,425,709 1,740,136 10,260,591 26,934,303
2021 1,588,731 4,077,298 4,067,045 2,204,080 2,600,902 890,242 9,824,619 25,252,917
2022 1,825,531 4,417,077 4,591,618 2,200,940 2,462,906 1,034,781 9,284,184 25,817,037
2023 1,996,352 4,673,757 4,679,730 2,677,543 2,664,323 940,041 10,358,617 27,990,363
2024 1,650,615 5,337,069 5,082,226 3,046,177 2,857,673 857,875 10,878,825 29,710,460
2025 1,732,363 5,231,035 5,901,423 2,982,504 3,509,254 1,452,190 12,829,075 33,637,844

$30,000,000
$25,000,000

$20,000,000 .

. m
$15,000,000 . =

$10,000,000 — I I I I I

Expenses

$5,000,000

$0
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Fiscal Years

Depreciation and amortization expenses were not included in this schedule

Source: West Valley Water District Accounting Department
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West Valley Water District

Revenue Base

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Schedule 5
Fiscal Water Sales Water Produced
Year (HCF) (HCF)
2016 6,151,431 7,016,601
2017 6,710,551 7,685,902
2018 7,576,183 7,705,595
2019 7,127,708 8,173,416
2020 7,238,771 8,610,871
2021 8,574,446 9,298,026
2022 8,719,191 9,581,118
2023 7,079,858 8,232,404
2024 7,353,649 8,019,624
2025 8,234,214 8,848,865
10,000,000
9,500,000 4\
. 9,000,000
3 /
9 8,500,000 //ﬂ\
°
5 8,000,000 \\l/ Pad
£ 7,500,000
g I/
& 7,000,000
[T 8
o
s 6,500,000
3 /
6,000,000
5,500,000
5,000,000
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 202} 2022 2025
=¢—\Water Sales  =ll=\Nater Produced
Note: See Schedule 2 "Operating Revenue by Source" for information regarding water revenues.
Note: West Valley Water District Accounting Department
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West Valley Water District
Revenue Rates
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Schedule 6
Water Consumption per Hundred Cubic Feet (HCF
Service Type 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Fire n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Tier 1 106.50 106.50 106.50 106.50 106.50 106.50 106.50 106.50 106.50 106.50
Tier 2 115.00 115.00 115.00 115.00 115.00 115.00 115.00 115.00 115.00 115.00
Tier 3 126.50 126.50 126.50 126.50 126.50 126.50 126.50 126.50 126.50 126.50
Golf Course By contract By contrac By contract By contract By contract By contract By contract By contract By contract By contract
Hydrant 2.76 2.76 2.76 2.76 2.76 2.76 2.76 2.76 2.76 2.76
Irrigation:
Demand By contract By contrac By contract By contract By contract By contract By contract By contract By contract By contract
Gravity Flow By contract By contrac By contract By contract By contract By contract By contract By contract By contract By contract
Pressure By contract By contrac By contract By contract By contract By contract By contract By contract By contract By contract
Water n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Tier 1 2.13 2.13 2.13 2.13 2.13 2.13 2.13 2.13 2.13 2.13
Tier 2 2.30 2.30 2.30 2.30 2.30 2.30 2.30 2.30 2.30 2.30
Tier 3 2.53 2.53 2.53 2.53 2.53 2.53 2.53 2.53 2.53 2.53
Connection Fees Per Month
Meter Size 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
| Fire |
5/8" & 3/4" 10.54 10.54 10.54 10.54 10.54 10.54 10.54 10.54 10.54 10.54
1" 10.54 10.54 10.54 10.54 10.54 10.54 10.54 10.54 10.54 10.54
112" 15.81 15.81 15.81 15.81 15.81 15.81 15.81 15.81 15.81 15.81
2" 21.08 21.08 21.08 21.08 21.08 21.08 21.08 21.08 21.08 21.08
3" 31.62 31.62 31.62 31.62 31.62 31.62 31.62 31.62 31.62 31.62
4" 42.16 42.16 42.16 42.16 42.16 42.16 42.16 42.16 42.16 42.16
6" 63.24 63.24 63.24 63.24 63.24 63.24 63.24 63.24 63.24 63.24
8" 84.32 84.32 84.32 84.32 84.32 84.32 84.32 84.32 84.32 84.32
| Golf Course |
All Sizes By contract By contrac By contract By contract By contract By contract By contract By contract By contract By contract
| Hydrant |
All Sizes 73.17 73.17 73.17 73.17 73.17 73.17 73.17 73.17 73.17 73.17
| Irrigation |
All Sizes:
Demand By contract By contrac By contract By contract By contract By contract By contract By contract By contract By contract
Gravity Flow By contract By contrac By contract By contract By contract By contract By contract By contract By contract By contract
Pressure By contract By contrac By contract By contract By contract By contract By contract By contract By contract By contract
I Water
5/8" & 3/4" 22.21 22.21 22.21 22.21 22.21 22.21 22.21 22.21 22.21 22.21
1" 33.07 33.07 33.07 33.07 33.07 33.07 33.07 33.07 33.07 33.07
112" 48.77 48.77 48.77 48.77 48.77 48.77 48.77 48.77 48.77 48.77
2" 67.18 67.18 67.18 67.18 67.18 67.18 67.18 67.18 67.18 67.18
3" 97.52 97.52 97.52 97.52 97.52 97.52 97.52 97.52 97.52 97.52
4" 128.56 128.56 128.56 128.56 128.56 128.56 128.56 128.56 128.56 128.56
6" 195.02 195.02 195.02 195.02 195.02 195.02 195.02 195.02 195.02 195.02
8" 261.48 261.48 261.48 261.48 261.48 261.48 261.48 261.48 261.48 261.48
Note 1: Out of District rates for Water Service are one and a half times the In District rates.
Note 2: No golf course or irrigation contracts in service at the moment.
Source: West Valley Water District Board of Directors approved rate ordinances and resolutions.
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West Valley Water District

Customers by Type
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Schedule 7
Customer Type
Fiscal Fire Golf Wholesale
Year Residential Commercial Service Irrigation = Multi-Family Parkway Course Water Total
2016 19,174 756 299 10 159 341 0 1 20,740
2017 19,620 766 302 10 159 346 0 1 21,204
2018 20,043 779 318 10 159 366 0 1 21,676
2019 20,509 803 327 8 159 386 0 1 22,193
2020 21,040 849 364 9 168 420 0 1 22,851
2021 21,604 827 365 9 183 428 0 1 23,417
2022 21,872 847 377 9 185 458 0 1 23,749
2023 22,289 875 402 0 184 500 0 1 24,251
2024 23,423 901 412 0 184 528 0 1 25,449
2025 23,876 913 421 0 184 536 0 1 25,931
30,000
25,000
20,000
15,000
10,000
5,000
0
o A Y
Q> NN > N S N o,
> > D Q Q¥ W) S » o> o
v ah D) r\)Q ,.»Q ’\,@,
Source: West Valley Water District Accounting Department
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West Valley Water District

Principal Customers
Current Fiscal Year and Nine Years Ago

Schedule 8
2025 2016
Water Percentage Water Percentage
Customer Consumed of Total Consumed of Total
Rialto Unified School District 222,330 3.02% 168,818 2.74%
City of Rialto 165,306 2.25% 121,093 1.97%
Marygold Mutual Water Company 140,123 1.91% 96,789 1.57%
City of Fontana 130,914 1.78% 62,924 1.02%
Colton Joint Unified School District 124,512 1.69% 98,657 1.60%
Lennar Homes 85,366 1.16% 48,550 0.79%
Aramark Uniform Services 75,248 1.02% 92,844 1.51%
Robertson's Ready Mix 70,817 0.96% 161,020 2.62%
Target 69,766 0.95% 69,590 1.13%
Cal Trans 61,257 0.83% - 0.00%
Total 1,145,639 15.58% 920,285 14.96%
Total Water Consumed (HCF) 7,353,649 100.00% 6,151,431 100.00%
Source: West Valley Water District Accounting Department
194

75



West Valley Water District
Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Schedule 9
Total
Fiscal Subscriptions Notes Per As a Share of
Year Payable Payable Debt Capita Personal Income
2016 $ 8,038,221 $ 23,955,000 $ - $ - $ 31,993,221 302.32 0.85%
2017 7,716,692 23,232,381 - - 30,949,073 291.60 0.79%
2018 7,395,163 22,596,763 - - 29,991,926 279.59 0.72%
2019 10,065,744 22,156,146 - - 32,221,889 308.19 0.76%
2020 9,400,057 21,705,528 - - 31,105,585 302.55 0.73%
2021 8,747,428 21,249,911 - - 29,997,339 291.77 0.70%
2022 8,094,799 20,779,293 48,288 - 28,922,380 278.22 0.56%
2023 7,442,170 20,298,676 214,033 - 27,954,879 269.98 0.55%
2024 6,514,140 19,803,058 159,064 18,530,858 45,007,120 436.28 0.85%
2025 5,877,711 19,287,441 230,276 46,665,000 72,060,428 685.27 2.12%
Debt
$35,000,000
$30,000,000
$25,000,000
$20,000,000
$15,000,000
$10,000,000
$5,000,000
$-
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Fiscal Year
Source: West Valley Water District Accounting Department
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West Valley Water District

Pledged-Revenue Coverage
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Schedule 10

Net Operating Net Available Debt Service Coverage
Fiscal Year Revenues Expenses(l) Revenues Principal(z) Interest® Total Ratio
2016 $ 25,237,805 $ (19,283,970) $ 5,953,835 $ 1,446,529 $ 1,054,169 $ 2,500,698 2.38
2017 31,359,870 (21,662,166) 9,697,704 1,486,529 769,657 2,256,186 4.30
2018 31,558,717 (23,969,904) 7,588,813 916,529 917,400 1,833,929 4.14
2019 36,210,708 (23,287,875) 12,922,833 1,052,629 940,215 1,992,844 6.48
2020 33,107,967 (26,934,303) 6,173,664 1,062,629 947,424 2,010,053 3.07
2021 34,795,573 (25,252,917) 9,542,656 1,067,629 933,278 2,000,907 4.77
2022 35,994,549 (25,817,037) 10,177,512 1,082,629 883,561 1,966,190 5.18
2023 48,738,142 (27,603,112) 21,135,030 1,092,629 884,882 1,977,511 10.69
2024 44,552,024 (29,710,460) 14,584,588 962,217 913,241 2,020,870 7.22
2025 45,057,145 (33,638,510) 11,418,635 1,111,429 1,038,955 2,150,384 5.31

Notes:

(1) Operating expenses, less depreciation and amortization expense.

(2) Bond was refinanced in fiscal year 2017. New debt for Hydroelectric plant in FY2019.
(3) Reflects interest paid and not accrued in fiscal year.

Source: West Valley Water District Accounting Department
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West Valley Water District

Demographics and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Calendar Years

County of San Bernardino®

Schedule 11

Personal

Income

(thousands of

dollars)

70,385,000
76,529,000
80,127,000
85,093,000
87,937,000
91,479,000
57,763,000
61,969,000
68,374,000
69,741,480

2024 2025

2024 2025

City of
Unemployment Rialto Unemployment
Year Rate Population” Rate
2016 7.5% 105,107 6.7% 2,140,000
2017 6.4% 105,825 5.9% 2,160,000
2018 5.0% 106,135 4.4% 2,175,000
2019 4.2% 107,271 4.5% 2,192,000
2020 14.9% 104,553 10.3% 2,181,000
2021 9.4% 102,813 8.1% 2,206,750
2022 4.2% 103,954 3.9% 2,194,710
2023 5.5% 103,545 5.0% 2,225,586
2024 5.7% 103,162 5.3% 2,196,314
2025 6.2% 105,156 5.9% 2,214,281
Population
2,240,000
2,200,000
2,160,000
2,120,000 '
2,080,000
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Fiscal Year
Personal Income per Capita
$50,000
$40,000
$30,000
$20,000
$10,000
$-
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Fiscal Year
Sources:

www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov
http://www.bea.gov/regional/bearfacts

WWW.census.gov/
(1) Separate data is not available for the District, therefore the District has used the data for the City of Rialto. A substantial portion of the District

lies within the city, and therefore, is a reasonable basis for determining the demographic and economic statistics of the District.

32,890
35,431
36,840
38,816
40,320
42,040
49,493
26,400
31,350
32,390

(2) Only County data is updated annually. Therefore, the District has chose to use its data since the District believes that the County data is

representative of the conditions and experience of the District.
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West Valley Water District

Operating and Capacity Indicators
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Schedule 12

Full-time Equivalent District Employees by Department

Fiscal Public
Year Accounting Billing IT Engineering Affairs Total
11 9 7

2016 7 7 7 3 3 2 1 4 3 2 66
2017 14 11 6 7 8 5 3 3 3 8 4 3 3 78
2018 16 10 7 7 7 5 3 3 2 8 5 3 3 79
2019 17 14 7 6 8 5 3 3 3 12 5 3 3 89
2020 17 11 7 6 9 5 2 5 2 8 3 3 5 83
2021 14 11 7 4 8 5 3 3 3 9 2 3 4 76
2022 16 12 7 5 9 5 3 4 3 11 4 4 5 88
2023 16 12 7 5 9 5 3 4 3 11 4 4 5 88
2024 16 12 7 5 9 5 3 4 3 11 4 4 5 88
2025 16 12 7 5 9 5 3 4 3 11 4 4 5 88
Employees

90

80

70

60

50

40

30

20

10

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025
Fiscal Year
Source: West Valley Water District Human Resources Department
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West Valley Water District

Operating and Capacity Indicators (Continued)
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Schedule 13

Other Operating and Capacity Indicators

Fiscal District Area Miles of Storage Groundwater Well

Year (Square Miles) Pipeline Storage Tanks Capacity (MG) Wells Capacity (MGD) Fire Hydrants
2016 32 370 26 73.6 17 35.0 2,944
2017 32 375 26 73.6 17 35.0 3,085
2018 32 376 26 73.6 17 35.0 3,104
2019 32 382 26 73.6 17 35.0 3,204
2020 32 395 26 73.6 17 37.0 3,497
2021 32 401 26 73.6 17 35.0 3,560
2022 32 402 26 73.6 17 35.0 3,560
2023 32 408 26 73.6 17 35.0 3,560
2024 32 416 26 73.6 17 35.0 3,800
2025 32 419 26 73.6 17 35.0 3,823

MG - Millions of Gallons
MGD - Millions of Gallons per Day

Sources: West Valley Water District Operations/GIS

Note: The Fire Hydrant total is inclusive of Hydrants and Jones heads.
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West Valley Water District

Principal Employers

Current Fiscal Year and Nine Years Ago

City of Rialto - 2024

Schedule 14

Percentage of Total

Employer Employees Rank Employment
Rialto Unified School District 2500 to 2669 1 5.81-6.97%
Chuze Fitness 500 to 889 2 1.16-2.32%
City of Rialto 250 to 444 3 58-1.16%
Walmart Supercenter 250 to 444 4 58-1.16%
Amazon Fulfillment Ctr 250 to 444 5 58-1.16%
Stater Bros Markets 250 to 444 6 S58-1.16%
Vista Cove Care Ctr At Rialto 100 to 222 7 23 -.58%
Columbia Steel Inc 100 to 222 8 23-.58%
Forest River Inc 100 to 222 9 23-.58%
Mesa Counseling Svc 100 to 222 10 23-58%

City of Fontana - 2024 ®

Percentage of Total

Employer Employees Rank Employment
Kaiser Hospital & Med. Group 10,550 1 10.13%
Fontana Unified School District 4,067 2 3.90%
Amazon.com Services LLC 3,637 3 3.49%
St Bernardine Medical Center 1,775 4 1.70%

City of Colton - 2024 ¥

Percentage of Total

Employer Employees Rank Employment
Arrowhead Regional Medical Center 4,867 1 19.16%
Colton Joint Unified School District 2,300 2 9.06%
Walmart Distribution Center 961 3 3.78%
Ashley Furniture 585 4 2.30%

Note: Above sites have not been updated for the fiscal year 2019. The most recent data is displayed.

(1) City of Rialto, estimates based on 0.22% annual population decline. No Statistical Section for 2023-2024 ACFR available.
(2) City of Fontana, 2023-2024 ACFR, pg. 181
(3) City of Colton, 2023-2024 ACFR, pg. 171
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West Valley Water District

Principal Employers (Continued)
Current Fiscal Year and Nine Years Ago

City of Rialto - 2015

Percentage of Total

Employer Employees Rank Employment
Rialto Unified School District 1000 to 2499 1 2.42 - 6.04%
Chuze Fitness - 0 -
City of Rialto - 0 -
Walmart Supercenter 250 to 499 4 0.60 - 1.21%
Amazon Fulfillment Ctr - 0 -
Stater Bros Markets 100 to 249 16 0.24 - 0.60%
Vista Cove Care Ctr At Rialto 100 to 249 20 0.24 - 0.60%
Columbia Steel Inc 100 to 249 7 0.24 - 0.60%
Forest River Inc 100 to 249 9 0.24 - 0.60%
Mesa Counseling Svc - 0 -

City of Fontana - 2015 ®

Percentage of Total

Employer Employees Rank Employment
Kaiser Hospital & Med. Group 5,284 1 5.65%
Fontana Unified School District 5,000 2 5.34%
Amazon.com Services LLC - 0 -

St Bernardine Medical Center - 0 -

City of Colton - 2015 ¥

Percentage of Total

Employer Employees Rank Employment
Arrowhead Regional Medical Center 3,300 1 18.69%
Colton Joint Unified School District 738 4 4.18%
Walmart Distribution Center - 0 0.00%
Ashley Furniture 2,000 2 11.33%

Note: Above sites have not been updated for the fiscal year 2019. The most recent data is displayed.

(1) City of Rialto, estimates based on 0.22% annual population decline. No Statistical Section for 2023-2024 ACFR available.
(2) City of Fontana, 2023-2024 ACFR, pg. 181
(3) City of Colton, 2023-2024 ACFR, pg. 171
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THE
P PUN GROUP

ACCOUNTANTS & ADVISORS

6 Hutton Centre Drive, Suite 1200
Santa Ana, California 92707
WWwWw.pungroup.cpa

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors
of the West Valley Water District
Rialto, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States (“Government Auditing Standards™), the financial statements of West Valley Water
District (the “District”), which comprise the statement of net position as of June 30, 2025 and 2024, and the related
statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements and have issued
our report thereon dated November 26, 2025.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to
merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not
identified.

ORANGE COUNTY ¢ SAN DIEGO ¢ SACRAMENTO <« WALNUT CREEK * LASVEGAS -+ PHOENIX o9®
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To the Board of Directors

of the West Valley Water District
Rialto, California
Page 2

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the financial statement. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do
not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any
other purpose.

e ot G0+ T

Santa Ana, California
November 26, 2025
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West Valley
N ater District

STAFF REPORT
DATE: December 18, 2025
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Haydee Sainz, Human Resources & Risk Manager

SUBJECT: Professional Services Agreement with Shuster Advisory Group, LLC, for Defined Contribution Plan
Consulting and Investment Fiduciary Services

STRATEGIC GOALS:

Strategic Goal 2 - Be an Exemplary Employer. Strategic Goal 5 — Apply Sound Planning, Innovation, and Best
Practices. Strategic Goal 6 — Demonstrate Effective Financial Stewardship. Strategic Goal 7 — Realize Health,
Safety, and Regulatory Compliance.

MEETING HISTORY:

12/08/25 Special Human Resources Committee
12//08/25 Finance Committee

BACKGROUND:

The District provides its employees with deferred compensation plans to encourage and assist with retirement
planning. Two providers - Nationwide and Lincoln currently provide 457(b) plan services, and Nationwide also
administers the District's 401(a) plan. At no cost to the District, Shuster Advisory Group, LLC issued a Request For
Information (RFI) to the plan sponsors and conducted a financial analysis of the two providers.

Because of Shuster’s financial understanding of the defined contribution marketplace, they were able to negotiate a
significant reduction (93%) in costs to plan participants (employees). Staff is recommending that the District
approve a professional services agreement with Shuster for defined contribution plan consulting and investment
fiduciary services and consolidating all defined contribution plans into Mission Square.

DISCUSSION:

Under Section 457(b) of the Internal Revenue Code (IRC), government entities may sponsor a deferred
compensation plan, while meeting fiduciary responsibilities under California law, to allow employees to defer
income tax on retirement savings into future years. Currently, the District is providing employer-sponsored deferred
compensation plans under Section 457(b) with two providers: Nationwide, and Lincoln Financial Group. Alongside
the 457(b) Plan, the District also offers a separate defined contribution plan under 401(a) of the IRC, which is with
Nationwide. These duties and responsibilities focus on ensuring that the operation and investment of the public
retirement plan is for the exclusive purpose of providing benefits to participants and beneficiaries. Fiduciary
responsibilities include:
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 Investing the assets of the plan;

« Administering the plan; and,

e Engaging in a prudent process for making all decisions related to the operation of the plan, including
decisions related to the plan's investments and related services.

As the plan sponsor, the District has the right to contract with third-party service providers in fulfilling the District's
responsibilities for the plans. The District currently utilizes Nationwide and Lincoln to provide record keeping and
administration services for the plans. These record keepers are not fiduciaries to the plans. Due to increased
regulatory responsibilities and the complexity of the investment process and associated responsibilities, staff
sought to learn more about trends affecting the employer-sponsored retirement plan marketplace and laws
governing fiduciary requirements for the operation of the District’s sponsored plans. In addition, in an effort to fulfill
the District’s fiduciary responsibility to provide plans in the best interests of participating employees, the District
sought to conduct a review of the District’'s 457(b), and 401(a), and an RFP for record-keeping services.

Staff learned of Shuster Advisory Group, LLC and the significant value Shuster’s consulting and fiduciary services
provided to other agencies. Staff met with Shuster to find out more about their process and the results Shuster
obtained for other agencies. Shuster provides fiduciary and consulting services to over 110 other Southern
California agencies. These agencies utilize Shuster to evaluate their contract terms, plan fees and investments with
their current providers. Shuster also conducted RFP processes resulting in client agenices greatly reducing their
plan fees and enhancing their investment options.

At no cost to the District, Shuster conducted a review of District’s existing plans including a Request for Information
(“RF1”) to the District’'s incumbent providers. The RFI included a review of all contract related data, including but not
limited to: administrative fees associated with the plans, investment options, asset values, fixed account interest
rates, and additional fees that may be charged by the plans. Utilizing the information obtained through the RFI and
with staff authorization, Shuster then conducted an RFP from leading record-keepers, including the two
incumbents, to determine whether the incumbent plans were competitive and fees assessed were reasonable.

Based on Shuster's analysis, staff determined that economies of scale are not being utilized by having the 457(b)
and 401(a) plans with two recordkeepers, and plan participants as a whole would benefit by consolidating the plans
with a single recordkeeper, Mission Square. Shuster provided a proposed comprehensive institutional class
investment menu for the 457(b) and 401(a) plans that is lower in cost than the current menus and provides a higher
blended fixed interest rate to plan participants. By aggregating plan assets and implementing the new investment
menu, the District would: 1) reduce plan and investment fees; 2) enhance the investment options; and, 3) provide
participants a competitive fixed interest rate. Shuster’s services will provide an annual financial benefit to plan
participants (net of consultant costs) of approximately $80,062.

Based on the results of the RFI and RFP processes, staff recommends that the District approve the consolidation
of the 457(b), and 401(a) plans to a single record-keeping platform with Mission Square and engage Shuster to
provide investment advisory and consulting services. By consolidating the plans with Mission Square, participants
will benefit from a 93% reduction in plan record keeping costs, and a 64% reduction in total plan costs, inclusive of
the Shuster consultant fee. Shuster would assist the District with consolidating the deferred compensation plans
and assist the District in performing its fiduciary responsibilities with respect to applicable IRC and California law.
Shuster would also assist the District in educating our employees with the goal of increasing participation and help
employees become more retirement ready. Pending the Board of Directors approval of the recommended action,
staff and Shuster will begin the product conversion process with a targeted completion of March 2026. Shuster
would provide conversion support services, including the review and consultation on plan design and provisions.
Shuster and Mission Square would also provide participant communications and education on-site and via web
meetings.

FISCAL IMPACT:
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There is no direct fiscal impact to the District, as the fee for Shuster’s services is $1,000.00 per month, paid by plan
assets.

REQUESTED ACTION:

1. Approve and authorize the General Manager to execute a Professional Services Agreement with Shuster
Advisory Group, LLC for defined contribution plan consulting and investment fiduciary services (Attachment
1).

2. Approve the consolidation of the 457(b), and 401(a), record-keeping services to a single provider, Mission
Square.

3. Authorize the General Manager to execute the necessary service provider agreements related to the
administration of the defined contribution plans and;

4. Appoint the Human Resources and Risk Manager as the contract administrator for the District's 457(b), and
401(a), defined contribution plans.

Attachments

Shuster agreement 2025 final BBK.pdf
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https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/wvwd/pdfs/topics/6938c65fdffef600471db8ca/Shuster_agreement_2025_final_BBK.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/wvwd/pdfs/topics/6938c65fdffef600471db8ca/Shuster_agreement_2025_final_BBK.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/wvwd/pdfs/topics/6938c65fdffef600471db8ca/Shuster_agreement_2025_final_BBK.pdf

AGREEMENT BETWEEN WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT AND
SHUSTER ADVISORY GROUP, LLC
FOR CONSULTING SERVICES

This contract, hereinafter referred to as Agreement, is entered into by and between West Valley Water
District ("District") and Shuster Advisory Group, LLC ("Consultant"), a California limited liability
company. Based on the mutual promises and covenants contained herein, the Parties hereto agree as
follows:

1. Recitals.

A. District is desirous of obtaining services necessary to perform fiduciary and non-
fiduciary services for the District’s governmental 457(b) deferred compensation
plan and governmental 401(a) defined contribution retirement plan as specified in
APPENDIX B.

B. Consultant is qualified by virtue of experience, training, education and expertise
to provide these services.

C. District has determined that the public interest, convenience and necessity
require the execution of this Agreement.

D. District has reviewed and agrees to statements 1-20 made in the attached
APPENDIX A.
2. Services.
A. The services to be performed by Consultant shall consist of the following

("Services") as specified in APPENDIX B.

B. The Services shall be performed in accordance with the schedule set forth in
APPENDIX B. Consultant shall not be liable for any failure or delay in furnishing
proposed services resulting from fire, explosion, flood, storm, earthquake, Act of
God, governmental acts, orders or regulations, hostilities, civil disturbances, strikes,
labor difficulties, difficulty in obtaining parts, supplies or shipping facilities, inability
to obtain or delays in obtaining suitable material or facilities required for
performance, temporary unavailability of qualified personnel, failure by District to
provide appropriate access to equipment or personnel, or other causes beyond
Consultant 's reasonable control.

3. Additional Services. If District determines that additional services are required to be
provided by Consultant in addition to services set forth above, District shall authorize
Consultant to perform such additional services in writing ("Additional Services"). Such
Additional Services shall be specifically described and approved by District in writing
prior to the performance thereof. Consultant shall be compensated for such Additional
Services in accordance with the amount agreed upon in writing by the Parties. No
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compensation shall be paid to Consultant for Additional Services which are not
specifically approved by District in writing.

Consultant's Proposal. This Agreement shall include Consultant's proposal or bid which
is incorporated herein. In the event of any inconsistency between the terms of the
proposal and this Agreement shall govern.

Timing of Performance. Time is of the essence with respect to Consultant's performance of
the Services required by this Agreement. Consultant shall diligently and timely pursue and
complete the performance of the services required of it by this District, in its sole discretion
may extend the time for performance of any service.

Compensation. Compensation for the services shall be billed as set forth in attached
APPENDIX C hereto. Compensation is inclusive of all costs that maybe incurred by
Consultant in performance of the services, including but not limited to such items as
travel, copies, delivery charges, phone, charges and facsimile charges.

Term of Agreement/Termination.

A. This Agreement shall be effective as of the date of November 1, 2025, by the
District and shall remain in effect until all Services are completed or until
terminated as provided for herein.

B. District may terminate this Agreement without cause by providing written notice to
Consultant not less than 60 days prior to an effective termination date. The District's
only obligation in the event of termination will be payment of fees and allowed
expenses incurred up to and including the effective date of termination.

C. Consultant may terminate this Agreement at any time with written notice at least
30 days before the effective termination date.

D. Upon receipt of a termination notice, Consultant: shall (1) promptly discontinue all
services, unless the notice directs otherwise; and (2) upon request and within ten (10)
business days, deliver to District copies of all files data reports, estimates, summaries
and such other information and materials as may have been accumulated or prepared
to date by consultant in electronic format. In the event of termination for other than
cause attributable to Consultant, Consultant shall be entitled to reasonable
compensation for the services it performs up to the date of termination and shall be
deemed released from liability for any work assigned but not completed as of the
effective date of termination.

Invoices and Payments.

A. Payment shall be made upon receipt and approval of invoices for Services rendered.
In order for payment to be made, Consultant's invoice must include an itemization as
to the services rendered, date(s) of service, direct and/or subcontract costs, and
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9.

10.

I1.

be submitted on an official letterhead or invoice with Consultants' name address, and
telephone number referenced. The invoice may be submitted by Consultant to the
retirement plan record keeper if payment is being made directly from the plans to
Consultant by the record keeper.

Records/Audit.

A.

Consultant shall be responsible for ensuring accuracy and propriety of all
billings and shall maintain all supporting documentations for a minimum of six
(6) years from the completion date of the Services under this agreement the
following records:

1. All accounts and records, including personnel, property and financial,
adequate to identify and account for all costs pertaining to this
Agreement and assure proper accounting for all funds;

2. Records which establish that Consultant and any sub-consultant who renders
Services under this Agreement are in full compliance with the requirements of
this Agreement and all federal, state and local laws and regulations.

3. Any additional records deemed necessary by District to assume
verification of full compliance with this Agreement.

District shall have the right to audit Consultant's invoices and all supporting
documentation with 72 business hours notification for purposes of compliance
with this Agreement for a period of three years following the completion of
Service under this Agreement.

Upon reasonable notice from District or any other government agency, Consultant
shall cooperate fully with any audit of its billings conducted by, or of, District and
shall permit access to its books, and records and accounts as may be necessary to
conduct such audits.

Successors and Assignment. This Agreement covers professional services of a specific and

unique nature. Except as otherwise provided herein, Consultant shall not assign or transfer its
interest in this agreement or subcontract any services to be performed without amending this
Agreement. This agreement shall be binding upon the heir, executors, administrators,
successors, and assigns of the parties hereto.

Change in Name, Ownership or Control. Consultant shall notify the Agreement
Administrator, in writing, of any change in name, ownership or control of Consultant's firm
or sub-consultant. Change of ownership or control of Consultant's firm or sub-consultant.
Change of ownership or control of Consultant's firm may require an amendment to the
Agreement.
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12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Key Personnel. District has relied upon the professional training and ability of Consultant to
perform the series hereunder as a material inducement to enter into this Agreement.
Consultant shall provide properly skilled professional and technical personnel to perform all
services under this Agreement, desires the removal of any person or persona assigned by
Consultant to perform services pursuant to this Agreement, Consultant shall remove any such
person immediately upon receiving notice from District.

Use of Materials.

A. DISTRICT shall make available to Consultant such materials from its files as may
be required by Consultant to perform Services under this Agreement. Such materials
shall remain the property of District while in Consultant's possession. Upon
termination of this Agreement and payment of outstanding invoices of Consultant,
or completion of work under this Agreement, Consultant shall return to District any
property of District in its possession and any calculation, notes, report, electronic
files, or other materials prepared by Consultant in the course of performance of this
Agreement.

B. District may utilize any material prepared or work performed by Consultant
pursuant to this Agreement, including computer software, in any manner, which
District deems proper without additional compensation to Consultant. Consultant
shall have no responsibility or liability for any revision, changes, or corrections
made by District or any use or reuse pursuant to this paragraph unless Consultant
accepts such responsibility in writing.

Nonuse of Intellectual Property of Third Parties. Consultant shall not use, disclose or copy
any intellectual property of any third parties in connection with work carried out under this
Agreement, except for intellectual property for which Consultant has a license. Consultant
shall indemnify and hold District harmless against all claims raised against District based
upon allegations that Consultant has wrongfully used intellectual property of others in
performing work for District, or that District has wrongfully used intellectual property
developed by Consultant pursuant to this Agreement.

Ownership of Work Product. All documents or other information created, developed, or
received by Consultant shall, for purposes of copyright law, be deemed works made for hire
for District by Consultant and shall be the joint property of District and Consultant.
Consultant shall provide District with copies of these items upon demand, and in any event,
upon termination of this Agreement. Consultant will retain all items necessary to maintain
compliance with all applicable Federal and State record retention requirements.

Legal Requirements.

A. Consultant shall secure and maintain all licenses or permits required by law,
including an District business license, and shall comply with all ordinances,
laws, orders, rules, and regulations pertaining to the work.
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213



17.

18.

19.

Consultant warrants it fully complies with all laws regarding employment of
aliens and others, and that all of its employees performing services hereunder
meet the citizenship or alien status requirements contained in federal and state
statutes and regulations.

Consultant covenants that there shall be no discrimination based upon, race, color,
creed, religion, sex, marital status, age, handicap, national origin or ancestry, or any
other category forbidden by law in performance of this Agreement.

Conflict of Interest and Reporting.

A.

Consultants shall at all times avoid conflicts of interest or the appearance of a conflict
of interest in the performance of this Agreement. If required, Consultant shall comply
with the District 's Conflict of Interest reporting requirements. Consultant understands
that it is forbidden to make any contribution to a candidate or committee of a candidate
for a municipal office of the District, or to an officeholder, until the completion of
service to be performed under this Agreement.

Consultant and its representatives shall refrain from lobbying District officials,
employees and representatives for the duration of this Agreement.

Guarantee and Warranty. Consultant warrants to District that the material, analysis, data,

programs and Services to be delivered or rendered hereunder will be of the kind and quality
designated and will be performed by qualified personnel. Without waiver of District's other
rights or remedies; District may require Consultant to re-perform any of said services, which
were not performed in accordance with these standards. Consultant shall perform the remedial
services at its sole expense.

Insurance.

A.

Commencement of Work. Consultant shall not commence work under this
Agreement until it has obtained District approved insurance. Before beginning work
hereunder, during the entire period of this Agreement, for any extensions hereto, and
for periods after the end of this Agreement as may be indicated below, Consultant
must have and maintain in place all of the insurance coverage required in this Section.
Consultant's insurance shall comply with all items specified by this Agreement. Any
subcontractors shall be subject to all of the requirements of this Section and
Consultant shall be responsible to obtain evidence of insurance from each
subcontractor and provide it to the District before the subcontractor commences
work. Alternatively, Consultant's insurance may cover all subcontractors.

Insurance Company Requirements. All insurance policies used to satisfy the
requirements imposed hereunder shall be issued by insurers admitted to do business
in the State of California. Insurers shall have a current Best's rating of not less than A-
:VII, unless otherwise approved by District.
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C.

Coverage, Limits and Policy Requirements. Consultant shall maintain the
types of coverage and limits indicated below:

1.

Commercial General Liability Insurance — a policy for occurrence
coverage for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage, including
all coverage provided by and to the extent afforded by Insurance Services
Office Form CG 2010 ed. 10/93 or 11/85 with no special limitations
affecting District. The limit for coverage under this policy shall be no less
than one million dollars ($2,000,000,00) per occurrence.

Policy Requirements. The policies set forth above shall comply with the
following, as evidence by the policies or endorsements to the policies:

a. The District, its appointed and elected officers, employees, agents
and volunteers shall be added as additional insured to the policy.

b. The insurer shall agree to provide District with thirty (30) days prior
written notice, return receipt requested, of any cancellation, non-
renewal or material change in coverage.

C. For any claims with respect to the Services covered by this
Agreement, Consultant's Insurance coverage shall be primary
insurance as respects the District, its elected and appointed officers,
employees, agents and volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance
maintained by the District, its elected and appointed officers,
employees, agents and volunteers shall be excess of Consultant's
insurance and shall not contribute with it.

Worker's Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance — a policy which
means all statutory benefit requirements of the Labor Code, or other applicable
law, of the State of California. The minimum coverage limits for said
insurance shall be no less than one million dollars per claim. The policy shall
be issued by an insurance company which is admitted to do business in the
State of California and shall contain a clause that the policy may not be
canceled without thirty (30) days prior written notice, return receipt requested,
is mailed to District.

Professional Errors & Omissions — a policy with minimum limits of one
million dollars ($2,000,000.00) per claim and aggregate. This policy shall be
issued by an insurance company which is admitted to do business in the State
of California and shall contain a clause that the policy may not be canceled
until thirty (30) days written notice, return requested, is mailed to District.
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20.

Additional Requirement. The procuring of such required policies of insurance shall
not be construed to limit Consultant's liability hereunder or to fulfill the
indemnification provisions and requirements of this Agreement. There shall be no
recourse against District for payment of premiums or other amounts with respect
thereto. District shall notify Consultant in writing of changes in the insurance
requirements. If Consultant does not deposit copies of acceptable insurance policies
or endorsements with District incorporating such changes within sixty (60) days of
receipt of such notice, Consultant shall be deemed in default hereunder.

Deductibles. Any deductible or self-insured retention over $25,000 per occurrence
must be declared to and approved by District. Any deductible exceeding an amount
acceptable to District shall be subject to the following changes: either the insurer shall
eliminate or reduce such deductibles or self-insured retentions with respect to
District, its officers, employees, agents and volunteers (with additional premium, if
any, to be paid by Consultant); or Consultant shall provide satisfactory financial
guarantee for payment of losses and related investigations, claim administration and
defense expenses.

Verification of Compliance. Consultant shall furnish District with original policies
or certificates and endorsements effecting coverage required by this Agreement. The
endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized by the insurer to bind coverage
on its behalf. All endorsements are to be received and approved by District before
work commences. Not less than fifteen (15) days prior to the expiration date of any
policy of insurance required by this Agreement, Consultant shall deliver to District a
binder or certificate of insurance with respect to each renewal policy, bearing a
notation evidencing payment of the premium therefore, or accompanied by other
proof of payment satisfactory to District. Consultant shall provide full copies of any
requested policies to District within three (3) days of any such request by District.

Termination for Lack of Required Coverage. If Consultant, for any reason, fails to
have in place, at all times during the term of this Agreement, including any
extension hereto, all required insurance and coverage, District may immediately
obtain such coverage at Consultant's expense and/or terminate the Agreement.

Indemnity.

A.

Consultant assumes all risk of injury to its employees, agents, and contractors,
including loss or damage to property.

Consultant shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the District, including its
officials, officers, employees, and agents from and against all claims, suits, or causes
of action for injury to any person or damage to an property arising out of its
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breach of this Agreement, or any intentional or negligent acts or errors or omissions
to act by Consultant or its agents, officers, employees, subcontractors, or
independent contractor, in the performance of its obligations pursuant to this
Agreement. This indemnity shall apply to all claims and liability regardless of
whether any insurance policies are applicable. The policy limits do not act as a
limitation upon the amount of indemnification to be provided by Consultant. This
indemnification shall not apply if the claim arises out of the sole negligence or
willful misconduct of District, its officers, agents, employees or volunteers.

C. No official, employee, agent or volunteer of District shall be personally liable
for any default or liability under the Agreement.

Independent Contractor. Consultant agrees to furnish consulting services in the capacity of
an independent contractor and neither Consultant nor any of its employees shall be
considered to be an employee or agent of District.

Notices. Any notice or communication given under this Agreement shall be effective
when deposited, postage prepaid, with the United States Postal Service and addressed
to the contracting parties. Name, address, telephone and facsimile numbers of the
parties are as follows:

DISTRICT CONTACT INFORMATION:
WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT
ATTN: XXXX

855 WEST BASE LINE ROAD
RIALTO, CA 92376

TELEPHONE: 909-875-1804

FAX: 909-875-1849

EMAIL: XXXX

CONSULTANT:

SHUSTER ADVISORY GROUP, LLC
ATTN: MARK SHUSTER

155 N. LAKE AVE., SUITE 950
PASADENA, CA 91101
TELEPHONE: 626-578-0816

FAX: 626-792-7567

EMAIL: mshuster@sferpc.com

Either party may change the information to which notice or communication is to be
sent by providing advance written notice to the other party.

Severability. If any provision of this Agreement shall be held illegal, invalid, or
unenforceable, in whole or in part, such provisional shall be modified to the minimum
extent necessary to make it legal, valid, and enforceable, and the legality, validity, and
enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not be affected thereby.
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Jurisdiction and Venue. This Agreement shall be deemed a contract under the laws of the

State of California and for all purposes shall be interpreted in accordance with such laws.
Both parties hereby agree and consent to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of the State
of California and that the venue of any action brought hereunder shall be Indian Wells,
California.

Arbitration.

A.

If a dispute arises in connection with any matter under this Agreement, then the
parties shall submit such dispute to arbitration as set forth below, provided that
the party requesting arbitration delivers written notice to the other affected
parties invoking arbitration.

Arbitration shall be conducted in Rialto, California, before and in accordance with the
rules of the American Arbitration Association, then in place. Notwithstanding anything
contained in the foregoing sentence, the parties agree that the provisions of California
Code of Civil Procedure Section 1283.05, Depositions for Discovery or any successor
and/or amendatory statute thereto, are incorporated into, made a part of and made
applicable to this Arbitration provision as though fully set forth herein, provided,
however, that the period for discovery pursuant to this provision shall expire on the
date which is 30 days from the date of the delivery of notice of request for arbitration;
it being understood that any discovery commenced by notice within such 30-day
period shall be completed diligently by the noticed party. In the event that the American
Arbitration Association shall not then be in existence, the party desiring arbitration
shall appoint a disinterested person as arbitrator on its behalf and give notice thereof to
the other party who shall, within 10 days thereafter, appoint a second disinterested
person as arbitrator on its behalf and give written notice thereof to the first party. The
arbitrators thus appointed shall appoint a third disinterested person, and such three
arbitrators shall, as promptly as possible, determine the matter which is the subject of
the arbitration. The decision of the majority of the arbitrators shall be conclusive and
binding on all parties and shall be rendered on or before the date which is 60 days from
the date of the delivery of notice of dispute and request for arbitration pursuant to this
provision, it being understood that time is of the essence; however, if the arbitrators
have failed to render their decision within the time required in connection with an
alleged default or dispute under this Agreement, the party or parties which were not a
cause of such delay may pursue all other rights and remedies which it or they may have
under this Agreement. If a party who shall have the right pursuant to the foregoing to
appoint an arbitrator fails or neglects to do so, then, and in such event, the other party
(or if the two arbitrators appointed by the parties shall fail within five days after the
appointment of the second arbitrator to appoint a third arbitrator, then either party) may
apply to any court of competent jurisdiction to appoint such arbitrator. The prevailing
party shall be entitled to reasonable attorney's fees, costs and expenses of the arbitration
as determined by the arbitrators. The parties to the arbitration agree to sign all
documents and to do all other things necessary to submit any such matter
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26.

27.

28.

29.

30.

31.

for arbitration, and further agree to, and hereby do, waive any and all rights they or
either of them may at any time have to revoke their agreement hereunder to submit to
arbitration once the matter has been submitted, and to abide by the decision rendered
thereunder. The arbitrators shall not have any power to modify or amend any of the
terms of this Agreement.

C. The decisions of the arbitrators shall be final and binding upon the parties in any later
action or proceeding concerning the existence of a default being arbitrated.

Waiver. No delay or failure by either Party to exercise or enforce at any time any right or
provision of this Agreement shall be considered a waiver thereof or of such Party's right
thereafter to exercise or enforce each and every right and provision of this Agreement. To be
valid a waiver shall be in writing but need not be supported by consideration. No single
waiver shall constitute a continuing or subsequent waiver.

Entire Agreement.

A. This writing contains the entire agreement of the Parties relating to the subject matter
hereof; and the Parties have made no agreements, representations, or warranties
either written or oral relating to the subject matter hereof which are not set forth
herein. Except as provided herein, this Agreement may not be modified or altered
without formal amendment thereto.

B. Notwithstanding the foregoing, and to realize the purpose of this Agreement, the
Agreement Administrator may issue a written modification to the Scope of Work, if
this modification will not require a change to any other term of this Agreement.

Joint Drafting. Both parties have participated in the drafting of this Agreement.

Public Record. This Agreement is public record of the District.

a
Authority to Execute. The persons executing this Agreement on behalf of the parties
warrant that they are duly authorized to execute this Agreement.

Attorney's Fee. In the event that legal action is necessary to enforce the provisions of
this Agreement, or to declare the rights of the parties hereunder, the parties agree that
the prevailing party in the legal action shall be entitled to recover attorney's fees and
court costs from the opposing party.

[Signatures on following page]
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IN WITNESS WHERE OF, the parties have hereunto affixed their names as of the day and
year written below.

DISTRICT

By
Name, Title

Date

CONSULTANT:
Shuster Advisory Group, LLC

By
Mark Shuster, Managing Member

Date

APPROVED AS TO FORM BY DISTRICT ATTORNEY:

11|Page
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APPENDIX A - CONSULTING & FIDUCIARY ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

District acknowledges the following:

1.

The District, as the responsible plan fiduciary for the District's 4 5 7 (b) and 401(a) Plans
(herein referred to as the "Plans"), has the authority to designate investment alternatives
under the Plan and the related trust(s), and to enter into an Agreement with third parties
to assist in these and related duties.

District acknowledges that Consultant has no responsibility to provide any services related
to the following types of assets: employer securities; real estate (except for real estate funds
and publicly traded REITs); stock brokerage accounts or mutual fund windows; in-plan
retirement income annuity products; participant loans; non-publicly traded partnership
interests; other non-publicly traded securities (other than collective trusts and similar
vehicles); or other hard-to-value securities or assets. Such assets (except for real estate funds,
publicly traded REITs, and collective trusts and similar vehicles) shall be referred to
collectively as "Excluded Assets." The Excluded Assets shall be disregarded in determining
the Fees payable to Consultant pursuant to this Agreement, and the Fees shall be calculated
only on the remaining assets (the "Included Assets").

In performing its Fiduciary Services, Consultant is acting as a fiduciary of the Plans and as
a registered investment adviser under the Investment Adviser's Act of 1940.

In performing the Non-Fiduciary Services, Consultant is not acting as a fiduciary of the
Plans.

In performing both Non-Fiduciary Services and Fiduciary Services, Consultant does not
act as, nor has Consultant agreed to assume the duties of, a trustee or a Plan Administrator,
and Consultant has no discretion or responsibility to interpret the Plan documents, to
determine eligibility or participation under the Plans, or to take any other action with
respect to the management, administration or any other aspect of the Plans except the
Fiduciary Services described in Appendix B.

Consultant will perform the Fiduciary Services described in Appendix B to the Plans in
accordance with the standard of care of the prudent man rule set forth in ERISA Section
404(a)(1)(B) or comparable state law.

Consultant will perform the Non-Fiduciary Services described in Appendix B using
reasonable business judgment and shall not be liable for any liabilities and claims arising
thereunder, unless directly arising from Adviser's intentional misconduct or gross
negligence.

Consultant does not provide legal or tax advice.
12|Page
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Investments are subject to various market, political, currency, economic, and business risks, and
may not always be profitable. As a result, Consultant does not and cannot guarantee financial
results.

Consultant may, by reason of performing services for other clients, from time to time
acquire confidential information. The District acknowledges and agrees that Consultant is
unable to divulge to the District or any other party, or to act upon, any such confidential
information with respect to its performance of this Agreement.

Consultant is entitled to rely upon all information provided to Consultant (whether financial
or otherwise) from reputable third parties or by the District, the District 's representatives or
third-party service providers to the District, the Plan or the Consultant, without independent
verification. The District agrees to promptly notify Consultant in writing of any material
change in the financial and other information provided to Consultant and to promptly
provide any such additional information as may be reasonably requested by Consultant.

Consultant will not be responsible for voting (or recommending how to vote) proxies of
any publicly traded securities (including mutual fund shares) held by the Plan (or its trust).
Responsibility for voting proxies of investments held by the Plans or the plan trusts remain
with the District (or, if applicable, the Plan participants).

The District understands that Consultant (i) may perform other services for other clients,
(i1) may charge a different fee for other clients, and (iii) may give advice and take action
that is different for each client even when retirement plans are similar.

The person signing the Agreement on behalf of the District has all necessary authority to
do so.

The execution of this Agreement and the performance thereof is within the scope of the
investment authority authorized by the governing instrument and/or applicable laws. The
signatory on behalf of District represents that the execution of the Agreement has been
duly authorized by appropriate action and agrees to provide such supporting documentation
as may be reasonably required by Consultant.

The Plan and related Trust permit payment of fees out of Plan assets. District has
determined that the fees charged by Consultant are reasonable and are the obligation of the
Plan; however, if the District desires, it may pay the fees directly, rather than with Plan
assets.

Consultant is registered as an investment adviser ("RIA") under the Investment Advisers
Act of 1940.

The person signing this agreement on behalf Consultant has the power and authority to
enter into and perform this Agreement.

13|Page
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19.

20.

Consultant agrees to take reasonable steps to protect Private Participant Information and
Plan Investment Data in its possession;

Consultant is not responsible for the assessment of systems and procedures of third parties
for the protection of plan and participant data;

Consultant is not responsible for the actions by or the failure to act by District, by other
service providers, or by Plan participants to protect Data;

Consultant shall have no liability in the event of a Data breach or a violation of participant
privacy rights (under the California Consumer Privacy Act or otherwise) unless said breach
is the direct result of negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of an employee of
Consultant.

District acknowledges receipt and undertakes to review and consider the disclosures made
by Consultant (including in this Agreement, the Form ADV Part 2 and Consultant Privacy
Policy), in particular the portions related to services, compensation, and potential conflicts
of interest, as well as the remainder of the disclosures concerning, among other matters,
background information such as educational and business history, business practices such
as the types of advisory services provided, the methods of securities analysis used, and the
like.

Further, the District consents to electronic delivery (via email or other generally accepted
method) of current and future distributions of Consultant 's Form ADV Part 2 and Privacy
Policy. Consent to electronic delivery may be canceled at any time by sending a written
request to Consultant.

l4|Page
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APPENDIX B - CONSULTANT SERVICES

Consultant will perform the following fiduciary and non-fiduciary services:

1.

2.

3.

Audit Services (Non-fiduciary)

a)
b)
©)
d)

Incumbent vendor contract review

Incumbent vendor fee review

Incumbent vendor qualitative and quantitative investment analysis
Present audit results to District with observations and recommendations

Request for Proposal (RFP) Services (Non-fiduciary)

a)
b)
©)
d)
e)
f)

Conduct RFP on behalf of District

Negotiate contract terms and fees on behalf of District

Present RFP results to District

Obtain follow-up information requested by District from competitive bidders
Coordinate finalist meetings on behalf of District (if requested by District)
Notify bidders of District's vendor decision

Plan Conversion Services

a)

b)
©)

d)

e)
f)

g)

h)
i)

)

Coordinate conversion activities with District, Consultant and vendor (non-
fiduciary)

Attend conversion conference calls with District and vendor (non-fiduciary)
Review draft vendor services, investment and fee agreements to ensure they
match final proposal from vendor (non-fiduciary)

Act as liaison between District, District Attorney and vendor supporting
contract reviews (non-fiduciary)

Plan design consultation (non-fiduciary)

Review vendor participant communications and provide suggested edits (non-
fiduciary)

Develop custom participant communications and presentations (non-
fiduciary)

Coordinate and attend participant education meetings (non-fiduciary)

Draft a proposed investment policy statement (IPS) for review and approval
by the District. The IPS establishes the investment policies and objectives for
the Plan and shall set forth the asset classes and investment categories to be
offered under the Plan, as well as the criteria and standards for selecting,
retaining and removing investments. The District shall have the fiduciary
responsibility and authority to establish such policies and objectives and to
adopt the investment policy statement (fiduciary) and all amendments thereto.
Consistent with the Investment Policy Statement, select the investment
options within the Plan(s) as of the effective date of the Agreement (fiduciary)

4. Post-Conversion/Ongoing Services
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)
k)

Prepare periodic investment advisory reports that document consistency
of fund management and performance to the guidelines set forth in the
IPS and be responsible for making additions/deletions thereto.  Reports
will include: Market Overview, In-Depth Portfolio Summary, Plan Asset
Allocation Analysis and Fund Performance Comparison to the Index
(fiduciary)

Meet with District on a periodic basis to discuss reports and
changes(fiduciary)

Select a default investment for participants who fail to make an investment
election (fiduciary)

Annually review the IPS with District to ensure it continues to meet the
District's needs (fiduciary)

Coordinate the Investment review meetings, record meeting minutes and
provide minutes to attendees (fiduciary)

Assist in the education of the participants in the Plan about general
investing principles and the investment alternatives (non-fiduciary)
Distribute plan level newsletters (non-fiduciary).

Plan design consulting as needed (non-fiduciary)

Provide vendor management/issue resolution to the District (non-
fiduciary)

Provide the District with custom communications when needed (non-
fiduciary)

Assist the District with its communications with record-keepers and/or
other plan providers (non-fiduciary)

1) Provide the District with compliance updates and best practices (non-

fiduciary)

m) Provide initial RFP services and plan fee negotiations on behalf of the

District (non-fiduciary)
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APPENDIX C - FEE SCHEDULE

All fees are billed in arrears.

The initial fee will be the amount, prorated for the number of days included in the initial
billing period from the effective payment start date.

If this Agreement is terminated prior to the end of a billing period, Consultant shall be
entitled to a fee, prorated for the number of days in the billing period prior to the
effective date of termination.

All fees will be due and payable within 30 days and are payable to "Shuster Advisory
Group, LLC"

The fee for service shall be as follows:

a) Beginning with the Effective Date of this Agreement and continuing until the earlier
of the date the plans are converted to a new record-keeper and assets from the prior
record-keeper are transferred, the date the plans are converted to a new record-keeper
and the first payroll deferral is processed by the new record-keeper, or the date it is
decided to remain with the incumbent record-keeper and new pricing is
implemented, if applicable, (hereafter known as the "Conversion Date") the fee for
service shall be $1,000.00 per month. Fees will accrue and be paid from Plan assets
to Consultant by the record keeper upon the Conversion Date.

b) After the "Conversion Date", the fee for service shall be $1,000.00 per month. Fees will
be deducted from Plan assets and will be paid to Consultant by the record-keeper.

At Consultant's discretion the billing period may be adjusted to quarterly or annually.
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West Valley
N ater District

STAFF REPORT
DATE: December 18, 2025
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Rocky Welborn, Director of Engineering

SUBJECT: Professional Services Agreement and Task Order to Provide Groundwater Modeling Review and
Support Services

STRATEGIC GOAL:

Strategic Goal 1 - Manage and Deliver a Safe, Reliable, and Sustainable Water Supply, Objective 1D. Fortify a
Resilient Water Supply.

Strategic Goal 4 - Strengthen Partnerships with Outside Agencies, Objective 4A. Engage in Regional Projects,
Advocacy, and Grant Pursuits, and Objective 4B. Be Recognized as a Leader and Effective Regional Collaborator.

Strategic Goal 5 — Apply Sound Planning, Innovation, and Best Practices, Objective 5C. Prioritize Long-Term
Financial Stability.

MEETING HISTORY:

Engineering, Operations and Planning Committee Meeting - 12.09.2025

BACKGROUND:

The Rialto Basin Groundwater Council (‘RBGC or Council”), consisting of the City of Colton, City of Rialto, Fontana
Union Water Company, and West Valley Water District, was formed in 2021 for the purpose of coordinating,
developing, and implementing groundwater management activities that address groundwater management in, and
groundwater sustainability throughout, the Rialto Groundwater Basin. The RBGC formed the RBGC TAC consisting
of its individual agency’s staff, which serves to provide input to the Council and administer and implement any
directives made by the Council.

Due to the prolonged and significant decline in groundwater levels in the Rialto Groundwater Basin, the need for
groundwater recharge has become urgent. The basin has experienced:

* A 50% reduction in allowable groundwater extraction for stipulating parties to the 1961 decree.
+ Steady decline since 2002, with minimal recovery even during wet years.

To address this, the RBGC is in the process of developing a Ground Water Management Plan which identifies
supplemental water and groundwater recharge in available spreading basins to help stabilize and eventually raise
groundwater levels and improve long-term water supply resilience. The District currently manages the Professional
Services Agreement with the consultant performing this work and seeks reimbursement from the RBGC members

for their fair share of the work performed.
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The San Bernardino County Flood Control District (“Flood Control”) owns the Cactus Basins which are used to
detain water from rain events that could cause temporary flooding. The Cactus Basins represent the largest and
most viable area for groundwater recharge within the Rialto Groundwater Basin and given the historic lows in
groundwater levels maximizing recharge at the Cactus Basins is essential.

San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District (“Valley District”) is interested in utilizing the Cactus Basins, when
not needed for flood control purposes, for groundwater recharge of State Water Project water on behalf of the local
water purveyors.

The Cactus Basins overlay what is known as the eastern perchlorate plume, which is under the oversight of the
United States Environmental Protection Agency. San Bernardino County (“County”) is under a compliance order
from the California Regional Water Quality Control Board, Santa Ana Region to remediate what is known as the
western perchlorate plume.

Flood Control, the County and Valley District developed a Memorandum of Understanding to address technical
concerns, mitigate potential legal risks and costs due to impacts that supplemental recharge may have, and
potentially develop an Adaptive Management Plan. This led to the formation of the Cactus Basin Technical Advisory
Group (“Cactus Basin TAG”) to assess potential impacts that supplemental recharge activities may have. The
Cactus Basin TAG has created a Modelling Technical Subgroup which will review information on existing numerical
groundwater models.

The RBGC seeks to engage a qualified consultant to represent its interests in technical modeling efforts. The
consultant’s expertise will be critical in navigating the complex intersection of hydrology and contamination, and in
ensuring that the RBGC'’s priorities and interests are reflected in all technical decisions moving forward.

DISCUSSION:

Recognizing the need for modeling support for the Cactus Basin TAG, the RBGC TAC prepared a Request for
Proposals (RFP) and solicited proposals from qualified consultants. Thomas Harder & Company provided a
proposal which is included in the exhibits to this staff report.

The Proposal included services to:

1. Participate in the Cactus Basin TAG and advising on technical modeling decisions

2. Participate in the SBBA/Rialto-Colton Groundwater Update Steering Committee to provide technical modeling
recommendations

. Reporting Cactus TAG status and general coordination with RBGC and RBGC TAC

. Independent modeling to verify Cactus Basin TAG Modeling Technical Subgroup findings

. As needed meetings and coordination with stakeholder entities

. Overall project management.

o O W

The RBGC TAC members have reviewed the proposal and has determined it meets the needs of the RFP.

The proposed Professional Services Agreement and Task Order with Thomas Harder and Company is attached to
this Staff Report as Exhibit A, which includes the Thomas Harder and Company proposal.

The proposed costs would be partially reimbursed by the other entities of the RBGC and managed by the District in
a similar agreement to the development of the Ground Water Management Plan. The District would be responsible
for the accounting and revenue collection, securing the funding from the RBGC members, and administer the
contract with Thomas Harder and Company to complete the perform the described services.

FISCAL IMPACT:
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The District’s costs share will be up to 25% of the $122,958 total task order costs, which equals $30,739.50. This
District's share is expected to be charged against the Administration and Engineering Professional Services / Other
Consultants accounts (100-5610-525-5340 &100-5630-525-5340). Staff anticipates performing a budget transfer to
combine the available funds in into the Engineering Operating Budget (5630).

REQUESTED ACTION:

1. Authorize entering into a Professional Services Agreement and Task Order with Thomas Harder & Company
after receiving concurrence by other RBGC entities.

2. Authorize the General Manager to execute all necessary documents related to the agreement with Thomas
Harder & Company and RBGC entities to perform the required groundwater modeling review and support
services.

Attachments

Exhibit A - Professional Services Agreement & Task Order No. 1.pdf
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EXHIBIT A
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West Valley Water District

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
With
Thomas Harder & Company (TH&Co)

7/31/23 Master Copy
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AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

This AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES (“Agreement”) effective as of this

day of December 2025 (“Effective Date”) is by and between West Valley Water
District (“District”) and Thomas Harder & Company (TH&Co) (“Consultant”). The District
and Consultant may be collectively referred to as the “Parties” and individually as a

“Party.”

RECITALS

A. The Parties desire to enter into this Agreement for the purpose of setting forth the
terms and conditions upon which Consultant shall provide certain services to District.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES HEREBY AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1.

Section 2.

2.1

7/31/23 Master Copy

Term of Agreement.

(@)  Subject to subsection (b) below, the term of this Agreement will be
for a period of one (1) year commencing on the Effective Date and
terminating one (1) year after the Effective Date.

(b)  This Agreement shall renew automatically for continuous one (1)
year periods for no more than two (2) additional years, unless either Party,
prior to the end of the existing one (1) year period, delivers written notice to
the other Party, that the Agreement shall not be extended.

(c) If a Task Order (as defined herein) is in effect at the expiration of the
term of this Agreement, the term of this Agreement will automatically extend
until Consultant completes the services under said Task Order, or until the
Agreement is otherwise terminated, as set forth herein.

Scope and Performance of Services.

(@) District may, from time to time, by written instructions from the
District's General Manager or Assistant General Manager, or their
designee, (“Authorized Representative”) issue task orders (“Task Orders”)
to the Consultant. The Task Order shall be in such form and content as shall
be set forth on Exhibit “A” attached hereto and by this reference
incorporated herein. The Task Order shall set forth: (1) the scope of
services to be performed by Consultant; (2) the compensation to be paid to
Consultant; and (3) the time to complete the Task Order. The provisions of
this Agreement shall apply to all such Task Orders.

(b) For each Task Order, Consultant shall confer, as requested, with
District representatives to review progress of work elements, adherence to
work schedule, coordination of work, scheduling of review and resolution of
problems which may develop.

1
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2.2  Consultant will furnish all of the labor, technical, administrative, professional
and other personnel, all supplies and materials, equipment, printing,
vehicles, transportation, office space and facilities, and all tests, testing and
analyses, calculation, and all other means whatsoever, except as otherwise
expressly specified in this Agreement, necessary or proper to perform and
complete the services required of Consultant under this Agreement.

2.3 Consultant’s designated representative(s) who are authorized to act on its
behalf and to make all decisions in connection with the performance of
services under this Agreement are listed in Exhibit “B” attached hereto and
by this reference incorporated herein (“Key Personnel”’). Consultant shall
not substitute or remove Key Personnel without the prior written consent of
District.

2.4 Consultant represents and warrants that it has the qualifications,
experience, and facilities necessary to properly perform the services
required under this Agreement in a thorough, competent, and professional
manner. Notwithstanding Section 3 below, in the event Consultant utilizes
the services of subcontractors or sub-consultants, Consultant assumes sole
and complete responsibility for the performance of the subcontractor or
sub-consultant to the specifications provided hereunder for Consultant’s
work, and no adjustment will be made to Consultant’s requirements under
this Agreement for timely completion of services, complete performance of
services, or delivery of products or deliverables in a timely fashion, and no
adjustment will be made to performance deadlines, or compensation due to
Consultant, due to or arising from issues Consultant may have with any
subcontractor or sub-consultant. Consultant will at all times faithfully,
competently and to the best of its ability, experience and talent, perform all
services described in this Agreement. In meeting its obligations under this
Agreement, Consultant shall employ, at a minimum, generally accepted
standards and practices utilized by persons engaged in providing services
similar to those required of Consultant under this Agreement.

Consultant warrants it will perform its services, as more particularly
described in this Agreement and each Task Order in accordance with
generally accepted professional practices and current standards of care
and diligence normally practiced by members of the profession currently
practicing under conditions of a similar nature. Consultant shall perform,
at its own cost and expense and without reimbursement from the District,
any services necessary to correct errors or omissions which are caused by
the Consultant's failure to comply with the standard of care provided for
herein.

2.5 Neither District nor Consultant shall be considered in default of this
Agreement for delays in performance caused by circumstances beyond the
reasonable control of the non-performing party. For purposes of this
Agreement, such circumstances include a Force Majeure Event. A Force

2
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Section 3.

31

3.2

3.3

Section 4.

41

7/31/23 Master Copy

Majeure Event shall mean an event that materially affects the Consultant’s
performance and is one or more of the following: (1) Acts of God or other
natural disasters occurring at the project site; (2) terrorism or other acts of
a public enemy; (3) orders of governmental authorities (including, without
limitation, unreasonable and unforeseeable delay in the issuance of permits
or approvals by governmental authorities that are required for the services);
and (4) pandemics, epidemics or quarantine restrictions. For purposes of
this section, “orders of governmental authorities,” includes ordinances,
emergency proclamations and orders, rules to protect the public health,
welfare and safety. Should such a Force Majeure Event occur, the non-
performing party shall, within a reasonable time of being prevented from
performing, give written notice to the other party describing the
circumstances preventing continued performance and the efforts being
made to resume performance of this Agreement. Delays shall not entitle
Consultant to any additional compensation regardless of the Party
responsible for the delay. Notwithstanding the foregoing, District may still
terminate this Agreement in accordance with the termination provisions of
this Agreement.

Additional Services and Changes in Services

Consultant will not be compensated for any services rendered in connection
with its performance of this Agreement that are in addition to or outside of
those set forth in the Task Orders unless such additional services are
authorized in advance and in writing by District.

If Consultant believes that additional services are needed to complete a
Task Order, Consultant will provide the Authorized Representative with
written notification describing the proposed additional services, the reasons
for such services, and a detailed proposal regarding cost.

District may order changes to a Task Order, consisting of additions,
deletions, or other revisions, and the compensation to be paid Consultant
will be adjusted accordingly. All such changes must be authorized in writing
and executed by Consultant and District. The cost or credit to District
resulting from changes in a Task Order will be determined by the written
agreement between the Parties.

Familiarity with Services and Site.

By executing this Agreement, Consultant warrants that Consultant shall,
prior to undertaking a Task Order:

(a) investigate and consider the services to be performed;

(b)  carefully consider how and within what time frame the services
should be performed;
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4.2

Section 5.

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

7/31/23 Master Copy

(c) understand the facilities, difficulties, and restrictions attending
performance of the services under a Task Order; and

(d)  possesses all licenses required under local, state or federal law to
perform the services contemplated by a Task Order and maintain all
required licenses during the performance of such Task Order.

If services involve work upon any site, Consultant warrants that Consultant
has or will investigate the site and will be fully acquainted with the conditions
there existing, before commencing its services under a Task Order. Should
Consultant discover any latent or unknown conditions that may materially
affect the performance of services, Consultant will immediately inform
District of such fact and will not proceed except at Consultant’'s own risk
until written instructions are received from the District.

Compensation and Payment.

In no event shall the total amount paid for services rendered by Consultant
under this Agreement and all Task Orders issued hereunder exceed the
sum of the Task Orders. Subject to any limitations set forth in this
Agreement, District agrees to pay Consultant the amounts shown in a Task
Order.

Consultant shall furnish District monthly with an original invoice for all
services performed and expenses incurred under a Task Order during the
preceding month in accordance with the fee schedule set forth in the Task
Order. The invoice must detail charges by the following categories: labor
(by subcategory), reimbursable costs, subcontractor contracts and
miscellaneous expenses. The invoice must list, as applicable, the hours
worked and hourly rates for each personnel category, the tasks performed,
the percentage of the task completed during the billing period, the
cumulative percentage completed for each task, and the total cost of the
services.

District will independently review each invoice submitted by Consultant to
determine whether the work performed and expenses incurred are in
compliance with this Agreement and the Task Order. In the event that no
charges or expenses are disputed, the invoice will be approved and paid.
In the event any charges or expenses are disputed by District, the original
invoice will be returned by District to Consultant for correction and
resubmission.

Except as to any charges for work performed or expenses incurred by
Consultant that are disputed by District, District will use its best efforts to
cause Consultant to be paid within thirty (30) days of receipt of Consultant’s
invoice.
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No payment or partial payment to Consultant shall constitute acceptance of
any work completed by Consultant or waive any claims by the District for
any reason whatsoever.

Required Documentation Prior to Performance.

Consultant will not perform any services under this Agreement until:

(@) Consultant furnishes proof of insurance (“Insurance”) as required
under Exhibit “C” attached hereto and by this reference incorporated
herein; and

(b)  Consultant provides District with a Taxpayer Identification Number.

The District will have no obligation to pay for any services rendered by
Consultant in advance of receiving written authorization to proceed for each
Task Order, and Consultant acknowledges that any such services are at
Consultant’s own risk.

Project Documents.

All original maps, models, designs, drawings, photographs, studies,
surveys, reports, data, notes, computer programs, files and other
documents (collectively, “Project Documents”) prepared, developed or
discovered by Consultant in the course of providing services under this
Agreement will become the sole property of District and may be used,
reused or otherwise disposed of by District without the permission of
Consultant. Consultant will take such steps as are necessary to perfect or
protect the ownership interest of District in such Project Documents. Upon
completion, expiration or termination of this Agreement, Consultant shall
turn over to District all such original Project Documents in its possession;
provided, however, that Consultant may retain copies of Project
Documents.

Except as necessary for the performance of services under this Agreement,
no Project Documents prepared under this Agreement, will be released by
Consultant to any other person or entity without District's prior written
approval. All press releases, including graphic display information to be
published, must be approved and distributed solely by District, unless
otherwise agreed to in writing by District.

Consultant’s Books and Records.

Consultant shall maintain any and all documents and records
demonstrating or relating to Consultant’s performance of services under this
Agreement. Consultant shall maintain any and all ledgers, books of
account, invoices, vouchers, canceled checks, or other documents or

5
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records evidencing or relating to work, services, expenditures and
disbursements charged to District under this Agreement. Any and all such
documents or records must be maintained in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles and must be sufficiently complete and
detailed so as to permit an accurate evaluation of the services provided by
Consultant under this Agreement. Any and all such documents or records
must be maintained for three (3) years following the final payment for each
Task Order.

Any and all records or documents required to be maintained by this section
must be made available for inspection, audit and copying, at any time during
regular business hours, upon written request by District or its designated
representatives. Copies of such documents or records must be provided
directly to District for inspection, audit and copying when it is practical to do
so; otherwise, unless an alternative is mutually agreed upon, such
documents and records must be made available at Consultant’s address
indicated for receipt of notices in this Agreement.

Where District has reason to believe that any of the documents or records
required to be maintained by this section may be lost or discarded due to
dissolution or termination of Consultant’s business, District may, by written
request, require that custody of such documents or records be given to a
person or entity mutually agreed upon and that such documents and
records thereafter be maintained by such person or entity at Consultant’s
expense. Access to such documents and records shall be granted to
District, as well as to its successors-in-interest and authorized
representatives.

Status of Consultant.

Consultant is and will at all times remain a wholly independent contractor
and not an officer or employee of District. Consultant has no authority to
bind District in any manner, or to incur any obligation, debt or liability of any
kind on behalf of or against District, whether by contract or otherwise, unless
such authority is expressly conferred under this Agreement or is otherwise
expressly conferred in writing by District.

The personnel performing the services under this Agreement on behalf of
Consultant will at all times be under Consultant’s exclusive direction and
control. Neither District, nor any elected or appointed boards, officers,
officials, employees or agents of District, will have control over the conduct
of Consultant or any of Consultant’s officers, subcontractors or sub-
consultants, employees or agents, except as provided in this Agreement.
Consultant warrants that it will not at any time or in any manner represent
that Consultant or any of Consultant’s officers, employees or agents are in
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any manner officials, officers, employees or agents of District.

Neither Consultant, nor any of Consultant’s officers, employees or agents,
will obtain any rights to retirement, health care or any other benefits which
may otherwise accrue to District’'s employees. Consultant expressly waives
any claim to any such rights or benefits.

Compliance with Applicable Laws and California Labor Code.

Consultant shall keep itself informed of and comply with all applicable
federal, state and local laws, statutes, codes, ordinances, regulations and
rules in effect during the term of this Agreement.

Consultant is aware of the requirements of California Labor Code Sections
1720 et seq. and 1770 et seq., which require the payment of prevailing wage
rates and the performance of other requirements on certain “public works” and
“maintenance” projects (“Prevailing Wage Laws”). If the services are being
performed as part of an applicable “public works” or “maintenance” project, as
defined by the Prevailing Wage Laws, and if the total compensation is $1,000 or
more, Consultant agrees to fully comply with such Prevailing Wage Laws.
Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold the District, its officials, officers,
employees and agents free and harmless from any claims, liabilities, costs,
penalties or interest arising out of any failure or alleged failure to comply with the
Prevailing Wage Laws. It shall be mandatory upon the Consultant and all
subconsultants to comply with all California Labor Code provisions, which include
but are not limited to prevailing wages (Labor Code Sections 1771, 1774 and
1775), employment of apprentices (Labor Code Section 1777.5), certified payroll
records (Labor Code Sections 1771.4 and 1776), hours of labor (Labor Code
Sections 1813 and 1815) and debarment of contractors and subcontractors (Labor
Code Section 1777.1). The requirement to submit certified payroll records directly
to the Labor Commissioner under Labor Code section 1771.4 shall not apply to
work performed on a public works project that is exempt pursuant to the small
project exemption specified in Labor Code Section 1771.4.

If the services are being performed as part of an applicable “public works” or
“maintenance” project, then pursuant to Labor Code Sections 1725.5 and 1771.1,
the Consultant and all subconsultants performing such services must be registered
with the Department of Industrial Relations. Consultant shall maintain registration
for the duration of the Agreement and require the same of any subconsultants, as
applicable. This Agreement may also be subject to compliance monitoring and
enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations. It shall be Consultant’s
sole responsibility to comply with all applicable registration and labor compliance
requirements. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the contractor registration
requirements mandated by Labor Code Sections 1725.5 and 1771.1 shall not
apply to work performed on a public works project that is exempt pursuant to the
small project exemption specified in Labor Code Sections 1725.5 and 1771.1.

This Agreement may also be subject to compliance monitoring and enforcement
by the Department of Industrial Relations. It shall be Consultant's sole
responsibility to comply with all applicable registration and labor compliance

7
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Section 11.

requirements. Any stop orders issued by the Department of Industrial Relations
against Consultant or any subcontractor that affect Consultant’s performance of
services, including any delay, shall be Consultant’s sole responsibility. Any delay
arising out of or resulting from such stop orders shall be considered Consultant
caused delay and shall not be compensable by the District. Consultant shall
defend, indemnify and hold the District, its officials, officers, employees and agents
free and harmless from any claim or liability arising out of stop orders issued by
the Department of Industrial Relations against Consultant or any subcontractor.

Conflicts of Interest.

Consultant covenants that neither Consultant, nor any officer, principal nor
employee of its firm, has or will acquire any interest, directly or indirectly, that would
conflict in any manner with the interests of District or that would in any way hinder
Consultant’s performance of services under this Agreement. Consultant further
covenants that neither Consultant, nor any officer, principal or employee of its firm
will make, participate in the making, or in any way attempt to use the position of
Consultant to influence any decision of the District in which Consultant knows or
has reason to know that Consultant, or any officer, principal or employee of
Consultant has a financial interest as defined in Government Code section 87103.

Section 12.

121

12.2

12.3

124

7/31/23 Master Copy

Confidential Information; Release of Information.

All information gained or work product produced by Consultant in
performance of this Agreement will be considered confidential to the full
extent permitted by law, unless such information is in the public domain or
already known to Consultant. Consultant shall not release or disclose any
such information or work product to persons or entities other than District
without prior written authorization from an Authorized Representative,
except as may be required by law.

Consultant, its officers, employees, or agents, shall not, without prior written
authorization from an Authorized Representative or unless requested by the
District counsel, voluntarily provide declarations, letters of support,
testimony at depositions, response to interrogatories or other information
concerning the work performed under this Agreement. Response to a
subpoena or court order will not be considered “voluntary” provided
Consultant gives District notice of such court order or subpoena.

If Consultant, or any officer, employee, or agent of Consultant, provides any
information or work product (including Project Documents) in violation of
this Agreement, then District shall have the right to reimbursement and
indemnity from Consultant for any damages, costs and fees, including
attorneys’ fees related to any unauthorized disclosure by consultant or,
caused by or incurred as a result of Consultant’s conduct.

Consultant shall promptly notify District should, Consultant, its officers,
employees, or agents be served with any summons, complaint, subpoena,

8
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notice of deposition, request for documents, interrogatories, request for
admissions or other discovery request, court order or subpoena from any
party regarding this Agreement and the services performed under this
Agreement. District retains the right, but has no obligation, to represent
Consultant or be present at any deposition, hearing or similar proceeding.
Consultant agrees to cooperate fully with District and to provide District with
the opportunity to review any response to discovery requests provided by
Consultant. However, this right to review any such response does not imply
or mean the right by District to control, direct, or rewrite such response.

Section 13. Indemnification.

13.1 Consultant covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Agreement,
any injury suffered as a result of Consultant's services shall be the sole
responsibility of Consultant and its successors and assigns and District shall not
be liable to Consultant, or any other person or persons whatsoever for any such
injury, loss or damage to persons or property unless caused by the sole negligence
or intentional acts of District or its Representatives (as solely defined below).

13.2 To the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant shall defend, indemnify
and hold District, its officers, directors and Representatives (“District Indemnitees”)
harmless from and against any and all claims, costs, liabilities, debts, demands,
suits, actions, causes of action, obligations, proceedings, damages, judgments,
liens and expenses of whatever nature, including attorneys’ fees and
disbursements (collectively, “Claims”) which may be made against the District
Indemnitees arising out of or in connection with (a) the retention by District of
Consultant’s services; (b) the performance of or failure to perform, the services
covered by this Agreement which is caused or occasioned by any act, action,
neglect on the part of Consultant, or its Representatives, in the performance of this
Agreement and the services provided under this Agreement; (c) the death and/or
injury to any person or damage to any property (real or personal) and/or economic
loss which may be caused or is claimed to have been caused, by the negligence,
act or omission of Consultant or its Representatives ; (d) any violation or alleged
violation by Consultant of any law or regulation now or hereafter enacted; and (e)
any breach by Consultant of its obligations under this Agreement. The foregoing
indemnity shall not apply to the extent any such Claims are ultimately established
by a court of competent jurisdiction to have been caused by the sole negligence
or willful misconduct of the District Indemnitees or any of them. District shall make
all decisions with respect to its representation in any legal proceeding concerning
this section. If Consultant fails to do so, District shall have the right, but not the
obligation, to defend the Claim and charge all of the direct or incidental costs of
such defense, including attorneys’ fees and costs, to Consultant and to recover the
same from Consultant. The term “Representatives” shall mean employees,
representatives, agents, contractors, subcontractors or any other persons directly
or indirectly employed by any one of the foregoing or reasonably under the control
of any of the foregoing or for whose acts any of the foregoing may be liable.

9
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13.3 If Consultant’s obligation to defend, indemnify, and/or hold harmless arises
out of Consultant’s performance of “design professional” services (as that term is
defined under Civil Code section 2782.8), then, and only to the extent required by
Civil Code section 2782.8, which is fully incorporated herein, Consultant’s
indemnification obligation shall be limited to claims that arise out of, pertain to, or
relate to the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of the Consultant, and,
upon Consultant obtaining a final adjudication by a court of competent jurisdiction,
Consultant’s liability for such claim, including the cost to defend, shall not exceed
the Consultant’s proportionate percentage of fault.

Section 14. Insurance.

Consultant agrees to obtain and maintain in full force and effect during the term of
this Agreement the insurance coverages listed in Exhibit “C.” All insurance policies
shall be subject to approval by District as to form and content. These requirements
are subject to amendment or waiver if so approved in writing by an Authorized
Representative.

Section 15. Assignment.

15.1 The expertise and experience of Consultant are material considerations for
this Agreement. District has an interest in the qualifications of and capability
of the persons and entities that will fulfill the duties and obligations imposed
upon Consultant under this Agreement. Consultant may not assign or
transfer this Agreement or any portion of this Agreement or the performance
of any of Consultant’s duties or obligations under this Agreement without
the prior written consent of District. ~The District can withhold its
approval/consent in its sole and absolute discretion. Any attempted
assignment will be null and void, and will constitute a material breach of this
Agreement entitling District to any and all remedies at law or in equity,
including summary termination of this Agreement.

15.2 Consultant must obtain District’s prior written approval before utilizing any
subcontractors to perform any services under this Agreement, which said
approval may be withheld in District’'s sole and absolute discretion. This
written approval must include the identity of the subcontractor and the terms
of compensation. Approval by District does not imply any agreement to or
endorsement by the District as to the competency or capability of any
proposed subcontractor or sub-consultant, and District reserves any and all
rights against both Consultant and such subcontractor or sub-consultant ,
for any failure to perform or other breach of any of the provisions of this
Agreement, or the standards of performance defined herein, and no waiver
is intended or to be implied by District's approval of any subcontractor or
sub-consultant.

10
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Section 16.
16.1

16.2

16.3

Section 17.
171

Termination of Aqreement.

District may terminate this Agreement, with or without cause, at any time by
giving ten (10) calendar days written notice of termination to Consultant. In
the event such notice is given, Consultant shall cease immediately all work
in progress.

Upon termination of this Agreement, all property belonging exclusively to
District which is in Consultant’s possession, including, but not limited to,
Project Documents must be returned to District immediately. Consultant
shall promptly deliver to District a final invoice for all outstanding services
performed and expenses incurred by Consultant as of the date of
termination. If said termination occurs prior to completion of any Task Order
for which a payment request has not been received, the charge for services
performed during such task shall be the reasonable value of such services,
based on an amount mutually agreed to by District and Consultant of the
portion of such Task Order completed but not paid prior to said termination.

Consultant acknowledges District’s right to terminate this Agreement as
provided in this section, and hereby waives any and all claims for damages
that might otherwise arise from District's termination of this Agreement.
District shall not be liable for any costs other than the charges or portions
thereof which are specified herein. Consultant shall not be entitled to
payment for unperformed services, and shall not be entitled to damages or
compensation for termination of work.

Notices.

All written notices required or permitted to be given under this Agreement
will be deemed made when received by the other Party at its respective
address as follows:

To District: West Valley Water District

855 West Base Line Road

P. O. Box 920

Rialto, CA 92377

Phone Number: (909) 875-1804

To Consultant: Thomas Harder & Company

7/31/23 Master Copy

Attention: Thomas Harder, P.G., C.HG.
1260 North Hancock Street, Suite 109
Anaheim, CA 92807

Phone Number: (714) 779-3875

Email: tharder@thomashardercompany.com

11
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** Please send all invoices by:

Email: apinvoices@wvwd.org

or

Mail: West Valley Water District

17.2

17.3

Section 18.
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18.5
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Accounts Payable
P.O. Box 190
Rialto, CA 92377

Notice will be deemed effective on the date personally delivered or
transmitted by facsimile. If the notice is mailed, notice will be deemed given
three (3) days after deposit of the same in the custody of the United States
Postal Service, postage prepaid, for first class delivery, or upon delivery if
using a major courier service with tracking capabilities.

Any Party may change its notice information by giving notice to the other
Party in compliance with this section.

General Provisions.

Authority to Execute. Each Party represents and warrants that all
necessary action has been taken by such Party to authorize the
undersigned to execute this Agreement and to bind it to the performance of
its obligations hereunder.

Binding Effect. Subject to Section 15, this Agreement is binding upon the
heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns of the Parties,
including any subcontractors or sub-consultants of Consultant.

Entire Agreement. This Agreement and all attachments contain the entire,
complete, final and exclusive agreement and understanding of the Parties
with respect to the matters addressed in this Agreement and supersedes all
other agreements or understandings, whether oral or written, between
Consultant and District prior to the execution of this Agreement.

Modification of Agreement. No amendment to or modification of this
Agreement will be valid unless made in writing and approved by Consultant
and approved in writing by the Board of Directors of the District, or in writing
by the General Manager, if such power has been delegated to General
Manager. The Parties agree that this requirement for written modifications
cannot be waived and that any attempted waiver will be void.

Facsimile Signatures. Amendments to this Agreement will be considered
executed when the signature of a Party is delivered by facsimile
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246


mailto:apinvoices@wvwd.org

18.6

18.7
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18.9

18.10
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transmission. Such facsimile signature will have the same effect as an
original signature.

Waiver. Waiver by any Party to this Agreement of any term, condition, or
covenant of this Agreement will not constitute a waiver of any other term,
condition, or covenant. Waiver by any Party of any breach of the provisions
of this Agreement will not constitute a waiver of any other provision, or a
waiver of any subsequent breach or violation of any provision of this
Agreement. Acceptance by District of any services by Consultant will not
constitute a waiver of any of the provisions of this Agreement.

Interpretation. This Agreement will be interpreted, construed and
governed according to the laws of the State of California. Each Party has
had the opportunity to review this Agreement with legal counsel. The
Agreement will be construed simply, as a whole, and in accordance with its
fair meaning, and without resort to rules regarding draftsmanship. It will not
be interpreted strictly for or against either Party.

Severability. If any provision of this Agreement shall be ruled invalid, illegal
or unenforceable, the Parties shall: (a) promptly negotiate a substitute for
the provisions which shall to the greatest extent legally permissible, effect
the intent of the Parties in the invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision, and
(b) negotiate such changes in, substitutions for or additions to the remaining
provisions of this Agreement as may be necessary in addition to and in
conjunction with subsection (a) above to give effect to the intent of the
Parties without the invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision. To the extent
the Parties are unable to negotiate such changes, substitutions or additions
as set forth in the preceding sentence, and the intent of the Parties with
respect to the essential terms of the Agreement may be carried out without
the invalid, illegal or unenforceable provisions, the balance of this
Agreement shall not be affected, and this Agreement shall be construed and
enforced as if the invalid, illegal or unenforceable provisions did not exist.

Venue. The Parties agree any action or proceeding to enforce or relating
to this Agreement shall be brought exclusively in the federal court located
in Riverside County, California or state court located in San Bernardino
County, California and the Parties hereto consent to the exercise of
personal jurisdiction over them by such courts for purposes of any such
action or proceeding.

Disputes. If any disputes should arise between the Parties concerning the
work to be done under this Agreement, the payments to be made, or the
manner of accomplishment of the work, Consultant shall nevertheless
proceed to perform the work as directed by District pending settlement of
the dispute.
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18.11 Cooperation. Consultant shall cooperate in the performance of work with
District and all other agents.

18.12 Time of Essence. Time shall be of the essence as to all dates and times
of performance contained in this Agreement.

18.13 Counterparts. This Agreement may be signed and delivered in any
number of counter parts, each of which, when signed and delivered, shall
be an original, but all of which shall together constitute one and the same
Agreement.

[SIGNATURES APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGE]
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SIGNATURE PAGE FOR AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES
BETWEEN THE WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT
AND THOMAS HARDER & COMPANY

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be
executed effective as of the day and year first above written.
DISTRICT:

WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT,
a public agency of the State of California

By

Kelvin Moore, President
By

John Thiel, General Manager
CONSULTANT:

THOMAS HARDER & COMPANY

By

Name

Its
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TASK ORDERNO. 1__

This Task Order (“Task Order”) is executed this day of , 2023
by and between West Valley Water District, a public agency of the State of California
(“District”) and (“Consultant”).

RECITALS

A. On or about , 2023 District and Consultant executed that
certain Agreement for Professional Services (“Agreement”).

B. The Agreement provides that the District will issue Task Orders from time to time,
for the provision of certain services by Consultant.

C. Pursuant to the Agreement, District and Consultant desire to enter into this Task
Order for the purpose of setting forth-the terms and conditions upon which
Consultant shall render certain services to the District.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES HERETO HEREBY AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

1. Consultant agrees to perform the services set forth on Exhibit “1” attached hereto
and by this reference incorporated herein.

2. Subject to any limitations in the Agreement, District shall pay to Consultant the
amounts specified in Exhibit “2” attached hereto and by this reference incorporated
herein. The total compensation, including reimbursement for actual expenses, may not
exceed the amount set forth in Exhibit “2,” unless additional compensation is approved in
writing by the District.

3. Consultant shall perform the services described in Exhibit “1” in accordance with
the schedule set forth in Exhibit “3” attached hereto and by this reference incorporated
herein. Consultant shall commence work immediately upon receipt of a notice to proceed
from the District. District will have no obligation to pay for any services rendered by
Consultant in advance of receipt of the notice to proceed, and Consultant acknowledges
that any such services are at Consultant’s own risk.

4. The provisions of the Agreement shall apply to this Task Order. As such, the terms
and conditions of the Agreement are hereby incorporated herein by this reference.

[SIGNATURES APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGE]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Task Order to be executed
effective as of the day and year first above written.
DISTRICT:

WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT,
a public agency of the State of California

John Thiel, General Manager

Board Secretary

CONSULTANT:

Vendor Name Here

By

Name

Its
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EXHIBIT “1”
TO

TASK ORDER NO. __1

SCOPE OF SERVICES

N
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EXHIBIT “2”
TO

TASK ORDER NO. __1

COMPENSATION

N
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EXHIBIT “3”
TO

TASK ORDER NO. __ 1

N

SCHEDULE
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EXHIBIT B
KEY PERSONNEL

Consultant’s designated representative(s) who are authorized to act on its behalf and to
make all decisions in connection with the performance of services under this Agreement
are:

Thomas Harder, P.G., C.HG.
Project Manager

Jim Van De Water, P.G., C.HG
Project Advisor

Lauren Healey, P.G
Senior Geologist

Matt Ford
Project Geoscientist

Russell Benoy
Staff Geoscientist
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EXHIBIT C
INSURANCE
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INSURANCE

A. General Requirements. Before commencing the performance of services under
this Agreement, and at all other times this Agreement is effective, Consultant must
procure and maintain the following types of insurance with coverage limits
complying, at a minimum, with the limits set forth below:

Type of Insurance Limits (combined single)
Commercial General Liability: $1,000,000
Business Automobile Liability $1,000,000
Professional Liability $1,000,000
Workers Compensation Statutory Requirement
B. Commercial General Liability Insurance. The amount of insurance set forth

above must be a combined single limit per occurrence for bodily injury, personal
injury, and property damage for the policy coverage. The insurance must be on
an “occurrence” not a “claims made” basis.

C. Business Automobile Insurance. Automobile coverage must be written on forms
subject to the written approval of District.

D. Professional Liability Insurance. This coverage must be on an “occurrence”
basis, including coverage for contractual liability. The Professional Liability
Insurance required by this Agreement must be endorsed to be applicable to claims
based upon, arising out of or related to services performed under this Agreement.

E. Workers Compensation. Consultant must have a State of California approved
policy form providing the statutory benefits required by law with employer’s liability
limits of no less than $1,000,000 per accident for all covered losses, or Consultant
must provide evidence of an approved self-insurance program.

F. Additional Insureds. Each Commercial General Liability Insurance policy and
Business Auto Insurance policy must provide that the District, its officials, officers,
employees, agents and volunteers are “additional insureds” under the terms of the
policy, and must provide that an act or omission of one the insureds will not reduce
or avoid coverage to the other insureds.

G. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retention. Any deductibles or self-insured
retentions applicable to the insurance policies required under this Agreement must
be declared to and approved by District. In no event may any required insurance
policy have a deductible, self-insured retention or other similar policy provision in
excess of $50,000 without prior written approval by District in its sole discretion.
At the option of District, either the insurer will reduce or eliminate such deductibles
or self-insured retentions with respect to the District’'s additional insureds or
Consultant will procure a bond guaranteeing payment of any losses, damages,
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expenses, costs or settlements up to the amount of such deductibles or self-
insured retentions.

Primary Insurance. Each of the insurance policies maintained by Consultant
under this Agreement must state that such insurance will be deemed “primary” so
that any insurance that may be carried by District will be deemed excess to that of
Consultant. This endorsement must be reflected on forms as determined by
District.

Certificates of Insurance and Endorsements. Prior to commencing any
services under this Agreement, Consultant must file with the District certificates of
insurance and endorsements evidencing the existence of all insurance required by
this Agreement, along with such other evidence of insurance or copies of policies
as may reasonably be required by District. These certificates of insurance and
endorsements must be in a form approved by the Legal Counsel. Consultant must
maintain current certificates and endorsements on file with District during the term
of this Agreement reflecting the existence of all required insurance. Each of the
certificates must expressly provide that no material change in the policy, or
termination thereof, will be effective except upon 30 days’ prior written notice to
District by certified mail, return receipt requested. The delivery to District of any
certificates of insurance or endorsements that do not comply with the requirements
of this Agreement will not waive the District’s right to require compliance.

Insurance Rating. All insurance required to be maintained by Consultant under
this Agreement must be issued by companies licensed by or admitted to conduct
insurance business in the State of California by the California Department of
Insurance and must have a rating of A or better and Class VIl or better by the latest
edition of A.M. Best’s Key Rating Guide.

Aggregate Limits. The aggregate limits for each insurance policy required under
this Agreement must apply separately and solely to the services performed under
this Agreement. If the required policies do not have an endorsement providing that
the aggregate limit applies separately to the services being performed, or if
defense costs are included in the aggregate limit, then the required aggregate
limits must be increased to an amount satisfactory to District.

Waiver of Subrogation Rights. Consultant and each insurer providing any
insurance required by this Agreement must waive all rights of subrogation against
District, its officials, officers, employees, agents and volunteers, and each insurer
must issue a certificate to the District evidencing this waiver of subrogation rights.

Failure to Maintain Required Insurance. If Consultant, for any reason, fails to
obtain and maintain the insurance required by this Agreement, District may obtain
such coverage at Consultant's expense and deduct the cost of such insurance
from payments due to Consultant under this Agreement or may terminate the
Agreement.
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N. Effect of Coverage. The existence of the required insurance coverage under this
Agreement shall not be deemed to satisfy or limit Consultant’'s indemnity
obligations under this Agreement. Consultant acknowledges that the insurance
coverage and policy limits set forth in this Agreement constitute the minimum
coverage and policy limits required. Any insurance proceeds available to District
in excess of the limits and coverage required by this Agreement, and which is
applicable to a given loss, must be made available to District to compensate it for
such losses.
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TASK ORDER NO. 1

Professional Services Related to Groundwater Modeling and Support Services

This Task Order (“Task Order”) is executed this day of December 2025 by and
between West Valley Water District, a public agency of the State of California (“District”)
and Thomas Harder & Company (TH&CO) (“Consultant”).

RECITALS

A. On or about , 2025 District and Consultant executed
that certain Agreement for Professional Services (“Agreement”).

B. The Agreement provides that the District will issue Task Orders from time to time,
for the provision of certain services provided by Consultant.

C. Pursuant to the Agreement, District and Consultant desire to enter into this Task
Order for the purpose of setting forth the terms and conditions upon which
Consultant shall render certain services to the District.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE PARTIES HERETO HEREBY AGREE AS FOLLOWS:

1. Consultant agrees to perform the services set forth on Exhibit “1” attached hereto
and by this reference incorporated herein.

2. Subject to any limitations in the Agreement and this Task Order, District shall pay
to Consultant the amounts specified in Exhibit “2” attached hereto and by this reference
incorporated herein. The total compensation, including reimbursement for actual
expenses, may not exceed the amount set forth in Exhibit “2,” unless additional
compensation is approved in writing by the District.

3. Consultant shall perform the services described in Exhibit “1” in accordance with
the schedule set forth in Exhibit “3” attached hereto and by this reference incorporated
herein. Consultant shall commence work immediately upon receipt of a notice to proceed
from the District. District will have no obligation to pay for any services rendered by
Consultant in advance of receipt of the notice to proceed, and Consultant acknowledges
that any such services are at Consultant’s own risk.

4. The provisions of the Agreement shall apply to this Task Order. As such, the terms
and conditions of the Agreement are hereby incorporated herein by this reference.

[SIGNATURES APPEAR ON FOLLOWING PAGE]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Task Order to be executed
effective as of the day and year first above written.

DISTRICT:

WEST VALLEY WATER DISTRICT,
a public agency of the State of California

By

Kelvin Moore, President
By

John Thiel, General Manager
CONSULTANT:

THOMAS HARDER & COMPANY (TH&CO)

By

Name

Its
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EXHIBIT “1”
TO

TASK ORDER NO. 1

SCOPE OF SERVICES

The purpose of the scope of services is to outline the tasks that are necessary to complete
Professional Services related to Groundwater Modeling for West Valley Water District
(District) pursuant to the attached proposal dated November 18, 2025.

7/31/23 Master Copy
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November 18, 2025

Linda Jadeski

West Valley Water District
Assistant General Manager
855 W. Base Line

P.0. Box 920

Rialto, CA 92377

Re: Rialto Basin Groundwater Council Technical Advisory Committee Response to
“Request for Proposal, Professional Services Related to Groundwater Modeling”

Dear Ms. Jadeski,

Thomas Harder & Company (TH&Co) appreciates the opportunity to submit this proposal to the
Rialto Basin Groundwater Council Technical Advisory Committee (RBGC TAC) for Professional
Services Related to Groundwater Modeling. We understand the urgency facing the RBGC TAC as
groundwater levels continue to decline, allowable extractions have been reduced under the 1961
decree, and the need for supplemental recharge—particularly at the Cactus Basins—has become
increasingly critical.

In addition to administrative information as required by the request for proposal (RFP), this
proposal outlines our technical understanding, scope of work, qualifications, and cost.

1. Background of Firm

TH&Co began as a sole proprietorship in 2008 and converted to an “S Corporation” in 2009. As
such, TH&Co has been operating as a professional entity continually for 17 years.

The physical location of our office is:

Thomas Harder & Company
1260 North Hancock Street, Suite 109
Anaheim, California 92807
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The contact person for response is:

Thomas Harder, P.G., C.HG.
President and Principal Hydrogeologist
1260 North Hancock Street, Suite 109
Anaheim, California 92807
(714) 779-3875
tharder@thomashardercompany.com

2. Statement of Project Understanding

The RBGC TAC, along with the parent RBGC, is navigating one of the most challenging periods in the
Basin’s history. Groundwater elevations have declined steadily for decades, culminating in a 50
percent reduction in allowable extraction for the stipulated parties and limited recovery even
during wet years. As a result, supplemental recharge—particularly at the Cactus Basins—has
emerged as a key strategy for stabilizing and ultimately improving groundwater levels.

At the same time, the Cactus Basins overlie the eastern perchlorate plume, a regulated water quality
concern requiring careful, defensible modeling to ensure that increased recharge volumes do not
mobilize contaminants or exacerbate compliance obligations under USEPA and Regional Board
oversight.

TH&Co will provide the independent modeling expertise needed to support RBGC priorities. We will
review existing groundwater model information as it is posted on the SharePoint site, participate in
the Modeling Technical Subgroup, recommend model improvements where needed, and assist in
the development of recharge scenarios that quantify benefits, risks, and long-term impacts on Basin
sustainability and water quality.

Our objectives include:

e Supporting safe, effective, and optimized groundwater recharge.
e Ensuring that RBGC'’s technical interests are represented in all modeling decisions.
¢ Providing modeling recommendations that are transparent, defensible, and regulator-ready.

e Delivering actionable recommendations that support long-term Basin resilience.
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The potential obstacle to this work is that several models (e.g., “Geosciences”, “OU-1/Emhart”,
“OU-2/RTX”, and “GLA/SB County”) have been developed and all will likely give different
predictions with respect to groundwater elevations and perchlorate plume migration in and around
the Cactus Basins due to different model domain boundaries, parameterization, layer
configurations, etc. As discussed at the October 3rd Technical Advisory Group (TAG) / Modeling
Technical Subgroup meeting and the subsequent November 12t meeting, an initial approach in
which the modelers will develop agreed-upon particle release locations and release times is
ongoing. This will provide a preliminary ‘ensemble’ that will allow for an initial assessment
regarding model performance and identification of outlier predictions. From there, it is envisioned
that a more robust ensemble approach configured using one or more PEST software programs will
be implemented.

3. Organizational Chart

Tom Harder, President of TH&Co and Principal Hydrogeologist, will serve as the Project Manager
and will be the point of contact for the RBGC and RBGC TAC. Jim Van de Water heads TH&Co’s
modeling group and will serve as technical advisor and, along with Tom, will direct modeling
personnel including Lauren Healey, Matt Ford, and Russell Benoy as shown in the organization chart
below.

PROJECT MANAGER
Thomas Harder, P.G., C.HG.
Principal Hydrogeologist

PROJECT ADVISOR
Jim Van de Water, P.G., C.HG.
Principal Hydrogeologist

Lauren Healey, P.G. Matt Ford Russell Benoy
Senior Geologist Project Geoscientist Staff Geoscientist
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4. Qualifications

In addition to our specialization in well design, TH&Co also specializes in groundwater modeling,
recharge optimization, basin sustainability evaluation, and regulatory coordination. An ongoing
focus of the firm has been on model predictive uncertainty and the use of groundwater models as
risk-management tools. To this end, TH&Co developed an ongoing relationship with Dr. John
Doherty - the author of PEST (“Parameter ESTimation”) - starting in 2018. This relationship
subsequently led to partial funding for the development of OLPROC (Observation List PROCessor),
a lumped parameter delayed recharge utility that can be used as a pre-processor within a PEST
setup, and a novel way of ensuring internal consistency of aquifer parameters using PLPROC
(Parameter List PROCessor) during history matching using PEST-HP (highly-parameterized version
of PEST), IES (Iterative Ensemble Smoother), and most recently, ENSI (ENsemble Space Inversion).
As such, TH&Co is an acknowledged contributor to the development of PEST on the ‘PEST
Homepage’ (https://pesthomepage.org/acknowledgements). TH&Co is also an acknowledged
contributor to the U.S. Geological Survey’s freeware graphical user interface (GUI) “ModelMuse”,
specifically, the “Revision of ModelMuse to Support the Use of PEST Software With MODFLOW and
SUTRA Models” (https://pubs.usgs.gov/tm/06/a64/tm6a64.pdf).

With respect to local expertise, having participated over the past year in Perchlorate Task Force
meetings on behalf of Fontana Water Company (FWC), TH&Co understands the complex hydrologic-
water quality interactions associated with the both the western and eastern perchlorate plumes and
the need for technically defensible modeling to support informed decision-making. As part of our
recent and ongoing work for FWC, TH&Co provided recommendations to San Bernardino Valley
Municipal Water District regarding the San Bernardino Basins Model (SBBM) in May. Through that
work, and our ongoing modeling work in the Chino Basin, Beaumont Basin, Cucamonga Basin, and
Yucaipa Basin, TH&Co has established a firm understanding of local and regional hydrogeologic
conditions.

TH&Co understands that interviews may be conducted at the discretion of the RBGC TAC so that
key personnel may present their qualifications. The resumes for all personnel listed in the
organization chart are included as Attachment A.

5. Scope of Work to be Performed

The scope of work is listed below with details provided in subsequent subsections. Note that Task
3 combines several closely related line-item tasks from the RFP. The cost is presented in Section 7
of this proposal but reference is made to the cost table (Table 1) for the sake of clarity.
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1. Cactus Basin Technical Advisory Group (TAG)

2. SBBA/Rialto-Colton Groundwater Model Update Steering Committee

3. Relay Relevant Information to RBGC and TAC, Ensure RBGC Interests are Protected, and
Provide Technical Guidance to Support RBGC Decision-Making

4. Complete Modeling of Behalf of the RBGC

Project Management

6. Update Meetings with RBGC

u

5.1 Cactus Basin TAG (Task 1)

TH&Co will represent the RBGC in the Cactus Basin TAG to ensure a proper groundwater model is
selected, configured, and applied to reflect basin conditions and recharge. Our cost (Table 1)
assumes two remote meetings, two hours in duration, per month.

5.2 SBBA/Rialto-Colton Groundwater Update Steering Committee (Task 2)

TH&Co will represent the RBGC in technical discussions and modeling efforts at steering committee
meetings. TH&Co has already provided written recommendations for our ongoing work for FWC as
noted earlier. Our cost (Table 1) assumes two remote meetings, two hours in duration, per month.

5.3 Relay Relevant Information to RBGC and TAC (Task 3)

TH&Co will relay relevant information in the form of meeting summaries, technical memoranda
(TMs), and a findings and recommendations report. This task:

e Will be completed in the spirit of ensuring RBGC interests are protected and principals set
forth in various agreements are adhered to; and

e Will focus on providing technical guidance to ensure that the model(s) are designed and
configured in an appropriate manner to be used as decision-support tools.

With respect to meeting summaries (Task 3.1 in Table 1), our cost assumes twenty-four Cactus
Basin TAG and twenty-four Steering Committee meetings per year (i.e., a total of 48 meetings). With
respect to TMs and reports (Tasks 3.2 and 3.3 in Table 1), our cost assumes that we will issue two
TMs and one report per year, respectively. It is our expectation that the first TM will be an
implementation plan that addresses specific goals of the RBGC TAC. Our cost also assumes that we
will give one presentation to the RBGC TAG per year to present our overall findings as documented
in the two TMs and report.
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5.4 Independent Modeling (Task 4)

This is an optional task and not costed in our proposal. It is our expectation that the need for TH&Co
to conduct independent modeling will become clear as Cactus Basin and Steering Committee
meetings are convened in the first half of 2026. If independent modeling is deemed necessary by
the RBGC TAC, TH&Co will provide a separate proposal and cost estimate at that time.

5.5 Supplemental Meetings (Task 5)

This task involves additional meetings beyond those associated with the Cactus Basin TAG and
Steering Committee as warranted /requested by the RBGC. Our cost assumes that six supplemental
remote meetings, 1 hour each in duration, will be conducted.

5.6 Project Management (Task 6)

Project management will involve all administrative aspects of the project, including coordinating
efforts with the RBGC TAC and other logistical items. Project management fees are based on a flat
ten percent (10%) rate applied to total labor costs (i.e., 10% of the sum of Task 1 through Task 5
costs as presented in Table 1).

6. References

Mr. John Schatz, Esq.

General Counsel to Chino Basin Appropriative Pool
PO Box 7775

Laguna Niguel, CA 92607-7775

Phone: 949-683-0398

e TH&Co has served in a peer-review capacity for the Chino Basin Appropriative Pool, with a
particular focus on the Chino Valley Model (CVM) and its use as a decision support tool, since
2013. The contract is open-ended and, on average over the last few years, TH&Co has billed
approximately $20,000 per year for this ongoing work. TH&Co is currently providing
comments to the Safe Yield Reset 2025 Draft Report.

Ms. Amanda Coker

Engineering Manager

Cucamonga Valley Water District
10440 Ashford Street

Rancho Cucamonga, California 91730
Phone: 855 654-2893
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e TH&Co, as a subcontractor to Provost & Pritchard (P&P), developed a groundwater flow
model for the Cucamonga Basin from 2022 to 2024 and has recently been re-engaged to
provide further support to P&P and the CVWD (along with San Antonio Water Company and
West End Consolidated Water Company) in their ongoing efforts to manage the basin. As part
of the original $322,660 contract, TH&Co also assisted with the Annual report, gave
in-person presentations at CVWD, and provided several hands-on remote training sessions
regarding the use of the model to CVWD, SAWCO, and WECWC staff.

Mr. Dan Jaggers

General Manager

Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District
560 Magnolia Avenue

Beaumont, CA 92223

(951) 845-9581

e TH&Co developed and has recently updated the groundwater flow model for the Beaumont
Basin. The initial model development work was performed in 2012-2013 and TH&Co has
served as the basin hydrogeologist for the basin since that time. Recent work included
updating the model and revising the safe yield of the basin based on the updated model.
Ongoing work includes a basin loss analysis using particle tracking and developing a basin
loss policy based on model results. Our ongoing hydrogeological services contract averages
$55,000 annually. This cost does not include additional modeling tasks as requested by
Watermaster.

7. Project Cost

Our not-to-exceed project total cost estimate, $122,958, is for the forthcoming calendar year (i.e.,
January 1, 2026 through December 31, 2026) as per our 2026 fee schedule. Assumptions for each
item in the scope of work are provided above and in the cost table (Table 1). It is important to note
that we anticipate our cost to be an upperbound estimate given our upperbound assumptions
regarding meeting frequency and, possibly, meeting duration based on our interpretation of the RFP.
Costs associated with meetings exceed $65,000 in our estimate (see Tasks 1, 2, 3.1, and 5. Because
project management [Task 6] is linked to total cost, a reduction in the meeting costs will also result in
a reduction in project management costs). In short, reductions in meeting frequency and duration
would result in significant reductions in the total cost.
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8. Authorized Signatory

This proposal is jointly signed by Thomas Harder (Company President and Principal
Hydrogeologist) and Jim Van de Water (Company Secretary and Principal Hydrogeologist) and is
valid for ninety days.

9. Acceptance of Agreement/Insurance Provisions

TH&Co has reviewed the professional services agreement (PSA) and has no requests for
modifications.

10. Closing

TH&Co thanks the RBGC TAC for providing this opportunity and looks forward to working with you
on this important effort. If you have any questions, please contact Tom at your convenience at
(714) 779-3875.

Thowes odn iV de Wtz

Thomas Harder, P.G., C.HG. Jim Van de Water, P.G., C.HG.
Principal Hydrogeologist Principal Hydrogeologist
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EXHIBIT “2”

TO

TASK ORDER NO. 1

COMPENSATION
Task Description Cost

1 Cactus Basin TAG $24,960.00

2 SBBA/Rialto-Colton Groundwater Model Update Steering Committee $24,960.00
3 | Relay Relevant Information to RBGC and TAC $55,740.00
4 | Independent Modeling $0.00
Supplemental Meetings $6,120.00
Project Management $11,178.00

Grand Total | $122,958.00

4
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Table 1

Cost Estimate
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Rialto Basin Groundwater Council Technical Advistory Committee

Annual Cost Estimate for Professional Services Related to Groundwater Modeling

Rialto Basin Groundwater Council

Principal
Hydro-
Geologist Geologist
J. Van de
Water
$260/hr

Description

T. Harder
$260/hr

Cactus Basin TAG

Principal
Hydro-

L. Healey
$190/hr

Project
J Staff Geo- .
Geo- o Graphics
oy Scientist
Scientist

M. Ford
$165/hr

R. Benoy

$145/hr $130/hr

Clerical

$100/hr

Total

Labor Expenses

Reimbursable

Total
Cost

Represent RBGC (assumes 2 remote

meetings per month for 1 year; meetings are 48 48 0 0 0 0 0 $24,960 $0 | $24,960
assumed to be 2 hours in duration)
Subtotal Task 1 $24,960 $0 $24,960
2 SBBA/Rialto-Colton Groundwater Model Update Steering_j Committee
Represent RBGC (assumes 2 remote
meetings per month for 1 year; meetings are 48 48 0 0 0 0 0 $24,960 $0 | $24,960
assumed to be 2 hours in duration)
Subtotal Task 2 $24,960 $0 $24,960
3 Relay Relevent Information to RBGC and TAC
Meeting Summaries (assumes 24 Cactus
3.1 |Basin TAG and 24 Steering Committee 24 12 0 0 0 0 0 $9,360 $0 | $9,360
meetings per year)
39 ;:;:rr;mcal Memoranda (assumes 1 TM per o4 12 8 8 8 0 0 $13,360 $0 | $13,360
33 Findings and Recommendations (assumes 1 32 o4 24 12 8 8 5 $23,500 $0 | $23,500
report per year)
34 Presentatllons (assumes 1 formal 16 8 8 4 4 4 0 $9.520 $0| $9.520
presentation per year)
Subtotal Task 3 $55,740 $0 $55,740
4 Independent Modeling
Optignal task not costed in this proposal (see NOT COSTED FOR THIS PROPOSAL
Section 5.4 of proposal text)
Subtotal Task 4 $0 $0 $0

Thomas Harder & Co. \%
Groundwater Consulting

10of2

Table 1

November 18, 2025
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Rialto Basin Groundwater Council Technical Advistory Committee Table 1

Annual Cost Estimate for Professional Services Related to Groundwater Modeling
Rialto Basin Groundwater Council

Principal Principal Project

Senior Staff Geo-

Hydro- Hydro- Geo- Graphics  Clerical
Description Geologist Geologist

Geologist Scientist Scientist Total Reimbursable Total

J. Van de Labor Expenses Cost

T. Harder Water L. Healey @M. Ford R. Benoy

$260/hr $260/hr $190/hr $165/hr $145/hr $130/hr $100/hr

5 Supplemental Meetings

Cost assumes 6 remote meetings per year
(1 hour per meeting) to provide updates to 6 6 6 6 6 0 0 $6,120 $0| $6,120
the RBGC

Subtotal Task 5  $6,120 $0 $6,120

6 Project Management

Project management fees are based on a
flat ten percent (10%) rate applied to total ) ) ) ) ) ) )
6.1 labor costs (i.e., 10% of the sum of Task 1 $11.178 30| $11,178

through Task 5 costs)

Subtotal Task 6 $11,178 $0 $11,178

TOTAL $122,958 $0 $122,958

Thomas Harder & Co. \%
Groundwater Consulting 20f2 November 18, 2025
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THOMAS E. HARDER

Principal Hydrogeologist

EDUCATION

B.S., Geology. California State
Polytechnic University -
Pomona, 1990

M.S., Geology with Honors.
Emphasis in Hydrogeology,
California State University — Los
Angeles, 1995

PROFESSIONAL
REGISTRATIONS

California Professional
Geologist (No. 6512)

Certified California
Hydrogeologist (No. 588)

PROFESSIONAL
AFFILIATIONS

National Ground Water
Association

Groundwater Resource
Association of California

Watereuse Association

For more than three decades, Mr. Harder has been
providing technical direction for municipalities and
private interests to develop sustainable groundwater
resources for the economy and well-being of the
residents of California. From groundwater recharge
projects in the Mojave Desert to basin management and
adjudication in southern California to the modeling and
management of banking operations in the Kern Water
Bank, Mr. Harder has played a key role in providing the
technical support needed to guide decisions for basin
managers. His expertise spans a wide range of
hydrogeological  disciplines, including  regional
groundwater basin analysis, sustainable yield, artificial
recharge, groundwater management, groundwater
models, contaminant hydrogeology, and water wells.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

2008 to Present: Principal Hydrogeologist, Thomas
Harder & Co.; Anaheim, California

1998 to 2008: Senior Geohydrologist, Geoscience
Support Services, Inc.; Claremont, California

1997 to 1998: Principal Hydrogeologist, Geosciences
Department Manager, Parsons Engineering Science;
Pasadena, California

1989 to 1997: Senior Geologist, Harding Lawson
Associates; Irvine, California

TECHNICAL COMMITTEE PARTICIPATION

2016 - Present: Metropolitan Water District of Southern
California Regional Recycled Water Recharge Scientific
Advisory Panel

2011 to 2016: Kern Fan Monitoring Committee —
Groundwater Model Technical Advisory Subcommittee

2010 to 2013: Chino Basin Recharge Master Plan
Steering Committee

2009 to 2012: Chino Basin Watermaster Appropriative
Pool and Advisory Committee

2003 to Present: Big Bear Lake Department of Water
Groundwater Management Technical Review Team

2002: Chino Basin Subsidence Technical Committee
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THOMAS E. HARDER

Principal Hydrogeologist

PROJECT EXPERIENCE — GROUNDWATER MODELS
Groundwater Flow Model of the Tule Subbasin — Tulare County, CA

Client: Tule Subbasin MOU Group. 2017 - Present.

Currently developing a numerical groundwater flow model of the Tule Subbasin for use in support
of Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) compliance. The model is being prepared
using the USGS code OWHM (MODFLOW) and covers an area of approximately 1,100 square
miles. The model analysis will be used to refine the Sustainable Yield estimate of the subbasin and
enable planning analyses using basin management scenarios. The model analysis is also being used
to inform the development of six Groundwater Sustainability Plans (GSPs) for the six individual
Groundwater Sustainability Agencies (GSAs) in the subbasin.

Groundwater Flow Model of the South Fork Kern River Area — Lake Isabella, CA
Client: Rosedale-Rio Bravo Water Storage District. 2011 to Present.

Developed a numerical surface water and groundwater flow model of the South Fork Kern River
Valley east of Lake Isabella, California. The model was developed to assess potential project
benefits associated with water diversions from the river and impacts on a riparian habitat. The
model was developed using MODFLOW and encompasses approximately 173 square miles.

Groundwater Flow Model of the Erwin Subunit — Erwin Lake Area, CA
Client: California Department of Fish and Wildlife. 2016 to 2017.

Technical lead for development of a numerical groundwater flow model of the Erwin Subunit near
Erwin, California in the San Bernardino Mountains. The model was developed to assess the impact
of groundwater pumping on a natural spring pond that supports the Stickleback Fish and to develop
options for sustaining the pond. The model was developed using MODFLOW.

Groundwater Flow Model of the Kern Fan Area — Bakersfield, CA

Client: Rosedale-Rio Bravo Water Storage District. 2011 to Present.

Developed a numerical groundwater flow model of the Kern Fan Area west of Bakersfield,
California. Included development of both conceptual and numerical models (MODFLOW). The
model encompasses approximately 160 square miles and is constructed with three layers, 268 rows
and 417 columns (200-ft grid cells). The model includes 243 non-agricultural production wells,
181 agricultural production wells, and 89 individual recharge zones, most of which are associated
with the Kern Water Bank and Pioneer Projects. The model has been successfully calibrated for the
transient period from 1988 through 2016. The model is currently being used to evaluate potential
groundwater level changes associated with various recharge and recovery scenarios within the
model area.

Thomas Harder & Co. \%

Groundwater Consulting 2
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THOMAS E. HARDER

Principal Hydrogeologist

PROJECT EXPERIENCE — GROUNDWATER MODELS

Groundwater Flow Model of the Beaumont Basin — Riverside County, CA

Client: Beaumont Basin Watermaster. 2012 to 2014.

Developed a numerical groundwater flow model of the Beaumont Basin for the purpose of
groundwater management and reevaluating the safe yield of the basin. The model was developed
using MODFLOW and encompasses approximately 42 square miles. The model is currently being
updated and recalibrated on an annual basis for the purpose of evaluating groundwater resources
and planning scenarios.

Groundwater Dewatering Evaluation for Cow Camp Road Waterlines — Rancho Mission Viejo,
CA

Client: GMU Geotechnical/Rancho Mission Viejo. 2012 to 2015.

Developed a numerical groundwater flow model (MODFLOW) of the Chiquita Canyon area for the
purpose of evaluating optimum well locations and expected discharge rates for extraction wells to
dewater a planned pipeline jack-and-bore excavation beneath Chiquita Creek. The model was
calibrated to steady state conditions based on groundwater levels measured in area wells. Aquifer
parameters were developed based on pumping tests that TH&Co conducted in new wells
constructed near the dewatering site.

Park Place Parking Structure Subdrain Design — Irvine, CA

Client: The Irvine Company. 2011 to 2012.

Conducted a hydrogeological analysis of historical groundwater levels in the vicinity of a proposed
parking structure. Developed a groundwater flow model for assessing the effectiveness of a
proposed subdrain design at maintaining groundwater levels below the bottom of the parking
structure.

Portola Hills Drainage Levee Certification — Irvine, CA
Client: NMG Geotechnical/The Irvine Company. 2010.

Developed a coupled unsaturated/saturated flow groundwater model to assess potential seepage
through the levee from a 100 year flood. Included the collection and analysis of borehole lithologic
data and surface water flow measurements in the drainage channel. The model was used to
simulate seepage through the levee under both steady state and transient flow conditions within the
channel. Results of the model were used to obtain certification of the levee with the Federal
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA).

Chino Desalter Groundwater Flow Model Update — Chino Basin, CA

Client: Chino Basin Desalter Authority. 2007 to 2008.

Updated a previously established MODFLOW groundwater flow model of the Chino Basin to
assess potential future regional drawdown from desalter groundwater pumping operations. The
model was updated using data obtained from pumping tests of the Chino I expansion and Chino II
wells as well as information from local subsidence investigations. Predictive scenarios included the
addition of a proposed Chino Creek Well Field and five Chino II expansion wells.

Thomas Harder & Co. \%
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THOMAS E. HARDER

Principal Hydrogeologist

PROJECT EXPERIENCE — GROUNDWATER MODELS
Groundwater Flow Model of the Murrieta Valley — Murrieta, CA

Client: Western Municipal Water District. 2007 to 2008.

Developed a groundwater flow model of the watershed encompassing the Murrieta Valley to assess
potential future conjunctive use options for the District. Included development of both conceptual
and numerical models (MODFLOW). Developed four conjunctive use scenarios for evaluation
with the model, all involving aquifer storage and recovery wells.

Fashion Island Parking Structure Subdrain Design — Newport Beach, CA
Client: The Irvine Company. 2006 to 2007.

Developed and implemented a work plan to drill boreholes and construct monitoring wells in a
parking lot to assess hydrogeologic properties for designing a subdrain system for high
groundwater. Included developing a groundwater flow model for assessing potential groundwater
flow to the subdrain beneath the proposed parking structure.

Pole Creek Debris Basin Subdrain Design — Fillmore, CA

Client: Griffin Industries. 2006.

Modified an existing MODFLOW model to assess the amount of groundwater flow that could be
expected in order to maintain groundwater levels a satisfactory depth below a proposed debris
basin. Results of the model effort were used in support of a subdrain design.

Chino Basin Water Quality Evaluation — Chino Basin, CA

Client: Jurupa Community Services District. 2002 to 2003.

Updated a previously established groundwater flow model of the Chino Basin to include a solute
fate and transport package (using MT3D) to assess the impact of artificial recharge operations
planned by the Chino Basin Watermaster on Nitrate and TDS concentrations in the southern
Chino Basin.

USGS Model of the Beaumont and Banning Groundwater Storage Units — San Gorgonio Pass,
CA

Client: Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District. 2005.

Provided a peer review of the USGS report. This included a MODFLOW model of the Beaumont
and Banning Storage Units and a rainfall runoff model of the surrounding watershed (Infil v.3).

San Luis Rey River Groundwater Storage and Recovery Study — Oceanside, CA

Client: San Diego County Water Authority. 2004.

Provided peer review oversight of a MODFLOW groundwater flow model of the Mission and
Bonsall Basins prepared as part of a large scale conjunctive use study.
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THOMAS E. HARDER

Principal Hydrogeologist

PROJECT EXPERIENCE — GROUNDWATER MODELS

Arrowhead East Tunnel — San Bernardino County, CA

Client: Metropolitan Water District of Southern California. 1999 to 2003.

Technical advisory role in the oversight of the development of a discreet fracture groundwater flow
model (FracMan) by the United States Geological Survey. Included participation at periodic update
meetings and preparation of response letters to provide input for the development of the model.

Havfield Groundwater Storage Program — Riverside County, CA

Client: Metropolitan Water District of Southern California. 2003.

Provided peer review oversight of a MODFLOW groundwater flow model of the Hayfield Valley
prepared as part of the Hayfield Groundwater Storage Program.

1-105 Groundwater Beneficial Use Study — Downey, CA

Client: Black & Veatch / City of Downey. 2002.

Modified and expanded an existing groundwater flow model (the US Geological Survey’s code
MODFLOW) to include updated groundwater levels and production data to assess optimum
pumping rates to maintain water levels below the freeway surface. Capture zones from 5 proposed
wells were assessed using EPA’s Wellhead Protection Area (WHPA) model for use in a
Department of Health Services DWSAP Permit.

Fate and Transport Model of MCAS El Toro TCE Plume — Irvine, CA

Client: Confidential. 2002.

Prepared a detailed hydrogeologic analysis of the potential impacts of historical volatile organic
compound (VOC) releases from the El Toro Marine Corps Air Station on a proposed future
development. The analysis included a detailed assessment of the current extent of the VOC plume
and development of a 2-dimensional groundwater fate and transport model to assess the potential
future extent of the plume. The report was used in support of an Environmental Impact Report for
the proposed development.

Cadiz Groundwater Storage and Dry-Year Supply Program — Cadiz, CA

Client: Metropolitan Water District of Southern California. 1998 to 2002.

Provided technical assistance for the development of a comprehensive watershed hydrologic model
and groundwater flow model (MODFLOW) that encompassed the Bristol, Fenner and Cadiz
watersheds of the eastern Mojave Desert, San Bernardino County. Results of the modeling effort
were used to assess average annual recharge to the area and provide a planning tool to evaluate
potential operational scenarios for a conjunctive use program using surface spreading basins.

Surface Water/Groundwater Model - Santa Margarita River Watershed — Temecula, CA

Client: Rancho California Water District. 1998 to 2002.

Technical assistant for the development of a conceptual hydrogeologic model of the
Upper Santa Margarita River watershed for the purpose of quantifying the relationship between
surface water and groundwater within the watershed.
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THOMAS E. HARDER

Principal Hydrogeologist

PROJECT EXPERIENCE — GROUNDWATER MODELS
Chino Desalter System Projects — Chino, CA

Client: Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority / Chino Basin Desalter Authority. 2001.

Developed a groundwater flow model of a large portion of the Chino Basin using MODFLOW to
evaluate potential groundwater level changes associated with a proposed desalter well field.

Thomas Harder & Co. %
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Jim Van de Water, PG, CHG

Principal Hydrogeologist

EDUCATION

B.S., Geology. State University
of New York at Stony Brook,
1986

M.S., Hydrology and Water
Resources, University of Arizona,
1989

PROFESSIONAL
REGISTRATIONS

California Professional
Geologist (No. 6538)

Certified California
Hydrogeologist (No. 508)

Arizona Registered Geologist
(No. 61345)

PROFESSIONAL
AFFILIATIONS

National Ground Water
Association

During his 36 years of professional experience, Mr. Van
de Water has conducted numerous modeling studies
throughout the United States in support of water supply,
remediation system design, and risk assessment. His
work has involved water and irrigation districts in
California and Arizona as well as USEPA and state
agencies in California, Nevada, Arizona, Utah, Indiana,
New Jersey, and Hawaii. His primary expertise is in the
development and application of deterministic and
stochastic analytical groundwater flow and solute
transport models and numerical groundwater flow and
solute transport models in support of regional- and site-
scale hydrogeologic investigations and risk assessment
and the application of inverse modeling software (i.e.,
PEST and its associated utility programs) for history
matching and uncertainty analysis. In addition to
modeling, his expertise includes groundwater sampling,
design and construction of monitoring, extraction, and
injection wells, aquifer testing and analysis using
analytical and numerical methods, and statistical analysis.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

2014 to Present: Principal Hydrogeologist, Thomas
Harder & Co.; Anaheim, California

1999 to 2014: Independent Consulting Hydrogeologist;
Irvine, California

1995 to 1999: Associate Hydrogeologist, Harding
Lawson Associates; Irvine, California

1994 to 1995: Senior Hydrogeologist, Bechtel
Corporation; Norwalk, California

1992 to 1994: Senior Hydrogeologist, Multimedia
Environmental Technology; Newport Beach, California

1991 to 1992: Project Hydrogeologist, Fluor Daniel;
Irvine, California

1989 to 1991: Staff Hydrogeologist, McLaren-Hart;
Irvine, California
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Jim Van de Water, PG, CHG

Principal Hydrogeologist
RELEVANT PROJECT EXPERIENCE

Basin-Scale Groundwater Flow Modeling

Groundwater Modeling for a Aquifer Storage and Recovery Project, San Bernardino County, CA
Client: Blua Consulting LLC. 2025 (ongoing)
Oversaw development of a submodel extracted from the USGS Yucaipa Integrated Hydrologic
Model to evaluate groundwater injection scenarios for a proposed ASR project. The submodel was

coupled to MODPATH and MT3D to assess migration of nitrate and 123-TCP in response to
proposed ASR project.

Chino Valley Model - Groundwater Flow Model of the Chino Basin — San Bernardino County, CA
Client: John Schatz, Esq. 2022-present (ongoing)

Along with Tom Harder, serves as technical advisor to Appropriative Pool providing review of the
ongoing update to the Chino Valley Model developed by West Yost on behalf of the Chino Basin
Watermaster. Recommended that model be configured within a PEST++-1ES framework for history
matching and uncertainty analysis. The recommendation was implemented and final review of the
2025 Safe Yield Reset report is ongoing.

Groundwater Flow Model of the Cucamonga Basin — San Bernardino County, CA

Client: Provost & Pritchard. 2022-2024.

Developed the numerical groundwater flow model of the Cucamonga Basin based on a cut-out model
of the larger Chino Valley Model. The model is being used for basin management and evaluating
the safe yield of the basin. History matching was conducted using PEST++-IES within a setup the
contained nearly 500,000 parameters. Calibration targets included heads and head differences. The
uncertainty analysis provided a range of safe yield estimates based on a final ensemble of
200 realizations.

Groundwater Flow Model of the Onyx Ranch Area — Onvx, CA

Client: Spaletta Law PC/Rosedale Rio Bravo Water Storage District. 2021 to present (ongoing).

Updated and revised existing groundwater flow model for the Onyx Ranch Area. The model includes
the advanced SFR2 and UZF packages which are configured within a PEST++-ENSI/PEST++-IES
framework. Integrated heads, head differences, stream stages, steam stage differences, streamflows,
and streamflow differences as calibration targets to better constrain the inverse problem. Developed
a fully integrated water budget that includes surface water, the unsaturated zone, and the saturated
zone.
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Jim Van de Water, PG, CHG

Principal Hydrogeologist
Basin-Scale Groundwater Flow Modeling (continued)

Groundwater Flow Model of the Borrego Springs Area — Bakersfield, CA

Client: Confidential. 2019.

Conducted numerical groundwater flow model (MODFLOW-OWHM) simulations to estimate the
sustainable yield of the Borrego Springs Groundwater Subbasin as it relates to the Borrego Valley
Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP). The analysis was expanded to account for the impacts of
future projects, management actions, and climate change on the overall water balance to meet the
requirements of the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA).

Groundwater Flow Model of the Tule Basin — Tulare County, CA

Client: Tule Basin MOU Group, 2017 to present (ongoing).

Developed a numerical groundwater flow model of the Tule Subbasin using the USGS code OWHM
(MODFLOW). The model covers an area of approximately 1,100 square miles and has been prepared
in support of Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) compliance. The model analysis
will be used to refine the Sustainable Yield estimate of the subbasin and enable planning analyses
using basin management scenarios. The model analysis is also being used to inform the development
of six Groundwater Sustainability Plans (GSPs) for the six individual Groundwater Sustainability
Agencies (GSAs) in the subbasin. Worked with Dr. John Doherty to develop a novel approach using
the PEST utility ‘PLPROC” (parameter list processor) to ensure internal consistency among aquifer
parameters during history matching. History matching was conducted using PEST HP with plans to
use PEST++-ENSI combined with PEST++-IES for future efforts and uncertainty analysis.

Groundwater Flow Model of the Beaumont Basin — Riverside County, CA

Client: Beaumont Basin Watermaster. 2014 to Present (ongoing).

Assisted in the development of a numerical groundwater flow model of the Beaumont Basin for the
purpose of groundwater management and reevaluating the safe yield of the basin. Modified the model
in 2022 to include several new features and calibrated it using PEST++-ENSI followed by uncertainty
analysis using PEST++-IES.

Groundwater Flow Model of the Kern Fan Area — Bakersfield, CA

Client: Rosedale-Rio Bravo Water Storage District. 2011 to Present (ongoing).

Assisted in the development of a numerical groundwater flow model using MODFLOW-
2005/0WHM of the Kern Fan Area west of Bakersfield, California. Calibrated the model using
PEST++-IES. The model is used to evaluate potential groundwater level changes associated with
various recharge and recovery scenarios. Developed a front-end pre-processor to calculate pumping
and return flow based on precipitation, surface deliveries, crop properties, and satellite
evapotranspiration data. Worked with Dr. John Doherty (PEST author) to develop a delayed recharge
utility as an alternative to the USGS ‘UZF’ package and a PEST pre-processor ‘HYDPREP’, which
became the forerunner of the PEST ‘OLPROC’ (observation list processor) utility.

Thomas Harder & Co. \%
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Jim Van de Water, PG, CHG

Principal Hydrogeologist
Particle Tracking/Solute Transport Modeling

Model Review — Phoenix/Scottsdale, AZ

Client: The Fehling Group. 2021-2022.

Serving as reviewer for a groundwater flow and particle tracking model being used to assess
remediation of trichloroethene (TCE) at the North Indian Bend Wash Superfund site, which involves
an extensive groundwater plume. The 10-layer model was recently converted from an older variant
of MODFLOW to MODFLOW 6 and has now been appended to a model developed by the Salt River
Project. The client is a subcontractor to the prime contractor for the USEPA.

Groundwater Recharge Analysis — Porterville, CA

Client: Carollo Engineers, Inc. 2021.

Used a calibrated numerical groundwater flow model (MODFLOW-OWHM) linked to a solute
transport model (MT3D-USGS) to assess the impact of discharging treated effluent from a
wastewater treatment plant on nitrate concentrations in groundwater. Alternative discharge scenarios
were evaluated over various time periods. To facilitate the analysis, developed an analytical model
to generate nitrate input concentrations used in the solute transport model.

Groundwater Recharge Analysis — Beaumont, CA

Client: Beaumont Basin Watermaster. 2020.

Ported an existing calibrated numerical groundwater flow model to MODFLOW-NWT and then
linked the resulting model to a solute transport model (MT3D-USGS) to assess the impact of return
flow areas on total dissolved solids (TDS) concentrations in groundwater. Over thirty return flow
areas throughout the basin were evaluated and historical data were used to calibrate the solute
transport model.

Groundwater Flow and Solute Transport Model of Proposed Desalination Project- Irvine, CA

Client: Irvine Ranch Water District. 2016-2019.

Coupled an analytical solute transport model to a flow-weighted mixing model to assess the impact
of injection water containing various levels of total dissolved solids, chloride, and boron to a water
supply well field in terms of mass loadings and assimilative capacity based on basin water quality
objectives. The resulting analytical model was programmed to run both deterministically and
stochastically to identify the most sensitive model inputs and the range of probable outcomes. Based
on the results of the analytical modeling and other issues, OCWD revised their proposed injection
scenarios to include additional and more widespread injection locations. Given the complexity of
these additional scenarios, numerical methods involving the use of MODFLOW-2005, MODPATH,
and MT3DMS were implemented.
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Jim Van de Water, PG, CHG

Principal Hydrogeologist
Particle Tracking/Solute Transport Modeling (continued)

Tidal Modeling — Oakland Army Base, Oakland, CA

Client: ERRG, Inc. 2015-2016.

Programmed an analytical tidal-influence groundwater solute transport model and coupled it to tidal-
influence surface water model to assess transport of volatile organic compounds and pesticides into,
and subsequent mixing within, the intertidal zone of the San Francisco Bay. Installed, continuously
logged, and developed several groundwater monitoring wells and conducted tidal measurements
(using pressure transducers) which were used to calibrate the models.

Baker Hughes Centrilift Facility — Huntington Beach, CA

Client: AIS, Inc. 2014 to Present.

Lead hydrogeologist for extensively sampled and remediated site being overseen by the Regional
Water Quality Control Board. Responsibilities include development of site- and regional cross-
sections, aquifer test analysis, and stochastic solute transport modeling.

Hi Shear Site - Torrance, CA

Client: Alta Environmental, Inc. / Lisi Aerospace, Inc. 2012 to 2013.

Conducted aquifer testing and groundwater flow and capture zone modeling using MODFLOW and
MODPATH, respectively, for a site contaminated with chlorinated solvents to identify optimum
extraction well rates and locations. All work was conducted in response to an Order issued by the
RWQCB (Los Angeles Region) and involved estimating hydraulic conductivity values from step-
drawdown, constant rate, and recovery tests.

Former Western Chemical Site - La Mirada, CA

Client: JPR Technical Services, Inc. / SoCo West, Inc. 2006 to 2014.

Conducted aquifer testing and groundwater flow, capture zone, and solute transport modeling using
MODFLOW, MODPATH, and MT3DMS, respectively, for a site contaminated with chlorinated
solvents being overseen by the RWQCB (Los Angeles Region). The modeling was conducted to
assist in the design of a groundwater extraction system. Specifically, the model results were used to
identify optimum locations and pumping rates for extraction wells and provide water level data to
geotechnical engineers to assist in settlement calculations. The model was updated and expanded to
include injection wells and additional extraction wells.

Thomas Harder & Co. S %

Groundwater Consulting
287



Jim Van de Water, PG, CHG

Principal Hydrogeologist
Particle Tracking/Solute Transport Modeling (continued)

AMVAC — Los Angeles, CA

Client: Pacific Edge Engineering, Inc. 2005 to 2015.

Provided hydrogeologic and risk management support for large extensively sampled chemical
manufacturing site largely impacted by organochlorine and organophosphorus pesticides including
the highly volatile and toxic fumigant DBCP. Used vadose vapor- and aqueous-phase fate-and-
transport models to assess migration of contaminants and to identify optimum locations for
groundwater monitoring wells.

Southern California Edison Service Area — Rosemead, CA

Client: SCE. 2002 to 2005.

Developed numerical vadose zone solute transport model coupled to an analytical groundwater model
to assist SCE in prioritizing cleanup for their regional network of above- and below-ground
transformers.

Orange County Water District Forebay / AC Products Site — Placentia, CA

Client: MC2 Environmental Engineering, Inc. / AC Products. 2002 to 2003.

Conducted aquifer testing and developed a groundwater flow, capture zone, and solute transport
model using MODFLOW, MODPATH, and MT3DMS, respectively, for a site contaminated with
chlorinated solvents. All work was conducted in response to an Order issued by the RWQCB (Santa
Ana Region) and involved estimating hydraulic conductivity values from step-drawdown, constant
rate, and recovery tests. The modeling was conducted to assess the performance of two extraction
wells (P-2 and P-3) located approximately 1 and 2 miles downgradient of the source area and to revise
capture zone model predictions reported by the Orange County Water District (OCWD).

Former LASMO Facility - Port Liberté, NJ

Client: IESI Inc. 2000.

Reviewed MODFLOW simulations performed in support of remedial design involving groundwater
extraction wells and trenches, and a slurry wall for site impacted by fuel hydrocarbons. Based on the
review, an analytical, stochastic solute transport model was developed and implemented to assess the
long-term performance of a slurry wall.

Argonne National Laboratory — Ceresco, NE

Client: USDA Parcel. 1997 to 1999.

Developed numerical groundwater flow/solute transport model using MODFLOW and
MT3D/MT3DMS to assess the potential impact of carbon tetrachloride-impacted ground water on a
municipal supply well.
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Jim Van de Water, PG, CHG

Principal Hydrogeologist
Particle Tracking/Solute Transport Modeling (continued)

Tri Valley Growers, Inc. — Madera, CA

Client: Tri Valley Growers, Inc. 1997 to 1999.

Developed a numerical groundwater flow/solute transport model using MODFLOW and
MT3D/MT3DMS to optimize operation of a groundwater remediation system for a 1.5-mile long
chloride plume and assess the impact of retention pond operations.

Stringfellow Superfund Site — Glen Avon, CA

Client: Stringfellow PRP Group. 1994 to 1995.

Developed a two-dimensional vadose zone numerical modeling (using VS2DT) to assess the
feasibility of dewatering to assess the feasibility of various remedial approaches.

9™ Avenue Superfund Site — Gary, IN

Client: Fluor Daniel, Inc. 1992 to 1994.

Developed numerical solute transport models using both BIOPLUME II and MT3D and a multiphase
flow model (ARMOS) to optimize the performance of a remediation system comprised of dual-phase
extraction wells and infiltration galleries.

Shiloh Road Site — Santa Rosa, CA

Client: Fluor Daniel, Inc. 1991 to 1992.

Developed surface water model to simulate aqueous- and sorbed-phase transport in local and regional
surface water systems (using SWRRBWQ), as well as a numerical vadose zone and analytical
saturated zone solute transport model (using SESOIL and AT123D, respectively).

Thomas Harder & Co. —S
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Lauren Healey

Senior Geologist

Mrs. Healey has more than six years of professional experience including development of basin-scale
groundwater flow models for analysis of sustainable yield, future projections, project operational
scenarios, groundwater quality changes, and groundwater impacts. Her experience includes conceptual
model design, model construction, development of input files, model calibration, sensitivity analyses, and
generation of output graphics. Mrs. Healey is experienced in MODFLOW-based modeling using
ModelMuse, Groundwater Vistas, and Visual MODFLOW and is also familiar with MODFLOW-OWHM
modeling using command line and other modeling software such as WinFlow. She also has experience
with oversight and field inspection on projects involving drilling, construction, development, and testing
of high-capacity municipal water supply wells. Her field experience includes inspection of pilot borehole
drilling and lithologic logging, geophysical logging, well construction, well development, pumping tests,
aquifer zone testing, and collection of groundwater quality samples. Mrs. Healey also has experience with
various aspects of regional groundwater basin studies including compilation of large hydrogeological
databases, analyses for water budget components, and preparation of detailed hydrogeological cross
sections.

EDUCATION

B.S., Earth Science. California State University, Long Beach, cum laude, 2018

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE
September 2024 to Present: Senior Geologist, Thomas Harder & Co. Anaheim, California
June 2023 to August 2024: Project Geologist, Terraphase, Irvine, California
July 2018 to June 2023: Project Geoscientist, Thomas Harder & Co. Anaheim, California

September 2017 to July 2018: Hydrogeology Intern, Water Replenishment District of Southern
California. Lakewood, California

PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS
National Groundwater Association

PROFESSIONAL CERTIFICATION
California Professional Geologist No. 10391

PROJECT EXPERIENCE

Groundwater Flow Model of the Onyx Ranch Area — Onyx, CA
Client: Spaletta Law PC. 2020 to present.

Updates the numerical groundwater flow model of the Onyx Ranch Area using ModelMuse to
assess groundwater pumping impacts. The model encompasses approximately 110 square miles

Thomas Harder & Co. A — 3
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Lauren Healey

Senior Geologist

consisting of a single layer made up of 200-ft grid cells. Tasks include creation of model input files,
review of the model water budget, model calibration, sensitivity analyses, and post-processing.

Groundwater Flow Model of the Kern Fan Area - Bakersfield, CA
Client: Rosedale-Rio Bravo Water Storage District. 2018 to present.

Updates the numerical groundwater flow model of the Kern Fan Area using ModelMuse. The
original model encompassed approximately 160 square miles and was constructed with three layers
made up of 200-ft grid cells. The model included 243 non-agricultural production wells, 181
agricultural production wells, and 89 individual recharge zones. The model was successfully
calibrated for the transient period from 1988 through 2015. In 2016, the model was expanded to
encompass approximately 295 square miles and was successfully calibrated through 2016. The
model is currently being updated on an annual basis to assess project groundwater production and
recharge impacts, and the model is calibrated through 2020. Tasks include creation of input files,
review of the model water budget, model calibration, sensitivity analyses, recharge and recovery
scenarios, and post-processing.

Groundwater Flow Model of the Tule Subbasin — Porterville, CA
Client: Tule MOU Group. 2018 to 2020.

Assisted in updating a numerical groundwater flow model of the Tule Subbasin and surrounding
areas in support of work for the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act. The five-layer, 1,500
square mile model incorporates and expands on the previously prepared water budget of the Tule
Subbasin. The model was successfully calibrated from 1986 through 2017 with monthly stress
periods. In 2020, the model was updated and successfully recalibrated from 1986 through 2020.

Tasks included creation of boundary conditions, creation of model input files and post-processing.

Groundwater Flow Model of the Borrego Springs Basin — Borrego Springs Basin, AZ
Client: Jackson Tidus. 2019.

Updated an existing United States Geological Survey numerical groundwater flow model of the
Borrego Springs Basin using ModelMuse to estimate the sustainable yield of the basin. The model

encompasses approximately 115 square miles consisting of three layers made up of 2,000-ft by
2,000-ft grid cells. The model calibration period is 1945 to 2010 with monthly stress periods. Tasks
included creation of model input files and estimation of sustainable yield.

Groundwater Flow Model of the Upper San Pedro Basin— Upper San Pedro Basin, AZ

Client: Arizona Water Company. 2019.

Updated an existing United States Geological Survey numerical groundwater flow model of the
Upper San Pedro Basin using ModelMuse to assess groundwater pumping impacts. The model
encompasses approximately 3,400 square miles consisting of five layers made up of 250-m by 250-
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Lauren Healey

Senior Geologist

m grid cells. The model calibration period is 1986 to 2003 with biannual stress periods. Tasks
included creation of model input files and analysis of groundwater impacts.

Groundwater Flow and Solute Transport Model of Proposed Desalination Project- Irvine, CA
Client: Irvine Ranch Water District. 2019.

Updated the numerical groundwater flow and solute transport model of the Talbert Gap using

ModelMuse to assess groundwater quality impacts. The model was originally developed using
Visual MODFLOW and was later converted to ModelMuse. Using the model, helped conduct an
evaluation of TDS, chloride, and boron concentrations in nearby wells, including multiple scenarios
of differing constituent concentrations and injection water mixing. The model encompasses
approximately 120 square miles centered on the Talbert Gap injection wells and is a cutout of an
existing Orange County Water District model. The model has been successfully calibrated for the
transient period between July 2008 through December 2015. Tasks included creation of boundary
conditions, creation of model input files, and post-processing.

Beaumont Basin Return Flow Analysis— Beaumont, CA
Client: Alda Engineering. 2019.

Assisted in the development of a return flow accounting methodology to develop annual estimates

of return flow by appropriator within the Beaumont Basin Adjudication area. To account for return
flow within the adjudicated boundary, water delivery record types by parcel (i.e., sewered,
unsewered, landscape, or construction water) were identified based on location, whether inside or
outside of the boundary, and a methodology to address parcels that extended across the boundary
was developed. Return flow seepage lag time was analyzed to account for the time between
application of water and arrival of return flow to the groundwater table. These return flow factors
were applied to both indoor and outdoor water use by account.

Kiowa Well No. 1 — Apple Valley, CA
Client: Three Valleys Municipal Water District. 2018 to 2019.

Provided field inspection during the construction of an 18-inch diameter municipal supply well.
The well was constructed this year to a total depth of 590 ft below ground surface. The borehole for
the well was drilled using a fluid reverse circulation drilling rig. Field tasks included inspection of

aquifer zone testing, observation of geophysical logging, groundwater level monitoring during step-
drawdown and constant rate pumping tests, and collection of samples for Title 22 water quality
analysis. Office tasks included graphing pumping test data, writing the pumping test results letter,
and updating the well completion report.

Thomas Harder & Co. A — 3
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Lauren Healey

Senior Geologist

Arlington Desalter Well AD-1 — Riverside, CA
Client: Western Municipal Water District. 2018 to 2019.
Provided field inspection during the rehabilitation of one well (Arlington Desalter Well AD-1).

Field tasks included inspection during pump and pipe removal, initial development by airlift/swab,
and groundwater level monitoring during the constant rate pumping test.

Adams/Juniper Well — Murrieta, CA
Client: City of Murrieta. 2018.
Provided field inspection during the rehabilitation of one well (Adams/Juniper Well). Field tasks

included observation of video log, alignment survey, and casing inspection and thickness
measurement (CITM) survey.
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Matthew Ford

Project Hydrogeologist

Mr. Ford is a hydrogeologist with experience in groundwater flow modeling, hydrological analysis,
technical reporting, and water resources policy. His work at Thomas Harder & Co. includes developing
and calibrating MODFLOW-based groundwater models, completing safe-yield and water budget
analyses, preparing technical reports, and advising agricultural and municipal clients on groundwater and
surface water management. His background also includes research on statewide groundwater trends and
agricultural water use at the University of Arizona, contributions to water quality and policy work in the
Colorado River Delta, and applied meteorological analysis for the National Weather Service. Mr. Ford is
proficient in a broad suite of modeling and analytical tools, including ModelMuse, Groundwater Vistas,
FLOPY, Python, ArcGIS, HYDRUS, and HECRAS, supporting his ability to evaluate groundwater
conditions, assess pumping impacts, and inform water management decisions.

EDUCATION
M.S., Hydrology & Water Resource Management, University of Arizona, 2022
B.S., Hydrology & Water Resource Management, University of Arizona, 2021

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE
May 2021 to Present: Project Hydrogeologist, Thomas Harder & Co. Anaheim, California

Aug 2020 to May 2022: Research Assistant (Dr. Laura Condon), University of Arizona, Tucson,
Arizona

Feb 2019 to May 2019: Hydro Intern, National Weather Service, Tucson, Arizona
Oct 2018 to May 2019: Research Assistant (Dr. Karl Flessa), University of Arizona, Tucson, Arizona
May 2018 to Aug 2018: Hydro Intern, Tucson Water, Tucson, Arizona

PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS

Arizona Hydrological Society
American Institute of Hydrology

PROFESSIONAL SKILLS

IBM SPSS

RUSLE!1.06 & RUSLE2

MATLAB, Python

Groundwater Vistas, ModelMuse, MODFLOW, FLOPY
HECRAS, HECHMS, HECSSP

EPANET

HYDRUS

Thomas Harder & Co. %
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Matthew Ford

Project Hydrogeologist

PHREEQC
ArcGIS/QGIS
Adobe Illustrator
CVHM2

AWARDS

Donald R. Davis Scholarship Endowment for Undergraduate Excellence (2019)

2nd Place Undergraduate Research Award — Arizona Hydrological Symposium (2019)
Excellence in Undergraduate Research — Hydrology & Atmospheric Sciences (Spring 2021)
2021 El Dia Eugene S. Simpson Award — Best Undergraduate Poster (Hydrogeology/Subsurface
Hydrology)

2021 Hydrology & Atmospheric Sciences Department Community Outreach Award

2021 Galileo Circle Scholarship Recipient

2021 Arizona Hydrological Society Symposium — Best Graduate Poster Award

PUBLISHED RESEARCH

“Historical Patterns of Well Drilling and Groundwater Depth Across Arizona Considering
Groundwater Regulation and Surface Water Access” — Journal of the American Water Resources
Association [co-author] (https://doi.org/10.1111/1752-1688.13234)

“Trends in alfalfa growth and groundwater levels in Arizona” — Arizona Journal of Interdisciplinary

Studies (AJIS) Vol. 8 [author] (https://journals.librarypublishing.arizona.edu/azjis/article/id/5092/)

“Connections between cropping trends, water availability, and groundwater regulations in Arizona” —
Master’s Thesis [author]
(https://drive.google.com/file/d/1 VkIfeOKoTr0q3FXaHJTQzMnwuS 1zNZ90/view?usp=sharing)
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Matthew Ford

Project Hydrogeologist
PROJECT EXPERIENCE

Groundwater Flow Model of the Onyx Ranch Area — Onyx, CA
Client: Spaletta Law PC. 2021 to present.

Support ongoing updates to the groundwater flow model for the Onyx Ranch Area using ModelMuse to
evaluate the impacts of groundwater extraction. The model covers roughly 110 square miles and is
represented as a single-layer system with 200-ft grid spacing. Responsibilities include developing input
datasets, assessing the model’s water budget, conducting calibration and sensitivity evaluations, and
performing post-processing of simulation results.

Groundwater Flow Model of the Kern Fan Area - Bakersfield, CA

Client: Rosedale-Rio Bravo Water Storage District. 2021 to present.

Contribute to annual revisions of the Kern Fan Area MODFLOW model using ModelMuse. The original 160-
square-mile, three-layer model—comprising hundreds of production wells and recharge zones—was
expanded in 2016 to approximately 295 square miles and is now updated each year to assess groundwater
production, recharge activities, and long-term aquifer response. Work includes preparing and refining input
files, examining water budget components, recalibrating the model through recent hydrologic years,
completing sensitivity tests, and performing scenario analyses related to both recharge and recovery
operations.

Beaumont Basin Return Flow Analysis— Beaumont, CA

Client: Beaumont Basin Watermaster. 2021 to present.

Assisted in developing a basin-wide return-flow accounting framework to estimate yearly return-flow
contributions by individual appropriators within the adjudicated Beaumont Basin. Tasks involved classifying
parcel-specific water delivery types (sewered, unsewered, landscape irrigation, construction water),
evaluating parcels that overlap adjudication boundaries, and analyzing seepage lags between applied water
and aquifer recharge. These return-flow factors were then applied to indoor and outdoor water-use data for
annual basin accounting.

Groundwater Modeling for a Aquifer Storage and Recovery Project, San Bernardino County, CA
Client: Blua Consulting LLC. 2025

Developed a calibrated submodel extracted from the USGS Yucaipa Integrated Hydrologic Model to
evaluate groundwater injection scenarios for a proposed ASR project. The submodel was used with
MODPATH and MT3D to assess how multi-site injection could influence the migration of existing
contaminant plumes over a 30-year period. Contributed to the technical report prepared for the Regional
Water Quality Control Board, which supported approval of a pilot ASR program.

Big Blue Mill Flooding Analysis, Kern County, CA
Client: Engineering/Remediation Resources Group, Inc. (ERRG). 2024-2025.

Assisted in preparing a technical memorandum evaluating potential flooding extents at the Big Blue Mill
site near Lake Isabella. Analyses included reviewing dam operation conditions, assessing surface-water
expansion using LiDAR-based elevation data following changes to reservoir pool management, and
conducting a risk assessment for a proposed waste repository. The evaluation included estimating water

Thomas Harder & Co. A — 3
Groundwater Consulting 3 ;
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Matthew Ford

Project Hydrogeologist

levels and river discharges associated with a 100-year storm event and determining the likelihood of
contact between surface water and stored waste materials.

Greater Kaweah GSA SGMA Compliance, Tulare County, CA

Client: GKGSA. 2023-Present.
Provide technical support to the GKGSA to maintain compliance with SGMA and ongoing GSP
requirements. Work includes developing and evaluating surface water budget components, preparing one-
dimensional subsidence analyses and mitigation strategies, assisting with improvements and expansion of
groundwater level and quality monitoring networks, and coordinating with adjacent GSAs to support
inter-subbasin management efforts.

Thomas Harder & Co. —SA
Groundwater Consulting 4
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Russell Benoy

Staff Geoscientist

BACKGROUND

Mr. Benoy has comprehensive professional experience specializing in groundwater resource management
and compliance with the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA), including preparing of
Groundwater Sustainability Plans (GSPs) and developing surface and groundwater budgets. He possesses
expertise in basin-scale groundwater modeling using MODFLOW, along with advanced data analysis and
visualization skills utilizing tools such as ArcGIS, Python, and R. His technical abilities encompass
analyzing land subsidence with remote sensing data, interpreting hydrogeologic datasets to define
subsurface layers, and evaluating interconnected surface water systems. Furthermore, Mr. Benoy is
experienced in the oversight and inspection of municipal supply and monitoring wells from drilling
through final testing and has experience providing expert technical support and analysis for legal
hearings.

EDUCATION
B.A., Geology. Pomona College, Claremont, CA, 2023

Thesis: Geochemical insights into the Hawaiian mantle plume from the newly sampled submarine
flank of Kaho ‘olawe Volcano

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE
June 2023 to Present: Staff Geoscientist, Thomas Harder & Co., Anaheim, California

PROFESSIONAL CERTIFICATION
Geologist-in-Training No. 1927

PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS
Geological Society of America

American Geophysical Union
PROJECT EXPERIENCE

Tule Subbasin Sustainable Groundwater Management Act Compliance, Tulare County, CA
Client: Tule Subbasin TAC. 2023-Present.

Currently assisting with technical tasks for the Tule Subbasin Technical Advisory Committee
(TAC) for compliance with the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA). This has
included updating of subbasin-wide calibrated groundwater flow model, 1-Dimensional
Subsidence Models, land subsidence management plans and hydrogeological sections of the
Groundwater Sustainability Plans (GSPs) for the Groundwater Sustainability Agencies (GSAs)
in the subbasin.

Thomas Harder & Co. 1

Groundwater Consulting %
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Russell Benoy

Staff Geoscientist

Greater Kaweah GSA SGMA Compliance, Tulare County, CA
Client: GKGSA. 2023-Present.

Currently assisting with technical tasks for the Greater Kaweah Groundwater Sustainability
Agency (GKGSA) to ensure compliance with the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act
(SGMA). This comprehensive assistance focuses on critical GSP components, including
developing and analyzing surface water budgets, creating 1-Dimensional Subsidence Models and
detailed land subsidence mitigation plans, updating and managing efforts to broaden existing
groundwater monitoring networks, and assisting with inter-subbasin coordination.

Groundwater Modeling for a Aquifer Storage and Recovery Project, San Bernardino County, CA
Client: Blua Consulting LLC. 2025

Created a calibrated submodel from the larger USGS Yucaipa Integrated Hydrologic Model. Used
this submodel to run MODPATH and MT3D to analyze how injecting water at multiple site may
impact existing contaminant plumes in the area during a 30-year forecast period. Mr. Benoy
assisted in the writing of a technical report discussing the results for the local Regional Water
Quality Control Board which led to the approval of a pilot Aquifer Storage and Recovery project.

Big Blue Mill Flooding Analysis, Kern County, CA
Client: Engineering/Remediation Resources Group, Inc. (ERRG). 2024-2025.

Assisted in writing a technical memorandum defining the potential extent of flooding at the Big
Blue Mill site near Lake Isabella in Kern County, Ca. This analysis included reviewing dam
operations and assessing water extent using LiDAR data following the removal of pool elevation
restrictions. Additionally, performed a risk assessment for a proposed waste repository,
evaluating potential contact with Kern River/Lake Isabella surface water during a 100-year storm
event and estimating associated river flow rates.

Twin Dolphin Slant Wells — Cabo San Lucas, Mexico
Client: Vista Serena. 2024-2025.

Provided onsite field inspection during pilot borehole drilling using directional drilling, lithologic
logging, observation of geophysical logging, well construction, airlift and swab development of
two 12-inch diameter municipal supply well. The wells were constructed to depths between 150
to 200 ft below ground surface and were drilled at angles between 15 and 20 degrees — extending
under the ocean.

Thomas Harder & Co. 2

Groundwater Consulting %
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EXHIBIT “3”
TO

TASK ORDER NO. 1

SCHEDULE

Schedule to be determined by District staff.

7/31/23 Master Copy
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West Valley
N ater District

STAFF REPORT
DATE: December 18, 2025
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: John Thiel, General Manager

SUBJECT: Adopt Ordinance No. 92 to Change the Time for Regular Meetings of the Board of Directors

MEETING HISTORY:

N/A

BACKGROUND:

On November 5, 2020, the Board of Directors adopted Ordinance No. 86 which establishes, among other things,
the date and time of Regular Meetings of the Board. In order to change the date or time of Regular Meetings, the
Board would need to adopt a subsequent ordinance which would supersede only that portion of Ordinance No. 86
which addresses Regular Meetings.

DISCUSSION:

The President and Vice President of the Board have proposed that the time for calling to order Regular Meetings of
the Board be changed from 6:00 pm to an earlier time, possibly 4:00 or 5:00 pm. Since the time of Regular
Meetings has been established under Ordinance No. 86, a subsequent ordinance would need to be approved to
change that meeting time. Pursuant to the Water Code, an ordinance can be adopted by the Board after
publication of a notice of the proposed ordinance. After adoption, a summary of the adopted ordinance would also
need to be published. If adopted, the ordinance would go into effect upon the date of adoption.

Attached is a proposed Ordinance No. 92 which would change the time of Regular Meetings from 6:00 pm to 4:00
or 5:00 pm. The proposed Ordinance would only address the time of Regular Meetings. No other provisions of
Ordinance No. 86 would be changed and therefore, the balance of Ordinance No. 86 would remain in full force and
effect.

FISCAL IMPACT:

There would be costs imposed by the applicable newspaper for publishing the notice of the proposed ordinance
and a summary of the adopted ordinance.

REQUESTED ACTION:
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Discuss the proposal to change the Regular Meetings of the Board from 6:00 pm to 4:00 or 5:00 pm., and if so
desired, adopt Ordinance No. 92 to adopt the change.

Attachments

Ordinance No. 92 Changing Board Meeting Times.pdf
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https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/wvwd/pdfs/topics/6938c965dffef600471ddc37/Ordinance_No._92_Changing_Board_Meeting_Times.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/wvwd/pdfs/topics/6938c965dffef600471ddc37/Ordinance_No._92_Changing_Board_Meeting_Times.pdf
https://s3.us-west-004.backblazeb2.com/agendalink-pdf/wvwd/pdfs/topics/6938c965dffef600471ddc37/Ordinance_No._92_Changing_Board_Meeting_Times.pdf

ORDINANCE NO. 92

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE WEST
VALLEY WATER DISTRICT CHANGING THE TIME OF REGULAR
BOARD MEETINGS FROM 6:00 PM TO 4:00 PM/5:00 PM

WHEREAS, the West Valley Water District (“District”) is a public agency formed and operating
under the County Water District Law pursuant to Water Code Section 30000 et seq.; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Water Code Section 30521(a) the Board of Directors shall provide for
the time and place of holding its Regular Meetings; and

WHEREAS, the Board previously adopted Ordinance No. 86 which provides, among other things,
for Regular Meetings of the Board to be held at 6:00 pm; and

WHEREAS, the Board desires to adopt this Ordinance in order to change the time of Regular
Meetings from 6:00 pm to 4:00 pm/5:00 pm, but to keep the balance of Ordinance No. 86 in full force and
effect; and

WHEREAS, a notice of the Regular Meeting, where this Ordinance was considered, was duly
published in the San Bernardino Sun, Redlands Daily Facts, and Jurupa Press Enterprise, newspapers of
general circulation, on December 13, 2025, which date is at least five (5) days prior to this Regular Meeting.

NOW THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE WEST VALLEY WATER
DISTRICT DOES ORDAIN AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. Section 101 of Article 100. Of Ordinance No. 86 is hereby deleted and replaced,
in its entirety, with the following:

101. REGULAR BOARD MEETINGS. The regular meeting of the Board of Directors
of West Valley Water District (“Board of Directors”) shall be held at 4:00 pm/5:00 pm on
the first and third Thursday of each month. Business shall be conducted in accordance
with Division 12 of the Water Code and Section 54950 et seq. of the Government Code
and all other codes pertaining thereto, as well as any procedures adopted by the Board of
Directors not inconsistent therewith.

SECTION 2. Except as otherwise specifically set forth in this Ordinance No. 92, all of the
provisions of Ordinance No. 86 shall remain in full force and effect.

SECTION 3. If any portion of this Ordinance is declared invalid by a court of law or other legal
body with applicable authority, the invalidity shall not affect or prohibit the force and effect of any other
provision or application of this Ordinance that is not deemed invalid. The Board of Directors declares
that it would have adopted this Ordinance, and each portion thereof, regardless of the fact that any portion
may be subsequently deemed invalid.

SECTION 4. The President of the Board shall sign this Ordinance and the Secretary of the Board
shall attest thereto, and this Ordinance shall take effect upon the date of adoption.

SECTION 5. The Recitals set forth above are incorporated herein and made an operative part of
this Ordinance.
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SECTION 6. A summary of this adopted Ordinance shall be published in the San Bernardino Sun,
Inland Valley Daily Bulletin, Redlands Daily Facts, and Jurupa Press Enterprise, newspapers of general
circulation, within fifteen (15) days of the date of adoption.

ADOPTED this 18" day of December, 2025, by the Board of Directors of the West Valley Water District.

Kelvin Moore
President of the Board of Directors

ATTEST

Paola Lara, CPMC
Acting Board Secretary
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West Valley
N ater District
—

STAFF REPORT
DATE: December 18, 2025
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Socorro Pantaleon, Public Outreach & Government Affairs Manager

SUBJECT: Federal Advocacy 2026 Strategy

STRATEGIC GOAL:

Strategic Goal 3 - Develop and Grow Effective Communication and Advocacy Practices, 3F - Increase Efficacy of
Advocacy Efforts at the Local, State, and National Level

Strategic Goal 4 - Strengthen Partnerships with Outside Agencies, 4D - Develop and Maintain Strong Relationships
with Local, State, and Federal Agencies

MEETING HISTORY:

11/24/2025 External Affairs Committee

BACKGROUND:

West Valley Water District (WVWD) conducts an annual federal advocacy trip to Washington, D.C. during the
Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA) D.C. Advocacy Trip. In addition to participating in the conference,
the District engages with congressional offices, federal departments, and policy stakeholders on priority issues
including funding opportunities, regulatory matters, and legislative support.

In partnership with David Turch & Associates, staff has evaluated the District’s current federal outreach model and
explored potential improvements modeled after WVWD’s successful advocacy structure in Sacramento.

DISCUSSION:

Staff and lobbyist reviewed the District’'s existing level of engagement and identified opportunities to strengthen
federal relationships and increase visibility with congressional and agency partners - Proposed suggested changes
are as follows:

To maximize impact and increase the number of congressional and agency meetings the Board can be split into
two rotating groups across the legislative year.

1 - ACWA D.C. Advocacy Trip (Similar to Previous Trips but with fewer Board Members)

o Participation in ACWA conference programming.
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o Coordinated meetings with congressional and agency offices.
o Interaction with other California water agencies and statewide partners.

2 - WVWD Standalone Federal Outreach Trip (New Trip — Spring/Summer)

« Scheduled outside the ACWA conference to maximize availability and scheduling flexibility with congressional
and federal agency offices.

« Fully dedicated to advancing WVWD priorities, including project funding, regulatory matters, and targeted
agency engagement.

o Creates greater access to high-level meetings—such as committee staff, appropriations offices, and senior
federal officials—that are typically more competitive to secure during the ACWA conference when many water
agencies are in Washington, D.C.

This approach significantly increases WVWD'’s visibility and enhances federal relationship-building while ensuring
continuous Board engagement and allows both groups to target distinct policy issues, funding priorities, and
strategic relationships.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Due to splitting the group, cost for travel should remain about the same. There will be cost savings due to fewer
Board Members going to the ACWA Conference.

REQUESTED ACTION:

Discuss and direct staff as to the District’s federal advocacy approach, including whether to:
¢ Continue with a single annual ACWA D.C. advocacy trip; or
+ Expand to a second, standalone WVWD federal outreach trip in the spring/summer; and

o Level of Board Member participation for each trip.
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